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CRIME AND VIOLENCE IN THE SCHOOLS 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 25, 1984 

U.S. SENATE, 
COMMITTEE ON THE JUDIClARY, 

SUBCOMMITTEE ON JUVENILE JUSTICE, 

Washington~ D.C. 
The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:05 a.m., in room 

226, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Hon. Arlen Specter (chairman 
of the subcommittee) presiding. 

\) 

Present: Senators Denton, Metzenbaum, and Grassley. 
Staff present: Mary Louise Westmoreland, chief counsel and staff 

director; Ellen Greenberg, professional staff member. 

OPENING STATEMENT OF RON. ARLEN SPECTER, A U.S. SENATOR 
FROM THE STATE OF PENNSYLVANIA, CHAIRMAN, SUBCOM
MITTEE ON JUVENILE JUSTICE 

Senator SPECTER. Today we are conducting a hearing to examine 
the scope and severity of crime and violence in our schools. We will 
also discuss current and proposed initiatives to combat juvenile 
crimEi~ in the schools, most notably the plan submitted to President 
Reagan by the Cabinet Council Working Group on School Violence 
and Discipline. 

Ten years ago, as part of the Educational Amendments of 1974, 
Congress mandated the U.S. Department of Health, Education and 
Welfare to conduct a national survey to determine the Jevels and 
location of school crime and effective means of prevention. 

The frridings of the 1978 report of the National Institute of Edu
cation ~tartled :many by revealing that 3 million secondary school 
students were victims of in-school crime each month; 2.4 million 
had th&ir personal property stolen; 112,000 were robbed through 
force, weapons or threat; and 282,000 were physically attacked. 
Fear of crime led almost 8 percent of urban:iunior and senior high 
school s~uc!e~ts t? miss at least 1 day of sc~ool a mon~h. . 

The vIctlmIzatIOn rates for teacgers wera equally dIsturbIng. The 
National Institute of Education Study found that each month in 
America's secondary schools, 6,000 teachers were robbed, 1,000 
teachers wer,f::1assaulted seriously enough to require medical atten
tion, and 125,000 teachers were threate:Qed with physical harm. 

A 1981 study of 7,000 students revealed a high incidence of teach
er burnout with over 85 percent of the teachers reporting work re
lated, chronic health problems. 

In addition to the human costs of school crime, the cost to the 
taxpayer has been very high as well. Each month, there are 2,400 
school fires, 13,000 thefts of school property, 24,000 incidents of 
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vandalism and 42,000 cases of damage to school property. Accord
ing to the National PTA, the estimated $600 million cost of school 
vandalism each year exceeds the Nation's total spending for text
books. 

The general public's concern over the lack of discipline in t~e 
schools is evidenced by 10 years of Gallup education polls. There IS 
some question whether the school crime problem has actually wors
ened since the 1976 completion of the National Institute of Educa
tion study, but the fact still remains that school crime presents a 
serious threat not only to the safety of students and teachers but 
also to the quality of education. Students cannot learn in an atm013-
phere of fear, and teachers should not be forced to spend between 
30 to 80 percent of their time on discipline. Furthermore, recent 
studies indicate that U.S. students lag far behind students of many 
other nations in school achievement. If our national drive for edu
cational excellence is to succeed, we must first direct our attention 
to the serious problem of school crime. 

Just one concluding note: I recall very well my work as district 
attorney of Philadelphia from 1966 through 1974 where the prob
lem of violence in the schools was a major ingredient of concern to 
law enforcement, police, and prosecutor alike. This is an issue 
which has long been festering. It is a conlplex issue with civil 
rights of the students involved and working rights of the teachers 
involved. 

And we're going to be striving to find some balance and some 
line where there may be a.ppropriate Federal action to assist in 
maintaining an appropriate level of order in the schoolroom, while 
still maintaining the traditional liberties and being senMtive to an 
appropriate balance on rights of students. 

[The prepared statement of Senator Thurmond, chairman, Com
mittee on the Judiciary, follows:] 

PREPARED STATEMENT OF HON. STROM THURMOND, A U.S. SENATOR FROM THE STATE 
OF SOUTH CAROLINA, CHAIRMAN, COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY 

I would like to thank Senator Specter, the distinguished Chairman of the Subcom
rr.tittee on Juvenile Justice for holding this h~aring on the alarming trends in class
room disorder and school violence. 

Chairman Specter should be commended for the timeliness of this hearing, 
particularly in light of the Administration's increased efforts to bring order and dis
cipline back to the classroom. The White House, in response to the rise in school 
disruptions and the resulting threat to school effectiveness, intends to focus the Na
tion's attention on the need for renewed school discipline. The Department of Edu
cation has been instructed to study the problem and disseminate example of effec
tive school solutions. The Department of Education will work closely with a national 
school safety center that will be set up within the Department of Justice in an effort 
to make our schools safe once again. 

This hearing will further these objectives by receiving testimony from witnesses 
with first-hand or expert knowledge in the subject and by presenting a public forum 
and a tormal record of the problem. Further testimony received from the Adminis
trator of the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention should explain 
the role of the Administration in implementing the return of orderly education. 

While many things may have changed since I was a teacher and a country super
intendent of education in South Carolina, one thing still remains true; a strong edu
cational system is basic to the strength of our society. Our youth deserve a safe and 
orderly place to study and learn. It is the responsibility of everyone to see that our 
schools are such a place. 

I would like to join with the Members of the Subcommittee in welcoming the wit
nesses before us today and I would especially like to join with Senator Specter in 
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welcoming our friend, Mr. Regnery here today. Thank you all for appearing, I look 
forward to hearing what.you have to say. 

Senator SPECTER. We have with us the Senator from Iowa, a 
member of the JUdiciary Committee who has done outstanding 
work in many fields relating to children's issues and exploitation of 
children in a number of directions. My esteemed colleague, Senator 
Charles Grassley, whom I turn to at this point. . 

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. CHARLES E. GRASSLEY, A U.S. 
~SENATOR FROM THE STATE OF IOWA 

Senator GRASSLEY. I want to start by commending Senator Spec
ter for doing more than his fair share in examining the State of 
this country's school system. 

I am here today because I recognize, as I ~elieve my colleagues 
recognize, that this issue transcends the boundaries of a particular 
State or locality, but yet with the philosophical leaning that the so
lutions do not necessarily lie in Congress making policy in the area 
of discipline or merit payor a wide range of issues; that perhaps 
bringing some direction to the dialog on the issue can be very help
ful in our States and local communities resulting in a solution to 
the issue. 

However, it is an issue that the very fabric of this country and 
its ideals and freedoms and democracies depend upon. In the words 
of Thomas Jefferson, if a nation expects to be ignorant and free

f 
it 

expects what was never and never will be. 
Now, I understand that our President has spoken of six funda

mental reforms that are needed to strengthen our school system, 
and discipline was mentioned as the first of these six reforms. 

I do not believe that any of us would question the notion that an 
effective education necessarily depends upon a conducive environ
ment. I fhould state at the outset, however, that not every school 
system and not evrry State suffers from disruptive behavior in the 
school environment. 

Contacts with my own State of Iowa reveal that disruption in the 
classroom is not an insidious problem. For example, Floyd Withers, 
director of secondary education at the Waterloo-Cedar Falls school 
district states that the polling of students, teachers, and parents 
reveal that out of 18 categories basic skills was named as the most 
important priority. 

School discipline in this particular poll was listed as 17 out of 18 
priorities with leisure time ranked as 18th, Principals John Barrett 
and Richard Peters of Des Moines, Iowa, Lee Huth of Cedar Falls, 
Roger Bargeman of Fort Dodge, and James Cordes of Waterloo do 
not believe that school discipline is a problem in our State. 

Nevertheless, a 400-person telephone poll that was conducted in 
one of my cities revealed that the public perception of discipline in 
the school is vastly different from what is actually occurring in the 
schools. For the last 15 years the Gallup Poll has indicated that the 
public perceives that school discipline is a major problem with edu
cation in the public schools. 

My contacts with Iowa principals and school board members just 
do not validate these perceptions. Possibly the word is just· not get-
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ting out that discipline is greatly improved to the extent that it 
simply is not a major problem in my State's schools. 

Probably our lack of disciplinary problems explains in part our 
good fortune as being ranked as two out of 28 States in college 
achievement tests. Iowa is ranked 43d out of 51 States in receiving 
Federal funding, but we in Iowa are ranked among the top three in 
terms of excellence in education. 

The only explanation, of course, for these results is found in 
something that we in Washington cannot legislate or prompt 
through Federal funding or by waving any kind of legislative wand, 
and that's call active, concerned citizenry, the kind of activism and 
followup that do not stop with being good educators, but striving 
toward the best education that Iowa can provide its youth. 

Excellence is what this hearing and the President's involvement 
is all about, Mr. Chairlnan. I'm not saying that funding doesn't 
play an important role; I've heard time and time again that we 
must be willing to pay our teachers reasonable salaries and that 
we must be "villing to try to continue to attract our colleges' best 
and brightest to pass on this legacy of excellence. 

But active concern, parental involvement through parent-teacher 
programs and tutorial programs are important ingredients in any 
reform. 

As chairman of the Subcommittee on Aging of the Labor and 
Human Resources Committee, I believe it may be time to attempt 
to actively divert some of this nation's prized talent available 
within the ranks of the elderly toward our youth, and I believe 
that this is being done to some extent. 

Recognition of the importance of excellence is evident through
out the country. Since 1980 more than half of our 16,000 school dis
tricts have increased the number of credits they require in such 
basic subjects as English, science and math. Almost 40 percent are 
set to raise their standards by 1985. 

Today all 50 States have task forces on education. Forty-four are 
increasing graduation requirements. Forty-two are studying im
provements in teacher certification. And 13 are establishing master 
teacher programs. 

Our States are evincing a desire to keep educational standards 
healthy and strong. 

So, Mr. Chairman, let me just say that I am happy to be here 
and that I am ready and willing to focus on any of the deficiencies 
in our schools, including the one that is the focus of this hearing. 

Senator SPECTER. Thank you very much, Senator Grassley. 
We have a panel today of witnesses who are really stars, all 

stars, each in their own right. And it's a little hard to organize a 
batting order as to who ought to be lead and who ought to be clean
up hitter. We have Director Regnery from the Office of Juvenile 
Justice and Delinquency Prevention and Deputy Undersecretary 
Bauer with us. We win have a Member of Congress, Congressman 
Patrick Williams from Montana. We have -the distinguished super
intendents, Peter Flynn from Scranton and Constance Clayton 
from Philadelphia and Floretta McKenzie from Washington, D.C. 

We are going' to call first on Mr. Shanker who has time con
straints and could only be with us at the hour of 9 this morning, 
which is the reason we have convened this hearing 30 minutes ear-
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lier than we usually do, and I think to the credit of the session, 
everybody was here On time, almost a requirement with school
teachers and officials to be prompt on the session. 

Mr. Shanker, we wel(;ome you here and look forward to your tes
timony. You bring to the witness chair a unique background with 
your status as president of the American Federation of Teachers, a 
position that you have held now for almost a decade. You serve as 
well as vice president of the AFL-CIO, and as I understand it, were 
the first teacher ever elected to the AFL-CIO executive council. 
And during your tenure, your teacher's union has been noted as a 
vital and vibrant force with over 150,000 new members having 
joined since your term of office. 

We see you weekly in the New York Times and know your con
tributions to quite a number of the media outlets have constituted 
a very strong voice. The issues which we are facing today will give 
us a balance as to teachers' rights as potential victims and stu
dents' rights as potential victims; also as to civil liberties issues 
where you have distinguished yourself in the United States and 
Asia and in the Soviet Union as an outspoken advocate of that 
issue. 

So, we welcome you here. Your full testimony wUI be made a 
part of the record, and we invite you to proceed. 

STATEMENT OF ALBERT SHANKER, PRESIDEN7,1, AMERICAN 
FEDERATION OF TEACHERS 

Mr. SHANKER. Thank you. I certainly appreciate your putting me 
on early, and I'm sorry that I have had this very l:.:mgstanding com
mitment; when I give my word, I do not like to break it. So thank 
you for helping me keep it. 

Our written testimony will be modified. I have been out of the 
country for almost a month and got to see it yesterday. It needs 
some additions to it, so we will, within a few days, have an amend
ed statement. 
. I would like to just spend a few minutes on this very serious 
Issues. 

First, I would like to say that school discipline is a very serious 
issue. It has come up as number one in the Gallup polls for about 
14- years. We do considerable polling of our teachers throughout the 
country a.nd find that it comes out number one in practically all 
thE~ polls. 

~rhe discipline problem should also be looked at in light of the 
fact that we are about to face a serious nationwide teacher short
age-especially. if we demand any minimum level of quality in 
terms of testing . prospective teachers for expertise in subject 
matter. And I can'tell you if teachers who know their Shakespeare 
andrtheir Dickens and their algebra walk into a classroom and find 

. thaL their: main job is to be -police men and women dealing with 
either problems of violence or serious disruption, we are not going 
to keep them very long. 

Now, I was shocked this morning to see that there was some tes
timony yesterday, -including"one bit of testimony by another teach
er organization, saying that things are getthng better. I do not be
lieve that they are getting better. I think they are staying about 
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the same. The first point I would like to make is that statistics in 
this area are very unreliable. There is no systematic nationwide 
method of reporting. As a matter of fact, there is a good deal of 
pressure placed on school personnel not to report incidents of vio
lence. After all, the reputation of a school depends, to some extent, 
on whether there is law and order in the school. 

When teachers report violence, very frequently a principal will 
turn around and say, "Did you provoke it." That's another way of 
saying, "If you are going to trouble me with this thing and give the 
school a bad reputation, you are going to be in some difficulty your
self. " You can hardly blame the school administration for taking 
an attitude like that. For example, if you are a principal of a large 
high school-let us say, 2,000 or 3,000 students-and only 1 percent 
of your students is engaged in violence, if each time you tried to 
pursue those 20 or 30 students you had to spend a half day with a 
lawyer, and then go to court for 2 or 3 days, you could spend more 
than half of your school year as a principal in court. You might 
also know tha'':; at thr.) very end the judge is just going to decide 
that the best thing to do for the child is to send him right back to 
your school anyway. 

So the statistics are very unreliable. The numbers go down a 
little one year and up a little another, and the variations cannot be 
used as any signs of optimism or pessimism; they just have to do 
with variations in the reporting procedures. 

Another point I would like to make is that public schools do have 
competition in this country. There are private schools and there 
are proposals to give public assistance to those private schools. And 
I think that if the issue of safe schools is not dealt with effectively, 
the result will be the d(~mise of public education in this country. 

I think that if you wer€:\ to poll parents-not those who want reli
gious instruction for their children, for they have a special reason, 
but those other parents who made a decision to send their children 
to private schools-very high on their list of reasons for choosing 
private education would be the safety of the child. Their second, 
and closely related, reason would be that there is an atmosphere of 
learning, in terms of orderliness. 

I would also like to say that I do not believe that the solution 
that the President of the United States is offering makes very 
much sense. I do not know of any teachers or principals in this 
country who fail to take action against a child because they are 
afraid that some sort of counterlegal action will be taken against 
them. I really think that that is pretty much of a nonissue. 

However, I do think that it is very good and very important that 
the President of the United States has spoken up on this issue. I 
wish Governors would speak up on it. I wish more Members of Con
gress would do it. I wish superintendents of schools and leaders in 
the business community would do it. 

Discipline is a major problem according to public polls and in 
terms of teachers leav\ng schools, and yet there is an atmosphere 
of silence around this issue that is very much like the one that sur
rounded the law and order issue of the late sixties and early seven
ties. Somehow, somebody has gotten the idea that if you talk about 
law and order in the schools, you have to be a conservative; and 
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that if you are a liberal, you keep your mouth shut and talk about 
the underlying causes of the problem. 

Well, nonsense. Nobody likes to have his or her children beaten 
up or hurt. Nobody wants teachers beaten up or hurt in schools. 
Everybody wants action to be taken. Nobody believes that the time 
of an entire classroom and of all the children should be taken up 
with one child who is constantly yelling, screaming, throwing 
things. This is not a liberal or a conservative issue. It is a question 
of how to intelligently administer schools and,· deliver an education
al service to the overwhelming majority of our children. 

I am not saying we should abandon or do nothing for those chil
dren who are sick or disturbed or something else. The question is 
whether we ought to spend all of our time keeping that child in a 
setting where that child is not learning and where everyone else is 
prevented from learning as well. 

I briefly want to make a few distinctions here. First, we ought to 
distinguish the issue of violence from the issue of disruption. Vio
lence is a very important issue, but it is not the major problem in 
schools. We have violence on the streets; we have violence in our 
transportation systems; we have some of it in the schools. And the 
violence issue is treated no better and probably no worse in the 
schools than it is in the rest of our society. It is an overall problem. 

The major problem that we do have in schools is the student who 
is so disruptive. He is not hitting the teacher. He is not beating up 
the other child. Rather he is the one child in a class or 25 or 30 or 
35 who is yelling and screaming and jumping around, who takes 
20, 30, 40, 50 percent of the time of the class and the teacher and 
prevents very much from going on. From the point of view of edu
cational effectiveness-not from the point of view of ultimate seri
ousness to the victim-the question of serious disruption is the one 
that we ought to be dealing with. 

Second, I believe that the Congress ought to be considering not 
whether students should or should not have due process rights, but 
the question of whether the procedures now used and the type of 
due process have consequences which are far beyond those which 
the courts originally thought would occur. That is, if principals and 
teachers feel that there is no point in taking any action against a 
student who seriously misbehaves because the procedure is so time 
consuming and so expensive, and if at the end of it the student was 
found guilty yet there is no other place to put the student but right 
back in the same school, then you have not really put in a due 
process provision for the child. 

We may have gone so far as to create an atmosphere of total ex
asperation and demoralization if in using the process the costs and 
the consequences are such that it is pointless. I think then, that 
the question is not should there or should there not be due process. 
The questions are rather what are the procedures, what happens, 
what are the costs in terms of time, in terms of money, what hap
pens to the administration of the school when a large number of 
people in the school have to involve themselves in this? And does 
this ultimately amount to a situation where no matter what the 
student does, nothing is going to happen to him anyway? For in 
such a case, not only does that student learn a bad lesson, but all 
the other students do as well. 
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Third, I think that we must find a way in which students who 
are constantly disruptive and, of cour~e, those who ar~ viole~t, c~n 
be removed from the normal school setting for the perIOd of tIme In 
which their case is under consideration. If we cannot do that, then 
I think that the public schools will become the schools for only 
those children whose parents cannot afford an alternative or for 
those children who will not be taken by the private schools. 

In a recent poll, parents across the country were asked, "If you 
had a tuition tax credit of $150, $250, $500, would you be very 
likely or fairly likely to take your child out of the public school and 
put him into a private school?" The answers VI.Tere quite shocking. 
Forty-four percent of Hispanic parents in this sample said th~t 
they would be quite likely to take their children out of publIc 
schools; 36 or 37 percent of black parents said so. The smallest per
centage of parents who would switch represented white, middle
class parents in suburbs where the school disruption problem is not 
as great and where children who have such disturbances are prob
ably sent for private help by their parent~ or for some other co~
munity help. The poll suggests that the bIg advantage that a prI
vate school can offer parents is a guarantee that if a disruptive 
child is in their child's class, that child will be gone very soon. 
Your child is going to get an education. 

Now, I think that most of the problems, not all, but 80 to 90 per
cent of the problems of disruption in our schools can be solved by 
the school systems themselves. And I think they don't because of 
poor educational planning and strategy. 

I am not talking now about the really sick kid, the really dis
turbed kid, the totally violent kid, the kid from a background and 
family which that child has not overcome. The percentage of such 
children is rather small. 

Rather, the biggest problem we have is this: a child enters, let us 
say, kindergarten or first grade, and for whatever reasons the child 
does not learn very much the first 4 weeks of school. Because the 
child did not learn very much in the first 4 weeks, he does not 
quite understand what happens in the next 4 weeks; and then he 
does not learn much of what happens in the next 6 weeks. Before 
you lmow it, that child enters the second grade and half of the chil
dren or three-quarters of them are starting to read and to write 
and to count, and that child then falls further behind. Soon that 
child is in the fourth or fifth grade and still cannot read, write, or 
count. What does that child now think about himself or herself? "I 
am stupid. I spent 5 years trying to do this and I did not learn. I 
am never going to learn it. The other kids sitting around me are 
doing it. That teacher, by asking me to read and to write and to 
count is practically asking me to do the impossible." You might as 
well ask Al Shanker to go out to California and compete in the 
Olympics a couple of months from now. If you ask me to do that I 
can tell you how I would feel, and I know how those kids feel when 
at that point they are asked to do something and they no longer 
believe-and they are probably right-that they can make up 4 or 
5 years of lost time. 

Now, our basic problem is that we wait too long. We wait until 
somebody is far behind, and then in junior high school or high 
school we put in some sort of remedial program and say, "Now, 
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Johnny, you catch up with 10 years of deficiency." How many of us 
know adults who would make up 10 years of some deficiency in 
some area or even believe that they could? 

Now, at that point, in the fourth or fifth grade, many of those 
children kind of tell the teacher-they may not say it verbally, but 
they get the message across-"Listen, I cannot do this stuff that 
you are asking everybody in this class to do. You leave me alone; I 
will sit back here and I will either sleep or read a comic book. You 
leave me alone and I will leave you alone because I am a good kid." 
Or they will be so angry and so frustrated and so filled with bitter
ness and embarrassment at not being able to compete with the 
others that they will start yelling and screaming and throwing 
paper airplanes and doing other things. 

How do we solve this problem? Well, the way you solve it for 80 
to 90 percent of these stUdents, is to have somebody reach them in 
the 4th week, in the 8th week, in the 12th week, in the 1st year 
and the 2nd year-and I am not talking about hiring hundreds of 
thousands of teachers to hold children's hands individually. -Sup
pose that we had talented college students or even gifted high 
school students come into school as tutors? Suppose that every 3 or 
4 weeks we picked out those students who have fallen behind one 
or 2 0r 3 or 4 weeks and gave them some tutorial help? Suppose we 
did something with the parents of those children to teach them 
how to read a story to their children, how to ask questions, how to 
watch television together, how to do things which will bring them 
up? In sum, the greatest cause of disruption in schools comes from 
those children who have given up hope that,they can learn or do 
anything. So this whole business of trying to change Supreme 
Court decisions and trying to do this and that has weight in about 
1 or 2 or 3 or 4 percent of the cases. The big problem we have is 
our failure to do the job at the time it can be done, at the time 
when the child still has faith and confidence, at a time when it is 
very cheap to do it, at a time when we can be successful. Anybody 
who talks about solving this problem without talking about reach
ing children early enough and taking the 80 or 90 percent who 
could make- it and then concentrating our efforts on the hardcore 
problems is, I think, just scratching at the surface and not dealing 
with the problem when it is easier to deal with it. 

One final point: at grade four or five there are some children 
who have not made it, and consequently I do not think we should 
keep them in regular school settings for the rest of their lives. You 
know, it is hard even for adults to sit down at 8:30 or 9 o'clock in 
the morning-and stay still in one seat and keep quiet until 3 in the 
afternoon. I do not know of many teachers who can do it. Yet that 
is what we ask of a first-grade child and a second-grade child. And 
if the child starts moving around or jumps a little, we say that 
child-is disturbed or disruptive. Well, some kids cannot sit still that 
long. 

They cannot listen that long. They cannot keep their mouths 
shut that long. That does not necessarily mean they are evil chil
dren or terrible or something else. There is no reason why we 

. cannot \try some sort of other settings for those children we have 
tried to help in kindergarten, the first, second, third, and fourth 

------------------------~----~~~~--~,----~-~-~-~.~.---------~---------~~-~~----~ 
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grade, but who did not learn with a blackboard and a teacher and 
with books. 

Let me give you an example. In a previous life, I was a Boy Scout 
and later became a volunteer leader in the Boy Scouts. I remember 
quite a few youngsters coming into the Boy Scouts who did not 
learn very much in school. But the minute they came into the Boy 
Scouts and wanted to become a Second Class Scout and a First 
Class Scout and to take a merit badge, they all of a sudden learned 
how to read certain words. They learned how· to read a compass. 
They learned how to make a map. They learned how to read a 
recipe so they could do their cooking, and so forth. 

We have all seen that sort of thing. The Army has seen that sort 
of an experience. People who have gone to work and did not learn 
much at school learn things on the job. So I think. that one of the 
things that we ought to do is develop other types of educational set
tings for children who are around grades four or five and who are 
so uncomfortable in a regular school setting, rather than keep 
them in the settings where they obviously are not going to be able 
to function. 

I think that those are the key points I would like to make. I 
would be happy to respond to any questions if you have any. 

Senator SPECTER. Well, Mr. Shanker, we thank you very much 
for your testimony. The suggestions you have made about tutoring 
and parents, I think, are obviously excellent. That is far beyond the 
role of wha+:. the Federal Government can do. 

You then isolate a narrower problem. And my first question to 
you is that as to the narrower problem, do you think that there is a 
role that the Congress and the Federal Government can play with 
some corrective legislation? 

Mr. SHANKER. First, I think that if students who are accused of 
committing some violent act are going to receive legal assistance to 
pursue their case-I am not arguing against that-then school dis
tricts ought to receive legal assistance, too. If the person accused of 
committing a crime-in quotes and sometimes not in quotes-is to 
receive Federal legal help, then why should not school districts be 
given assistance to set up school district attorney's offices and pros
ecuting offices? 

I think that there is an inequality in what the Federal Govern
ment is now providing. If you are going to have an adversarial 
system and if you are going to fund only one side of it, you are 
going to have an unequal system. 

Senator SPECTER. Well, suppose the issue arising with the stu
dent is not a criminal charge, but is only a school disciplinary 
matter. To my knowledge, there is no Federal right for that kind of 
a student to have legal counseling or any right for the State to pro
vide counseling. 

Mr. SHANKER. No, but there might be certain rights under the 
Education for All Handicapped Act. For instance, if the disruptive 
behavior of that student is viewed as being part of an emotional 
handicap, you may have some requirements that that student be 
mainstreamed, rather than separated, if he's viewed as a handi
capped student. 

It 
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Senator SPECTER. But I know of no rights which give that kind of 
a student even under that circumstance the right to counsel in a 
school disciplinary proceeding. 

Mr. SHANKER. That is true, but they do have a right to a long 
series of hearings in terms of their placement. 

Senator SPECTER. Well, I am about to come to that. But as to the 
right to counsel, the Federal requirements evolving from Gideon v. 
Wainwright in 1963 have been once hailed into court. And that has 
been expanded in terms of felonies, misdemeanors, et cetera. 

Mr. SHANKER. Right. 
Senator SPECTER. But I know of no right that a student would 

have to counsel, provided either at State or Federal expense. And 
then we come to the question which you have quite properly raised. 
There are two decisions by the Supreme Court, which I would be 

, very interested in your views on and I am sure Senator Grassley 
would be, too. One of them is the 19'74 decision of the Supreme 
Court in Wood v. Strickland where the Supreme Court said that 
school officials would be liable under section 1983 if they knew or 
reasonably should have known that the action they took was 
within the sphere of official responsibility Now, that raises a ques
tion as to what level of conduct there ought to be for liability. 

I do not believe anybody is saying, as you have outlined, that 
there should be no area of liability. If you deal with a judge who 
makes a decision, he is absolutely immune from liablility with 
some very rare exceptions not worth talking about here. If you talk 
about a Senator and what we say in this proceeding or what you 
say, there is absolute privilege. 

If you talk about newspapers, there has to be a showing for civil 
liability for malice or reckless disregard, which is equated with 
malice. 

Now, the question is: Given a teacher's official responsibilities or 
quasi-official responsibilities, should they be held to the very base, 
lowest standard for civil liability which is now imposed? That is 
negligence or knowledge or reason to know, which is a bare negli
gence standard. 

And the question is: Should that be modified to require that 
there be some reckless disregard, as say in Sullivan/New York 
Times standard or some of the newspaper cases? 

Mr. SHANKER. I do not consider this a serious problem. That is, I 
think the view is that because of the standard that now exists 
there are many teachers or administrators who are afraid to take 
action because they are afraid of the consequences. I just do not 
think that is true. 

Senator SPECTER. You think that the standard for civil liability is 
not a serious impediment to teacher action? 

Mr. SHANKER. That. is right. I do not see any set of teacher or 
administrator victims out there who have taken action and then 
action was taken against them, I· am sure that we would be reading 
about all the cases of the poor teacher or principal who acted in 
this way and then was hauled into court. Where are they? 

Senator SPECTER. How about the issue of uncorroborated com
plaints? That is a question which is very troublesome in police mis
conduct cases, for example, where it is one on one, a young child 
against a teacher where only two people are present. 

-~---~ .. --.----
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Do you think that there ought to be some standard of at least 
some line of corroboration before that complaint is processed? . 

Mr. SHANKER. I think the question is what kind of complamts 
are you talking about? If you are tal~in~ about action ~n the part 
of the student, that is, let us say, crImInal type of actIon, then I 
think that the kinds of evidence you require probably ought to be 
closer to what you require in the outside world. in crimi!lal c~ses 
for adults. I think if you are dealing with questIons of dlsruptIO~, 
educational placement, removal, or something like that, I thInk It 
ought to be much, much looser. A that end you ought to get very 
close to the school and teacher being in loco parentis. In the ot~er 
case you ought to have very strong rights becal:lse you are de!lhng 
with very, very serious issues.. If t~e sch.ool IS strapped WIth. a 
series of procedures on every mInor dIsruptIve movement of a chIld 
from one classroom to another or from one teacher or one school or 
something like that, you cannot operat~ the school.. .. 

Senator SPECTER. Well, in a case of In loco parentIs, standmg In 
the position of the parent, the parent can spank the child. You 
cannot go to far lengths of child abuse without being subjected to 
the criminal process, even for ~ parent. . 

Would you think that spanking would be approprIate or--
Mr. SHANKER. No, we do not advocate that. 
Senator SPECTER. How far would you go in loco parentis? 
Mr. SHANKER. We do not want to prohibit spanking either. That 

is a local matter. There are a few school districts that like it and 
the people there like it. Why we do not happen to think that that 
is very much of an educational answer, at least for a school. 

Senator SPECTER. But how far would you go in permitting the 
teacher to stand in the place of the parent? 

Mr. SHANKER. Well, in terms of immediate problems of ~srup
tion that come up within a school, I favor the idea .of rem?vl!lg the 
child, placing that child in some temporary faCIlIty WI~hln the 
school-having the principal being able to remove· the chIld f~r a 
period of time either from the school or to some other locatIOn. 
But the proble~ of dealing with that child is usually going to be a 
long term issue. You have a kid with substantial problems .. They 
are not going to be solved with one punishment. They are gOIng to 
be solved through some COUi Je of treatment over ~ period of time. 

There are two issues: One is what do you do WIth that kId; the 
other is how do you let everybody else learn and let the teacher 
teach. What has happened is that to some extent our procedures 
have said that our first concern has to be with the disruptive child 
and that child's right to stay in that room or to have reason as to 
why he is being removed and put somewhere else. 

We're forgetting about the other 30 children and the teacher and 
the atmosphere of the whole school, and we've got it upside down. 
Somehow we have to have permission to act swiftly in terms of 
saying, all right, you are making noise; ~e will worry. about other 
things later, but right now you are get.tIng out <?f thIS room and 
maybe out of this school today. Th?se kIds are gOln~ to ~earn th~t 
the teacher is going to teach. And If we cannot do that, if that kId 
cannot be removed until we go through a series of procedures, then 
it is all over. 
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Senator SPECTER. S?, essentially what you are saying is the mini
mal amount of restraInt or force necessary to permit the education
al process to go forward. 

Mr. SHANKER. Exactly. 
Se~ator SPECTER. But let me take up one more question before I 

turn It over to Senator Grassley, and that is the issue of due proc
ess and the hearings, taken up in case of Goss v. Lopez by the Su
preme Court in 1975 where the standard was set down that due 
process for a student in connection with a suspension of less than 
10. days, that the student be given specific notice, either oral or 
~rItten, of the. charges against ~ir.n, and if he denies, an explana
tIon of t~e eVld~nce th~ authorIt~es have and an opportunity to 
P!esent hIS verSIOn, WhICh essentIally sets up a hearing for that 
kind of, ~hat w0l:lld be considered a lesser disciplinary preblem. 

What IS your VIew of the scope of that decision? 
. Mr. SHANKER. I do not. find anything wrong with the decision 
Itself. What I find wrong IS the effect that the decision has had on 
school personn~l. I woul~ fi~d it very difficult to argue that we 
educate our c~Ildren to. lIve In a democracy if somebody can just 
bounce y?u. WIthout sayIng w~at happened and give you a reason. 
The reqUIrements of the deciSIOn do not seem to be extremely oner
ous. ~ cannot in good conscience sit here and argue that a child 
who IS about to. be pulled out of a school for 3 or 5 or 10 days 
shou~p not be gIven. a r.eason, should not ha\e an opportunity to 
say, Well, I agree WIth It or do not agree with it." 

~l:lt we must at the same time put some pressure on school ad
mlnlstrato.rs and teachers and others and say, "Look, that should 
not stand In the way of your taking proper action. You still act but 
observe these rules. It is not any individual's failure to act. It i~ the 
whole process. 

Let us say I am, a teacher ~nd. Johnny is disruptive. So you told 
;pe that I report It to the prInCIpal and I do. The principal says, 
Now, Johnny, you are about to be suspended for 5 days because 

you stood up and yelled and screamed and assaulted the teacher." 
And then Johnny gets a chance to respond. Now if I am the princi
pal. I know that now this means that Johnny may get some legal 
a~sIstance, and I am going to have to sit down for a couple of hour::; 
WIth a l~wyer to talk about what I handle, what I do when I am 
brought In. 

In a while I go to court and spend a day there. We all know what 
happens .the first d~y: It is postponed. So that is my day. I come 
back aga~n. !3y the tune I am finIshed I have spent maybe 3% days 
as th~ prInCIpal of a school on one child. There are only 180 school 
days In ~ year, or 1~1. or 82. If I spend 3 days on one child, what 
am I dOIng? .W~eI?- ~t IS all over,. what is that judge going to do? 
Tl?-royv the kId In JaIl? No. That IS going to make him a hardened 
CrImInal. T~row hIm out on the street, deprive him of an education 
an.d have hUT! do the same things out there? No. What is that judge 
go~ng to say? After I haye gone through this whole process, what is 
gOIng to happen? He IS going to say, "Send the child back to 
school." 

You knovy what I can do? All I can do is say to the teacher who 
ha.s been hIt or beaten up or something else, "Look, I know it is 
gOIng to be very embarrassing for you to be in the same school 



r 

14 

with a kid who poked you in the face. Would you like a transfer to 
another school so it will not be embarrassing?" 

You take any little piece of this, like that Supreme Court deci
sion, and it is OK. But the whole process somehow does not work. 

Senator SPECTER. Mr. Shanker, I do not think you can really say 
that ther~ is .nothing wro;n~ with ~he decision and then say, but the 
pl'oblem IS ~Ith the way It IS carrIed out. As I hear your testimony, 
:you do not lIke the consequence of the decision. A decision speaks 
In a narrow parameter, but the reality is the way it is read by 
other judges, Fe~eral district judges, lawyers, other people. And as 
I hear your testimony, the consequences of the decision are prob
lemsome for the orderly administration of the school. 

Mr. SHANKER. They certainly are. 
Senator SPECTER. Senator Grassley. 
Senator GRASSLEY. Thank you. And I know you have to go at 10 

and I only have a couple of questions, and if I have some more I 
will submit those to you in writing. I would appreciate your ;e
sponse if I have to do that. 

I understand the thesis of your testimony, and that is that we 
ought to get to the child at a young age, early on and try to help 
him or her at that point. 

And with of your thesis in mind, I still want to ask you some 
questions along the lines of Senator Specter and refer, first of all, 
to a stU?y by Jac~o;n Tob~y, professor of sociology and. director of 
the Institute of CrImInologICal Research at Rutgers University. 

He stated that related to the extension of civil rights in the 
s~h~ol . setting is the decreased ability of schools to get help with 
dlsclphne problems from the juvenile courts. You have been frus
trated with courts as an answer to the problem. I know you have 
stated that several times. 

In line with what Professor Tobey said, do you find that still to 
be phe case? And specifically do you know if courts have ever given 
relIef? 
~r. SHANKER. I do not know of courts ever giving relief, and I 

thInk that we have had a considerable number of instances where 
we have a hard time getting teachers to press criminal charges be
cause they know what is going to happen at the end. The judge will 
return the child to school and even to the same classroom. 

~n our newspaper an? in other ways we say, "If something like 
thIS has happened and If we are going to develop some order in the 
schools, we urge you to take action." We have had a number of oc
casions when a child has committed some serious offense and the 
teac~er has p~esse~ charges. They end up in court. And what does 
the Jud~e do? Fhe JHdge turns to the teacher and starts yelling and 
screamIng saYing, You are only here because the union told you 
to be here and press charges." It is ridiculous. 

What we have generally told teachers is that when an offense is 
committed, t~ke action. We .have not tolcl individual teachers to go 
after that chIld. But many Judges tend to forget that if you do not 
have an educational atmosphere in the school, you might as well 
close the schools down and accept that they become the custodial 
institution for disruptive children. 

I think many judges feel that their main job is to be social work
ers. They are dealing with the poor child who is in front of them. 
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They take a look at his home background, they look at his environ
ment. They look at the problems of the child, and if you are deal
in~ ~ith that one child, that is one thi~g. But that judge is not 
thInkIng of the 29 or 30 or 32 other chIldren back in school and 
what. happens to their education if that child goes back. 

It IS t?O bad that the oth~r kids cannot be in front of that judge, 
alon~ With. the te~cher talkIng abo~t what happens during the day. 
The Judge IS loolnng at that one chIld and says, "What can I do for 
that child?" He cannot think of anything else except sending him 
right back to the school. 
S~nator GR~SSLEY. My sec?nd questio!1 deals with a study by the 

NatIOnal InstItute of Educahon. And thIS was conducted in 1975-76 
of 640 different public secondary schools on victimization. 

This ~urvey, as well as a national crime survey, which was con
ducted In 1972, concluded that most school crime, like crime out
side the school, was nonviolent. Do you think that recent studies 
would indicate that this still holds true? 

The study was done 10 years ago. 
Mr. SHANKER. Yes. 
Senator GRASSLEY. There has been no improvement in it, no 

change in that? 
Mr. SHANKER. I think it is about the same. From what we have 

seen, the only changes that are there could just as easily be attrib
uted to changes in reporting procedures. There are not significant 
changes. 

Senator GRASSLEY. Along the lineE: of what Senator Apecter start
ed. out with saying-and I will just ask you for a generalization on 
thIs-in the second paragraph of your printed testimony, after you 
went through what was done in 1977 by the Subcommittee on Juve
nile Delinquency, you say, "But while its analysis was good, clearly 
the Federal Government did not come up with an adequate re
sponse." 

In these areas you really are not looking for the Federal Govern
ment to have much of a response, as I detect from the tenor of your 
testimony? 

Mr. SHANKER. Well, the Federal Government has entered educa
tion in a number of different types of areas. It has entered, obvi
ously, in the civil rights area, which is a major Federal concern. 
~nd it has al.so .entered during certain specific emergency types of 
Issues. SputnIk IS aL. example-Where they went after certain sub
jects and the retraining of teachers. 

So I believe that a Federal role is warranted if you have a major 
national problem, which I think you do here. I think, for example, 
that in the case of creating some special facilities for youths where 
school districts have tried all sorts of alternatives within the regu
lar system, Federal aid would not be out of line. I would think that 
some program which concentrates on the early years as a preventa
tive program and in terms of maintaining achievement standards 
would be warranted. By the way, it would accomplish a number of 
things at once; not just dealing with the disruption issue, but deal
ing with attracting our future math teachers or scientists. 

We are talking about this at the wrong end. Weare talking 
about imposing graduation standards for high school or improving 
an SAT score before a kid gets into college. All those things get de-
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termined in the first 4 years. And if we want to do all those things, 
we can do a lot more than just make pronouncements about giving 
examinations 12 years later. 

What we ought to do is take that one short period of life when 
we can have a tremendous impact-and at rather low cost, too. Tu
torial programs are not that expensivA.. Requiring homework and 
having some system whereby the kids~a;: call somebody on the 
phone to get a little bit of help with it or ~~~ping the school open 
after school so that the child get help with that homework if he 
cannot get it at home are all good, inexpensive ideas. 

We can get a very high payoff from that sort of an investment, 
perhaps higher than most of the billions of dollars that have been 
put into education by the Federal Government. 

Senator GRASSLEY. Thank you, Mr:"1Shanker. Those are all of my 
questions. 

Senator SPECTER. Mr. Shanker, thank you very much. We will 
have some legislation submitted by the admjnistration, which is 
going to be coming up, and we will no doubt be having more hear
ings. And we may ask you to join us again or to submit your ideas 
based on the legislation. 

But what I would appreciate your doing would be to give some 
thought to what specific suggestion you might have. I know you 
have given a lot of thought to the problem, but as you look at the 
decisions we talk about and their consequences, your insights could 
be very helpful in trying to carve out an appropriate realm to 
maintain the civil rights and balance that you have seen from your 
extensive experience as a teacher. 

If you would mind stepping forward for a minute, there have 
been requests for a photographic opportunity, and that will take 
less than a minute. 

[Pause.] 
[The prepared statement of Mr. Shanker follows:] 
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF ALBERT SHANKER 

I am Albert Shanker, President of the American Federation 

of Teachers, AFL-CIO, an organization of nearly 600,000 

teachers, paraprofessionals, civil service employees, health care 

workers and a variety of non-teaching school personnel. very 

much appreciate the opportunity to t~stify before you this 

morning on a subject of long-standing importance to our members. 

As I am sure most of you know, the problem of school violence and 

student discipline has been with ~s for some time. It has been 

uppermost in the mind of the public ever since we have had 

recorded evidence of public attitudes toward the schools. It' 

also continues to be one of the chief detractors from sound 

educational practice. as reported to us by our members year

after-year. 

I am reminded of similar hearings before the Subcommittee 

to Investigate Juvenile Delinquency in which I participated 

shortly before its issuance of a comprehensive report in February 

1977. In my view, much of what that Committee concluded about 

the nature of the problem still stands today. But, while its 

analysis was good, clearly the federal government did not come up 

with an adequate response. 

While I sincerely welcome the opportunity to review this 

subject and air remedies, I also hope that we will come up with 

some substantial recommendations and not be shy about pressing 

for them. President Reagan has recently put the discipline issue 

up for scrutiny with speech-making and warmed-over reports that 

tell us the same things we have known for years. Solv~ng this 
, 

problem will take more than talk and public relations whipped up 

for a few headlines in a presidential election year. hope to 

offer this Committee a few insights on hoW it should be handled, 

given the recent history of public edUcation and given the 

chronic, as yet unaddressed causes of schoo' disorder. 

Whatever we do must be approached in terms of the new 

emphasis on academic standards and excellence emerging from the 
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current atmosphere of reform. As everyone here knows, public 

education has just gone through a year of unprecedented scrutiny 

and analYSis resultir.g in an extensive series of reports making 

comprehensive lists of recommendations. Practically all of them 

agree that the public schools need to be more demanding and that 

the curriculum should require more basic academic courses. 

Schools and school systems that cop-out by offering easy courses 

intended as pacifiers for turned-off students may come under fire 

since the education community and the public-at-large ar~ both 

committed to a new era of excellence. 

Whatever we now have as a problem of discipline can be 

expected to increase as a consequence of· this new thrust. One 

single thing stands out as its eXisting cause, and this will only 

be exacerbated by heightened standards. ~ varying degrees and 

with varying consequences school problems of violence ~ 

discipline ~ primarily caused by students who !£ n£! ~ to 

participate 1! the educational process schools offer. This is 

not to say that intruders, the quality of school leadership, the 

mix of stUdents in any given school, the inhibitions created by 

recent court rulings expanding student rights, the inadequacy of 

family support, and a whole host of related factors are not 

important. They are. And, each must be dealt with if 

comprehensive solutions are to be found. But addressing anyone 

of these will amount to little more than a Short-term band-aid 

unless all are dealt with and unless are al) approached in terms 

of the fundamental issue of the turned-off kid. Handling this 

will take the thoughtful appl ication of long-term reSOurces 

extending well beyond election day 1984. 

One other point needs to be made here before looking a bit 

more closely at the components of the School diSCipline problem. 

There are really two ways to go. A more hawkish and inexpensive 

approach (the one being taken by this Administration. in my viewl 

is simply to tighten up on diSCipline enforcement and to get rid 
of the troublesome -""'tudents. 

Such an approach is easy to under-

'= \« , 
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stand, legalistic, and relatively cheap. Some of what it sug-
gests undoubtedly needs to be done. But it ignores a myriad of 
preventative and ameliorative steps that could shape up problem 
schools and problem students. A fUndamental assumption behind 
such steps is that in-school approaches which insure that some 

educational process will continue for troublesome kids--even by 

way of alternatiVe programs--are better. These approaches, 

naturally. will cost more money. The first type of effort 

without the secQnd will result in the continUing neglect of 

difficult juveniles who will only take their problems elsewhere. 

It is also likely to be spotty in implementation and leave the 

climate of troubled schools baSically unchanged. 

This said, it makes sense to take a closer look at the 

discipline problem before suggesting what kinds of programs we 

need to solve it. First, we know there is continuing school 

violence. Most national studies documenting this are based on 

statistics gathered in the late '70's, but, we know from reports 

of individual school systems and our own research that the inci-

dents continue at an unacceptable rate. AddreSSing this reqUires 

tough measures including the expulsion of some students and 

intensification of security measures, such as the increased use 

of security guards. 

treated as such. 
Where criminal behavior occurs it must be 

Where schools are characterized by this 

behavior radical steps involving large-scale transfers and harsh 
" : ,~ 

security m~a~~res may be required. 

But. much--in fact most--of what constitut~~ the school 

discipline problem fal,. short o~ the violent extremes. Since 

numerous stUdies report that there is a strong relationship 

between students' academic performance and their misbehavior. we 

can easily come to the conclusion that the best remedies will 

also have to ad~ress this cause. In fact, the best solutions to 

the school discipline problem will address this phenomenon with 

in-school, or !l least in-system solutions that relate to the 
educational program for difficult stUdents. Some of them will 

----- ... -~----- .... -- .. -- -
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involve educational alternatives; some will invQlve the estab

lishment of new codes and procedures relating to rewards and pun

ishments; some may involve new mechanisms for asserting teacher 

authority. 

In our view some combination of security and legal remedies 

together with in-school management and educational approaches. 

will be required to improve discipline in the schools. We w;1uld 

select the following problem areas as among those that teach~rs 

feel are most in need of priority attention: 

* A continuing sense on the ~art of teachers that they do 
not have sufflc1entautFiOr ty tor'id the; r CfaSsrooms
or-dTSrUpt1ve students. Nor are teacners-sufficiently 
aware of their latitude in relation to Supreme Court and 
other court decisions affecting student rights. 
Teachers have little opportunity to become versed in 
these matters and are therefore hesitant to pursue 
actions relating to or circumscribed by them. 

* New interpretations ~ the Education For ~ 
·Handicapped Children Act ~ leading to fuzzy and often 
very expensive classiTTCat10ns of large numoers of 
StUdents as behavior problems, and~efore deserving of 
special treatment, both in toe degree to which they may 
be expected to conform to sChool reg~lations and in 
terms of the amounts of money spent on their special 
treatment. 

* A chronic distance between teachers and school 
administration when it comes to the deVelopment and 
implementation or-5cnoor-ar5crwlTne codes. Teacners 
are often uncertain as to whet er or-nor-administrators 
will back them up when it comes to the initiation and 
follow-through of disciplinary procedures. Studies show 
that schools where teachers feel this way are among the 
most troubled. Teachers also often fear punitive 
reactions from administrators if they expose 
disciplinary problems. 

* The erosion of teachin[ enthusiasm and morale stemming 
ti=Om the fruITrati on oT hay; ng the teachi ng 'p'rocess 
constantly interruptea-or slowedlby disruptive 
students. 

* The failure of discihlinary measures',eve,n suspension, 
~chan~e stUdent be avior, at least 1n ~arf because of 
tne lac o1'~d support servrces-anct am ly back-u~ 
~aaaresS-the root causes of studen~eviance. There 
15 consideraDTe-evTdence that the most difficult 
students are those who do not want to be in school. 

* The lack of sUfficient alternative settings for 
StUdentS unable to function in normal classrooms. The 
teachers' land aaministrator~) sense of recourse would 
be considerably amplified by the use of a variety of 
mechanisms including in-school suspension, innovative 
work-study programs, cool-off rooms, and even alternative 
schools. 
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This itemization of the problems 
suggests Some logical 

remedies for individual sChools. 
Most of these are not new though 

continuing widescale failure to implement 
them suggests that some 

pressure and even incentive funding may be 
outside intervention, 

required. 

* Schools ~ assertive we11-t. , 
leadershl~ that is wiTl,n t ralned admlnistrative 
tlve students; has a c1ea g 0 get tough wlth disrup
schools; acts with reso1v~ gr~sp of the legal rights of 
members of the school sta a~ coo~er~tes witH all 
clearly un~erstood respon::s 1~0 aCh~e~lng,COns!stent, * crlS1S sltuatl0ns. 
Teachers should have reco 
advice ~ pubfiCiilTy fund rci e1!2. TSOPhis!icated legal 

----~~~ __ ~e~ ~ serVlces cen~ 

* Every school must have d' , , 
deVefoped coOperatrverY!byl:d~e1!ne ~ that has been 
parents and students and which 1~ls~~atl0n, teachers, 
by all. The code should b s Oroughly understood 
barga!ning. The code should afl a m~tter. for collective 
teachlng style (math and s' ow or dlfferences in 
disciplinarians than socia~l:~c~,teachers are stricter 
teachers) and should rovid u les an~ English 
representing varying fevelseo;o~ ~ var~ety ?f remedies 
off rooms, in-school sus en 1n ractlon (l.e., cool
alternative education spPe ~io1n, suspension, expulsion 

* Ideally, the school ~ 
, Cla counseling, etc.) , 

enough to-orfr~gram should ~e flexible 
studentS-alte~~atf;:~t~h!~Y'!{lruptrve,or turned-off 
engaged in the educationaT wp~oce enabl~ ~ to remain 
alternatTVes-5hould b - ss. uSlng these----
students who are pote~tfa matter of choice to those 
become mandatory for othe~/ro~lems, though they may 
programs should be offe~ed ~ff ~~ serious c~ses such 
may involve work-study combinatio~s~ChoOl slte. Some 

* Comprehensive sueport se i 
discie'ine ~ractice. ~fScesl;~kt matc~ ~ 
practlces to crack down on t we nown t at current 
in the hope of modifying beh~~f~;Yh or tO

l 
,use sUspension 

unless families complement th ave lttle impact 
their own sUpportiVe action eS:hPunitive measures with 
is weak other types of soci!i ere the family itself 
psychological services m • Counseling and . 
drastic of these Could b:Yd~~e nef~~sarYh' The least 
servi ces. Where the en w sc 001 support 
scho01s should have theg~~ement of others is necessary 
handle referrals expeditio~~f;~ry liaison mechanisms to 

* ~ecia1 intervention and com h 
Chronically disruptedS'Ch ,pre ensive ~lanntng for 
sChools exfst in i!. CUltur Oo s. These most diffiCUTt 
disproportionate number o~ ~~o~~foJ usu

d
al1 y caused by a 

most often found in large urb e stu ents. They are 
allow for high degrees of an school systems that 
latton at the secondary 1e~iffer~ntiation and speciali
specialization leave some s~h~Ol rainshfehrs and academic 
concentrations of the . s w t eavy 
special attention. T~~nstudents most of whom need 
require drastic measures i~~ ~~ChfsCh001s around may 

e orm of community 
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outreach, extensive transfers and specialized security 
procedures. 

* LOng-ranse ~reventative grograms, most importantly early 
childhoo e ucation. In ividualizea-enrichment 
programs for very young children can help prevent the 
educati onal fail ure that 1 eads to later school di srup
tiveness. They can also uncover behavior problems 
early when corrective measures are more likely to have 
an impact. 

It must be said that measures like these form a comprehensive 

package that must be approached in its entirety. Anyone without 

the others is likely to have minimal ~ffect. In recent years some 

isolated items have been promoted with panacea-like assurance. 

Heavy e~phasis on in-school suspension is one of them, for example. 

Another suggests that all we have to do is lower the compulsory school 

leaving age, based on the hope that when school becomes a matter of 

choice for those over 15 the most dissengaged and disruptive 

students will leave. 

Both ideas have come forward as tactical methods for getting 

around the prescriptions of Supreme Court decisions requiring due 

process proceedings for students prior to suspension or expulsion. 

In the first instance, since the student remains in school, 

suspension does not occUr. In the second since the legal 

requirements for length of education has been lowered, schools can 

demand appropriate behavior from students as a condition of 

remaining in school. 

While either of these may have value for some students in the 

context of a more comprehensive program such as the one itemized 

abc~~, by themselves they can do little. Nor can the minimal 

proposals emanating from this Administration amount to much. 

Rather, the American Federation of Teachers believes that the 

kinds of solutions suggested in the package outlined above require 

and deserve federal support. We urge this Committee to consider 

the following recommendations in its deliberations over 

Administration proposals and others it might receive as a result 

of these hearings: 

* Funding for the in-service education of teachers in the 
areas of students' legal rights, the p~scr1ptions of 
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various court decisions in relation to school 
discipline procedures, model discipline practices, 
exemplary discipline codes that work. etc. 
A revival of the Education Professions Development Act 
which used to provide funds for in-service training for 
teachers would be a good place to put a more 
aggressive in-service approach such as those discussed 
above. 

* Support for legal service centers that could offer 
sound legal advice to teachers and administrators. 

* Support for alternative educational programs for 
disruptive and potentially disruptive students. 

* Comprehensive early childhood education with 
particular emphasis on diagnostic elements needed to 
discover problem children. 

* Funds for security guards and other protective devices 
for particularly difficult schools and school 
districts. 

* Support for parent outreach, counseling and community 
education programs in those schools with special 
problems. 

* Research that would further catalogue successful 
practices in all the above mentioned categories, but 
most .particularly in relation to the cost and 
diagnostic practices stemming from implementation of 
the Education For All Handicapped Children Act. Such 
research should also attempt to uncover whether or not 
some efforts to treat students differentially are 
causing laxness in the implementation of student 
discipline practices. 

am pleased to have had this opportunity to testify. 

hope the Committee will come up with recommendations that are as 

complete as the problem requires. The American Federation of 

Teachers is especially pleased that you have recognized the 

importance of a federal review of this most difficult issue. It 

is the other side of the school excellence coin and cannot be 

overlooked. 

Thank you. 
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Senator SPECTER. I would like now to call on the director of the 
Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention, the Honora
ble Alfred S. Regnery; and the Deputy Under Secretary for P~an
ning, Budget, and Evaluation of the U.S. Department of EducatIOn, 
the Honorable Gary L. Bauer. 

We welcome you here today, gentlemen. We welcome you back, 
Mr. Regnery. We have appreciated your cooperation with the work 
of this subcommittee and your leadership in the field of juvenile 
justice. You bring to this position a distinguished record, a gradu
ate of Beloit College, the University of Wisconsin Law School, 1971; 
worked with our distinguished college, Senator Laxalt, as his legis
lative counsel; extensive background in the private practice of law; 
work in the justice department as a deputy assistant attorney gen
eral in the Land and Natural Resources Division; and now as Ad
ministrator of the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Pre
vention, where you have served with distinction. 

We welcome you here, Mr. Bauer. I note you are a graduate of 
Georgetown University and Georgetown Law School with emphasis 
in constitutional law and have served as the director of governmen
tal relations for the District of Columbia Trade Association. You 
also were in the White House Office of Policy Development and 
serving in your present position since 1982. 

Thank you very much for joining us. The floor is yours, Director 
Regnery. 

STATEMENTS OF ALFRED S. REGNERY, ADMINISTRATOR, OFFICE 
OF JUVENILE JUSTICE AND DELINQUENCY PREVENTION, U.S. 
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE; AND, GARY L. BAUER, DEPUTY UN
DERSECRETARY FOR PLANNING, BUDGET, AND EVALUATION, 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

Mr. REGNERY. Thank you very much, Senator Specter. I am cer
tainly very pleased to be here. 

I have a rather extensive statement, which I would ask be placed 
in the record. I will take a few minutes to summarize that. 

Senator SPECTER. It will be made a part of the record in full. 
Mr. REGNERY. Thank you. I also have a copy of the memorandum 

from the Cabinet Council on Human Resources that was developed 
by the Working Group on School Violence and Discipline, which I 
will supply, and you may want to put that in the record also. 

Senator SPECTER. Thank you. We shall; we appreciate that. 
Mr. REGNERY. The Cabinet Council on Human Resources memo

randum was delivered to the President about a month ago, and as 
you know, he has talked about it extensively, and we certainly wel
come the entry of Congress, the Senate side particularly, into this 
issue and look f rward to working with you on it. 

And I suspect, as you mentioned a minute ago, that there will be 
some more hearings on it. We certainly offer any assistance we can 
deliver to you to help out with tbat. 

I am not going to go through the numbers again as far as the 
extent of the problem goes; you mentioned that in your introducto
ry statement. And Mr. Shanker did also. And I guess those num
bers are pretty well legion by now. 

\.. .. 
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I would simply point out, on one other point, that there was a 
very recently developed study in Boston of the Boston city schools, 
which was, I think, finished about December 1, just before our 
report was issued to the President, which pointed out again that, in 
Boston particularly, there is a very serious problem. The study in
dicated that in the past year 38 percent of students had been vic
timized and 50 percent of teachers, either by robbery, vandalism, 
assault or theft. 

And, again, if as many as 50 percent of the teachers during the 
course of a year are victimized, one way or another, I think that, 
for the city of Boston, that certainly points out the extent of the 
problem. 

The Boston report also indicated that during the 1982-83 school 
year, 37 percent of the male students had at one time or another 
carried a weapon to school. And I guess from our standpoint in 
dealing with juvenile crime and juvenile delinquency, that.is an 
issue that certainly concerns us greatly and I think bears on the 
issue of the relationship between school discipline and school 
crime, and juvenile delinquency and crime generally. 

And obviously the school is, after the family, probably the place 
where more influence is brought to bear than anyplace else on a 
student-on a young person's life-and which, if it is properly done 
will prevent juvenile delinquency more than anything else, besides 
whatever is done in the family. 

And, therefore, I think from our standpoint in dealing with juve
nile delinquency and juvenile crime, the issue is certainly a very 
important one, perhaps the most important one that we can deal 
with. 

Another point that I think is important to make is the fact that 
a number of studies have shown that those students who do well in 
school are much less likely to be involved in crime and in disrup
tion, both in and outside of the school. Therefore, as Mr. Shanker 
pointed out, and I am sure Mr. Bauer wHI in a minute, the rela
tionship between academic excellence and discipline is certainly 
one that beGlrs directly on the question of juvenile delinquency. 

And that is, if students are able to get an education, obviously 
they are much less likely to be involved in delinquency, keeping 
both them and obviously the rest of us from a great deal of tur
moil. 

Another issue I think it is important to point out is the relation
ship between crime and disruption in the school and crime and dis
ruption in the neighborhoods surrounding the schools. A great deal 
of neighborhood crime, particularly breakings and enterillgs are 
committed during the daytime by juveniles. And our studies have 
indicated that a great many of those crimes are committed by chil
dren who are truant. 

Studies and anecdotes both have shown that where schools are 
able to maintain order and where they are able to provide students 
with a structure where they know what is expected of them, truan
cy goes down. And where truancy goes down, neighborhood crime 
goes down also. 

And in a minute I would like to provide one anecdote that I have 
encountered that shows that that was true at least in that one 
case. 
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So I think that, iilgain, controlling crime in the schools and pro
viding a disciplinary structure is something that is so very impor
tant in dealing with juvenile deliquency. 

-Let me.for a minute regress and talk about one school that I vis
ited in Los Angeles about a month ago which, to me is the best ex
ample of any school I have seen. We all certainly have heard of 
these anecdotal stories of various schools that have turned around. 

In fact,. on "Night Line" last night on ABC, there was an hour on 
school discipline and school crime and Ted Koppel discussed and 
interviewed the East Side High School, I believe it is called, in Pat
tel'son, N.J., which is another school that has been able to turn 
around. 

But I want to talk about George Washington Preparatory High 
School in the Watts area of Los Angeles for a minute, which, as I 
say, I visited at the end of 1983, and which serves, I think, as a 
very good example. 

It is a school that is about 95 percent black a.nd 5 percent His
panic; 4 or 5 years ago it was probably the worst school in Los An
geles. Crime was rampant in the school. Drugs and gangs were a 
very serious problem. Education was virtually nonexistent. And I 
guess it served as probably the best example of what one thinks of 
as the worst kind of an inner city school. 

A new principal was brought in about 4 years ago, a man named 
George McKenna, who is certainly a visionary person who Time 
magazine incidentally described as a civil rights leader of the best 
quality, who really layed down the law with the students. The first 
thing he did was to get buckets of yellow paint and go through the 
school with students and paint out all the grafitti. And you still see 
big splotches of yellow paint, but you do not see any grafitti. And 
he made it very clear that he did not want any grafitti to reappear 
and in fact it did not. 

He set up a discipline code, which he requires that students and 
the parents, interestingly, sign. It is really a contract between the 
school and the students, which sets forth various aspects of disci
pline. It has a sort of dress code in it and it spells out specifically 
what sort of conduct is expected. 

It spells out the fact that attendance is required, that homework 
is required. Teachers Tillist assign homework. They have to grade it 
by the ena of the week. If students are not in school, their parents 
will be called by the teachers to find out why not. 

The results of what Mr. McKenna did at George Washington 
High School are really astounding. First of all, suspensions over 4 
years are down by over 40 percent. Truancy is down by over 60 per
cent. He told me that in 1980, I guess, 43 percent of the senior class 
even expressed an interest in going to college. Last year 80 percent 
of the senior class actually did go to college. I believe they had over 
$2 million in scholarships that the senior class collected. 

The school has the greatest increase in SAT scores of any school 
in Los Angeles Coun ty. The list goes on and on. As I walked 
through that school, Senator, I was impressed by the attitude of 
the students, the way they were dressed, the way they behaved, the 
pride they took in their school. As I walked down the hall several 
of them stopped me and asked me who I was, why I was there and 
if they could show me anything about their school, and so on. 

... \, .... 
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Senator SPECTER. What did you tell them? 
Mr. REGNERY. I told them I was from the Justice Department and 

we were interested in seeing a school that had really been turned 
around. And without exception, the ones I talked to were certainly 
very proud of what had happened. 

One of the most interesting things to me was that in talking to 
the principal, he told me that the whole process had been turned 
around really without any expenditure of money at all. Certainly, 
they have spent some money on some things, but really it was not 
a question of spending more millions of dollars. 

And in fact I asked him what would have happened 4 or 5 years 
ago if somebody had come along with millions of dollars to improve 
the schooL He said it wonId not have done any good at all because 
without having a disciplinary structure, without having order in 
the school, the expenditure of more money to improve the school 
would not have done any good. 

In other words, the first thing that had to be done was to main
tain-restore order-in the school and give students something 
they could expect. And for that, of course, various expenditures 
might be required. 

That is the sort of thing-the sort of school-that other people 
need to know about, that other schools need to try to emulate. And 
obviously each school is different and has a different set of prob
lems and conditions. But George Washington Prep High School is 
one of the sorts of schools, I think, that should serve as a very good 
example. 

Now, let me just talk for a minute about our initiative at the 
Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention in response 
to the President's request that we get involved in this. . 

First of all, our statute gives us a clear mandate to work WIth 
schools to control crime in the schools. So I guess there is no ques
tion that we are certainly authorized by Congress that we do so. 

In essence what we are trying to do is set up what we are calling 
a National School Safety Center, which will serve as a clearing
house for anybody who wants to use our services in the educational 
law enforcement area or anyplace else to provide them with mate
rials and expertise on methods and techniques that have proved ef~ 
rective in restoring discipline in the schools. 

We are not trying to impose our values on anybody else because 
all of these issues are of local concern, but we have found as we 
have looked around the country that there are a great many 
schools that do feel that they need all the help in materials and ex
pertise they can get. What we want to do is provide materia!s, 
which would be written in the form of manuals, and hopefully, dIS
patch some experts in this field to schools to help them set up sys
tems and disciplinary codes, on the school's terms. 

We will work with the media in helping people understand wh~t 
the problem is and how it can be corrected. We will also try to de
termine what sorts of things have worked best and what sorts of 
things have not worked so we can provide that information to 
schools. 

I am sure there will be some other things that. will come along. 
We have not really completely finalized all of the different things 
we are going to be doing. And, in fact, we have not finalized all of 
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the things that the National.School Safety Center will be doing. 
We are working closely with a number of people to develop that at 
this time. 

1 We ar~ also anticipating some grant .applications on research 
tnat varIOUS people want to do to determine what sorts of tech
niqu<:s work .the best and what .has worked best in the past. And 
we will certaInly look at those WIth an eye toward funding what we 
can. 

I think those are the major points I want to make, and I do not 
want to take any more time away from your questions or from Mr. 
Bauer. . 

Thank you very much. 
[The prepared statement of Mr. Regnery and additional material 

follows:] 
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF ALFRED S. REGNERY 

Thank you very much, Senator Specter, for asking me to testify at 

this hearing on school discipline and school crrrl'.e. The issue is a timely and 

an important one. As you know, the executive branch has been addressing 

the question over the last several months, and we in the executive branch 

and particularly in the Justice Department, welcome your interest. 

The Cabinet Council on Human Resources Working Group on School 

Violence and Discipline, of which I am a member, presented a memorandum 

to the Cabinet Council on Human Resources and to the President early in 

January, which outlined the nature of the problem as we saw it, and which 

made several suggestions on what we thought should be done. We have 

provided a copy of that memorandum to the subcommittee staff. 

Additionally, the President addressed the issue of discipline in the schools 

at the Excellence in Education Forum in Indianapolis on December 8, 198.3, 

and again addressed the issue in his weekly radio address on January 7, at 

which ti~e he outlined some of the things that the executive branch would 

do to try to alleviate the problem. 

The issue of crime in the schools is by no means a new one, nor is it 

a new one to this Subcommittee. Starting in 1975, this Subcommittee h~ld 

a series of hearings which examined the problem of school crime and 

violence. Those hearings received nationwide coverage on television, radio, 

and in the newspapers. One of the lead witnesses, Joseph Grealy, described 

his experience as follows: 
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':"As a prime witness, I presented evidence of the serious nature 
and extent of crime in our schools throughout the country. 
Representatives of school districts and educational associations also 
testified c:'-s to daily grim experiences in schools dealing with murder, 
assault, extortion, vandalism, theft and arson - problems which 
create an atmosphere of fear and frustration and drain sorely needed 
monies from the basic educational process." 1 

As a consequence of those hearings, Congress amended the Juvenile 

Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act in 1977 with the Juvenile 

Delinquency in the Schools Act, which recognized the problem of school 

crime and violence and which set forth various things that my office should 

do to help with the problem. 

As a result of earlier initiatives in the Congressp the Department of 

Health, Education and Welfare, in 1978, released an extensive study on 

crime in the schools entitled, "Violent Schools -:- Safe Schools: The Safe' 

School Study Report to the Congress." The objectives of that study were to 

determine the frequency and seriousness of crime in elementary and 

secondary schools in the United States; the number and location of schools 

affected by crime; the cost of replacement or repair of objects damaged by 

school crime; and how school crime can be preventedo 

The Violent Schools-Safe Schools study included the following 
findings: 

• 6,700 of the nation's schools had a serious problem with crime; 

one-fourth of all schools in the country were vandalized in a 
given month and 10% were burglarized; 

• in a typical month about 2.4 million secondary school students 
had something stolen and about 282,000 students reported 
being attacked; 

in a month's time 120,000 secondary school teachers had 
something stolen at school, 6,000 had ~omething taken by 
force, weapons, or threqts, 5,200 were phYrJ.ically attacked, 
about 1,000 of whom were injured seriously enough to require 
medical attention; 

the risk of violence to teenagers was greater in school than 
elsewhere. They spent 2.5% of their waking hours in school, yet 
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40% of the robberies and 36% of the assaults on urban students 
occurred in schools; . 

data from students interviewed reflected that monthly 52.5,000 
attacks, shakedowns, and robberies occur in public secondary 
schools - almost 22 times as many as are recorded by the 
schools; . 

an ~verage of 21 % of all secondary students stated they 
avoided restrooms and were afraid of being hurt or bothered at 
school; 800,000 students reported staying home from school 
because they were afraid; 

12% of the teachers hesitated to confront misbehaving 
students because of fear, and almost half of them had been 
subjected to verbal abuse; and 

s~condary ~tuden.ts reported beer, wine, and marijuana were 
WIdely a~~llable m tl)eir schools. Almost half of them stated 
that marIjuana was easy to get and 37% made the same 
comment concerning alcohol. 

Although the National Institute of Education (NIE) study has never 

been duplicated in its scope, additional research indicates that the problem 

is still a very real one. A major 1983 study of school violence by Jackson 

Toby, Director of Rutgers University's Institute for Criminological 

Research, for example, concluded that the NIE data had probably 

understated the actual instances of school violence at the time the survey 

was conducted. ("Violence in School", Crime and Justice: An Annual 

Review of Research, vol. 4). 

Similarly, a November 29,1983, report prepared by the Boston 

Commission on Safe Public Schools, chaired by retired Massachusetts 

Supreme Court Justice Paul C. Reardon entitled "Making Our Schools Safer . 
for Learning,j, concluded that the problems described in the NIE report 

have probably worsened since 1978. According to the study, 25% of the 

high school students surveyed by the panel reported that they had property 

stolen or vandalized, 13% had been victimized by physical assault, and 996 

by robberies during the course of the 1982-83 school year. Moreover, 3796 
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of male students and 17% of female students surveyed in Boston high 

schools reported that they had carried a weapon in school at some time 

during the school year -- a problem about which the panel had ''no doubt" 

was "on the rise." In news reports discussing the Commission's report, the 

Boston Superintendent of Schools characterized his city schools as safer 

than those in other cities. 

The issue is not, of course, whether the problem is ''better'' or 

"worse" than in 1978. Any violence in school is unacceptable. Since 

violence is still a real problem in many schools, we need to do what we can 

to help. 

Teachers, as well as students, are victims of school crime. As the 

report to the President noted, "For many teachers, schools have become 

hazardous pla':es to teach and definitely places to fear. Self-preservation 

rather than instruction has become their prime concern." 

And as Ernest Boyer, Commissioner of Education during the last 

Administration, noted: 

"Beaten down by some of the students and unsupported by the 
parents, many teachers have entered into an unwritten, unspoken 
corrupting contract. The promise is a light workload in exchange for 
cooperation in the classroom. Both the teacher and the students get 
what they want. Order in the classroom is preserved, and stud~nts 
neither have to work too hard nor are too distracted from their 
preoccupations. AU of this at the expense of a challenging and 
demanding education." 

In a poll taken by the National Education Association (NEA) during 

1983, nearly half the teachers responding reported that student misbehavior 
',' 

interfered with teaching to a "moderate or great extent." And the 

percentage of teachers poUed by the NEA who reported being physically 

attacked during the preceding year increased by 53% between 1977, the 

year of the NIE study, and 1983. The percentage reporting malicious 
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damage to their personal property increased by 63% over the same period. 

The 1983 report of the Boston Commission of Safe Public Schools, 

mentioned earlier, indicates that 47% of a large sample of Boston teachers 

who had responded to the panel's mail survey reported that they had been 

victims of theft, 11 % reported being physically as~aulted9 and 3% had been 

robbed during the course of the past school year. Ironically, the percentage 

of teachers reporting in-school physical assaults is eleven times the 

percent,age that reported being assaulted in the neighborhood surrounding 

the school. 

By the same token, the cost of school crime to taxpayers is 

overwhelming. Taxpayers pay teachers to teach, but teachers cannot do so 

because they are too busy working as disciplinarians. Taxpl.'iyers buy books 

and equipment, and student vandals destroy them. Taxpayers pay their 

taxes for education, but buy burglar alarms, break-proof glass, and police 

pat-rols for the halls instead. In fact, the National PTA recently observed 

that the annual cost of vandalism - something in the vicinity of $600 

million per year -- exceeds the nation's total expenditure on textbooks. 

Security personnel, security systems, and the cost of lost teacher time and 

the demoralization of schools and school systems is prol>~,bly even a greater 

ex~~nse. 

As the Cabinet Council Report to the President points out minority 

students are substantially more likely to be the victims of school crime 

than are non-minority students. Students in predominantly minority schools 

are twice as likely to be victims, for example, of serious crimes as students 

in predominantly white schools. Teachers in these schools are five times 

more likely to b~ victims of attacks requiring medical treatment, and three 

,~~-----... ~~---"""'----~-~ ---~""----~---~~------- ---
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times more likely to be robbed. 

Minority families, particularly those who live in the inner city, 

depend on the public school to a far greater degree than do middle income 

whites or others to assist their children in their' fight for upward mobility in 

society toward a successful and self-sufficient life. Where discipline 

breaks down in their public school, where crime and drugs are rampant, the 

students who ~ to be educated cannot be, and students who may not 

even have a predisposition to be unruly not only fail to get an education, 

but get drawn into criminal activity themselves. Restoring order in such 

schools, on the other hand, as many schools have already done, by 

consistently and fairly enforcing rules that are understood and known by 

the students and by giving the students a structured environment where 

they know what is expec~ed of them and they know the consequences of 

theIr actions if they misbehave, will -- and has proven to - reduce 

suspensions and dismissals while at the same time raising educational 

standards. 

Di:',':ipline is a key factor in the abandonment of urban public 

education fo~ private schools. The report of the Secretary of Education to 

Congress on the financing of private elementary and secondary education 

reported that discipline was considered to be a very important factor in 

choosing their children's current school by 8.5.696 of public school parents 

who had considered other schools, and 8701% of private school parents. 

Among parents who 'had transferred children from public to private schools, 

discipline was the second most frequently cited reason. As the report 1£0 

the President of the Cabinet Council on Human Resources concluded, "The 

hard-won right of minorIty children to an equal educational opportunity is 
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being erroded by unsafe and disorderly schools. Permitting the current 

deterioration of order in the public schools to continue would be anti-

minority in the most fundamental sense." 

The Cabinet Council Report to the President on School DiScipline 

indicates, in the strongest terms, that disorder in the schools has a very 

direct impact - perJiaps the most direct -- on the question of educational 

quality. As James Coleman concludes in his recent book, High School 

Achievement: 

"When study of the effects of school characteristics on 
achievement began on a broad scale in the 1960's, those 
characteristics that were most studied were the traditional ones: 
per pupil expenditures as an overall measure of ,resources laboratory 
faCilities, libraries, recency of textbooks, and breadth of ~ourse 
offerings. These characteristics showed little or no consistent 
relation to achievement. The characteristics of schools that are 
currently found to be related to achievement, in this study and others 
••• are of different sor~." 

"The reasons for superior academic achievement in private as 
opposed to public schools can be broadly divided into two areas: 
academic demands and discipline. For these are not only major 
differences between the public and private sectors; as stated earlier 
the schoQlls within the public sector that impose greater academic ' 
demands (such as greater homework) and stronger discipline (such as 
better attendance) bring about gr'eater achievement than does the 
average public school with comparable students." 

As the report to the President pointed out, there is general 

agreement with Coleman's view of the importance of an orderly 

environment to learning. The Excellence in Education Commission, for 

example, found that improved discipline is a prerequisite for improving our 

nation's schools. A bipartisan Merit Pay Task Force of the U.S. House of 

Representatives cited improved discipline as essential to upgrading the 

quality of teachers and teaching. In fact, there is little debate that 

educational excellence cannot be achieved without order, and that 

discipline of students is an integral part in their education generally, and of 
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a quality education in particular. Many schools across the country which 

have had serious discipline problems have been able to restore order and 

discipline, with a consequence of restoring educational excellence to an 

astounding degree. As the report to the President points out; 

"The striking feature of the measures involved is their basic 
Common sense. These do not require massive spending -- only 
motivation and leadership. These include such simple steps as 
staff agreement on the rules students are to follow and the 
consequences for disobeying them, and involvement in support 
of principals and teachers in the disciplinary process." 

The Report of the Boston Commission on Safe Public Schools 

concluded that discipline and order needed to be a more distinct part of the 

public school's agenda. The report said: 

tI ••• the Commission found that there has not been a clear 
commitment to make the prevention of disorder and the 
handling of discipline an integral, important part of the 
educational program. This was evident in the lack of 
understanding as to what behavior is expected; in the 
widespread ignorance of the lengthy Code of Discipline; in the 
uneven administration of disciplinary measures from school to 
school; and in the inadequacy of resources that should be 
available as constructive alternatives to suspending disorderly 
students." 

The Cabinet Council Report speaks of several schools which have 

been able to restore order and emphasizes the key importance of restoring 

the authority of principals to deal with the problem of school discipline. 

Let me discuss one example with which I am personally familiar. 

George Washington Preparatory High School in the Watts section of 

Los Angeles, a school whose student body is 95% black and 5% hispanic 

was, five years ago, one of the worst schools in Los Angeles. It had a 

serious drug and gang problem, and was a school where disruptive students 

were, in essence, in control. As Time magazine, in its April 25, 1983, issue 

. said, "Only four years ago, Washington High would have matched most 
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people's Hollywood image of the blackboard jungle. 'Morale here was 

terrible,' recalls Margaret Wright, a leader of the parents' group. 'The 

rooms were dirty and 90% of the teachers were rotten.' " 

In 1979, George McKenna, who Tim~ magazine describes as "a 

tough-minded civil rights activist" became principal, and moved quickly to 

res'core order. He imposed a strict discipline code, requiring both students 

and parents to sign an agreement that they would abide by it. I have a copy 

of that contract, which is a faScinating document, and would ask that it be 

included in the hearing record. McKenna got rid of bad teachers and 

recruited new ones. He and a group of students painted out all the graffiti 

in the school, and he made it clear that no graffiti would reappear. 

Teachers were instructed to assign homework everyday, students were 

instructed that they could not cut classes or school, and tea:.::hers were 

required to call parents if students did not attend. There was to be no 

evidence of gang membership or gang activity whatever, and a host of 

other reforms were put in place. Improvement in both discipline and 

educational standards was dramatic. 

SuspenSions, for example, are now 40% below what they were two 

years ago. Truancy, in 1982, was only half of what it was in 1979, and is 

substantially lower during this school year. Five years ago, 43% of the 

senior class even expressed an interest in going to college. Last year, 80% 

of the senior class did go to college. George Washington boasts the Los 

Angeles school district's biggest increase in the number of studeflts taking 

the SAT tests and the inner city's lowest percentage of students barred 

from extracurricular activities by poor grades. The list of improvements 

goes on and on • 

'------- ~~_~~_L._~-,----____ ~L. _____________ ~_______ _ ____ ~_.-....._~ ______ J..._---"'~_ .... "___ _____ ~ ___ ~ _____ _ 
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I visited George Washington Preparatory High School in early 

December, and spent the morning with Principal George McKenna. He is a 

strong and visionary person who has raised student expectations, enforced 

rules fairly and consistently, and made the students realize, more than 

anything else, that they need a good education to make their way in the 

world. The students are proud of their school, are well-behaved and well

dressed, and respect the school's fair and' consistent enforcement of rules 

that they understand. 

I asked Mr. McKenna about the cost of making such reforms. He 

told me that there was virtually no cost. I asked him what the effect would 

have been of spending any amount of money in 1979 to improve the school, 

and he responded that any amount of money spent would have been like 

pouring money down a rat hole. The school did not need money, he 

explained, it needed discipline and discipline made all of the difference. 

Interestingly, but not surprisingly, as truancy at George Washington 

has gone down, so has crime in the neighborhood. McKenna estimates that 

breaking and entering, perhaps the most common juvenile offense, is down 

by over 60% in the school neighborhood, largely because the students who 

might otherwise be committing such offenses are now in school. McKenna 

also discovered, after reviewing the data, that of some 800 students who 

were being bused away from George Washington in 1979 to largely white 

schools, most were good students who wanted an education, but felt an 

education was not available at George Washington. Since the schoal has 

been turned around, virtually nobody wants to be bused away, and in fact, 

the school has a waiting list of over 200 students to get in. 

One of the things recommended to the President in the Cabinet 

- ---- ---------
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Council Report, and one of the things the President requested that the 

Department of Justice do in his radio speech on January 7, was to establish 

a National School Safety Center. We are now in the process of planning 

such an undertaking. We anticipate that such a center would have the 

following functions: 

act wit~ the Department of Justice 'and Department of 
~ducatlon to encourage an effective and cooperative 
mteragency effort to improve campus safety; 

gather. and analyz<: nationwide information on school safety 
and Crime pr:eventlOn tech~iques and programs that may, in 
tu:n,. be ~tlll~ed by e~u~atlon, law enforcement, and other 
crImmal JustIce practItlOners and policymakersj 

gather a.nd .an.alyze nationwide legal information regarding 
school dlsclplme, campus safety, and criminal law rules and 
pr~ce?ur:es and proceedings in federal, state, and iocal ' 
Jur IsdlCtIonSj 

dev~lop and confer with a carefully recruited, distinguished 
NatlOnal School Safety Information Network representing 58 
states and territories; 

participate in relevant conferences; 

create a .national awards program to recognize and publicize 
out.standmg school safety and campus-related juvenile 
delmquency prevention leaders from everywhere in America; 

publish a National School Safety Bulletin to inform the nation's 
!5,000 leading opinion-shapers about emerging school safety 
ISSU~S and campus crime prevention programs identified by the 
NatIonal School Safety Center; 

prepare and/or promote school crime and safety materials for 
use by. educators, law enforcers, criminal justice leaders and 
other mterested practitioners and professionals; , 

conduc:t a nationwide, multi-media school safety advertising 
campaIgnj and 

visit with key education, law enforcement criminal justice 
and other professionals as well as community leaders in the' 58 
statt;s and territori<:s to discuss and help seek answers to their 
particular school Crime and violence problems. 

-My offi,ce may also undertake other initiatives, and is looking at 

------~- - ~~ 
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other projects which could be beneficial. 

The President requested the Department of Justice to file amicus 

curiae briefs when appropriate in cases dealing with school discipline. A 

mechanism has been established at the Department of Justice to monitor 

such cases and to alert the Solicitor General's office when such cases 

arise. Remaining issues raised in the report to the President are still being 

discussed and planned. 

In conclusion, we at the Justice Department are certainly very 

pleased to be able to participate in this initiative to restore discipline in 

the schools. School discipline is one of the things that Congress set forth in 

the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act, and is certainly 

something that can have a strong impact on juvenile crime generally. 

Schools are, after all,after the family, the greatest influencing factor on 

young people's lives, and to fail to provide young people with a safe and 

structured environment, with a set of rules that is consistently and fairly 

enforced and with the guidance to become law-abiding citizens, is to do a 

disservice to our youth and to neglect our duties in preventing juvenile 

crime. 

" . 
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THE WHITE HOUSE 

Office of the Press Secretary 

. For Immediate Release 

REPORT OF THE CABINET COUNCIL 
WORKING GROUP ON 

SCHOOL VIOLENCE AND DISCIPLINE 

FACT SHEET 

I. Learning Depends on Good Discipline 

January 9, 1984 

o A consistent portrait of an effective school 
has emerged from educational research. Order 
an~ discipline have been established as ' 
determining factors of a productive learning 
culture. 

II. The Problem: Unruly Classrooms and Violence 

o The American Federation of Teachers (AFT) found 
that California teachers spend between 30-80% 
of their time on discipline. 

o A 1983 National Education Association (NEA) poll 
showed one half of all teachers felt that students' 
misbehavior interfere with teaching to a "moderate 
or greater extent." 

o An oklahoma study indicates unruly classrooms 
led over 9ne half of all teachers to consider 
quitting. 

o According to a National Institute of Education 
(NIE) study, three million secondary school 
students were victims of in-school crimes each 
month. 

o Eight percent of urban junior and senior high 
school students missed at least ene day of school 
a month because they were afraid. 

o Although there have been improvements in some 
schools, the problems are still severe. A 
November 1983 ;report on the Boston School System 
showed 4 out of every 10 high school students 
had been the victims of robbery, assault and 
larceny d~ring the course of the past year alone. 

o A NIE study showed 1,000 teachers were assaulted 
seriously enough each mont~ to require medical ' 
attention and 125,000 were threatened with 
physical harm. 

o The number of teachers polled by the NEA who 
reported they were physically attacked du~ing 
the preced~ng year increased 53% from 1977 to 
1983. 
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III. The Impact on Minorities 

o Minority students are more liklely to have their 
learning.disrupted by unruly classrooms and to 
be victims of in-school crimes. 

o Minority students are more likely to attend a 
school in which discipline has broken down and 
learning has been disrupted. 

o Serious attacks on black, Hispanic, Asian and 
American-Indian students occur at a rate at least 
twice that experienced by white students. 

o Polls show that 80% of minorities believe disorder 
in the public schools to be a serious problem. 

IV. The Reagan Administration Responses 

o President will focus the Nation's attention on _ 
the need for school disCipline. 

o The Department of Education will conduct extensive 
research into the school discipline problem and 
disseminate examples of effective school solutions. 

o The Department of Justice will file "Friend 9f 
the Court" briefs in appropriate cases on the 
side of increasing the authority of teachers, 
principals and school administrators to deal 
with school discipline problems. 

o A national school safety center will be set up 
in the Department of Justice to work closely 
with the Department of Education on school safety 
problem$. 

MEMORANDUM FOR THE CABINET COUNCIL ON HUMAN RESOURCES 

FROM: CCBR WORKING GROUP ON SCHOOL VIOLENCE/DISCIPLINE 

SUBJECT: Disorder in our Public Schools 

~Today there is an increasing rebellion against this 
concept of order. Simply obeying whim or impulse, no 
matter how attractive it seems at the moment, doesn't 
really make for freedom as we have been told; it makes 
for anarchy in society and in our souls." 
--Governor Ronald Reagan, at Marlborough COllege 
Preparatory S~hools for Girls; June 6, 1974 

"American schools don't need vast new sums of money as 
much as they need a few fundamental reforms ••• First, 
we need to restore good, old fashioned discipline. In 
too many schools across the land, teachers can't teach 
because they lack the authority to make students take 
tests, hand in homework, or eVen quiet down their class. 
In some schools, teachers suff~r verbal and physical 
abuse. I can't say it too forcefully: This must stop." 
--Ronald Reagan, at the National Forum on Excellence in 
Education, Indianapolis, Indiana; December 8, 1983 
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INTRODUCTION 

The Commission on Educational Excellence has focused long overdue 
concern on the quality of American education. To date, most of 
the proposals for addressing that concern nave focused on higher 
salaries, more elaborate plant and equipment, new and expensive 
"educational initiatives." Whatever their merits as incremental 
improve~ents, however, it is now clear that they will not suffice 
to. atta1n excellence. As James Coleman concludes in his recent 
book, High School Achievement: 

"When study of the effects of school characteristics on 
achievement began on a broad scale in the 1960's, those 
charact~ristics that were most studied were the 
traditional oneall) per pupil expenditures as an 
overall measure of resources, laboratory facilities, 
libraries, r~cency of textbooks, and breadth of course 
offerings. These characteristics showed little or no 
consistent relation to achieVement ••• characteristics 
of schools that are currently found to be related to 
aChievement, in this study and others ••• can be 
broadly divided into two areas; academic demands and 
discipline. 

There is general agreement with Coleman's view of the importance 
of an orderly environment to learning; 

o The Excellence Commission found that improved discipline 
is a prerequisite for improving our nation's schools. 

o A bi-partisan merit pay task force in the U.S. House of 
Representatives cited improved discipline as essential 
tc'upgrading the quality of teachers and teaching. 

o A forum of leaders of diverse educational organizations 
united in defining safe schools and discipline codes as 
"prerequisities" for maintaining teacher effectiVeness. 

o A number of other major critiques of American education 
have followed the Excellence CommiSSion report in 
emphasizing that orderly and safe schools are 
requirements for effective education. 

This widespread recognition of the importance of discipline to 
learning may not, at first blush, appear particularly insightful. 
What may not be fully understood, however, is the extent to which 
the disorder in ~mericals public schools now tranMcends the 
routine difficulties of focusing a child's attention on learning. 
This paper details the extent to which order has deteriorated in 
all too many public schools -- and the magnitude of the obstacle 
that the problem consequently poses to quality education. 
Moreover, we believe that the problem of school disorder is among 
the most significant, and perhaps the most overlooked, civil 
rights issues of the 1980's. 

Clearly, no raise in paychecks will increase educational quality 
-- or opportunity -- if the teachers who receive them are too 
afraid, or distracted, to teach. And improved buildings, 
materials, or curicula will avail nothing if students are too 
afraid, or distracted, to learn. . 

Nor, as this paper will make clear, is this a problem that 
Government (at any level) can ~olve by-itself -- although 
improvements in law enforcement and the procedures of the schools 
themselves are clearly necessary. The problem's roots can be 
addressed only by American parents acting individually -- and 
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collectively -- through the schools. There is, this paper 
details, abundant evidence that parents, and Americans in 
general, are concerned about school discipline and the effects of 
its absence. For each of the last 10 years, the Gallup Education 
Poll has indicated that the public's major concern over public 
schools has been the lack of discipline. Our citizens want order 
restored to the classroom and the quality of education improved. 
Schools must be encouraged to respond to our citizens' concern. 
Mobilizing such individual concern into,=ommunity action is a 
task clearly witnin the President's responsibility not only to 
head the government but to lead the nation. 

I. LEARNING DEPENDS ON GOOD DISCIPLINE 

The message of education research -- and of common sense -- is 
clear: if the American education system is to achieve 
excellence, the problem of disorder in the schools must be 
addressed. A consistent ·portrait of an effective school" has 
emerged from educational research. Order and discipline have 
been established as determining factors of a productive learning 
culture. In the words of one recent StudY3 

"The seriousness and purpose with Which the school 
approaches its task is communicated by the order and 
discipline it maintains in its building ••• Students 
cannot learn in an.environment that is noisy, 
distracting, or unsafe." 

Studies done in other industrialized countries have found the 
same strong relationship between orderly behavior and high 
aChievement. For example, a study of 8chools in London, England, 
found that: 

" ••• schools which did better than ~verage in terms of 
children's behavior in school tended also to do better 
than average in terms of examination success ••• and 
delinquency •••• ft. 

Clearly, disorder and violence in our public schools are very 
real barriers to the educational excellence sought by the 
Commission on Educational Excellence and the PreSident. 

II. DISORDER IN THE SCHOOLS: BOW BIG IS THE PROBLEM? 

"Learning is impossible where behavior 1S disruptive." 
-- New York Times eclit~rial, December 20, 1982 •. ' 

A Nation At Risk documents the threat posed to our country by wa 
rising tide of mediocre educational performance." However, a 
mediocre academic performance may be the best we can expect from 
students who are afraid to attend school. Students, teachers, 
and taxpayers are all victims. 

Students 

-Discipline problems both cause, and are caused by, a growing 
gap between school and home. They are exacerbated by faulty 
public school poliCies framed by students' rights advocates 
who have been so preoccupied with protecting the difficult 
child that they have failed to consider the rights of the 
average child to learn in a disciplined, structured place.
-- American Federation of Teachers policy statement. 

Students have a right to attend safe schools ~here they need not 
fear violence. Governor Deukmejian of Califo~nia, While Attorney 
General of that State, gave forceful expression to this right to 
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a safe school environment ry filing a lawsuit against the Los 
Angeles school district Charging a violation of the rights of 
stUdents by compelling them to attend public schools where there 
is excessive violence. The suit brought by Governor Deukmejian 
ultimat!~ly played a major role in the overwhelming adoption in 
~982 b~ California voters of P~oPOsition 8 which contains, among 
lts maJor features, the followlng prOVision: 

-All stUdents and staff of primary, elementary, junior 
high and senior high schools have the inalienable right 
to attend campuses which are safe, secure and peaceful." 

Th7 California state courts have yet to construe this provision, 
WhlCh in the words of a recent law reView article requires the 
courts to significantly -defer ••• to the school district's 
judgment [on issues of discipline and violence]r.. It is 
anticipated that the provision will significantly strengthen the 
ability of school systems to deal With disrepectful Students and 
outside intruders, and will ~certainly be more than a mere policy statement." 

The most comprehensive study of crime and Violence in the 
Amer~ca's public s~hools was completed in 1978 by the National 
Instltute for Educ.;ation in response to a Congressional mandate. The NIE reported that: 

o Each month 282,000 students were physically attacked in 
America's secondary schools. 

o Each month Ilth2 ,OOO ~tudent~ were robbed through force, 
weapons, or re~t 10 Amerlca's secondary schools. 

o Each month 2,400,000 students had their personal 
property stolen in America's secondary schools. 

According to the NIE three million secondary school Children were 
Victims of in-SChool crime each month, and almost 8 percent of 
urban junior and senior high School students missed at least one 
da of SChool a month because the were afiaid to 0 to SChool. 

A major 1983 study of school violence by Jackson Toby, Director 
of Rutgers University's Institute for Criminological Research 
concluded that the NIE data had pro~~bly understated the actual 
incidence of school violence at the time the survey was conducted 
("Violence in School", Crime and Justice; An Annual Review of 
ResearCh, Vol. 4). 

And, a November 29, 198·3 report prepared by a blue ribbon panel 
chaired by a retired MassachUsetts Supreme Court justice, Makin~ 
Our Schools Safe for Learnin2, also indicates that the problems 
described In NIE report have llke~r worsened Over time. 
Accord;,ng to the study, four out oi' every te:!l high school 
8tude~ts surve ed b the anel re crted the

4 
had been the Victims 

o ro ery, assau t, or larceny during the course of t e pas~ 
tear alone. MoreOVer, an astonishing 37' of male students and 
'\ of female students surveyed in Boston high schools reported 

they had carried a weapon in schoo~ at some time during the 
school year ~- a problem abQut which the panel had -no dOUbt" is 
·on the rise." In diacuasing the report, the Boston 
auperintenaent characterized his city's schools as safer than 
those in other cities. -----

Teachers 

-Frank Skala was teaching a ninth-grade class ••• when 
five young intrUders .. entered and turned his Classroom 
into a national new~revent. While horrified students 
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screamed and cried, the intruders broke the teacher's 
nose, threw him to the floor and stomped on him. 
Television shows and newspapers recounted Mr. Skala's 
experience as an example of the violence that could 
occur even in a 'good school.'" 
--New York Times, February S, 1981. 

"You don't have time to help the best kids because you 
spend 25 minutes in every class dealing with the 
troublemakers, and you can't really deal with them 
and the kids know this. It's tough being 37 years old 
and dealing with 13 year-old kids who are laughing in 
your face." 
--aarvey Brandwein, junior high school teacher, South 
Bronx, New York (quoted in "Survey of Teachers Reveals 
Morale Problems", New York Times, November 19, 1982) 

For many teachers, schools have become hazardous places '~o teach 
and definitely places to fear. Self-preservation rath~r than 
instruction has become their prime concern. 

Brutal outbreak$ of viQlence in the schools, by students and 
(particularly in our larger cities) intruders f~om the 
surrounding neighborhoods, are one cause of teacher fear. 
Examples abound: 

o A New Orleans teacher watched while two boys th:ew a 
smaller child off a second-floor balcony. She was 
afraid to interfere because the boys might attack her. 

o High school girls in Los Angeles, angry oVer low grades, 
tossed lighted matches at their teacher, setting her 
hair on fire. The teaeher subsequently suffered an 
emotional collapse. 

The National Institute for Education 1978 report to Congress 
stated that in 1978: 

o Each month, 6,000 teachers were robbed in America's 
secondary $chools. 

o Each month, 1,000 teachers were assaulted seriously 
enough to require medical attention in America's 
secondary schools. ' 

o Each month, 125/000 teachers were threatened with 
physical harm in America's secondary schools. 

o Each month, 125,000 teachers encountered at least one 
situation where they were afraid to confront misbehaving 
students in America's secondary schools. 

But again, all indications are that the problem has increased in 
the last five years. The percentage of teC!lchers polled by the 
NEA who reported being physically attacked during the preceding 
year, for example, increased by S3 percent between 1977 and 1983, 
and the percentage repor'ting malicious damClge to their personal 
property increased by 63 percent over the lIame period. And, 
according to the November 29, 19B3 report on violence in the 
Boston school system, 50 percent of a largn sample of B(~ 
teachers who had responded to the panel's mail survey reported 
that they had been. victims of robbery, assaUlt, or larceny during 
the course of the past school year. 

But as previously emphasized, the crime fit~ltistics descripe 
merely the "eip of the i~eberg". Consider the following account 
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of a high school class observed by C 
researchers Who prepared a recent arnegie Foundation 
Am~rican high ~chools: ' comprehensive review of 

~By now the teacher is t t' 
'We've wasted almost fi:ea~i~~~ to g~t exasperated. 
rule that you are not allowed testg~~ng over a Simple 
she exclaims. But her 0 a or read alOUd', 
to work either so she ~h07 of impatience doesn't seem 
individuals and implore ~ge~Stoto sinkgle out the wor • 

:AJoe , get busy, she warns. Joe replies that he 
re you being rude?' 'No rna' , is busy. 

the teacher is still not'. am, Joe answers. But 
~~t~~ylefture on impudenc;~lt~tB~~e~o:n~o~~~es i~~o:t 
Prose a~dnpu~:~ryOfWiinllsthructiOtnal time have be~n lost. 

aVe 0 wait." 
Such examples are _not the exception: 

o The American Federation f 
of a cross-section of Ca~ifTea~hers found, in a survey 
and rural areas that Itt ornla schools in both urban 
and 80 percent ~f their teiamChers dSPiendi lbietween 30 percent 

e on sc p ne." 
o In a 1983 National Educati A 

o 

in two teachers reported ton ssociation poll about one 
interfered with teaching that ~tYdent misbehavior 
extent." 0 a moderate or great 

According to the 1978 NIE re ort 0 r 
of surveyed teachers in big-~it- j- iongress, i5 percent 
;eported that they had been SUb~ undor high schools 
students during the preceding Je~~e to obscenities by 
junior high SChOols 43 . mon • EVen in rural 
reported they had b~en s~~Jr.~~~tdof the surveyed teachers 

e to such verbal abuse. 

Attempting to control daily actions 
under the current constraints takes ~~sd~~f~~tion and disorder 

o The International Labor 0 i 
after stUdying schools inr~h~ ~ai~o~ concluded in 1981, 
other countries, that "u to 25 n e States and two 
from severe stress that is lsi %i~i teachers SUffered 
their health. This stress i gni lcantlY' affecting 
violenc " ( i s ma n y due to EUEil _~..;;;..:,;;=e. Wa; 1 Street Journal, JUly 9, 19afr 

o One psychiatrist who nas tr t a 
burnout describes it as eae many victims of teacher 
those found in World warp~0~~cii9 ~ymktoms identical to 
PSYchiatrist calls teacher bu e s .~c victims. This 

rnout a combat neurosis." 
o Out of 7,000 teachers respo di 

over 85 percent answered n ng to a recent survey, 
there chronic health yes to the question: "Were 
Twenty-seven percent ~~o~~~~s ~temhming from teaching?" 
that they were victi e n t e sample indicated 
percent said that th~: ~~o:t~esS-r!lated ill~ess, and 40 
health problems resulting fro~e~~~c~f~~~ndru9S to treat 

o ~P:~~~~dQ! ~i~~~~; ~~r~~~~hamonghChiCago teac~ers 
alive but profession er~ w 0 were 'physlcally 
n~d all but dePleteda~~~i~e:~OCkP·il So~e teachers, Who 
vitality, were aim 1 i e ox. teaching 
te~ching, marking ~i~e9:n:!lth1~~9h theimotions of 
better job. offer came along."e er ret rement or a 
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Ernest Boyer, Commissioner of Education in the Carter 
Administration, has noted that: 

M'Beaten down' by some of the students and unsupported 
by the parents, many teachers have entered into an 
unwritten, unspoken corrupting cOntract that promises a 
light work load in exchange for cooperation in the 
classroom. Both the teacher and the students get what 
they want. Order in the classroom is preserved, and 
students neither have to work too hard nor are too 
distracted from their preoccupations. All of this at 
the expense of a challenging and demanding education.w 

It thus should come as no surprise that studies repeatedly show 
that poor seudent discipline is a factor even more important than 
income in causing teachers to leave their profession: 

o 

o 

The Oklahoma City Federation of Teachers discovered that 
66 percent of the city's middle-school teachers and 52 
percent of all teachers have considered quittins because 
of the verbal and physical abuse they receive from 
students. 

A 1980 NEA nationwide poll indicates ·that teachers who 
experience significant problems resulting from student 
misbehavior are more than twice as likely to say tha~, 
had they the choice to make again, they would not become 
teachers. 

If America's schools are to be-improved, good teachers must be 
attracted to and held in teaching. But by imposing unnecessary 
stress on teachers and draining scarce resources, lack of 
.discipline undermines both the personal and financial rewards of 
teaching. 

Taxpayers 

"Because of concern about rising crime on school 
~&mpuses, the [LOS Angeles] school board voted last year 
to spend an extra $1 million to hire additional 'security 
guards ••• at a time when other district programs were 
being cut because of bUdget restraints." (The 
Associated Press, May 21, 1980). 

While students, teaChers, an~ learning are the most direct 
victims of claseroom disorde;~, the taxpayer. is also victimized. 
Taxpayers pay teachers to te~ch, but teachers cannot because they 
are too busy working as police. Taxpayers bu¥ books and 
equipment and stUdent V~i1dals dest:r,oy them. Taxpayers pay their 
taxes for education, but buy burglar alarms, break-proof glasa, 
and police patrols f6r the hall~ instead. 

The NIE StUdy statistics are again striking. It reported on a 
monthl~ basis in American schools: 

o 2,400 acts of arson; 

o 13,000 thefts of school p!operty; 

o 24,000 incidents of vandalism; and 

o 42,000 cases of damage-to school property. 

The National PTA has observed that the annual cost of vandalism =- probably in excess of $600 million a ~e~-- exceeds this 
nation's total spending for textbooks. And this figU!;'e doelt r.ot 
InclUde the escalating costs uf SChool se~urity. One of the 
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recommendations of the commiSSion apPOinted to study school 
violence in Boston was that security personnel be hired to assure 
safety on school buse~ -- in addition to those now employed to 
police school buildings and grounds. Vandalism and 
policing/security practices, however, are only one component of 
the bill for school Violence and diSCipline problems __ a bill 
that also includes the cost of lost teacher time and the 
demoralization of SChools and school systems. 

III. MINORITIES HA~~ A PARTICULAR STAKE IN RESOLVING THE PROBLEM 

"[George Washington Carver High School PrinCipal] 
Hogans' believes a chaotic school setting and a 
permissive atmosphere can only lead to ruin and 
failure ••• So there is a preoccupation with rules and 
regulations at Carver ••• In fact, the mood on campus is 
one of oL~~r and decorum. There is not the edge of fear 
or the potential of violence that one often experiences 
gOing into large urb~n high schools ••••• 
-"'Sara Lawrence Lightfoot, The Good High School, p. 35. 

Minorities are even more worried than whites about the lack of 
discipline in the public schools. This concern reflects the fact 
that minority students are doubly affected .by violent and 
disruptive schools. First, they are more likely to be the 
victims of attaCk. Second, they are more likely to have their 
learning disrupted. 

Minority st~dents are especially likely to be atticked while at. 
school. As the following chare makes clear, serious attacks on 
black, Hispanic, ASian, and American Indian students Occur at a 
rate at least twice that experienced by white students. 

Minority Victimization Rates Expressed as a Percentage of 
Rates for White StUdents 

Indian ••••••••••••••••••••• 
Asian •••••••.•••••••••.• "' •• 
Hispanic ••••••••••••••••••• 
Black •....••..•••..••..•••. 

Serious 
Attacks 

200% 
200% 
233% 
256% 

Robbed of 
OVer S10 

330% 
33% 

267% 
300% 

Polls show that over 80 percent of minorities believe disorder in 
the public schools to be ~ serious problem ~_ and about half 
consider it a ver~ serious problem. This is a higher proportion 
th~n the white population (although about 60 percent of the White 
popUlation also conside~ diSCipline a serious problem). 

There is sound basis for their concern. Minority families are 
more likely to have children 1n schOol -- 71% of all black and 
75\ of All Hispanic households had 6chool age childnn in 1981, 
compared with 52\ of white households. For too ~any of those 
minority stUdents, diSCipline problems have effectively stolen 
the tickets to upward mobility that public schools have 
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traditionally provided -- and not solely by frustrating the 
achievement of academic excellence. 

Moreover, urban school violence and indiscipline may be at the 
heart of the busing controversy whiCh has so dtstorted public 
debate over American education and has so distracted the country 
from its real agenda -- for black and white children alike -- of 
academic excellence. Problems of indiscipline and violence in 
many inner-city schools have both generated pressures for busing 
and correlative resistence to it: as this report will later 
indicate, effective programs by inner-city school administrators 
that restore both dlscipline and excellence to their schools have 
not only reduced pre.jsures for busing orders but have instead 
generated long waiting lists of parents seeking enrollment of 
their children into such ·turn-around ft schools. 

Discipline is clearly a key tactor 1n the abandonment of urban 
public education for private schools (or public SChools in the 
suburbs). The Secretary of Education's report to Congress on the 
financing of private elementary and secondary education reported 
that discipline was considered to be a very important factor in 
choosing their children's current school by 85.6% of public 
school parents who had considered other schools and B7.1% of 
private school parents. Among parents who had transferred 
children from public to private schools, discipline was the 
second most frequently cited reason. 

The prior Commission on Civil Rights' position on the problem 
vindicates the Administration's concerns about the ·civil rights" 
it advocated. Against all evidence that minorities want more 
discipline for their children, not separate and unequal 
standards, the Commission opined that: 

~Minority students are more often suspended for 
'institutionally inappropriate behavior' ••• ThUS, basic 
differences in culture, lifestyle, and experiences in a 
white-dominated society and the reluctance of the system 
to accomodate these differences account, in part, for 
the high rate of suspension for minority students." 

Therefore: 

·the cultural standards on which (disciplinary codes] 
are based, and whether they are fair standards for all 
children must be examined. ft 

The former Commission, as well as others who have argued that 
school discipline is a aynonym for anti-minority school policies, 
had the matter precisely backward: The hard-won right of 
minority children to an equal educational opportunity is being 
eroded by unsafe and aisorderly schools. Permitting the current 
deterioration of order in th~~ public schools to continue would be 
·anti-minority" In the most fundamental sense. 

IV. WHAT SOME SCHOOLS HAVE DONE 

·We believe that the discipline that we teach them here 
eventually leads to sPolf-discipline that they will carry 
with them the rest of their lives ••• We've been able 
to transform an urban high school with all the 
traditional ills into what we feel is one of the safest 
high schools in the country." 
-- Principal, Detroit Southwestern High School 

·When Joseph Clark was assigned as principal to Eastside 
Eigh School in Paterson, N.J., he found teacher 
assaults, students caTrying guns, drugs being bought and 
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sold on campus, and sexual intercourse in the school's 
corridors and bathrooms. All that tlas changed ••• What 
complex program did Joseph Clark use to bring about a 
learning environment at Eastside? During his first week 
as principal he expelled 300 of the school's 3,000 
students. The word spread like wildfire that anyone 
that even looked crosseyed would answer to principal 
Clark. Back in my day We called that kicking a certain 
part of the anatomy ••• •• 
-- Walter Williams 

ftIn my home state of California, El Camino High in 
Sacramento used to suffer ftom all the ills that plague 
so many schools ••• Then [the principal and the Board 
of Education] put together a program designed to stress 
the fundamentals. One measure required applicants and 
their parents to sign a forro stating in par~, 'We 
understand that El Camino High School will ••• require 
reasonable standards of dress; and have well defined and 
enfor-ced discipline and attendance policies.' Today, 
achievement at El Camino is climbing ••• and the school 
has ••• a waiting list ~f almost 400." 
--Ronald Reagan, at the National Forum on Excellence in 
Education, Inaianapo11s, Indiana1 December B, 1963. 

There will be discipline problems as long as there are students. 
The problems of school discipline, however, can be reduced to the 
more tolerable levels of the past. Research on schools where 
severe discipline problems have been ·turned around ft -- be those 
schools in LOS Angeles or Atlanta or Detroit or Paterson, New 
Jersey -- all points to a consistent prescript~on for curing 
disorderly schools. The striking feature of the measures 
involved is their basic common sense. These do not require 
massive spending -- only motivation and leadership. These 
include such sim~le steps as staff agreement on the rules 
students are to follow and the consequences for disobeying them, 
and involvement and support of principals and teachers in the 
disciplinary process. 

Some jurisdictions have successfully implemented ·Community 
Compacts ft involving the juvenile courts, and local government 
officials in addition to parents and the schools. Where such 
compacts have been adopted, both discipline and aChievement have 
dramatically improved. 

. 
The El Camino High School experience described by the President 
in his National Forum speech 1s, of course, not the only instance 
in which a school has adopted a rigorous student disciplinary 
code and has witnessed a parallel, dramatic improvement in 
academic achievement. The Detroit and paterson experiences noted 
above also represent striking examples of what steadfastly 
enforced discipline codes can accomplish. The American Teacher 
describes the change at Southwestern High 13chool in inner ,c1 ty 
Detroit: 

·Once one of the city's most Violent, racially polarized 
high schools with the highest truancy rate, Southwestern 
is now a place where teachers can teach without fear of 
verbal or physical abuse, where students no longer roam 
the halls during clas~es, and where attendance has 
soared from around S3 loercent to close to 87 percent." 

And Walter .illiams describes the transformation of Eastside High 
School in Paterson, N.J.: 

"At Eastside, where the enrollment is two-thirds black, 
one-third Hispanic, in the space of one year 82 percent 
of ninth graders passed a basic math test, compared with 
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55 percent the previous year. Fifty-six percent passed 
an English skills test, compared to 39 percent the. previous year,-

George Washington High School in the Watts area of Los Angeles is 
A similar SUccess story, Four years ago, it was a school rampant 
with gangs and drugs, with a 25 percent absentee rate and one of 
the lowest academic ratings in all of Los Angeles County. Then a 
new principal was hired who demanded strict discipline, including 
a strict -discipline compactA, Now, absenteeism has been cut to 
6 percent and George Washington boasts the Los Angeles School 
District's biggest increase in the number of students taking 
SAT's. Five years ago, only 43 percent of Washington High's 
seniors even wanted to go to college. Last year, 80 percent actually went. 

V. WHY MANY SCHOOLS HAVE DONE LESS AND OFTEN LITTLE. 

There are a number of reasons for the failure of many, probably 
most urban schools to have effectively come to grips with the 
discipline problem. The reasons often reflect the lack of Awill
of school officials to take ~ction, and are often related to 
perceived and at times actual legal obstacles which stand in 
their way. Rarely does " inaction result from insufficient resources. 

School offiCials may be motivated to down-Play the problem for 
several reasons: One reason is the fear of appearing 
incompetent. Public school offici~ls in.many communities ma~ be 
rewarded more for functioning smoothly wlthout public attentlon 
than for exceptional performance. Calling attention to acts of 
Violence or disruption or dealing with angered parents or the 
COurts are actions which at times and in many communities do not benefit school officials. 

Another reason is that legal procedures prevent effective 
prosecution According to Gerald Grant, author of a recent, 
important a;ticle in The Public Interest Magazine ("Children's 
Rights and Adult Confusions," F~ll 1982); 

"All behavior is regarded as tolerable unless it is 
;specifically declared illegal, •• A teacher was still 
shaking as she told us about a group of students who had 
verbally assaulted her and made sexually degrading 
comments about her in the hall. When we asked why she 
didn1t report the students, she responded, 'Well, it 
couldn't have done any good.' 'Why not?' we pressed. 
'I didn't have any Witnesses' she replied.-

Grant's account emphasizes that mUch of the disorder in our 
schools 1s imposed from without, often by the courts. In the 
above example, the teacher's need for -Witnesses" to secure 
punishment for an outrage that would have been handled with . 
dispatch in the not-far-distant Past may result from overly timld 
readings of court decisions that, however troublesome, may at 
times have been extended beyond their original meanings by 
government and school officials. Those deCiSions have been read 
as requiring schools to eXhaust cumbersome legalistic procedures 
before impOSing discipline. 

In this connection, the 1983 report of Jackson Toby of Rutgers 
University indicates a further consequence of recent developments in school discipline: 

"Individual teachers still control their classes, 
espeCially those with charisma. What has changed is 
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that the role of teaCher no longer has the authority it 
once did for stUdents and their parents. This means 
that less forceful, less experienced, or less effective 
teachers cannot rely on the authority of the role to 
help them maintain Control. They are on their own in a 
sense that the previous generation was not." 

The Boston blUe ribbon panel's report, Cited elsewhere in this 
paper, also prOvides a measure of the extent to which the 
disciplinary process had become distorted. Until very recently, 
stUdents Who entered the Boston public Schools receiVed a 
twenty-five page document, called -The Book", whiCh, according to Grant: 

"contains thousands of words on student rights but only 
eleven lines of type referring to their 
responsibilities. From this pamphlet, a Student learns 
that there are five different types of sUspensions and 
that the least serious is the short-term sUspension for 
three days or less. Before even the latter can be meted 
out, a stUdent has the right to request an informal 
hearing with the principal and his parents, and~ if he 
is dissatisfied, to appeal to the community 
superintendent ••• ". 

The pressures on cistricts to adopt such "books" come from 
several sources. In addition to the anti-civil rights CiVil 
Rights Commission guidance Cited above, the American Civil 
Liberties Union, in a Widely circulated and influential document, 
has called for "a recognition that deviation from the opinions 
and standards deemed desirable by the faCulty is not ipso facto a 
danger to the educational process.- The Nati9nal Education 
ASSOCiation struck a similar note in early testimony before a 
Senate Committee hearing on School violence. School Violence, 
the then NEA president opined, was attributable to stUdent 
alienation resulting from Vietnam, Watergate, and America's 
alleged -reliance on military force.- As regards robberies of 
students: -Any system that perpetuates children carrying money 
and places those in an awkward POSition Who do not have it to carry, requires a hard close look." 

And these -students' rights" advocates have enjoyed conSiderable 
Success -- often without effective oppisition __ in the courts. 
A number of deCiSions have of COurse actualll handicapped the 
schools in dealing with iSsues of disclpllne __ as well as 
concurrent and closely related problems of stUdent abUse of drugs 
and alcohol. Thus, the courts have construed existing statutes 
so as to permit legal actions against teachers, school 
administrators and SChool board members for personal liabilitl in 
instances where disciplinary actions are taken __ as Justice 
Powell emphaSized in the case of WOOd v. Strickland (420 U. S. 
308 (1975», school offiCials must "now at the peril of some 
judge or jury subseqUently finding that a good-faith belief as to 
applicable law was mistaken and hence actionable." The Working 
Group believes that review of existing statutes may be in order 
toward the end of further limiting Potential liability of school 
offiCials exercising disciplinary authority in non-malicious fashion. 

A recent New Jersey Supreme Court deCision is representative of a 
series of court cases that have mandated a broad panoply of 
criminal and administrative constitutional processes to relations 
Within school communities between administrators and teachers and 
their stUdents. In one case, the Court ruled illegal the search 
by a principal of a stUdent locker -- based on a phone call from 
another student's parent, who believed the 18-year-old student 
was a PUSher -- which t~rned out to contain two bags of meta 
amphetamine ("speed") and a package of marijuana rolling paper. 
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Its companion case, involving the search of a student's purse in 
which drug paraphernalia was found was recently accepted for 
review by the United States Supreme COurt. The Justice 
Department is currently evaluating whether it will enter the caSe 
as a friend of the court. 

The ~Student Standards and Parent Expectations" book of Watts' 
George Washington High School stands in sharp and effective 
contrast to toe above. l!! "book" sets forth a compact which 
students and their parents are required to sign. It contains 
such ~old f •• hioned~ 8tandards, doubtless horrifying to many 
self-styled "student's rights" advocates, as these: 

~Smoking is not permitted at any time by students on 
school premises. This includes the sidewalk area 
surrounding the school ••• " 

~Radios and tape decks are not to be brought to school. 
Teachers are authorized to confiscate any radio carried 
by a student and turn it in to the appropriate Dean's Office." 

"Loitering on campus or in front of the school at any 
time is not permitted ••• [S]tudents with Period 1 
Homestudy are not to arrive on campus until time to 
attend Period 2 ••• Students may not be out of class 
without a pass." 

-Defiance of the authority of school personnel either by 
behavior, verbal abuse or gestures is not permitted." 

-Three unexcused absences within a marking period from 
any class will necessitate a mandatory parent conference 
prior to the student's return to class.-

"Homework is given every ~ay and students are expected 
and required to complete all assignments." 

The above are representative of the 28 student standards in 
effect at George Washington High School Which have played a 
critical role in rescuing the school (and its minority students) 
from its prior condition. 

American Federation of Teachers President Albert Shanker 
describes how the courts have often prevented schools from acting 
with such vigor: 

~The accused now has available to him a host of 
attorneys and civil liberties organizations in the 
exercise of his right to due process, but in most 
instances, the Victim of the assault is left to his Own 
devices in pressing his case. The result, time and 
again, is that the amateur (whether he be teaCher, 
student, or principal) is no match for the legal experts 
on the other side. The assailant goes free. The 
te~cher or student victim, if he is lucky, can transfer 
to another .choel in order to be spared t~e anguish of 
being assau~ted by the same person again.-

If stUdents who commit disruptive and even criminal acts go 
unpunished, other students--and their teachers--have even more to fear. 

VI. ACTION IS UNLIKELY, HOWEVER, UNT.JESS THE AMERICAN PEOPLE 
DEMAND IT 

"Crimes in our schools must be recognized, admitted to, 
and faced up to before the cures will be requested and 
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accepted. If the problems continue to be ignored, 
education will be the loser." . 
--National Association of School Security Directors 

"School boards should ••• require that each school keep 
records of the frequency of criminal offenses. Without 
such records, boards .0. cannot effectively design and 
direct crime prevention policies. All too frequently 
authorities become aware of danger in the schools only 
after an outburst of violence or after the problem has 
become so serious and pervasive that it Simply cannot be 
hidden any longer." 
--Final Report (December 1982) President~s Task Force on Victims of Crime. 

It is clear that school administrators will continue to ignore 
the problem unless the public demands action __ and the evidence 
that the problem ~ being ignored is overwhelming: 

o Only 1 of every 6 robberies or attacks recognized by 
school principals is reported to the police (NIE, Safe 
Schools Study, 1978). 

o Over 60% of teachers who were victims of attacks felt 
that school principals failed to take appropriate action 
(NEA Teacher poll, 1981). 

o 43% of the students Who attacked teachers received only 
the proverbial "slap on the wrist" -- or no punishment 
at all (NEA Teacher poll, 1983). 

o Over 75% of all principals reported that crime was 
little or no problem in their schools -- during the same 
period in which 3 million students and teachers eaery ~ were victimized by crime in America~s secon ary 
7chools. According to the principals, only 157,000 
~llegal acts occurred each month -- two thirds of which 
were never reported to the police (NIE. Safe Schools Study,1978). . 

The President~s Task Force on Victims of Crime specifically 
:ddressed this problem in its Final Report, recommending that 
school boards .0. set forth guidelines that make clear 

exactly which kinds of misconduct will be handletl within· the 
school and which will be reported to the police." The National 
PTA puts it succinctly: "Studi:mts should be punished by the law 
when they are involved in assaults or violence." 

VII. CONCLUSION 

"I~m going to do everything in my power to call 
attention to the successes achieved by our educational 
system, but I won~t hesitate to raise issues like 
parental choice, discipline, course requirements, and 
merit pay that go to the~heart of our current crisis " 

president Reagan, Letter to the National School • 
Board Association 
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Schoal enviranments can be dramatically impraved __ i~ the 
American peaple act. Natianal cancern aver disarder 1n the 
schaals can be translated into. actian. The issue af schaal 
disarder represents an appartunity far the exercise af leadership 
an a natianal prablem ignared by priar administratians, 

The Departments af Educatian and Justice 

The War king Graup fully supparts the actians that the Depa:-tments 
af Educatian and Justice are prepared to. undertake and bel~eves 
that they will be effective, yet invalve no. Federal intrus1an 
into. the management and palicy discretian af lacal schaals ar 
state systems. Rather, they are deSigned to. suppart and defend 
the effarts ef principals, teachers, parents and students to. . 
restare an arderly learning enviranment and thereby to. establ1sh 
a basic canditian necessary far the achievement af educatianal excellence. 

The Department af Educatian is prepared to. exercise effarts, at 
its highest levels, to. facus research and public attentian an 
prablems af schaal disarder. One af the Natianal Institute far 
Educatian centers wauld canduct extensive research into. the 
preventian af schaal discipline/vialence prablems. Other 
campanents af the Department are prepared to. ~valuate ~nti-crime 
activities currently underway in lacal educat1an agenc1es and 
will callect and disseminate examples af effective schaal 
discipline. In additian, the Department will give greater 
visibility to. it~ jaint praject with the Natianal Institute af 
Justice to. identify haw lacal jurisdictians might better use 
their awn resaurces to. reduce schaal crime. In additian, the 
Department will make the recards af schaals in the area af 
discipline and crime a majar factar in selecting winners in the 
Secretary~s Exemplary Elementary and Secandary Schaal 
Campetitian. Finally, the Department is prepared to. spansar 
regianal hearings an schaal discipline to. seek passible salutians 
and to. highlight sUccessful lacal effarts; this pracess wauld be 
alang the lines af the Department~s earlier, succeSsful hearings 
an the findings af the Natianal Cammissian an Schaal Excellence. 

The Department af Justice is prepared to. file "friend af the 
caurt" briefs in apprapriate cases an the side af increaSing the 
autharity af teachers, principals and schaol administratars to. 
deal with schaal discipline prablems, In additian, the 
Department#s Office af Juvenile Justice and Delinquence 
Preventian will be establishing a Natianal Schaal Safety Center, 
which Gearge Nichalsan fram Gavernar Deukmejian~s staff has 
agreed to. direct, In caardinatian with the Department af 
Educatian, the Center will callect and disseminate data an schaal 
safety prablems and their salutian. Key elements af this pragram 
will include a camputerized natienal clearinghause far schaal 
safety resaurces; and p~blicatian af handbaaks and ather . 
publicatians apprising principals, teachers, and parents af the1r 
legal rights in dealing'with disruptive students and infarmatian 
an successful appraaches to. specific discipline prablems, 
The President 

The Warking Greup believes that it is ultimately the President 
alane who. can play the critical rale in restaring to. aur natian~s 
schaals the ability to. reverse what past misguided attention, and 
tragic inattentian, have wreught in the area af scheel discipline and vielence. 

The ~ublic has been cencerned abaut the declining quality ef 
Amer1can educatien far several years, But enly in the past few 
menths has this cencern been translated into. vast efferts at 
refarm and self-examinatien at the state and lacal levels; i.e. 
after the President raised the issue and called fer actien, 
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T?ere-1S~'hardly a scheal educatar, inCLUding thOse Who. -dIsagree 
w1th var1aus aspects af the President~s palicies Who. is nat gra~eful to. the Pre?ident fer having Used the pa~ers af the 
Off1ce to. facus natlanal attentien en the critical preblem af 
excellence in American educatian, Flarida Governar Rebert Gra~am, a Demacrat, recently applauded the President as "as 
facllitater and a predder" in sparking lacal actian an taugher .perferma~ce standards fer ~eachers and students merit pay and related 1Ssues, " 

The prablem af schaal disarder has likewise been a matter ef deeo 
cen;ern to. ~he P~blic far m~ny years. And the initial reactien . 
to. -?e Pr7S1dent s remarks 1n Indianapalis demanstrates that 
Presldentlal lea~ersbip can play tbe same vital role in fostering 
lang e~erdue actlen to. inSist on erder and diSCipline in eur natian s scheels. 

Tbis is an Administration tbat, at its best, is cbaracterized by 
cammitment to. fundamental l§eas and theme,s; it is therefere less 
prene to. settle fer the easy Washingten substitute ef a cestly 
federal pragram in erder to. diSplay leaderShip and preve its 
Werth. Negative carrelatiens betWeen dollar expenditures and 
edUcational excellence have led the Administration preperly to. 
be skeptical abeut the efficacy ef yet anether set'ef cestly' 
federal progr~ms as a means of raiSing educational opportunity 
fer all, part~cularly fer the poerest and mest disadvantaged American students, 

Whatever ~he merits ef the budget debate, hewever, the Nerking 
Greup bell eves that PreSidential leaderShip in restering the 
autherity -- an~, thereby, the prefessien~l status __ ef 
teachers, princlpals and Scheel efficials is a necessary 
canditien for the aChievement ef educatianal excellence: 

, 

~ef~~ent issue ef Centemperary Educatien Magazine put the issue 

"The issue in the 1980~s no. lenger centers en whether er 
net vielence in American scheels is serieus; the issue 
no. leng~r center~ en whether vielence is increaSing er 
decreaSlng; the lSSue no. lenger centers en technical 
anemalies cencerning under-er-ever re~erting ef 
incidents. In the decade ef the 1980 s the primary i~sue befere large prapertiens ef eur u:ban scheels (and 
slzeable numbers ef aur suburban and even rural scheels) 
revelves areund the centinued viability ef American 
educatien as it existed a generatien age." 

Based en Our e~ferts, the Werking Greup urges the Administratien 
and, '!lere,pa~tlcularly, the President to. Speak out and to 
e~er,:ase Tiatlanal leader~hip en the need to. restere erder and dlSC1Pli~e to. the natien s Scheels. We believe that there are 
few ~ct~e\'lS likely to. effer greater promise and payeff fer Amerlca s children. 
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Senator SPECTER. Thank you very much, Mr. Regnery. We are 
going to hear next from Mr. Bauer and then we will have ques-
tions. Mr. Bauer. . 

STATEMENT OF GARY L. BAUER 

Mr. BAUER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Again, with your permis
sion, I would like to highlight my statement and submit the whole 
statement for the record. 

Senator SPECTER. Thank you. Your full statement will be, with
out objection, admitted to the record. 

Mr. BAUER. Thank you. Nine months ago the National Commis
sion on Excellence in Education called the Nation's attention to the 
fact that the decline of our educational system has left us a Nation 
at risk. 

We are here today to discuss one dimension of that risk, the ef
fects that a lack of discipline has on our students, on our teachers, 
and even on learning itself. Good discipline is essentially-is essen
tial to an effective educational program. 

Prof. James Coleman in his recent study of high schools in Amer
ica concluded that after decades of research on learning and educa
tion, only two things stand out as essential to quality education. 

First, the schools must insist that students are there to learn; 
and second, order must be maintained. This morning we have al
ready heard the statistics about the effect of the school discipline 
problem on students. And I will not go over those again. 

But I would like to emphasize for just a moment one of the areas 
that we became very interested in, and that is that we found that 
minority group parents are more concerned about school crime 
than whites. This is not surprising, since minority group students 
are generally much more likely to be victims of crime than are 
white students. Indian, Asian, Hispanic, and black children suffer 
serious attacks at school at a rate two or more times the rate for 
white children. 

Indian and Hispanic students are robbed at a rate twice that of 
white students. And black students are robbed at a rate three 
times that of white students. Over the last 20 years the Federal 
courts have often looked at the discipline issue as a civil rights 
issue, but unfortunately they have focused only on the civil rights 
of disrupting students. Minority parents, we found, know what the 
real civil rights issue is. 

It is the right of their children to an education in a safe and un
interrupted learning environment. And that is why this adminis
tration tends to focus attention on the right of those students. 

I notice that Mr. Shanker pointed out that he wished that Feder
al judges would not only have that one problem student in front of 
them when they were making decisions in the discipline area, but 
also had the other 25 children in front of them. And in fact that is 
why we have decided that the administration will file friend of the 
court briefs in Federal court where appropriate to bring to the at
tention of Federal judges that we are dealing with a whole class
room of students, the great majority of whom want an education 
and that their rights need to be balanced with the rights of stu
dents who are in trouble. 
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Again, we have seen the figures on what crime apd violence ~nd 
how it impacts teachers; we also would like to focus. the attentIOn 
of the Nation on what happens to teachers not only In the area of 
the crime and violence problem, but also on the general problem of 
unruly classrooms. . 

The high level of generally uncivil behavior by students In many 
classrooms is one of the major causes of teacher burnout. One 
survey found that 58 percent of the teachers polled reported that 
individuru students who continually misbehaved was the No. 1 
cause of job stress. The mental strains of. teaching have led one 
psychiatrist to compare the stress of teachII?-g to that of war, call-
ing teacher burnout a type of combat neurOSIS. . . 

This job related stress drives teachers ou~ of teachIng. SInce ex
perience is one of the few teacher characterlstIcs research has con
sistently found to be related to. higher student achievement,. the 
impact of this burnout on educatIOnal excellence should be ObVIOUS. 
As long as student misbehavior dz:ives some of ou.r be~t teachers 
away from school, efforts at irnproVlng teacher qUalIty Will be ham-
pered. h 

One of the few classroom variable factors that research as 
clearly established as related to le~rning is time on task.. But we 
need to consider what happens to bme spent on the learnIng task 
when teachers are required to spend between 30 and 80 percent of 
their time addressing discipline problems. Teachers who have to 
function as babysitters and policemen cannot teach and stude~ts 
whose teachers do not teach cannot learn. 

In addition, we found that students inadvertently ~earn s01:lle-
thing from classroom chaos when they find themselves In that SItu
ation. They learn that authority cannot or ~ill not guarantee them 
a classroom where learning can be accomphshe~. They lear~ to be 
afraid of school and they learn that adults S?metlmes fear chIldren. 

They learn that misbehavior doe~ sometImes p~y, and not sur
prisingly in such an educational chmate, the ethIcal standards of 
students 'suffer. A nationwide Federal study of sec~ndary school 
students chronicles that victims of. attacks or. robberIes at schools 
were more inclined toward unethIcal behaVIOr themselves after 
being victims of such attacks. 

Mr. Chairman, the problem of crime on the OI,;e and ~~ the re
lated problem of a lack of discipline on the other IS not lImIted only 
to our urban areas. The public understands that .schools across all 
communities are at risk, and although ~ore reSIdents of the cen
tral cities responded to the Gallup poll In 1983 tha~ lack ?f scho?l 
discipline was a fairly, or. very ser}ous problem In theIr p~b~lC 
schools substantial maJorltles of reSIdents of sm~ller communltIes 
also think lack of discipline is a very or fairly serIOUS problem: 

Those who are inclined to tell us that because the congresslOna~
ly mandated safe school study, which provides the best data on thIS 
issue, collected its information a few y~ars ago, yve. need not be con
cerned about these issues today, we thlnk·are mlsSIng the mark. 

We will be submitting for the record the results of several stud
ies that indicate that the problem is still severe .. Whet?er the p~ob
lem is a little better or a little worse than 1978 IS beSIde the pOInt; 
the problem is still at unacceptable levels. 

<) 
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Mr. Regnery mentioned the recent Boston study. We saw a study 
in the State of Michigan where teachers statewide were surveyed 
at the end of 1983. The result of that survey showed that 46 per
cent of the teachers polled said they had ,been threatened with vio
lence by a student; 13 percent said they had been threatened by 
school intruders, and nearly 20 percent of the teachers, one out of 
every five, had been hit by a student in the public school system 
statewide in Michigan. 

Two out of every three teachers in the entire State reported that 
unmotivated and undisciplined students were a serious problem in 
their classrooms. 

It is true that many schools have turned around and improved 
discipline and the administration applauds these schools for their 
successes. 

All too often, however, these isolated success stories are just that; 
they are isolated. A charismatic principal can often overcome the 
various trends of the past 20 years that make maintaining disci
pline so difficult, but we do not count on such exception-we 
cannot count on such exceptional individuals taking the helm at 
every school. 

I believe in the record we have already indicated the things that 
this administration wants to do for a first step. Among those is the 
fact that the President will be continuing to focus national atten
tion on this issue. The Department of Education will be conducting 
research and disseminating the effects of that research around the 
country. 

We will be continuing to work closely with the Department of 
Justice. In addition, the Department of Justice will be filing those 
friends of the court briefs that we mentioned earlier. 

We think that this issue, if it is dealt with successfully, can in 
fact build public support for public education around the Nation. 
But we think it is a prerequisite to be dealt with before we can 
really reach the kind of academic excellence that we think all of us 
are really striving for. 

Thank you very much. 
[The prepared statement of Mr. Bauer follows:] 
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF GARY L, BAUER 

Mr. Chairman, thank you for this opportunity to testify on two of the 
most crucial problems facing American education tOday--crime and violence 
and the more pervasive problem of lack of discipline and unruly classrooms. 

Nine months ago the National Commission on Excellence in Education 
called the nation's attention to the fact that the deterioration of our 
educationa-I system has left us a "Nation At Risk." We have come together 
today to di scuss one dimensi on of that ri sk--the effects that alack of 
discipline has on our students, on our teachers, and even on learning 
itself. 

Good discipline is essential to an effective educational program. 
Professor James Coleman in his recent study of high schools in America concluded 
that, after decades of research on learning and education, only two things 
stand out as essential to quality education. First, the schools must insist 
that students are there to learn, and second, order must be maintained (Coleman 
et a 1 ., 1982). 

Good discipline and high achievement go hand-in-hand. A sophomore 
whose grades are mostly D's is 14 times more likely to have had serious 
trouble with the law than a student whose grades were mostly A's; 43 times~ 

less likely to do aSSigned homework, and about 5 times more likely to cut 
classes (DiPetre, 1981). 
Students At Risk 

Far too many of America's children risk their very physical safety when 
they go to school. According to a National Institute of Education survey in 
1978: 

o Each month in America's secondary schools 282,000 students 
were physically ~ttacked •. 

o Each month in America's secondary schools 112,000 students 
were robbed through force, weapons, or threat. 

o Each month in America's secondary schools 2,400,000 students 
had their personal property stolen. 

o Each month education comes to a halt for 800,000 secondary 
students who stay home from school because they are afraid • . 

If the 3,000,000 secondary students who were vi ctims of attack. robbery. 
or theft each month in our nation's schools held hands, they Would form a 
hUman chain reaching from Washington, D.C. to the mountains beyond Denver, 
Colorado. 

On an annual basis, there is more than one crime for every secondary 
student and teacher (NIE, 1978). In addition to the obvious undesirability 
of being a victim of crime, the crime rate in schools has another indirect 
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but perhaps even more serious effect en students. High crime rates in 
school teach students to fear schaal. Fear among stud~nts reduces their 
ability to concentate on school work. creates an atmosphere of hostility 
and mistrust. undermines morale and teaches that the staff is not in control 
(Wayne and Rubal. 1980). 

Drug abuse and drinking must also be counted as examples of indiscipline. 
Both have debilitating effects on learning. Problem drinking among teenagers 
is generally related to poor school performance. participation in <i1Iti-social 
activities. and lack of adult. supervision {Schmidt and Hankoff, 1979). 
Regular consumption of alcohol is associated with lower grades (Bradley, 1982). 
Minorities At Risk 

Minority group members are more concerned about school crime than 
whites (Gallup Poll. 19821. This is not surprising since minority group 
students are generally much more likely to be victims of crime- than are 
white students. Indian. Asian. Hispanic. and black children suffer serious 
attacks at school at a rate two or more times the rate for white children. 
Indian and Hispanic students are robbed at a rate twice that of white 
students and black students are robbed at a rate three times that of white 
students (NIE. 1978). 

Over the last 20 years the Federal courts have often looked at the 
disCipline issue as a civil rights is§ue. Unfortunately. they have focused 
their attention on the civil rights of disrupting stu~ents. Minority 
parents know the real civil rights issue as do parents of all races--it is 
the ri ght of thei f' chil dren to an educati on ina safe and uni nterrupted 
learning environment. Presi~ent Reagan and Secretary Bell will be focusing 
the nation's attention on the right of the great majority of our children 
of all races to learn in a violence free and disCiplined classroom. 
Teachers At Risk 

Too many of America's teachers risk their physical safety. their mental 
health. a~d their ability to do their job well when they go to school (NIE. 
1978) : 

-- . 

o Each month in America's secondary $chools. 6.000 teachers 
are robbed. 

o Each month in America's secondary schools 1.000 teachers are 
assaulted seriously enough to require medical attention. 

o Each mJ~,th in America's secondary schoolS 125.000 teachers 
" are thre'atened with physical harm. 

o Each month in America's secondary schools over 125.000 

secondary school teachers enco~nter at least one situation where 
they are afraid to confront misbehaving students. 
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School has become a hazardous work environment and a place to fear for too 
many teachers. They are too often put into situations where basic self
preservation. not teaching. guides their actions. 

The problems teachers face daily in their classrooms go way beyond criminal 
acts. The hi gh level of generally uncivil behavior by students in many 
classrooms is one of the major causes of teacher burnout. One survey (Feitler 
and Tokar. 1982) found that 58 percent of the teachers polled reported that 
"individual students who continual'iy misbehave" was the number one cause of 
job stress. 

Teacher burnout. whi~h is largely caused by student misbehavior, is a 
major educational problem. According to the American Federation for Teachers' 
newspaper • .american Teacher, over 90 percent of teachers surveyed in one 
study experienced feelings of burnout and 85 percent responding in another 
study felt there were chronic health problems related to teaching (Newell, 
1981). Nearly half (40 per'cent) of the teacher respondents said they took 
pI'escription drugs totreat jOb-related illnesses. In a study of 5.000 

Chicago teachers. more than half reported having had some jOb-related 
illness (Newell. 1981). 

The mental strains of teaching have led one psychiatrist to compare 
the stress of t~aching to that of war, calling teacher burnout a type of 
"combat neurosis" (Block. 1978; Block and Block. 1980). This jOb-related 
stress drives teachers out of teaching. Learning magazine surveyed over 
1.000 teachers. altnost one-quarter (24 percent) of whom said theY'.ere 
planning to leave teaching because of burnout (Learni~. 1979). 

Since experience is on8 of the few teacher characteristics research has 
conSistently found to be !,elated to higher student achievement., the impact of 
this burnout on educational excellence should be obvious. As long as student 
misbehavior drives some of our best teachers away from the school. efforts at 
improving teacher quality will be hampered. 
Learning At Risk 

Learning itself is at risk in America's schools. As appalling as 
the discipline. crime. alcohol. and drug abuse statistics may be. from 
the educational perspective. the greatest victim of student misbehavior 
is learning. Students who aI"e afraid to Come to school camlOt learn. nor 
can students who abuse alcohol and drugs. Fi9hting students cannot 
learn. And. the educational consequences of student misbehavior go fa~ 
beyond the effects on the individual misbehaving student. 

One of the few classroom variable factors that research has clearly 
established as related to learning is time on task. But consider what 
happens to time spent on the learning task when teachers are required to 
spend between 30 and 80 percent of their time addreSSing discipline 
probl~ms (Glass. 1983). Teachers who function as babysitters and policemen 
cannot t.each and students whose teachers do not teach cannot learn. 
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And what do America's students learn from classroom chaos? They 
learn authority cannot or will not guarantee them a classroom where learning 
can be accomplished. They learn to be afraid of school and they learn 
adults fear children. They learn that crime does indeed pay as ev~ryday 
they see other students rob, steal, talk back, fight, and refuse to do 
homework, and nothing happens to them. Not surprisingly, in such an 
Neducationa1" climate, the athica1 standards of students suffer. A 
nationwide Federal study of secondary school students chronicles that 
victims of attacks or robberies at school were more inclined toward 
unethical behavior than were non-victims (NIE, 1978). 

Families At Risk 

As Secretary Bell recently pOinted out, poverty may be one of the 
contributing factors to discipline and crime problems in the schools. 
However, we must ~ot excuse uncivil behavior because some perpetrators come 
from a disadvantaged home background. Not all pOQr children commit crimes. 
Not all minority children attack their teachers. Not all children with 
divorced parents rob other students. 

Most children from disadvantaged homes know and understand proper 
behavior. If some children do not, we must not make excuses which explain 
bad behavior as the product of vague social forces. A British study showed 
that good behavior was a product of a diSCiplined home environment, regardless 
of social class (Shanker, 1980). While it may be more difficult to ensure 
a good home environment in economically disadvantaged homes, it can be 
done. 

Indeed, the American public understands the importance of the home and 
family in solving diSCipline problems. The major cause of lack of diSCipline 
in the schools cited by the Gallup Poll (1983) was the lack of discipline 
in the home, identified by 72 percent of the general public. 

Two out of three teachers surveyed in Michigan in 1983 agreed. They 
believed that parents are pushing their disciplinary responsibilities on 

the schools (Detroit Free Press, 1983). As Professor James Q. Wilson of 
Harvard recent 1y noted, " ••• contemporary research ••• has p1 aced the 
family a~ the center of any effort to explain and reduce unruly or violent 
behavior" (Wilson, 1983). 

The Entire Nation Is At Risk 

M:'. Chairman, the problem of crime on the one hand and the related 
problem of a lack of discipline on the other is not lim!ted to our urban 
schools. 

The public understands schools across all communities are at risk. 
Although more. residents (80 percent) (If the central cities responded to 
the Gallup Poll (1983) that lack of school discipline was a fairly or very 
serious problem in their public schools, substantial majorities of r~sidents 
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of smaller communities (61 percent and up) also think lack of diSCipline 
is a very or fairly serious problem. 

There are those who tell us that because the Congressionally mandated 
Safe Schools Study (which provides the best and most comprehensive data 
on school crime and viOlence), collected its data some years ago, we 
need not be concerned ~bout these issues today. 

The National Education ASSOCiation's national poll of teachers (NEA, 
1983) shows that between 1976 and 1983 assaults by students on teachers 
increased by 59 percent. Theft of teachers' personal property increased 
by 46 percent. 8etween 1979 and 1983, the proportion of teachers who 
felt their ability to teach was hampered by student misbehavior to a 
moderate or great extent increased by 12-1/2 percent. 

Analyzing data collected by the Justice Department between 1976 and 1980 
shows that attacks on students increased 13 percent. It is true that 
not all indicators are bleak. According to the Justice Department data, 
student theft declined 60 percent between 1976 and 1980 (Moles, 1983). 
Nevertheless, there ~ a problem, for this decline still left about 
900,000 student victims of theft every month of the school year! 

But the issue Mr. Charman is n?t whether only one million student.s 
are victims of crime a month rather than 3 million. The issue is that 
whatever the number, it is too many. Today, too many children go to 
school in fear, too many children are robbed at school, too many children 
are attacked at school, and most importantly, too many children have 
their education disrupted by the uncivil behavior of other students. 
Let me reView, just briefly, two more recent studies. 

Teachers throughout the State of Michigan were surveyed at the start of 
the current school year (DetrOit ~~~ 1983). The results of that 
survey tell us there is a problem. FortY-Six percent of the teachers 
polled said they had been threatened with violence by a student. Thirteen 
percent said they have been threatened by school intruders. Nineteen 
percent, or one out of every 5 teachers, have been hit by a student. 

Two out of every three teachers in the entire state of Michigan 
reported that Ul1mot i vated and undi sci pl ined students were a seri ous 
prOblem in their classrooms. 

Mr. Chairman. there is no reason to believe that the public schools . 
in Michi9an are unusual. During a five-month period in California in 
1981 at least 100,.000 inCidents of violence occurred. On the average, 24 
teachers and 215 stUdents w~re assaulted daily. Property damage totaled 
apprOXimately $,10 million (SJwyer, 1983). 

In the city of Boston, half of the school system's teachers were 
victims of crime in 1982 (Boston Safe School CommiSSion, 1983). These 
numbers, terrible as th~y are, may understate the extent of the problem. 
The Boston Safe School s COlThlli ssi on whi ch recently reported on the seri ousness 
of disruption and violence in the Boston public schools found "that 
offiCial statistics appear to understate the amount of disorderly behavior 
in the schools" (Bost~n Safe School CommiSSion, 1983). 
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Many schools have turned around and improved discipline. We applaud 
these £chools for their success. All too often, however, these isolated 
success stories are just that--iso1ated. A charismatic principal can 
often overcome the various trends of the past 20 years that make maintaining 
discipline so difficult. But we can not count on such exceptional individuals 
taking the helm at every school. We must as a society provide great~r 
support so that the successes become the rule rather than the exception. 
This Administration is prepared to take appropriate action consistent 
with the limited Federal role in education. 
Administation Responses to the School Discipline Problem 

In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, although it would be unrealistic to 
ever expect there to be no crime, violence or discipline problems in the 
schools, the current level of disorder found in America's schools is high 
enough to require action. Indiscipline is an especially important issue 
for education because it disrupts learning. 

Restoring order and civil behavior to America's classrooms is a basic 
prerequisite to improving the quality of American education. We have 
outlined a series of actions to address the school discipline problem which 
will in turn assist in bringing excellence back to American education: 

o President Reagan will focus the nation's attention on the need 
for school discipline. 

o The Department of Education will conduct extensive research into 
the school discipline problem and disseminate examples of effective 
school solutions. 

o The Department of Education will continue to work with the National 
Institute of Justice on a joint prOject to assist local school 
districts to prevent school r.rime. 

o A National School Safety Center will be set up in the Department 
of Justice to work closely with the Department of Education on 
school safety problems. The Center will publish handbooks 
informing teachers and other officials of their legal rights in 
dealing with disruptive students. and put together a cOl1lluterized 
national clearinghouse for school safety resources. 

o The Department of Justice will file Mfriend of the court" briefs 
in appropriate cases on the side of increasing the authority of 
teachers, principals and school ad~1nistrators to deal with 
school discipline problems. 

• ! 
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Senator SPECTER. Th&nk you, Mr. Bauer. 
Mr. Regnery, one of the, and Mr. Bauer, too, I would like to hear 

comments from both of you gentlemen on the question as to what 
is the expectation on resources to be applied to this problem from 
the Federal Government? 

The battle of the budget is the No.1 domestic issue which con
fronts the Congress. It is well known to you gentlemen because you 
have to work through the budgetary requests, which have a great 
many hurdles. And I am very much interested in the National 
School Safety Center, which you have testified about, Director Reg
nery. 

So my question at the outset is what is your expectation as to the 
resourc~s which the administration would anticipate directing to 
the NatIOnal School Safety Center or other initiatives in this area? 

Mr. REGNERY. We anticipate funding that center at a level of 
about somewhere between $2 and $2.5 million per year for 2 years. 
In addition to that, we may be spending as much as half a million 
do~lars. on other thin~s. involved with school safety and school 
Crlme If there are thIngs that come along that are attractive 
enough to do so. 

So I would say not more than $3 million from our office. 
Senator SPECTER. Do you have something in mind on matters 

other than the National School Safety Center? 
. Mr. REGNERY. No. I do not have anything specific. As I men

tIoned, we are anticipating some grant applications on some re
search. 

Senator SPECTER. And precisely how will the National School 
Safety Center be structured? 

Mr. REGNERY. Well, it is our anticipation that we will give a 
grant to an organization which will actually set it up and run it as 
any other grantee would run such an operation. It will be housed 
at whatever institution we fund, which may supply some of its own 
resources as well. 

It could raise money from the private sector as well, and that is 
yet to be seen whether it will. But it will be an independent entity 
outside of the Government, funded by us. ' 

Mr. BAUER. Mr. Chairman, I would like to indicate that we do 
not see the discipline issue as essentially a dollar and cents issue. 
Some peoI?le have responded to th.e report by saying that this is 
further eVIdence of a need for masSIve new Federal expenditures to 
school systems. We do not think that it is a money problem. There 
are many urban schools with very limited resources that are doing 
an excellent job in this area. 

On the other hand, there are suburban schools with all the fi
nancial resources they need, but with severe discipline, drug abuse, 
and alcohol problems. 

We think that dealing with this issue wil help increase financial 
support on the State and local level for the schools, but we do not 
anticipate a new major Federal program. 

Senator SPECTER. You gentlemen, I know, were present during 
Mr. Shanker's testimony and heard the questioning as to the two 
Supreme Court decisions, which set standards as to due process re
qUIrements on hearings and also on the standard for liability. 
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I would be interested in your evaluations as to whether you 
~ould recommend any modifications in existing law as to those two 
Issues. 

Mr. REGNERY. The Justice Department is looking at that issue at 
the request 'of the President. And as far as I know, we are not yet 
in a position to make a recommendation. I believe we should be 
before too long. 

Mr. BAUER. I think in an otherwise fine statement that Mr. 
Shanker made, that I thought was excellent and basically in agree
ment with our approach on this, he indicated that he was not 
aware of too much of an effect on teachers by some of the court 
rulings and the liability rulings, and so forth. 

We did talk to many teachers around the country while we were 
preparing the report, and what. we found is that there was a chill
ing effect. There haven't been many teachers actually pulled into 
court. But teachers are aware that they are liable for personal 
damages if they misstep, and the effect is to sometimes cause 
teachers to hold back on what they would normally dq in the class
room. 

Senator SPECTER. Have you made a survey as to how many ac
tions have been brought under section 1983 against teachers? 

Mr. REGNERY. We are in the process of doing that. Incidental
ly--

Senator SPECTER. Because I think that would be very useful just 
to have the hard data as to how many suits have been brought and 
what the dispositions have been and perhaps some indication as to 
what costs are involved, both as to those who bring the suits and 
those who have to defend them. 

Mr. REGNERY. We are in the process of doing that. Let me just 
add, Senator, that I was chatting with the general counsel of the 
National Association of Secondary School Principals, who sees all 
of the lawsuits that are filed against secondary school principals, 
which are required to come across his desk. 

And he says there are about between two and three a week that 
are filed. 

Senator SPECTER. Nationwide? 
Mr. REGNERY. Maybe three suits against a principal. 
Senator SPECTER. That is nationwide? 
Mr. REGNERY. Yes. Somewhere-the suits that he sees just on 

secondary school principal cases are 100 to 150 a year. 
Senator SPECTER. Do you have any sense as to how they are con

cluded? How are they concluded, do you know, verdicts, settle
ments, money paid? 

Mr. REGNERY. No, I do not. 
Senator SPECTER. I think that would be very significant as we 

look down the road to get the specifics on that. 
We have Congressman Williams who has joined us. We will not 

keep him waiting any longer thaD, absolutely necessary. 
So I will just ask one concluding question before turning it over 

to Senator Grassley. The 1974 education amendments have the con
gressional mandate for a study of national school violence. The 
1976 statistics were characterized by some, including my staff, as 
startling in terms of the scope of violence. 
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I would .be interested in your judgments, gentlemen; you have al
ready testIfied about the Boston study and about a Michigan study' 
as to whether those conclusions are applicable today and whethe~ 
you have anything beyond Michigan and Boston as an evidentiary base. 

Mr. REGNERY. Well, I guess I agree with Mr. Shanker that from 
what I have seen, it seems to be more or less in the sa~e plane as 
it was in 1977 and 1978. 

I also agree .with hi~ that the statistics are very hard to gather. 
There are varIOUS studIes. that are done; the NEA, for example, in 
the 1982-83 school year dId a survey of teachers which showed that 
from 1977-83, I believe, there was an increase of assaults on teach
ers of some 50 percent. Those figures are in my testimony precise
ly, which indicates that it has gotten worse. 

Now, that may simply be an improvement in reporting. Jackson 
Toby. has done an analysis of the NIE study and he said he thought 
that It understated the problem. . 

. I am not sur~ that having better statistics will really make any 
~hfference. I. thln~ we all agree that it is a serious problem; and it 
IS one that IS SerI?US enough that we need to address it as we are. 

I am not sure If you are asking me whether we think another 
~IE sort of study ~ho~ld be done. I would recommend' against it 
~Imply because I thInk we could use that money better by correct
I~g the problem we have got without knowing precisely the statistICS. 
~enator SPECTER. You think the problem is still very bad and the 

eVIdence at hand supports that conclusion. 
Mr. REGNERY. From what I understand, yes. 
Senator SPECTER. Mr. Bauer, what do you think? 
Mr. BAUER. Yes. \Ve have some additional data we will submit 

for the record. It is hard to get a handle on trends and so forth 
but I think there is enough evidence out there to indicate that th~ 
problem is still very severe. The Michigan study and the Boston 
study were not isolated. . 
~ ~ hav~ repor~ out of. California by student body presidents; 

this Issue IS consIstently cIted by teachers. It is the No.1 reason 
they 'Yant to ~eave the profession ahead of salaries. Parents have 
rated It as theIr No.1 concern in 15 of the last 16 years in surveys. 
T~ey ten~ to hear firsthand from their children about what is 
gOIng on In the schools. We think the problem is still significant. 

Senator SPECTER. Senator Grassley. 
Senator GRASSLEY. We have not heard a lot about absenteeism. I 

looked at abseI?-teeism for my S~ate and cities in my State, and 
then co~pared It to some of the hIgher absenteeisms found in some 
other CItIes. I also had access to a study done by the NIE in which 
they talked about absenteeism and violence. 

Is. there a correlation between high absenteeism and high rates of VIOlence? 
. M~. BAUER. One of the things that the NIE study found is that a 

SIgnIficant percentage of urban schoolchildren literally stayed 
home from school on average of 1 day a month out of fear. It was 
some.where around 8 to 10 percent. They literally feared for their 
phYSIcal safety and they chose not to go to the school 1 day a month. 
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That was a startling statistic for us. And we think it is another 
example of the impact this issue is having on the search for aca
demic excellence. 

Senator GRASSLEY. And is that study-do we still feel that the 
situation exists today, years after that study? 

Mr. BAUER. Yes. 
Senator GRASSLEY. That is not a current study, is it? 
Mr. BAUER. No, it is not a current study. But again there is 

enough up to date data on a regional basis or in specific urban 
areas that although you do have improvement iIi some areas, you 
have a worsening situation in others. The figures out of New York 
for the last school year, for example, are worse than they were the 
year before. 

Senator GRASSLEY. To what extent are we blaming our schools 
for problems caused by trespassers or intruders, people who are not 
students or have anything to·-students, parents, or professionals 
that are on the school grounds and in the school buildings causing 
problems? 

Mr. BAUER. I am sure Mr. Regnery would be able to give you 
some specific statistics. There is a problem caused by intruders, but 
I would like to make clear that we are not blaming the schools at 
all for the discipline problem. There are a lot of cultu:ral factors 
and other factors that all converge to make this a difficult issue for 
our schools. 

What we want to do with this initiative is to try to join hands 
with our schools to help solve the problem rather than allocating 
blame fOl' it. 

Mr. REGNERY. Senator, there is a problem with intruders in some 
schools, but I think it varies so from one school to another that it 
may be hard to draw any conclusions. . 

In the George Washington Prep High School in Los Angeles, they 
set up a system of issuing ID cards to stUdents, having guards at 
the gates, and students have to show their IDs to get in or some
body coming in from the outside has to have a pass. 

They attribute that as one of the things that reduced violence in 
the school because they found, particularly in that school, because 
of the high level of drug and gang activity in the school, there were 
a lot of people coming in who didn't belong there who were causing 
trouble. 

Other schools will dispute or will say that they do not have that 
problem, and I guess it probably just depends on the neighborhood 
and a lot of other things. 

Senator GRASSLEY. Do we have any statistics that separate gener
al school violence into differentiation between violence against stu-
dents as against teachers? . 

Mr. BAUER. Yes, I believe we do have some figures that we can 
enter for the record. I do not have them at my fingertips, however. 

Senator GRASSLEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Senator SPECTER. Thank you very much, Senator Grassley. Mr. 

Regnery and Mr. Bauer, we very much appreciate your being here. 
It has been very helpful to hear your views, and I think that some 
of the items to be pursued will be enormously helpful. The statis
tics are based, as I say, on the lawsuits which have been brought, 
and your refinements as to the specific suggestions you would have 
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on ways to modify, if you come to that conclusion on those current 
standards. 

So, thank you very much. 
Mr. REGNERY. Thank you, Senator. 
Mr. BAUER. Thank you. I appreciate the opportunity. 
Senator SPECTER. We are mindful of the schedule of others who 

have time commitments to depart early. It is a matter of juggling 
to get everybody on and off. We will not have Floretta McKenzie, 
the superintendent of the D.C. schools, here for a few moments yet. 

But we will accommodate those schedules to the maximum 
extent, and I think we will be able to work out everybody's timeta
ble. 

I appreciate Senator Grassley joining us here this morning. 
We next turn to Congressman Williams, who is very active in the 

House Education and Labor Committee on the Elementary and 
Secondary Vocational Education and Select Education Subcommit
tees. 

He also serves on the Budget Committee Task Force on Educa
tion and the House side has had hearings during the course of the 
past 2 days and Congressman Williams ·has a somewhat different 
perspective to present to us and we are pleased to hear him at this 
time. 

Thank you for coming. 

STATEMENT OF RON, PATRICK WILLIAMS, A REPRESENTATIVE 
IN CONGRESS FROM THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF MONTANA 

Mr. WILLIAMS. Thank you very much, Senator. I appreciate being 
invited. 

Yesterday our House Subcommittee on Elementary, Secondary, 
and Vocational Education completed our hearings on the recent 
White House report entitled "Disorder in our Schools." The wit
llesses during those 2 days included three nationally prominent re
searchers in student behavior, a stuaen..: enrolled in a large urban 
high school in New York City, a local school administrator from 
Oklahoma City schools, ::,t representative of an organization repre
senting the urban school systems, the president of the National 
Education Association, and the Chairman of thE:: White House 
Working Group that issued the report in question. 

Members of our committee heard two days of calm, reasoned, 
and for the most part, dispassionate testimony, which, to roy sur
prise, raised serious questions about the accuracy of and the moti
vation behind what has now become known on the House side as 
the Bauer report. -

There has been a significant and negative reaction to this report, 
and I think this strong reaction is due, not because it once again 
calls education on the Nation's carpet, but because it represents 
unsound and overly ideological advice to the Nation's Chief Execu
tive Officer. 

President -Reagan deserves to have all the facts, not just those 
that suit the ideological bent of a small group. 

With insufficient facts, he can only make unsound policy judg
ments. Despite partisan political differences, I know of no one who 
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wants to see our President make wrong calls. It is not good for the 
office, nor is it good for education. 

I recommend that members of this subcommittee review all of 
the testimony presented at the House hearings. Mr. Chairman, I 
have brought with me today two pieces of critical testimony, and I 
would like your permission to have those two pieces of testimony 
included in the record of today's hearing. 

Senator SPECTER. Congressman Williams, we appreciate the work 
which the House committee has done. We will review those find
ings and the testimony and we would be pleased to receive what
ever you have to offer at this time, without objection. 

Mr. WILLIAMS. I appreciate that. 
The documents I refer to are remarks by I-5r. Michael Casserly 

representing the Council of Great City Schools aud Irwin Hyman 
representing the American Psychological Association. 

A brief summary of the problems which our witnesses on the 
House side associated with the Bauer report includes the following 
points. 

First, the Bauer report misuses and selectively uses statistics and 
other important information. 

Second, the report uses language which is inflammatory. 
Third, the report appears to deliberately miscast the nature of 

student misconduct. 
Fourth, nearly all the solutions recommended are currently 

available and in operation, leaving one to question the purpose of 
the ~eport. 

And, finally, the involvement of the Department of Justice in 
matters of. student misconduct and disorder is perceived as heavy 
handed. Federal level intrusion. It is unnecessary and potentially 
damaging to the civil rights of all individuals. 

There are two areas I would suggest to this committee not fully 
explored by our hearings, and if I may, I would encourage my col
leagues here in the Senate to consider them. 

First, the data about attacks on teachers indicates that this is 
still an area for serious concern. No teacher should be a victim of 
attack by students in school, and we need to look for constructive 
ways to alleviate this problem where it occurs. 

Second, in limited but very important ways, students are also vic
tims of unprovoked teacher attacks. In this case, since teachers 
represent the State, the State is guilty of those attacks on those 
students. 

I know of no one who would condone such, and that, too, rrmst be 
brought to an end. 

Both of these categories of violence deserve the scrutiny of gov
ernments and citizens. We must all, of course, work together to col
lectively arrive at solutions to these serious problems, solutions 
that are appropriate and which are not politically motivated. 

Finally, I would like to make clear my own views. I do not be
lieve our classrooms are under siege. I do not believe our schools 
are in chaos. I do not believe that pal'ents confuse discipline con
cerns with violence and vandalism, and, by the way, the Gallup 
poll clearly bears me out. 

Finally, I do not believe that parents want the weight of the U.S. 
Department of Justice bearing down on their children. Previous 
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Presidents and CongresSes have neither callously ignored nor dan
gerously emphasized problems in our Nation's schools. 

This administration, however, has done both. The Federal Gov
ernment has an appropriate role to play, and I do not wish to see 
that role diminished, nor do I wish to see it enhanced by involving 
the Federal Government in legal action against students and their 
parents; turning our schools into political and ideological combat zones is wrong. 

Thank you~ Mr. Chairman. 
[The statements of Michael Casserly and Irwin A. Hyman sltb

mitted by Representative Williams follows:] 
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Testimony on School Discipline and Violence 

Presented to 

The Subcommittee on Elementary. Secondary and Vocational Education 

of the 

Conmittee on Education and Labor 

U.S. House of Representatives 

by 

Michael casserly 

The Council of the Great City Schools 

Mr. Ch:l;irman and members of the Subcommittee, I am Michael Casserly. 

Director of Legislation and Research for the Council of the Great City Schools. 

On behalf of the Council I would like to thank you for this opportunity to tes

tify on this important issue. 

As the Chairman knows, the Council is an organization comprised of 

32 of the nation's largest urban school systems. On our Board of Directors sit 

the Superintendent and one Board of Education member from each district, making 

the Council the only national organization so constituted and the only education 

group whose membership is solely urban. 

The Council's membership serves 4.2 million children, or about 11% of 

the nation's public elementary and secondary school enrollment. Approximately 

32% of the nation's Black children, 27% of the Hispanic children, and 21% of 

the Asian-origin children are being educa.~ed in our 32-member school systems. 

Almost one-third of our enrollments are of child~:eil who reside in families re

ceiving public assistance, and over 60% of our students )'eceive a fl'ee or re

duced priced lUnch daily. 

Mr. Chairman'. I would like to devote my remarks this morning to the 

issues of school crime, violence and discipline. This topic is of particular 
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interest to the Council because it is often the urban schools that are perceived 

of as the most disi'uptive. In fact, our inne'r cities have some of the toughest 

schools in the nation. 

Mr. Chairman, before I beg'in I want to indicate that the Council 

deplores violence of any kind especially in our schools and strongly supports 

the imposition of strict and fair disciplinal'Y standards for students. Anytime 

a single child or teacher is harmed either physically or psychologically is 

detrimental to good educgtion. 

The current debate on school discipline needs to be placed in con

text, however. The Department of Education has recently released a report under 

the auspices of Deputy Undersecretary Gary Baueron school discipl ine called 

"Disorder in Our Public Schools" and the President made this topic the subject 

of his January 7th radio address to the nation. In that add~ess Mr. Reagan 

states that " ••. many classrooms across the country are not temples of learning, 

teachi ng the 1 essons of good wi 11, ci vil i ty and wi sdom important to the Vho 1 e 

fabric of American life. Many schools are filled with rude, unruly behavior and 

even violence", The formal report to the Cabinet Council on Human Resources 

goes further and describes schools as "hazardous places to teach and definitely 

places to fear". 

Nationwide data on this situation is, in fact, difficult to obtain. 

The best and most I'ecent natiomlide repot't on this issue was published in 

December, 1977 (not 1978) by the National Institute of Education ,(NIE). The 

study found a variety of serious crimes in schools including teachel' aS5ults, 

threats of bodily harm. robbery, vandal ism. arson t murder and rape.,-documenta

tion of which was included in the ;'Bauer" report along with the kinds of anec

dotal evidence that the Administration so strongly decried in the uproal' over 

hunger. The selective treatment of the infol'mation is clearly misleading, and 

no one Republican or Democt'at alike should feel compelled to identify with it. 

The Bauer report cites NIE data showing that 282,000 students \'Iere 

physically attacked each month but omits information from the same NIE survey 

that shows that this amounted to only 1.3% of the students. The t'eport goes on 

to claim that 112,000 students each month are forceably robbed but omits data. 
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indicating that this is only 0.5% of the students. The report also cites NI.E 

data indicating that 2.4 million students per month had their personal property 

stolen but leaves out data showing that this amounts to only 11% of the secon

dary school students. 

Data on teachers are treated in the same way. The report cites NIE 

data showing that 6,000 teacher are robbed each month in secondary schools but 

omits information shol1ing that this is only 0.6% of the teachers. Similar ommis

sions occur on teachel' assault data. Finally. the report" cites information 

claiming that the amount of'money spent to repair property damage exceeds the 

annual cost of textbooks but fails to cite data showing that these costs amount 

to only one-half of U: of the total value of all school pl'operty in the country. 

The Adnlinistration's analysis goes on to cite data fl'om the NPTA that the cost 

of school prope~ty destruction was about $600~annually but ignores data from 

the NIE sh0l1ing that the amount was closer to $20001, $60m of I~hich include rare 

acts of al'son. 

The Bauer report continues by highlighting additional NIE findings 

that indicate that nearly 8% of urban junior and senior high school students 

miss at least one day of school a month because they are afraid to go to school. 

Data are omitted from tho report, however, that show young teenagers in inner 

cities al'e safeI' in school than in their 0~1Il neighno)'hoods. 

The Y'eport goes on to cite data indicating the problem has gotten 

110rse but ignores the conclusion of the NIE study that states: "P,lthougll school 

violence and vandalism increased during the 1960s, they have leveied off since 

the early 1970s, and there are some hi'nt? of a decl ine", In addition, a t'ecent 

(1983) report by the NIE called "Trends in Interpersonal Crises in Schools" Ivas 

omitted from the Department of Education's magazine, "American Education". When 

it was discovered that the results did not mesh with the Bauer report. This new 

NIE data concludes: 

"In summary. the National Crime Survey evidence for the period 
1973-80 does not suggest that crimes in secondary schools 
against stUdents I'/ere rising. On the contrary, assaults showed 
little change, and both robberies and thefts stayed fairly level, 
and then decreased in 1979-1980. For completed thefts. the 
most common crime aga; nst students. the drop bega n in 1976". 
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The NEA and AFT data on personal attacks on teachers, however, indi

cates that the problem may have increased since the mid-1970s, but even these 

reports are not without contradictory data. The reasons for the increases are 

not cleal' but could be due to the mainstreJming of disruptive and handicapped 

children, to heightened willingness to report attacks, and other factors. 

Clearly, though, the situation is more ambiguous and more complex than the 8auer 
report would indicate. . 

In addition, other information has been ignor'ed by the Department. No 

mention in the "Bauer" report is made of il 1982 NCES report that showed that the 

most serious school disciplinary problems were absenteeism, drugs and alcohol, 

and class cutting. Fewer than 10% of the schools in the survey report that physical 

conflicts between teachers and students were either moderate or serious proble>ms, 

and fewer still describe student possession of 11eapons, verbal abuse of teachers, 

or more serious crimes as even moderate problems. Furthermore, the Gallup polls 

on school Giscipline are not exactlY ~/hat the Bauer report wou'ld lead one to 

believe. When asked what they mean by discipline, the largest percent indicated 

that it meant obeying rules and regulations -- a far bl"oader approach to discipline 

than a report titled "Disorder in Our Public Schools"woUld lead one to believe. 
Table 1.··Percentage distribution of schools according to school 

administrators' reports of the seriousness of school 
problems; Spring 1980 

Seriousness of school problems 

School problem Total 

Absenteeism •.•.•. 

Student use of 
drugs or alcohOl •.. 

Class cutting •••... 

Vandalism of 
school property .•• 

Robbery or theft .•• 

Verbal abuse of 
teachqrs •••••••. 

Physical cOllflicts 
among students ••. 

Conflicts between 
'students and 

100.0 

100.0 

100.0 

100.0 

100.0 

100.0 

100.0 

8.1 

5.6 

4.7 

2.4 

1.7 

0.1 

0.1 

teachers. . • • • • •. 100.0 0.0 

StUdent possession 

of weapons .••• " 100.0 0.0. 

Rape or attempted 

rape •..•.••• " 100.0 0.0 

Not 
at all 

39.7 43.5 8.7 

36.S 60.6 7.4 
25.6 51.6 18.1 

19.6 68.5 9.5 
16.1 69.1 13.1 

8.3 62.8 28.S 

5.8 62.6 31.5 

5.2 69.5 25.3 

0.5 21.1 78.4 

0.:2 3.9 95.9 _._--------------
• Celt entry i. Ie,. than one lenlh of 1 ~reelll but not z.ro. 
Source: NCES 
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Data from our own urban schools also indicates that the situation is 

probably improving. In Boston, for example, physical assaults on school person

nel have dropped by 70% in the past 2 1/2 years ~nd robberies decreased from 331 

in the 1981-82 school year to 120 in the 1982-83 School year. Assaults in the 

Atlanta schools decreased fl'om 111 to 75 bewteen 1977 and 1982. A Chicago repli

cation of the NIE Safe Schools Study 'jn 1979-80 found substantially fewel' thefts, 

assu~lts dnd robberies than the national avel'age for large cities 
In Dade 

County (Niami) crime in schools has dropped by 25% in the last tI~o years. 

Expenditures from arson. vandalism ~nd school property theft declined by 11% in 
Los Angeles over the last year. 

The New York City data also provides good evidence of what more 

likely is happening. The total cost of school crime in that city school sys

tem steadily rose from 1973 to a peak in 1979 with on annual cost of $6.Om. 

Since then the cost has dropped to $4.9m. The total number of incidents (ranging 

from assaults to telephoned bomb threats) apparently has also decreased. 

We think the likely decrease in serious crime is due to a va,'iety of 

things ur'ban schools are nO\~ dOing. Nearly all of our schOol systems since 1977 

have adopted some new disciplinary codes of conduct fOl' students and teachers 

and stricter enforcement practices. Hardware systems to detect crime have 

become more sophisticated and more prevalent. In addition, school systems have 

done a better job of training staff on how to handle disruptive acts. One of 

the more significant developments in urban schools, however, are nel1 pol icies 

on the suspension and expUlsion of stUdents. Dozens of programs have sprung up 

across the country that invol ve in-house suspens; ons under the phil osophy that 
it is better 

to include rather than exclude student::;. Urban schools have, 

histol'ically, had a poor record of suspensions but our data indicate that the 
situation is steadily iwproving. 

The most significant development in urban schools, howevel', involves 

a general increase in standards, teaching, curriculum, managem(h1t and leadet'ship 

since 1977. All but two distl'icts now are using minimum competency exams to help 

determi ne promotions and graduation fOl' students, most have mandatory homewol'k 

policies, and some are now working to extend the school day. In addition, the 

number of credits required for graduation is steadily increasing. And most ul'ban 
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districts are developing stronger relationships with the community, parent groups 

and the private sector. Community and parent organizations have been especially 

important in improv'jng our schools, but clearly much more work is needed in this 

area. The combined efforts of the community, principals. teachers and school 

leadership have tUl'ned arourtd scores of schools in the inner-cities. Evidence for 

this progress can be found easily in the improved test scores of 98% of the urban 

school systems we represent. One of the important byproducts of this progress has 

been a decrease in serious disruptions as achievement has risen. 

The federal role in this turn-around has been significant and will 

continue to be through the strong support of programs like Chapter 1 and other 

efforts that focus academic help on populations most in need. When students begin 

to see that they can achieve in school, it is less likely that they will disrupt 

classes. Continued federal sUpport for Chapter 1 is a good investment both in 

academic achievement but probably in school safety as well. 

Mr. Chairman, the country, its schools and the President are ill-served 

by the report released by Mr. Bauer. The information contained in the report is 

clearly misleading and inflamatory. Data that the Department of Education had access 

to apparently was deliberately omitted from the report, resulting in a very distort
ed picture of disruption in our schools. 

The recent national commission reports have done a good job of focusing 

attention on the issues of educational quality and equity __ clearly a constructive 

thing to happen. This report is in no way constl'uctive because of its unbalanced 

and el'roneous infOl'mation. In fact, the report is destructive because it 

panders to the ugliest stereotypes that the public holds about inner-city schools 

and is an extremely clumsy attempt to lay cl{\im to a civil rights issue. 

The issues of discipline and crime in the urban public schools are in 

fact serious ones. No one ~enies that a problem existsj we do have disruptive 

stUdents. But we are not cral'/ling I~ith them as this report implies. The most 

destructive aspect of this report involves the negative perceptions that it 

fosters, for it is these perceptions that erode public confidence in its schools 

and public support for federal programs at a delicate time in this era of 

national improvement, and that lead eventually to the abandonment of the city 

schools. This issue is an important one, but an issue that deserves far more 

careful and objective study than this report gives it. 
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National Center for the 

study of Corporal Punishment 

and Alternatives in the Schools 

Temple University 

f Assisted by 

JOHN D'ALESSANDRO 

Temple University 

on behalf of 

THE AMERICAN PSYCHOLOGICAL ASSOCIATION 

and 

THE ASSOCIATION FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF PSYCHOLOGY 

before the 

Subcommittee on Elementary, Secondary and Vocational Education 

of the 

Committee on EdUcation and Labor 

United States House of RepresentatiVes 

January 24, 1984 

on the subject of 

SCHOOL DISCIPLINE IN AMERICA: VIOLENCE TO AND BY TEACHERS 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee, it is an honor and a 

pleasure to be here to testify on behalf of the American Psychological 

Association on the subject of school discipline. While I am speaking on 

behalf of the American Psychological AsSOCiation and the Association for the 

Advancement of Psychology, I would like to st~te that the data presented and 

the conclUsions drawn do not necessarily represent the view of these two ,.' 
organizations. My name is Irwin ~. Hyman, Ed.D. I am Director of the 

National Center for the Study of Corporal Punishment and Alternatives in the 

Schools and Profeasor of School Psychology at Temple Univexsity. During the 
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past three decades I have been a teacher, a school psychologist, a chief 

clinical psychologist and a consultant to federal, state and local agencies 

regarding school discipline. 

I am here today to address the issue of violence in the schools. I would 

like to highlight several issues. First, violence against teachers is an 

historical fact in American education. However, the data which I will present 

hardly suggest that we are facing a crisis of chaos in the classroom, as 

alleged by this administration. Second, I will discuss the problem of 

discipline and why it appears, to some, to be intractable. Finally, I will 

present the causes of misbehavior and effective solutions. Throughout, I 

would like to remind all of us that while there is violence against 

teacher~, the punitiveness toward children that has pervaded American 

education is more a cause than a solution to classroom misbehavior. 

President Reagan's Indianapolis speech of December 8th and 

the ensuing coverage indicate that this administration 

has embraced a punitive disciplinary theme. He calls for a 

return to good, "old fashioned" discipline. There is nothing 

like talk of good, "old fashioned" discipl~ne to pacify the 

critics of American e uca on. d ti It 's easy to administer, it's 

cheap, and best of all, it invokes another time when supposedly 

there was no violence in the schools, children obeyed their 

teachers, and the authority of educators was unquestioned. 

Before we accept Simple answers to complex problems, we should 

recognize that the good old days were not so good (Bettman, 

1974). Historical evidence indicates that violenc~ to and by 

teachers was a daily part of the educational SC03ne. The most 

pervasive theme in the good 01 aye was d d the innate "badness" of 

children (Hyman, Flanagan, & Smith, 1982). Discipline relied 

heavily on the use of physical pain, humiliation, denigration and 

the exclusion of large numbers of children from adequate 

schooling. The current administration has been pUblicizing two 

maJor concerns regarding school diSCipline. F.irst, they assert 

that there has been an alarming increase of Violence in 

education. They emphasize attacks on teachers and assaults 

against students, wi a 'resu a th It nt disruption in the educational 
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process. Further, they seem to feel that students have too m~ny 

constitutional rights. They must assume that too much democracy 

p.revents administrators from dOing their Jobs. As in the p~st, 

many confuse democratic prinCiples with permiSsiVeness (Hyman, 

1970). EdUcators have traditionally taught the content of 

democracy while ignoring its process. 

While there is no doubt that schOOl violence and lack of 

discipline eXist, the data available cio not reflect the crisis 

described by this administration (Moles, 1983; NIE, 1977). In 

fact, both Psychological and phYSical violence against children 

public announcements, good, "old fashioned" discipline ia alive 

is more pervasive than is Violence against teachers. Contrary to 

and well. Data available indicate that millions of children each 

year are the recipients of suspenSion, expulsion and the 

infliction of phYSical pain (Hyman, 1979). Violence~ in its 

entirety, should be eliminated from American education. 

Therefore, we agree with President Reagan that teacher 

Victimization is a problem. I'd like to state that even one 

attack on a teacher is too mUCh, Just like one murder, one 

robbery or one assault in America is too muoh. Unfortunately, 

ViOlence is part ~f American life. and our Judgments must be 

tempered by a rational understanding of the dimensions of this 

problem. 

American literature has romanticized disruptions in 

education. as exemplified by the Legend of Sleepy HOllow and the 

tales o£ th~t famous school truant, Huckleberry Finn. 
The 

actUality is that teachers have been attacked in schools Since 

colonial days. For instance, Otto Bettmann (1974) in The 

Good Old Days - They Were Terrible. describes 19th century 

SchoolrQoms as "full 0:£ hostile, ungovernable children. who were 

prone to violence." 
A dramatic example was the death of a young 

~chool teacher. Mias Etta Barstow. 
After shutting :four stUdents 

in the school bUilding after class, they tUJ;'ned on her and stoned 

her to death. 
Newman and Newman (1980) have described 19th c4Ilntury 
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classrooms as "wild and unruly." In 1791, 1821 and 1822, 

citizens of Philadelphia met to discuss the problems of teenage 

gangs. Such gangs are still considered a problem as they impinge 

upon the schools. Historical use of birching and other forms of 

corporal punishment were seen by many to exacerbate the problem 

(Hyman & Wise, 1979). Reforms led to the reduction of the 

infliction of pain on students which resulted in improved school 

discipline. 

Only recently have schools begun to collect' data on violence 

(Rubel, 1977). Even today, much of the data is inadequate and 

may easily lead to erroneous conc.lusions. Dr. Oliver Moles 

(1983), of the National Institute of Education, and Dr. Robert 

Rubel (1977), of the National Alliance for Safe Schools, 

are two researchers prominent in the field of teacher 

victimization. My analYSis relies in part on their findings. 

A maJbr source of victimization data is the National 

Educational Association Teacher Opinion Poll (Moles. 1983). One 

of the problems with that data is that questions regarding 

physical attacks and theft changed from 1978 to 1979. The result 

was an apparent increase in this category of offense. The 

change in questions enlarged the category. so that this increase 

a~pears to be a statistical artifact. It may not represent a 

real increase. 

Another important source of data is the National Crime 

Surveys, published by the U.S. Dept. of Justice. As Moles (1983) 

states, the evidence from 1973-1980 suggests no rise in secondary 

school crime rates against students. 

The Safe Schools StUdy has been another maJor source of data 

on school violence. However, that data was collected in 1976 and 

is now outdated. In any event, the overall findings suggest a 

leveling off of school violence. I will .not discuss these 

findings in detail, since I know Dr. Gottfredson addresses them 

in his testimony to the Subcommittee. However, I would like to add 

that a doctoral dissertation, by Allen Sohn (1982) at Temple University, 

presents a secondary analysis of that study's vandalism data. 
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His study showed that vandalism data is spurious because of the 

vagaries of school reporting procedures. 

The National Center for the Study of Corporal Punishment and 

Alternatives in the Schools. which I direct. has attempted t~ 

gather up-to-date information on the rates of student and teacher 

victimization in the schools. Much of this information. for 

reasons discussed below, was unavailable. Data were collected 

from Los Angeles, Philadelphia. and two smaller districts. The 

figures we received indicate that, in general, school Violence has 

leveled off, confirming the findings of the Safe Schools Study. 

Cross (1983) identifies factors which result in 

distortion of school crime figures. Until recently school 

administrators tended to underreport school crime. The 

development of school security offices has resulted in increased 

reporting of offenses. Consequently. while actual Victimization 

rates may have remained constant, more is reported. Hence, 

school crime appears to be on the increase. Further. comparative 

data analyses are invalidated without a uniform reporting system. 

McDermott (1983) has criticized most of the available data on two 

other grounds. She argues that all of the extant data rest on. 

the unfounded essumption that offenders and victims form mutually 

exclu~ive groups. and that crime in schools is studied as if it 

exi~ted in isolation fro~ its surrounding community. This latter 

assumption is patently untrue, an assertion confirmed by the 

resultn of the Safe Schools Study which demonstrated that crime 

in the community predicted school crime. 

In order to dramatize the ~laws in most reportine techniques 

regarding teacher victimization, it's necessary to consider What 

conmtitutes an assault. I conducted an investigation of teacher 

reports for 1982-1983 in a moderately-sized. urban school 

district. I will not mention the name of the district, since 

many school administrators are leery about revealing this kind of 

information to the public. A maJor problem with these data, 

besides their methodological flaws, is the reluctance of many 

administr~tors to make infor~ation available. 
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In my work, I examined 40 cases which were listed as teacher 

assaults in the school's annual statistical report. I £ound few 

cases of real assault. For instance, in a number of instances, 

the teacher physically.attempted to move a student and was shoved 

or pushed as a result of first "laying hands" on the student. In 

many of the cases, the teacher was never actually h~t. I also 

found that teachers were frequently assaulted by individuals with 

whom they were unfamiliar. This last finding is consistent with 

the analysis of the National Crime Survey data by Jackson Toby 

(1983), who found that most violent crimes in the schools were 

committed by intruders. He further asserted that most school 

crimes were nonviolent. McDermott (1983), in the aforementioned 

work, essentially agrees with Toby's conclusions. Another 

problem with the data is that it often doesn't indicate repeated 

offenses. One person could commit many crimes or one teacher or 

student may be a repeated victim. 

In summary. I found that at least half of the reports of 

assault would not meet the legal definition. Such findings, 

along with the methodological :flaws already discussed, indi>:::ate 

that the reporting of school crime needs to be more adequately 

refined. We need valid information on whieh to base policy 

decisions. 

It is apparent that while there are problems of teacher and 

stUdent victimiZation, they are not at the criSis level 

suggested by this administration. However, the problems which do 

exist require two approaches. First, since c~mmunity crime is 

reflected in the schools, we need to face the problems which 

emanate from poverty. unemployment, and fa~11ydisorganization. 

I am well aware of the debate concerning the caUses of crime, but 

since they are complex, Until Single causation is definitely 

established, it is better to attack the problems from a 

multifaceted social approach. Second, the schools need support 

to deal with violent youth who need special services. RedUcing 

school size so that students and teachers know each other is 
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important. Well-trained security officers are necessary in our 

schools. They should be trained in appropriate techniques of 

social control and physical restraint when necessary (Bogacki, 

1980). I have studied incidents which indicate that 

~ecurity officers escalate confrontation to violence. FUrther, 

good police li~ison is important in dangerous areas. While there 

are some youth who do not belong in regUlar schools, teachers and 

disciplinarians need.tO learn effective methods to deal with the 

ma:)ority of behavior problems. For a variety of reasons 

discussed below, this is not an easy task. :t is complex and may 

be initi~lly quite expensive, but in the long run, it is the most 

cost-effective approach. It is first important to understand why 

we have such difficulty in this area. 

!!rlderst,anding Discipline 

A maJor problem in dealing with school disruption in America 

is that we tend to tUrn reflexively to punishment as a solution. 

1n fact, most Americans consider punishment and discipl~ne as 

synonymous. They fail to realize that discipline, especially in 

~ democracy, should be dependent on students' developing 

internalized cont~ols (Hyman, 1964, 1970). There is a large body 

of theory and research Which indicates that the most effective 

disciplinary techniques occur within a framework of concern for 

individual ri9hts CHyman & Bogacki, 1984). Students need to 

perceive school as representing a fair and Just system. 

Unfortunately, as mentioned previously, many educators confuse 

democracy in education with permissiveness, which provides them 

with an easy label with which to attack most proponents for 

change. But, members of the subcommittee, is there anyone here 

who is so far removed from his or her own school days that he 

or she can't relate to what I am saying? Is there anyone here, 

who as a school child didn't want to feel good about himself or 

herself, didn't want to be appreciated, didn't want to be 

Competent, and didn't want to be treated fairly? Well, I 

guarantee that, with very few exceptions, every student in America 

has the same feelings. 
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An enormous problem is that we lack obJectivity in examining the 

issue of discipline and punishment. Therefore. it is difficult 

to change school climates which themselves create discipline problems. 

Discipline is somethi.ng we have all Elxperienced from the da}" 

we were born. Others impose feeding. sleeping and toilet 

scheduling on us. We are disciplined by our religions, by our 

teachers, by our employers. and by ever increasing numbers of 

community and governm~'nt agencies. No wonder we have difftculty 

being obJective. But I would ask you, ladies and gentlemen, 

to consider dispa.ssionately more than forty years of research in 

educational psychology (Hyman & Wise. 1979). The overwhelming 

evidence tells us that punishment and denial 0:£ Justice are 

inappropriate, ineffective and counterproductive ways of changing 

and improving behavior in our democracy. The research 

demonstrates that the most effective disciplinary approaches and 

techniques are rooted in democratic concepts of fair play and 

Justice (NIE, 1977: Hyman & Lally, 1982). All successful 

approaches enhance individual self esteem and encourage 

cooperation (Duke, 1978). While punishment is necessary at 

times, it should be used rationally, in a way that does not 

alienate or humiliate stUdents (Hyman, 1980). If you read with an 

open mind you will find th~t good "old fashioned" diSCipline is the 

least effective method of changing behavior. Tradition and habit have 

a powerful effect on attitudes and techniques of discipline. 

Current teacher training and supervision provide insufficient resources 

to help teachers to learn effective classroom management. 

Why StUdents Misbehave 

I would like to discuss the mOJor factors which contribute 

to school misbehavior and disruption. They are documented in the 

literature (Duke, 1978: Hyman, Flanag~n & Smith, 1982). While 

any of these can be a maJor contri:':'utor in individual cases, or 

even in certain communities, all must be accounted for in 

diagnosing and solVing problems. Discipline is a complex problem 

with multiple causes. Yet research offers many effective non-
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punitive approaches (Hyman & Lally, 1981). Most are based on 

concepts of prevention and remediation rather than punishment. 

1. Inadequate parenting has been traced to school 

misbehavior. Problems range from parents' lack of knowledge 

about child rearing to violence in the home. Solutions include a 

variety of parenting training techniques, early intervention 

through provision of adequate services by school psychologists, 

community mental health agencies and family courts ~Massimo & 

Shore, 1966). All of these services exist but many are 

undarfunded and understaffed. 

2. Ineffective teacher training is a cause of many 

classroom disruptions which could either be avoided or handled 

adequately CHyman, Stern, Lally, Kreuter, Berlinghof & Prior, 

1982}. In an investigation for the National Institute of 

Education and in current ongoing research, I have reviewed much 

of the literature on teacher training (Hyman & Lally, 1983). "y 

staff and I have identified effectiveness stUdies of over thiry 

discipline training programs. Despite the existence of these 

approaches, most practicing teachers have had no formal training 

in discipline at the preservice level. Teachers do rGceive 

inservice training at workshops, but there is little evidence 

that these brief encounters have any long-lasting effects. 

There is further evidence that training shOUld be personalized 

and offered over SUffiCient time for teachers to internalize what 

is presented. Moreover, approaches must be matched to 

appropriate school contexts. 

In recent years I have been working with a child variance 

approach that requires matching teachers with diSCipline models. 

In a four year proJect in the Flemming School, in Trenton, N.J., 

we have found that helping teachers to learn about themselves and 

their classroom behavior is extremely effective in redUCing 

discipline problems. 

3. 
School organization and administ~ative leadership may be 

a maJor caUSe Of stUdent alienation and consequent disruption and 

~ -----~--------------------

,. 



r • » 

'\ 

90 

violence. We know that school size, poor leadership, 

inappropriate curricula, and the overuse of suspensions all 

contribute to misbehavior. 

Schools in trouble need the help of psychologists with 

experience in organizational development. School psychologists, 

and others with proper training, can offer great help in 

encouraging organizational change(U.S. Department of Justice. 

1979). Principals must be flexible, knowledgeable and completely 

supportive of necessary change which may take three or four 

years (Sar8son. 1971; Smith, 1973). 

4. Physical factors such as learning disabilities, certain 

types of inborn temperament traits and personality styles can 

interact \<lith environments to result in severe behavior disorders 

<California Commission on Crime Control & Violence Prevention, 

1981). There is a correlation between delinquency and school 

learning problems. Poor self-esteem and frustration with 

learning contribute to behavior problems (Albee, 1982). While we 

need more research on causative factors in delinquency, our state 

of knowledge is sufficient to allow the use of mora psychological and 

social services for prevention, early identification and remediation. 

However, while we are talking about improving disciplin~, the 

administration continues to reduce funding for the services described 

here. 

5. There is evidence that society itself contributes to 

school disruption. Violence on teleVision, high youth 

unemployment, isolation of families due to frequent moves, and 

economic stress are only some of the factors which undermine 

fam.i.ly stability and stUdent faith in the system. Multilayered 

bureaucracy and large corporations diminish individuals' feelings 

of worth. Societies' rapid advance towards high technolo~y 

forever shuts out realistic employment opportunities for a large 

number of youths. 

The five contributing factors discussed suggest that youth 

Misbehavior and violence have many ~oots. The causes and 

\.-. ...... \ 

" 

r 

A 

! , 
·1 
/1 

U 
II 1-.f 
1:1 r; 

J, 

II 
11 

II 
Ij 

J 
I 
j 

Ii 
'I 

I 

I 
I 
I 

.. 

91 

solutions ~re complex and require more than "good, old fashioned" 

discipl.i.ne. .Perhaps Our best hope lies with prevention. 

Prevention 

The key to developing good discipline in schools is 

prevention. This can be offered at various levels of 

intervention. ~hile prevention may at first seem expensive, 

mentioned previously, over the long run it is most cost 

e£fective. 

The crucial issue of delinquency prevention has been debated 

for years (U.S. Department of Ju~tice, 1977). In fact, the 

practical application of the prevention concept is difficult 

(Albee, 1982; DeWald, 1981). A complete discussion is beyond the 

intent of this presentation. Briefly, two points are relevant. 

Our most serious delinquents require early identific6tion 

and prevention which calls for coordinated community networking. 

I have been consulting on the development of such a program in 

Trenton N.J. I would like to quote Captain Thomas Williams, 

Commanding Officer of the Youth Soction of the Trenton Police 

Department, and a recipient of two national awards. He 

reports that many law enforcement officers aSsigned to Juvenile 

units in police departments are cOncerned with the need for early 

identification and treatment of families. They feel this is "the 

only way to go to reduce youth violence." While this approach 

certainly raises civil liberties issues which must be addressed, 

it offers more promise than the focus on punishment when children 

are older and more difficult to change. 

Obviously, from what I have presented, we need to clarify a 

number of issues. First, we need to develop uniform methods of 

discipline reporting. The staff at the National Center for the 

Study of Corporal Punishment and Alternatives in the Schools has 

been working on a computerized system which enables schools to be 

provided with detailed information on school misbehavior. 

Hopefully, the effort is being encOUraged elsewhere. 

__ ~ ___ ~~I~~~'~A~ __ ~ __________________________________ ~ __ ~ ________ ~ ____ ~~ ________ ~ 
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We need to continue to expand e,risting programs which are 

used for pre-service and in-service training of teachers 

CHyman & Lally, 1982). However we must continue to evaluate 

I'rograms to determine their e:(fectiveness. Public popularity may 

not guarantee quality. Obviously, the latest panacea is Assertive 

Discipline, yet we hava little real data on its effectiveness, 

especially over time. Just looking at exemplary schools will not 

provide solutions to the problem. We need to look at the 

processes which are most effective anrt develop formats for 

matching processes with schools. 

The National Institute of Education had established an 

office that coordinated efforts in this area. They were 

beginning to integrate research efforts from many fields and 

establish a number Of maJor stUdies. Unfortunately, soon after 

releasing the Safe S~hools Study, they were dismantled. This is 

ironic since that office could be a maJor force in helping to 

clarify the current issue of violence in the classroom. 
I would 

urge Congress~o support the continuation of research in the 

field of school disruption, especially the kind conducted by NIE. 

Policy Recommendations 

I recommend this subcommittee con~ider helping to eradicate 

unnecessary punitiveness from American ~ducation. American 

schools need to give up corporal punishment, Since the trend 

lately is to compare our schools with the rest of the world, it 

is interesting to note that corporal punishment has been banned in 

all of continental Europe and the entire Communist bloc. Only 

Children in America, Canada, Australia and New Zealand are 

victimized by the infliction of pain for supposed edUcational 

purposes. 

There are documented cases that school children here are 

PU~hed, kicked, paddled, forced to eat cigarettes and have their 

faces smeared with Tabasco sel'Uce. One principal in Chicago used 

a pocketknife to drill a hole in a pupil's fingernail (Clarke So 

Liberman-Lascoa, & Hyman, 1982). 
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One of' the most popular ab\lses lately is "time out," a 

perfectl~ valid f'orm of' p\lnishment in which students ~re 

separated f'rom their classmates f'or no more than 1Q minutes. 

Although it should only be us~d sparingly, Some educators have 

locked children in dark closets and school vaUlts f'or hours. 

Recently, I was asked to testif'y in D\lnn, North Carolina, 

an expert witness on a case of' corporal pu,nishment Which an 

examining phYSiCian considered to be child abuse. 

A high school honor student with no previous diSCipline 

problems. Shelly Gaspe~son is a sof't-spoken, deeply religious 

young woman. 
She made, the mistake of cutting class one day and 

as 

was offered a choice: corporal punishment or a five-day, in

school suspension {ISS). At first she accepted the ISS, but she 

was not supplied with her school work as required by school policy. 

After several days of in-school suspension, she became 

worried about keeping up with her courses, espeCially calculus, 

so she accepted an offer to take two "licks" for each day left in 

the suspension. 

The football coach, who was also the assistant prinCipal, 

administered Six "licks" with a WOOden paddle. After an 

eXamining physiCian filed child abuse charges ~gainst the 

assistant principal, Shelley's Pl'!'rents complained to the school 

administration. 

The School board and sUpel:'intendent supported t,he use of 

pain fox' "educational" purposes. They sa,w nothing wrong, despite 

the fact that the beating left ,brUises for three weeks and. caUsed 

menstrual hemorrhaging and mental trauma for Shelly and her 

family. 

After less than 15 minutes of deliberation. the Jurors in 

this case S\lpported the uSe of child abUse in their schOOls. 

Little Concern was displayed for this young Woman's hUmiliation, 

pain, fear and suffering. This bright and gifted PE!rson, who at. 

one tim~ had pl~nned to be a music teacher, has switched to 

engin~e~ing - she w~nts nothing to do with a career in education. 

tI 
fl 
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The Reagan adminis'tration's call for good old-fashioned 

discipline is superfluous when we have- so many current examples 

of corporal punishment. The answer to improving education 

lies not with the use of get-tough procedures, which have been 

discredited in much of the psychological ~esearch, but rather 

with the use of rational, preventive and motivational 

techniques. The American Psychological Association and many 

other professional groups dealing with children recommend banning 

corporal punishment from the schools. 

School suspension and pun\shments are a national disgrace. 

The Education Department shows that in 1982, nationwide, 72.8~ of 

those who began high schOOl graduated, compared to 77.?~ 10 years 

earlier. But when one looks at inner-City schools, some of the 

figures are dramatic. In New Jersey, some high schools in inner cities 

lose almost half of their students by the time they become 

seniors. What happens to th'ese drop outs and push outs? How 

many return to the schools, or hang around the school causing problems? We 

need to develop more effective in-school suspension programs; we need more 

psychologica~ services; we need to develop effective methods of enforcing 

discipline codes; and most of all we need to support the development of good 

alternative schools (Arnove & strout, 1978). 

Conclusion 

In conclusion, it is obvious that discipline is a complex problem. 

Solutions are neither simple nor cheap. I have barely touched the surface in 

this testimony. We in America cannot afford to return to good "old fashioned" 

discipline. If we want to reduce school violence, we have to address the 

issues that caUSe it. The cure requires expenditures of more than the amounts 

of resources tb~t are currently being suggested by this administration. 

I am very pleased to be·able to testify on behalf of the American 

Psychological Association and the Association for the Advancement of 

psychology on this critical issue. If I can be of any further assistance to 

this subcommittee, please feel free to call upon me. Thank you very much. 
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Senator SPECTER. Thank you very much, Congressman Willi~ms. 
When you refer to the conclusions of ~ome at your HO}ls~ hearIngs, 
how do you square that, if you can, wIth ~r. Shanker s Judgments. 
And I know you were not here this mornIng. You could not be at 
the start. 

But Mr. Shanker testified earlier today that he was shocked at 
the-that was his word, shocked-at the testim.ony offered in t~e 
House committee hearings that things were gettIng better; that his 
view was that the problem was serious and has continued to 
remain serious. . 

Mr. WILLIAMS. Al Shanker is the president of my unIOn. I am a 
member of the American Federation of Teachers and a former 
teacher. As I did not hear Al Shanker's testimony today, ~e did not 
hear the testimony on the House side, and I suggest that IS why he 
is confused. 

Let nle tell you that if one hears that 6,000 teachers we~e robbe? 
last year, that is shocking testimony, and I would agree WIth PreSI
dent Shanker about that. 

But then when you recognize that it is six-tenths of 1 percent of 
the teachers in this countryr you wonder if it sho~ld .really. be the 
heart of the President's main speech about educatIOn In IndIanapo
lis. I am shocked that six-tenths of 1 percent of the teachers are 
gaining as much attention as they are. 

Senator SPECTER. Mr. Williams, are you familiar with the reports 
out of Boston and Michigan and California that have b7en referred 
to at least in testimony here on the problem of school ~olence? 

Mr. WILLIAMS. I am not familiar with what that testImony was. I 
have not been here, Senator. 

Senator SPECTER. Yes, well, I know you were not here, but my 
question is: Are you .ra~iliar with th7 re~orts that ~ave been pub
lished by Boston, MIchIgan, and CalIfornIa on the Issue of school 
violence? 

Mr. WILLIAMS. I may be. I have read several of the reports, and. I 
may think of them in a different name. SOIDe of the reports did 
cover data from those States, yes. 

Senator SPECTER. Well, we had covered the question about the 
1974 mandate and the 1976 conclusions from the report filed. 
Would you disagree with the conclusions in the 1976 study, that 
there is a very sarious problem in school violence? 

Mr. WILLIAMS. Well, if by "very serious" we mear: that th~ p~r
cent of incidents is high and climbing, yes, I woul.d d~sagree WIth It. 
The percent of incidents is extremely low, and ~ eIther s~able ~r 
decreasing. Students are safer by as much as 80u percent ~n the~r 
own homes-pardon me-in their schools than they are In theIr 
own homes. . . 

Students are safer in their schools than they are In theIr own 
homes. . . . h h t' 

Senator SPECTER. Mr. Williams, are you famIlIar WIt testa IS-
tical findings of the Michigan study, which was testified to by Mr. 
Bauer, that sorrte 20 percent of the teachers questioned said th~t 
they had been hit, assaulted by students, and that 46 percent saId 
that they had been threatened by violence? 

Mr. WILLIAMS. I am familiar with that. 
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Senator SPECTER. That is substantially more than six-tenths of 1 
percent, obviously. 

Mr. WILLIAMS. I think one has to look a.nd see what a teacher 
means by being threatened. I taught in the classroom, and I sup
pose that if I used the minimum definition of "threatened" to in
.elude a real dirty look, I was threatened every day. 

But never did a student come up, grab me, and threaten me after 
school with real violence. And I suggest that that goes on in an ex-
tremely small percentage of American classrooms. . 

Senator SPECTER. Well, I do not know about the failure to under
stand what "threaten" means. I would think that that would be a 
fairly dired term. But conceding that there is some ambiguity in 
that word, theN~ is none in the word "hit." That has a very plain 
meaning of physical contact. And with a statistical study showing 
20 percent saying that they are hit, what would your evaluation be 
as that as an indicator of the seriousness of the problem? 

Mr. WILLIAMS. I think that those statistics are inaccurate and 
other studies bear out that they are inaccurate. 

Senator SPECTER. What study bears out the conclusion that those 
statistics are inaccurate? 

Mr. WILLIAMS. Senator, I do not have them with me, but I would 
be glad to get it for you for the record. However, another arm of 
the Office of Education, the National Institute of Education, has 
just completed a study and I would vouch to say that that study 
will demonstrate that the' Bauer repod is inaccurate in that matter 
of assault. 

Senator SPECTER. Well, this was not the Bauer report. This was a 
study conducted i.n Michigan, which I bl~lieve is independent of the 
Bauer report. 

Mr. Bauer, who has some not coincidental association with the 
Bauer report, says that the Michigan study is different. 

But to the extemt that you hav~ statistics on it, I would be very 
interested in seeing them, Congressman Williams. 

Just one final question before turning it over to Senator Metz
enbaum who has joined us. 

You have testified in opposition to heavy handed tactics of the 
Department of Justice. And my question to you is: What tactics are 
you referring to, any of which have already been brought to bear 
or some which you think may be in the future? 

Mr. WILLIAMS. Well, the report seems to argue-and those who 
favor the report seem to argue-that somehow the civil rights 
movement and the Civil Rights Commission have created a situa
tion where students' unruly behavior is somehow required by law 
to be tolerated. 

Now, no one misunderstands that a lack of discipline is disrup
tive in the classroom and interferes with learning. However, the 
facts are that--the evidence is that minority children are suspend
ed from school in much greater numbers than are white children. 

If the advocates of this report were correct-and that is that the 
civil rights movement and the Civil Rights Commission and the 
laws of the land have created a situation where minority unruly 
behavior cannot be controlled, then that would mean minority be
havior is being tolerated more and fewer, not greater, numbers of 
minority students would be being punished. 
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But the reverse of that is true. And now this report calls us to go even father. 

Senator, a number of court cases in the sixties and the seventies 
se~ up a procedural due process for students. I have always main
taIned sadly that there may be places where American citizens 
reside where the Constitution does not apply-on board ship and in 
classrooms. For many years you could not pass a petition in a class
room in this country .withou~ havil!-g the teacher remove you from 
that classroom. And the admIral stIll does not allow you to do it on board ship. 

And it seems to me that in the sixties and the seventies we 
b~gan ~o ~st.abIish procedures, which while appropriately de~ling 
wIth dIscIplIne, allowed students to fully practice democracy. 
Teachers cannot simply teach the context of democracy unless they 
have full democracy within their classrooms. And that is what 
teachers try to do and that is what the court cases of the sixties 
and seventies required that they had to do. " 
. Senator SPECTER. Congressma? Williams, then you are not refer

rmg to any heavy handed tactIcs that the Department of Justice has already carried out? 
Mr. WILLIAMS. No; not specifically. 
Senator SPECTER. You are referring to some changes in those de

cisions and the possibilities? 
. Mr. WILLIAMS. Yes. I am saying that while we are uncertain pre

CISely where the authors of this report of the administration wish 
t? go with regard .to changing or attempting to cl;.,ange court deci
SIOns an.d attemptIng to have the Justice Department come down 
on the sIde of teachers or stUdents who have been violated against 
we might object given the direction of that movement. ' 

Senator SPECTER. Congressman Williams, do you think that the 
status of the law is where it should be under Wood v. Strickland 
where the Supreme Court has established standards for civilliabil
ity whc::re the teacher knew or reasonably should have known that 
the actIOn they took was"within the sphere of official responsibility? 

Mr. WILLIAMS. It seems to me that that is about a correct decision. 

Senator SPECTER. And how about Gross v. Lopez~ which requires 
as to due pr<;>cess, that for a suspension of 10 days or less, that the 
stud~nt be gI~en oral or written notice of the charges against him, 
and If he denIes them, explanation of the evidence the authorities 
have and an opportunity to present his versiOll? 

fMr. WILLIAMS. It seems to me that one is a bit cumbersome. If I 
mIght, Senator, just go beyond that and say that--

Senator SPECTER. Yes; please do. 
Mr. WILLIAMS [continuing]. That eliminating a child from school 

because that child misses school, is tardy, has a discipline problem 
thereby. sayi~g to the ~hild, all right, then, you cannot come t~ 
school, IS ludIcrous on ItS face and far too many of those of us in 
the teaching profession use that as punishment. 

Senator SPECTER. But you think Gross v. Lopez is cumbersome 
and might be subject to some rnodificiations? 

Mr. WILLIAMS. Yes. 
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Senator SPECTER. Do you think that there is any room now for 
Federal legislation in this area? 

Mr. WILLIAMS. I have not seen-now you are speaking of judicial 
responses? 

Senator SPECTER. Any at all, any area at all where there would 
be appropriate Federal legislative action. This would antedate one 
of our conference activities. 

Mr. WILLIAMS. Yes. I think there are some areas where we 
should take appropriate action. I think, Senatm;s, that we should 
come back again to an agency within the Federal Government 
which could collect and disseminate data with regard to discipline, 
but more important, crime and violence, which is what this report 
is really about; dicipline being such things ':'.s truancy and gum 
under the desk' crime and violence being an ~ntirely different 
matter. We shoJld have an agency with that responsibility. 

And in fact my colleague in the House, Mario Biaggi,. created 
such an agency in 1978, and it had gotten about doing its work and 
then 2 years ago-3 years ago the Block Grant Education ~ct 
eliminated that effort in the Federal Government, cut the fundIng 
15 percent, and we stopped doing what the President now suggests 
we begin doing again. . 

Senator SPECTER. Thank you very much, Congressman Williams . 
Senator Metzenbaum? 

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. HOWARD M. METZENBAUM, A U.S. 
SENATOR FROM THE STATE OF OHIO 

Senator METZENBAUM. Mr. Chairman, I cannot tell you how 
pleased I am that you are conducting this hearing, not because I 
am pleased that there is such a hearing, but because you have a 
sense of balance and have indicated that you do not get swayed by 
the emotion of the moment and will look at this problem objective-
ly and dispassionateiy. _ 

I must say to you that I am disturbed that the President has 
seen fit to make this an issue, as he has. I am glad that Congress
man Williams came over to speak his views in connection with this 
subject and that the other witnesses have been heard from. 

But having said that, let us just think for a minute what we have 
done in the last 3 years under this administration. W ~ look fo~ big 
headlines. We do not solve many problems. We get bIg headlInes. 

First we started off, if my recollection serves me right, with re
spect to welfare fraud and people driving up in Cadillacs to get 
their food stamp checks. Well, not much has been done about that 
subject. I don't think there was much to be done about it. I do not 
think there were many Cadillacs driven. to pick up welfare checks, 
and if there were, it just served to smear the whole program. 

Then we were going to save the whole world, particularly this 
Nation, by a task force on organized crime. That was good for a 
couple weeks headlines and a number of editorials around the 
country. 

And then when that quited down and obviously we have not 
done that much with respect to organized crime, the next thing we 
went after was drugs. We were going to bring down all the re
sources of the Coast Guard and the Navy and the military and the 
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DEA and the Justice Department and I do not know what else, 
maybe the EPA as well. . 

But, whatever, we were going to really do something about the 
drug problem. Well, you only have to read the facts and statistics 
and you will find that the drug problem has not-we have made 
almost no impact as pertains to stopping the drug traffic. 

Well, the next issue that was good for a few weeks headlines was 
drunk driving 

Now, I am not telling you that any of these problems do not de
serve the attention of the Government. But I am saying that you 
do not solve problems of this Nation just by looking for 2-week 
headlines and then have organized crime continue on its nefarious 
ways; the drug practices continue to accelerate, not to decelerate. 
They move from Miami to some other place. And it has been pub
lished that the people who are involved in trying to break the drug 
traffie have said they have made practically no headway. 

Now, we need a new subject. Ah, we have one: The school chil
dren of America. Hot ziggity. And we really do something great; we 
are going to go after the school children of America. 

Now, I am not going to negate the existence of some problems. 
The' President has no proposal to do anything about those prob
lems. He only has a proposal to get in the headlines and get into 
the editorial columns. What is he really proposing: that the Depart
ment of Education will study ways to prevent school violence, pub
licize examples of effective school discipline and continue its joint 
project with the National Institute of Justice. If that does not put 
you to sleep, because they could have done that without the Presi
dent's speech, the Department of Justice will establish a National 
School Safety Center. Great. I am glad he did not appoint a new 
commission to investigate the subject, but he. just got a report of 
one commission. . 

So now we are going to establish a School Safety Center. What 
are they going to do? They are going to publish handbooks inform
ing teachers of their legal rights. Hurrah. That ought to solve the 
problem. 

And then he is going to direct the Justice Department to file 
court briefs to help school administrators enforce school discipline. 
In my opinion, it is a whole lot of nothing. 

If the administration wants to do something about school disci
pline, maybe it ought to start in its own house. I am talking about 
administration discipline. There has not been an administration in 
my lifetime that has had so many negatives with respect to a lack 
of ethics, a failure to obey the law; ·a citing by the GAO of its. viola
tions, as has this administration. 

I will shortly put forward a list of 32 transgressions by people in 
this administration; the President says very little about that. We 
expect our children to somehow' become disciplined by putting out 
handbooks or filing briefs in the Supreme Court and every night 
they hear on the TV some report of some other transgression, 
whether it is in this administration of its public officials or wheth
er it is some corporation getting by some deal, whether it has to do 
with paying $320 for a $9 item or the failing to pay their taxes; 
whether it is getting tax refunds by special gimmicks for them. 
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And we expect our children to somehow have a kind of an ethic 
when our Government itself fails to have that kind of an ethic. 

I admit that there are some problems. The problems would be 
better solved when we do something about the housing problems of 
this country; when we do something about some of the other ways 
in which these children live at home. 

This administration has done a superb job in making it much 
more difficult for them to live at home and be fed well and clothed, 
to be housed, and, yes, to be educated. It is all part and parcel of 
the same package. And I think very little of the idea of using 
school discipline as another means of providing a headline for the 
President. I thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am sorry; I am not going 
to be able to remain. 

Senator SPECTER. Congressman Williams, do you want to respond 
to that question? 

Mr. WILLIAMS. Thank you. Mr. Metzenbaum, let me say that, like 
you, I respect the President's ability to find the obvious and then 
hit it with a one liner. However, I think on this one he has missed 
the mark. Continuing Gallup polls have shown that only 25 percent 
of the people in America believe that discipline is a major school 
problem. And, by the way, a larger percent of people wDose chil
dren attend private schools believe discipline is a proble17,l than the 
parents of public school children. 
. The important thing, sir, is this: Only 1 percent of thH American 
people, according to Gallup, only 1 percent believe thai, crime and 
violence in the schools is a major problem. What happEmedt frank
ly, was that the President went to my union, the American Federa
tion of Teachers, happened to mention discipline in the schools in 
his speech, got a standing ovation, came back to the Department of 
Education and said give me something on that one. That is a good 
one. 

Senator SPECTER. Thank you, Congressmar Williams. There are a 
fair number of comments which might be made in response to Sen
ator Metzenbaum's question, but Superintendent Flynn of Scran
ton--

Senator METZENBAUM. That was an opening statement, not a 
question. 

Senator SPECTER [continuing]. Has to return to school in Scran
ton this afternoon. 

Permit me to say only, Senator Metzenbaum, that the President 
is going to do something by way of a specific proposal following a 
speech on February 7, at which time we will have an opportunity 
to examine it and to note, just in passing, in a very transitory way, 
we had a statistic of six-tenths of 1 percent as being unsubstantial. 
If there were 32 transgressions-and so far they are only alleged 
transgressions--

Senator METZENBAUM. Oh, no, that is not true; some have been 
found guilty. Some have resigned under pressure. No, no, it is 
much more than alleged. 

Senator SPECTER. I did not interrupt you in the middle of a sen
tence. 

Senator METZENBAUM. Of course not. 
Senator SPECTER. But if there are 32 transgressions, some proved, 

some still alleged, that is probably the low, the minimal point of 
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six-tenths of 1 percent. You were not here for the six-tenths of 1 
percent. I caught you somewhat off guard. 

Senator METZENBAUM. I did not hear the six-tenths of 1 percent, 
but that is like the President telling nl€: that human rights have 
really improved tremendously in El Salvador because now they are 
only murdering 117 people a month, and I just feel that 32 is
whether it is six-tenths of 1 percent-when you are talking about 
the Deputy Secretary of the Navy and you are talking about Cabi
net officials and you are talking about some of the highest ranking 
members of this administration--

Senator SPECTER. The Deputy Secretary of Defense. 
Senator METZENBAUM. Yes. I said-yes. 
Senator SPECTER. Let us keep the Nayy clear. 
Senator METZENBAUM. Yes. 
Senator SPECTER. I knew I should not have opened the door to El 

Salvador, Senator Metzenbaum. 
Senator METZENBAUM. There were a few other subject I wanted 

to get into this morning. But I think I will leave now before I do. 
Thank you very much. 

Senator SPECTER. Thank you very much, Congressman Williams. 
Thank you, Senator Metzenbaum. 

I would like to call now Sup. Peter F. Flynn, and we are going to 
start with Mr. Flynn because he has scheduling commitments. I 
would like now also to call at the same time to step forward Sup. 
Constance Clayton and Sup. Floretta McKenzie. 

IVIr. Flynn, we very much appreciate your patience. I know you 
have commitments in Scranton yet this afternoon that you have to 
be back at school for, and you had an 11 termination time, and we 
are just a minute or two before 1~. But it is just not possible to 
calibrate the proceedings-there is more freedom in a Senate hear
ing even than in any schoolroom, but I think appropriately so. So 
we appreciate your being here, and we look forward to your testi
mony at this time. 

And all the statements which have been submitted will be in
cluded as part of the record in full, and to the extent that they can 
be summarized, leaving more time for questions, that would be ap
preciated. Let the record note that Superintendent Flynn brings a 
very distinguished record t6 this hearing, having graduated from 
the University of Bridgeport in 1963 with a masters from Michigan 
State in 1969, a Ph.D. from Michigan State in 1971, and all admin
istrative certification from Penn State University in 1975 and a 
very distinguished curriculum vitae, which we shall include ir.1 the 
record. 

STATEMENTS OF PETER F. FLYNN, SUPERINTENDENT, SCHOOL 
DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON, SCRANTON, PA.; CON· 
STANCE E. CLAYTON, SOPERINTENDENT, SCHOOL DISTRICT OF 
THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA, PHILADELPHIA, PA.; AND.FLOR
ETTA McKENZIE, SUPERINTENDENT, SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE 
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA, WASHINGTON, D.C. 
Mr. FLYNN. Thank you very much, Senator Specter. It is a pleas

ure to be here. I appreciate very much the invitaHon. I would like 
to just summarize a couple of points that I have tried to make in 
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my written testimony and also respond to some of the testimony 
that preceded me here this morning. ' 

I am not going to spend any time talking about the' students who 
are involved. I think I have outlined that sufficiently in my written 
testimony. Nor am I going to dwell a whole lot on the problem as I 
see it existing. I would like to offer a few comments on the admin
istration's proposal to this issue and also talk about three solutions 
which I have proposed, one which I feel we can do by ourselves in 
the schools; a second which I think we would probably need at 
least the assistance of the State government; and a third where I 
think there is a significant role for.the Federal Government to 
play. And I hope that I will have 'an opportunity to respond to 
some questions that you might have. 

The three solutions-first, let me talk about the President's pro
posal or at least the· administration's proposal. In my humble judg
ment, I think that this program lacks substance. I do believe that it 
is necessary to point out with alarm that there are problems in the 
schools. But I do not believe that that is sufficient. 

I congratUlate the administration for bringing education onto the 
front burner. But now it is time to put something in the pot. 

It is not good enough just to turn up some rhetorical heat under 
this issue; it is important that we have some substance to go along 
with the definition of the problem and what we believe are some 
viable solutions. 

We know that citizens are concerned about our schools and we 
must also know that they are willing to spend their tax dollars, not 
necessarily new. tax dollars, for making things better. 

In terms of solutions, the three that I cite in my testimony in
clude, first, that of community linkages. It has been well document
ed in the research on juvenile delinquency and violence in the 
schools that very often problems which exist in the schools eventu
ally end up in the community and sometimes the reverse is true. 
Therefore, the solutions for these problems needs to involve agen
cies and entities other than the schools. 

We need to join hands with parent groups, neighborhood groups, 
. sociaL agencies, colleges, business people, in order to come up with 
programs that are needed for our students. We have established in 
Scranton School District a community education task force, which 
is represented by people from the agencies that I have identified. 
And the function of this task force is to provide these programs 
without any additional resources. So that is an effort that I think 
we can make that deals with this problem at the local level with
out any additional funding. 

I cite also in my testimony the need to take a good strong look at 
the mandatory attendance laws for education in our country. I 
think that they are most difficult and troublesome for those of us 
who are charged with their enforcement. And I have recommend
ed-although I am not proposing any sweeping changes in these 
laws-I have recommended that within this law we should be able 
to provide for certain students to leave school prior to reaching the 
mandatory attendance age for a defined period of time with the 
~~chool district's consent, provided that it can be determined that 
the student would benefit from an alternative endeavor for a time 
p\eriod of no more than 1 year. 
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The understanding, of course, would be that the student would 
return to school without any stigma and be worked into a transi
tional program which would be geared to his or her needs. 

I am suggesting that these alternative endeavors for students be 
similar to a Youth Service Corps where'students would work on 
needed things within our local communities, whether they have to 
do with social agencies or perhaps even manual labor. 

In terms of that which I feel points to a role for the Federal Gov
e~rnment, the t~ird soluti~n that I would suggest we deal with is 
that of alternatIve educatIOn. We have alternative education pro
grams in our school district as early as grade 3, because we are 
able to recognize that there are youngsters who evidence problems 
and patterns of failure that soon in school. And we feel that we 
need to provide for those students. 

We know ~hat the~e student~ are socially disabled and in some 
way~ educatIOnally. dIsab~ed and they are destined to become dis
ruptIve and potentIally VIolent, not only in the schools but in the 
broader community. We also know that the U.S. Department of 
Education has committed itself financially to educating those 
people once they enter into the 'corrections system where it costs 
anywhere from $13,000 to $40,000 per year per inmate. 

We are saying that we can save the Federal Government a lot of 
money by preVienting you~g people from falling by the wayside, 
and we need more money In order to carry out more effective pro
grams. 

Just very bril~fly about the Scranton schools in our schools we 
have clear and consistently enforced rules, whi~h the students un
derstand. 'the s~udents also understand the consequences, which in
vol~e ~are~tal Involvement and perhaps even contact with the ju
venIle JustIce system for more severe cases. . 

The question was brought up to Mr. Shanker as to whether he 
knew of any teachers who were given relief by the courts. We have 
an AFT affiliate representing the teachers in Scranton. We have 
had three instances of physical assault on teachers in the past 5 
years. 

. All of those instances were pursued not because the union urged 
the teachers, but because I personally urged the teachers to pursue 
these assault charges. And we did it by taking it to court and in 
two of the cases the teachers, I believe, were given direct relief 
and in the third case a reasonable and understandable settlement 
was worked out between the student and the teacher. 

So, I th.ink that we have the kind of rules and regUlations that 
we need In our schools, and they are, as I said, consistently en
forced. The students know that. And we do spend time with the 
students to explain about our rules and why the rules make sense 
not only in schools, but in society. Finally, I would hope that th~ 
role of th~ .Federal Government would be more than just in the 
areas of glVIng us more materials and expertise on the issue of dis
cipline. . 

I feel that there is a great proliferation of both of those in this 
particular is.sue. What we ,need is money behind programs. And I 
aID: not talkIng about puttIng money .out there and having people 
Write grants that sound good~ But I thInk that we are doing a lot of 
things in the school districts which we can demonstrate are effec-
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tive in preventing students from dropping out of school or becom
ing potentially violent or disruptive. 

And if we can convince the Federa! Government that these pro
grams are effective, I am suggesting that the Federal Government 
assist us in carrying out these programs because they are more ex
pensive than the regular classroom programs which we conduct. 

That is the extent of what I have to say to you today, and I hope 
that you do have some questions for me. 

Senator SPECTER. Superintendent Flynn, do you believe that vio
lence in school is a serious problem in this country today? 

Mr. FLYNN. Yes, I do. I think that it is a serious problem for our 
schools, but more importantly, for our communities. 

Senator SPECTER. Do you find any problems with the current 
standards which we have discussed earlier today about the Su
preme Court rulings in terms of the standard which holds a teach
er liable for damages in a civil court if the teacher knew or should 
have known that there be injury to the student? 

J.\IIr. FLYNN. No. I do not have any problems with that case which 
you mentioned nor the Goss v. Lopez case. 

Senator SPECTER. Has there been any litigation under that par
ticular provision, to your knowledge, in the Scranton school 
~jstem? 

N.[r. FLYNN. No, there has not. 
Senator SPECTER. On the three incidents that you referred to, 

was there any civil suit started in any of those against the teacher? 
Mr. FLYNN. In the one which I indicated there was a reasonable 

settlement between the student and the teacher, there was some 
indication that there might be a suit against the teacher. 

And there was reason to believe in that instance that the teacher 
should have found an alternative approach to dealing with that 
particular student in that setting. 

Senator SPECTER. There was a money settlement made out of 
court? 

Mr. FLYNN. No. 
SEmator SPECTER. What was the nature of the settlement? 
Mr. FLYNN. Well, the teacher had brought charges against the 

student -for assault. The teacher dropped the charges with the un
derstanding that the student would undergo a suspension from 
school, offer a public apology to the teacher in front of his class
mates, and not pursue a countersuit against the teacher. 

And that was acceptable to the teacher. 
Senator SPECTER. And what is your view as to the workability of 

the Supreme Court standard requiring a form of hearing where the 
student is suspended for less than 10 days? 

Mr. FLYNN. We do not have any problems in offering students 
due pl'ocess when we face them with a charge of infraction of 
school regUlations. 

Senator SPECTER. What kind of a proceeding do you undertake in 
that situation? 

Mr. FLYNN. We have a code of conduct, a document known as 
student rights and responsibilities, which we ar..-e obligated to have 
by the department of education in Pennsylvania. And we define 
there that the students do have the right to a hearing. It is not 
often used, I might say, by the students. 
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The parents are aware of it, and it has not been used too fre
quently in terms of challening an allegation that a student has vio
lated a rule. 

Senator SPECTER. How frequently have those due process rights 
been exercised by the students in the Scranton school system? 

Mr. FLYNN. We have not had a student disciplinary hearing at 
the district level in the 5 years that I have been superintendent. 
We have had informal hearings at the building level with the stu-
dents involved. . 

In addition to that--
Senator SPECTER. How many of those? 
Mr. FLYNN. We have had, I would say, no more'than one or two 

per year for our three high schools. 
Senator SPECTER. But there have been no complaints by any stu

dents that their due process rights have not been satisfied? 
Mr. FLYNN. That is correct. . 
Senator SPECTER. And you say you only know of three cases in 

the past 5 years where teachers have been victimized by being 
struck by students? _ 

Mr. FI .. YNN. That is all we have had. It is not a matter of my 
knowing about them; I know about every case of a teacher being 
struck in our district, and those are the three cases which have oc
curred since 1978. 

Senator SPECTER. Superintendent Flynn, how can you be sure of 
that? How can you be sure that you know of all the cases? How 
many teachers and-how many students do you have in the Scran
ton school system? 

Mr. FLYNN. We have 10,100 students. We have 22 schools, 3 high 
schools, 1,200 students approximately in each of our 3 high schools. 

Senator SPECTER. And how many teachers? 
Mr. FLYNN. We have 700 teachers. 
Senator SPECTER. 10,000 students and 700 teachers. 
Mr. FLYNN. Yes. 
Senator SPECTER. And you are confident you know about all the 

cases involving assault and battery? 
Mr. FLYNN. I am confident because I have let them know that we 

will not tolerate a student striking a teacher in our school district. 
That is not acceptable within what we consider to be a good cli
mate for learning. 
, Senator SPECTER. Do you have a written standard and procedure 

which requires teachers to report any assaults or I should say bat
teries, assaults and batteries? 

Mr. FLYNN. In our code of conduct we want teachers to-and we 
do specify in that code of conduct that teachers are to report inci
dents to the principal. 

Senator SPECTER. There is a written specification that says that 
teachers are obligated to report to yOUi!' office-

Mr. FLYNN. Any time they are struck. 
Senator SPECTER. Any time they are struck. . 
Mr. FLYNN. And they know because we have stated publicly; we 

have let it be known to the teacher's union; we have let it be 
known to all our principals that we want all cases reported. 
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Senator SPECTER. Superintendent Flynn, you testified that-well 
first let me ask you, do you think that there is any room for Feder~ 
al legislative action on the issue of violence in the schools? 

Mr. FLy:~.rN. In the area of preventive measures, yes, and that 
would be In the area of alternative education. I think what we 
know is that these youngsters very frequently are learning disabled 
youngsters. The research that I am knowledgeable about indicates 
t~at ~~ many as 70 percent of adjudicated children have learning 
dIsabIhtr problems. I am not talking about mental retardation. I 
am talking about average or above average intelligence, but signifi
cant deficits in terms of their achievement in school. 

AI?-d I think that the Fed~ral Government can playa role by sup
portIng those programs whIch demonstrate that they are effective 
in turning around those learning disabilities. 
Sen~tor SPECTER. You testified about your interest in having Fed

eral aId generally; do you have any other specific suggestions on 
that subject? . 

Mr. FLYNN. On Federal aid, other than the support of these al
tern~tive education pro~rams; I am trying to make my proposals as 
few In number as pOSSIble, so that I am not allover the place in 
what I am recommending. And I do not want to give you a wide 
array of programs to be funded. I think that districts need to dem
onstrate that they can be successful with these kinds of youngsters 
and once they do that, I am suggesting the Federal Government 
support them. 

[The prepared statement of !VIr. Flynn follows:] 
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"SOlUT I ONS TO THE PROBLEM 

'Of 

VIOLENCE IN OUR SCHOOLS AND COMMUNITIES" 

PETER f. flYNN, PH. D. 

SUPERINTENDI:NT 
SOiOOl DISTRICT Of THE CITY Of SCRAN'ION, PENNSYLVANIA 

Senator S?ecter, Members of the Senate 

Subcommittee on Juveni Ie Justice and Members of the Staff: • 

bring you greetings from Northeastern 

Pennsylvan!a and from the School District of the City of Scranton. 

constder It a great honor to have the privi lege of testifying before your:, 

Committee which is deal ing with. an important issue -- that of violence 

as it is mqnlfesting itself In one of the most vital of our A~erican 

Institutions -- the public schools. 

At the outset, want to thank Senator Specter 

for extending l' hi,s, I,nyitatlon to me. I' am espec I a'il y happy to be I'n' the 

company of two such fine educational' leaders as Superintendents Clayton and 

McKenzie. 

also want to thank Dr. Greenberg and 

Attorney Wes.tmoreland of Senator Specter's s.Taff for their correspondence 

and assistance in the deyelopmenT of my presentation here t09a'y. 

'I hope that wh.at I have to offer YOll Is presented 

with humility by one who has been In education for more than twenty years, 

but each year realizes that he has. so much more to learn. The preparation 

of my remarks today has given me the opportun Ity to sort out my' be Ilefs, ta.ke 

stock of What w.e are doing in Scranton and do some additional research on the 

SUbJect. Although I' do not consider myself to be an ~I ~-around expert in 

educat Ion, I, am s,ura that what I am shar i ng ~'" I th you I n the way of recommel1d.at Ions 

has a good chance of succeeding because of either. s.oun~ theoretical foundations 

or actual Implementation. WITh al I of that In mind. permit me to begin. 
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SECTION A 

THE NATIONAL PROBLEM FROM A SCRANTON PERSPECTIVE 

In this part of my presentation! I would like 

to describe the delinquent student and the problem of school crime as 

I sea them; tell you a little about Scr~nton, PennsYlvanl~ and our 

problems; and make some summary comments about this national problem 

of' crime among our young peop Ie. \ 

How serious is this problem of juvenile crime? 

It Is just as serious as adult crime, almost. According to the National 

Center for Juvenile JUstice, "F.B.I. arrest statistics show that between 

1970 and 1980 the number of both Juvenile and adult or violent crime 

arrests Increased with the Increase being greater for adults." 

THE DELINQUENT STUDENT 

We recognize that the delinquent or disruptive 

chi Id almost always begins with a pattern of academic failure. The 

syndrome Includes failing behind In the basic subjects, being embarrassed 

about being behind; perhaps being retained In a grade or hlo; being 

older and looked up to physically by the other students; seeking success 

.In physical power; Increasingly absent from school; becoming more dl fflcult 

to teach; presenting a problem for teachers who are struggling to find 

successful methods which might work with this youngster; until the 

stUdent either acts out or drops'out. 

-~~~~~~--------~--- -
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It is now estimated (Jones and Blaney, 1976) 

that perhaps as many as 70% of adjudicated male delinquents have mIld to 

severe learning disabi I ities. 
In order to 'help clarify th~ profi Ie of 

, the disruptive student it becomes apparent that we are talking about 

students who are educationally as well as socially disabled. 

SCHOOL CR H~E/COMMUN I TY .cR I ME 

Schools are not separate from the rest of the 

community. In fact, more often than not, the community tUrns to the 

schools in order to help deal with societal or at 'least socIal problems, 

such as drug and alcohol abuse, ImmunIzatIon, food and nutrition. 

Furthermore, Schools which experience problems may not be any more than 

a locale for the community prob,lem. 
Gottfredson has found that schools 

in which teachers repori' high rates of victimization typically are in 

urban areas characteri zed by poverty and unemp loyment,; they are in high 

crime neighborhoods; and they bave many s,tudents who are considered to 

be low In abilIty ••••• 
Gottfr~)dson 's studies are confl rmed by the 

sociologist WIlson, who points out that, "'~deed, much of ~;hat Is 

called 'crime in the schools' Is really crIme commItted by young persons 

who happen to be enrolled In a school or who happen to commIt the crime 

on"the way to or from school." 

The Saf~ School St~dy by N. I.E. found that property 

loss and student violence were lower In Schools whose attendance areas had 
low crime rates. 

FInally, Joan McDermort in'an artIcle entItled 

"Crime in the School and In the Community: Offenders, Victims, and, Fearful 

Youths" points out that school delinquents and community delinquents are 

the same indiViduDls and therefore'she continued "th@nil!s ample eVIdence 
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sUggestIng that crIme and fear of crime in schools should be vIewed 

wIthIn a wider communIty context. High crIme schools tend to be 

located In high crIme communii'les." 

Of course, this notIon of school crIme being 
community crime does not make it go away. 

Rather It steers us In the 
dIrectIon of a broader solutIon. 

The solutions must include other 
, , 

segments of the community ,and the resources of the urban areas of our 

country cannot support 'the programs needed to tUrn things arcund wIthout 

additional financial help from the federal government. 

There are two points to be underscored In 

definIng the problem In the hopes that they wi I I give \~ay to the solution: 

1. The student InVoIY~d in crime almost always h~s a learning 
prob lem. 

Therefore, any soiution In order to be viable 

must deal ~Ith the anti or aSocIal behavIor as well as 

find new ways to correct Scholastic faIlure. 

2. The problem of school crime Is a community problem and 

needs not only the available resources of the local 

community. but also the financIal backing of the 

federa I government. 

THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA 

Our popUlation Is approxImately 87,000 ~eople 
wIthIn a twenty-fIve square mile area In the northeastern section of 
PennsylvanIa. 

At one time the area mined a 101 of anthi'aclte coal, 

but now the maJ~r IndustrIes are clothing and manufacturing. 

A very large pArCen~age of the population 
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(the second highest percentage I n the nat ion), I s cons I dared senior 'Or 

elderly. There are about 10,100 students,'n our school district 

occupying fi fteen elementary schools (grades K-S,:. fp'!'; Intermediate 

schools (grades 6-8) and three h"lgh schools (0 P"des 9-12). I'n addition, 

we have a pre-school program serving about 250 students and an adult 

, basic education program. 

I have often thought that ,\~e are I iving In a 

time warp in Scran,ton. A'rthough. we are not totally free of dlscipli'nary 

problems or isolated incidents of violence, those nationally cited' , 

'statistics of assault, physical harm and cowering, feap,ful teachers 

Just do not apply 'to the city, schools In Scranton; Pennsylvanl'a. I'n 

the past five years we have had thr";le instances of assault-physical 

assault. Our position In Scranton is this; 

Tbere i,s, no reason for our sch.ool system to tolerate 

violent acts on the part of our students whether 

'dl rected toward ottjer students or toward members of 

th,e s,taff. ~Ie know '~hat we cannot th.row out the 

rights of students, but We are not ready to throw' 'In 

the towel 'when it comes to teaChing students 

respons I bill ty. 
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SECTION B 

THE PRESIDENT'S PROGRAM TO FIGHT SCHOOL CRIME 

This program of the President's lacks sUbstance. 

It 1.2. necessary to point out with al~rm the problems of our schools.: But 

that Is not sufficient. W~at do people mean when they'say that this 1s 

Just bel,ng raised by the administration as' a poll'tlcal Issue7 They ,mean 

to Imply that It Is being raised a?a rhetorical l'ssue, to be used only 

for Its emotional Impact. but lacking any meanl,ngf.ul commitment. It 

would be much b,etter If this ~ a political Issue In the pure and 

good sense of the term "political". If you know that citizens are 

concerned about OUr schools you also mUst know that they-are willing" 
. 

to spend their tal( dollars, not necessarily' new' tax dollars, for making 

things better. So let the federal government get involved by freeing 

up some money for education, ~hlch we believe as did President Lincoln. 

that education is "the most important subject we as a people can be 

By the way, am not~so con,cerned when I read 

that teachers spend a lot of time on discipline. If the theory be 

pursued, all of teacher time Is spent on discipline In some sense, In 

that, what we are about In schools Is discipline. We are to help our 

stUdents see the order In our lives and help them to structure orderly 

II ves for themse I Ves. 

Research Is part of the Presidential proposal 

and It Is good to conduct research. We need practical, action-oriented 

research. We have programs In the schools which we believe are effective. 

Let us have some small grants to prove th~t the programs are eff~ctlve 

\~ 
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and then if they are and the federal government Is convinced, give 

financial support so that the programs can be broadened to serve more 

students. 

I would like to defer judgments pn the notions 

of the United States government being a friend of the court with school 

districts or the id~a of a national safety center. As of yet, I fail 

to see the relative importance of these concepts, but I am wi Illng to be 

convinced. 

'I agree with the New York Times editorial of 

January 8, 1984 which questioned the President's involvement In this 

I ssue and wh I ch stated that the two th i ngs wh I ch were not addressed in 

the administration's proposal w~re 

1. How to alleviate the problem, and 

2. Who should be responsible. 

We know how to alleviate the ~roblem and that 

will be outlined I'n my final section. We in the public schools are 

wll ling, to accept the responsibility, but we cannot do it alone. We 

need other agencies, parental help and more money. 
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SECTION C 

EFFORTS TO COMBAT SCHOOL VIOLENCE 

THE SOLUTIONS 

We know better than to look for qu i ck or simp I'e' 

answers. There wIll be no revolution in education; nor will there be 

major reform withIn a stlort" period of time. What. wI II happen, if we 

continue to do our jobs, Is we wi I I have wei I conceived and wei I planned 

revision of our educational system on an ongoing basis. This approach 

applie~ not only to the problem of Violence or disruption, but to the 

myriad of problems faCing the AmerIcan public schoois.' 

Albert Bandura has suggested a number of 

programmatIc approaches for dealing with aggression. "Support systems 

are needed for students, parents and edUcators. Every school should 

have tIme out or referral centors." He 'further suggested student courts, 

human relations councils with grievance procedures, law related education 

projects, communIty Improvement projects, work study programs, sports, 

after school activities, peer counseling, peer tutoring, tutoring In 

elementary schoo.ls, school beaui'l flcatl'on projects, peer teams to orient 

new students to school, the development and maintaining of school 

. regUlations and standards; all of whlchm!ght help to decrease youth 

ylolence. 

. In the Interest of time,' space and emphaSis 

will be limiting my remarks on solut,lons to Just tqree areas: community 

linkages, the mandatory attendance laws and alternatIve programs. 

,-~--~----.-----~--~------~-- -
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COMMUNITY LINKAGES 

The schools, Or anyone looking to the schools, 

should not get carried away with the notion that the schools, as a 

solitary segment of our society, can tUrn around the problems of violence 

among young people, either In the sChools or In our communities. 

School problems eventually become community 

'prob lems, and frequently it is the other way around. Therefore, the' 

total community including schools, social agencIes, the Juvenl Ie Justice 

system and parent groups should have some Involvement in the solution of 

school problems. 

This Is not to say that we In the schools Wll I 

give up on our responsibilities. Many viewpoints, including the N.I.E. 

Safe School Study, point to school related solutIons such as better 

teachers, smaller classes, fair and equal treatment of students, relevant 

subject matter in courses and tighter discipline. Those are goals which 

We In sche Is should consistently strive for, but linkages with other 

elements of the community are needed. 

In the Scranton School District we have established 

our own Community Education Task Force. This group includes a broad cross 

section of parents, teachers, administrators, social agencies, college 

. faculty, city officials, neighborhooc leaders and older citizens. The 

" function of the task force Is to provide needed programs for the community 

by sharing our resources. We have moved away from,the notion of diViding 

up the turf and declaring boundary lines, whIch often Occurs during tough 

times. Without the need for generatIng any additional funds we have 

conducted parenting courses; brought elderly people Into the schools to 

g'o to classes with students and learn with them whl Ie our studc~nts learn 
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about the needs and talents of older citizens; and conducted seminars on 

drug and alcohol abuse. We have other projects on the drawing boards 

and we are making do, but there Is so much to be done. ' 

The CommUnity Education Task Force Was an 

Initiative of our School Board and we hope that it Is a model for the 

.kind of com~unlty lInkages that we feel are the key to a hopeful fut~re. 
Another task force has recently emerged In Scranton. This Initiative 

came from the president of a local bank In conjunction with our Planning 

Council for Social Services. This bank president asked other stUdent 

and adult leaders from educatIon, social agencies and neighborhoods to 

come together' I n an attempt :,"0 dea I with the expressed prob I ems of young' 

people in our area. We have taken surveys of the youth of our community 

and found a Significant portion indicating that they are alienated. This 

I nd I cator wh i ch we ca II "estrangement" Is II nked to those stUdents who 

are Into abuse patterns and are disruptive, truant and potentially Violent. 

These si'udents have evl denced fa II ure in schoo I and do 'not perce i ve the 

schOols or their staffs as belng,able to /Jelp them with theil' problems, 

especially their personal or emotional problElms. Although this taSk 

force Is In Its early stage of development we think that we have identified 

some programs whIch have been effective ,In dealing with estranged youth. 

, These programs I'll I I be described later In this section, but SUffice to 

say that more programs are needed In order to reach more students and' 
that takes money. 

THE MANDATORY ATTENDANCE LAWS 

These laws, as they exist throughout our country, 

are among the most troublesome for those charged with their enforcement. 
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The reason why they are troublesomois because the burden is placed on 

~ne parent and the school to comply with the laws, which supposedly apply 

to the absent or 'truant student. Our mandatory attendance I aw's need to 

be looked at very carefully. Although I am not advocating sweeping 

changes In these ,laws', I do bel ieve that within the law we should provide 

, for certa i n students to I eaVe schoo I prl'or to reach i ng the mandatory 

attendance'age for a defined period of time with t~e school district's 

consent, provided it can be determined that the students would benefit 

from an alternative endeavor for a year. The understand i n~! ~~ou I d be 

that the student would return to school without any stigma and be worked 

Into a transitional program which would be geared to his or her needs. 

I am suggesting alternative streams of service 

for certain young people, -- a, youth service corps. Students would 

work on the Infrastructure of our country. Under adult supervision 

students would work in their local or nearby communities on rebuilding 

the concrete or social infrastructure of our country. We would allow 

sTudents to take leave from school, give them a work experience on a 

needed project in order that they might lear,n about the n'eeds of our 

country, its environment and social structure, 11hi Ie making a contribution 

to the Improvement of America. There would be no educational component 

during this year --- JUEitwork. 

ALTERNATIVE PROGRAMS 

Virginia Kane, Curriculum Director of the 

National Council of Juvenile and Family Court Judge~, has underlined 

the Importance of communication between the courts and the schools In 
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her report entitled "Education and Juvenile Justice". She states: 

"The School Is an Integral part of the Juven"tJe Justice system . " . 
In the United States because the law compels children to attend 

school. The Juvenile Justice system was also designed with 
I 

the belief that children should be treated as children and not 

as adults even when criminal acts are Involved. Emphasis Is 

upon the po~slbillty of rehabilitation and reconditioning of 

the child by special treatment programs frequently ordered by 

the court. Improved temporary family structures (foster 

homes>., alternative' and special educaTion programs, probation 

and court and social workers, counseling for the family and the 

child, special medical attention and 'guardians.) 

as high as 25%. 

Nationally the estimates for dropout rates range 

We, In Scranton, are fortunate that our dropout rate 

Is less than 2.5% of our secondary students. \~e have some alternative 

programs whi.ch I, believe are answering, in part, the needs of the potential 

dropout. We can see, as early as the thl rd grade, definite signs of the 

potential dropout and we have Instituted a program that we know-makes a 

difference for the chi Idren and their families who particIpate in It. 

The program provides Intensive and Innovative Instruction in the basic 

skll Is, family counselIng and smaller class size •. But, the program is 

expensive and we need a program which picks up the families and children 

I ater" I n the I r schoo I years because we have found that .factors outs I de 

the .school mitigate against lasting. effects of this alternatiVe edu<:at'lon 

program for third graders. 

We hay!'! one sma I I, b u1- effect I Vt>. program at 

the .Junior high school level which has done wonders for students who were 
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literally out of our system, although not legally. These students 

were truant, disruptive and failing. As a result of a unigue approach 

and a unlgue teacher, coupled with a supportive administration and the 

proper community linkages, this program has been able to saye these 

. students from dropping out of our schools. The students have changed 

their disruptive ways, come to school on a regular basis and achieved 

significantly better on our standardized achievement tests. 

The Ach ievemant Center at East (A.C. E.) Scranton 

Intermediate School grew out of an increasing concern on the part of 

educators over those students who were not fUnct I on i ng we II I n the 

"traditional classroom" setting. The program offers a varied and 

perso~al ized approach to the teaching/learning process. It gives 

students a chance to experience success in the classroom and at the 

same time eguips them with basic living skills. The walls of the 

classroom are expanded to include th~ entire community via field trips 

and guest speakers. There Is an Important link between this program 

and the juvenile justice system as local probation officals an~ judges 

have given of the i 1- tl me to ta I k with our stuQnets. A social work 

component is an integral part of this program serving the families of 

the students In the program through visits from social work Interns 

from a local college. 

The A.C.E. program Is successful and It Is being 

funded with local school dIstrIct dollars. We have identified three 

times as many students who should be served by such a successful pr.ogr~m 

and an egual number at the high school level who desperately need such 

alternative education, but lImited locai funus prohibit thIs type of 

program. These students, ~/ho we know are socially dlsabl::ld and, in 

'= :", \ « 

\] 

J 
tl .. 

123 

some ways, educationally disabled are destined to become disruptive 

and violent, not only In the schools, but also In the broader community. 

We also know that the United States Department of Education has committed 

Itself fInancially to educating these people when they enter Into the 

corrections system where It c03ts anywhere from $ 13,000. to $ 40,000. 

per Inmate per year. We are saying that we can save the federal government 

a lot of money by preventing young people from faIling by the wayside. We 

are say i ng that we need more money' I n order to carry out mo're effp.ct I ve 

programs. I am not talking about programs following money. I am talking 

about money:.behind worthwhile programs. There are a lot of people around: 

the country In public schools who have things which work In their systems 

for.these potentially disruptive a~d Ylolent students. In ordsr for 

those things to be expanded Into programs reaching more students, we need 

more money. 

We are not sUggesting more taxes or bigger deficits. 

We are saying adjust the priorities of the federal government and If 

education Is really a major prlo~lty, then let that be reflected In 

budgetary proposals by the administration. 

SCRANTON - A CITY SCHOOL SYSTEM THAT WORKS 

A national evaluation conducted by researchers 

Gary Gottfredson, Denise Gottfredson, and Ml.chael Cook has found that 

schools can Implement programs that make th~m safer places for students 

and teachers, reduce teacher Victimization, Improve student attendance 

and student se I f-concepts and teacher mora IG, and r~duce student a II enatlon 

and rebelliousness. 

Gottfredson, et a I, found that when students 

believe that rules are firm, clear and consi~tently enforced, .the incldencG 
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of victimization Is lower. In other words, the better the school 

administers sound dlsclpl ine pol icles, the less the victimization. 

Two keys to control I i ng student behavior are estab I ish I ng understandab Ie, 

specific rules of school conduct and convincing students that it Is In 

their best interest to conform to those expectations. 

In Scranton our schools have clear and consistently 

'enforced rules which the students understand. The students also 

understand the consequences, which involve parental Involvement and 

maybe even the local juvenl Ie justice system, for the more severe cases. 

As a result, the instances of severe disciplinary cases ar"e rare In our 

schools. 

At one of our intermediate schools, the entire 

faculty, through our school improvement program, has made a commitment 

to teach students societal responsibll ity i.n every way they can. The 

staff at SQuth Scranton' Intermediate School frequently has dis.cussions 

with students about the "why" of rules, drawing par~llels between school 

and society. These discussions take place In every sUbJect in order to 
, 

bring about an Increased awareness on the part of the stUdents regarding 

our system of disc i pi i ne in the schoo I s and I n the communi ty. 

It Is because of these efforts and our basic 

approach to discipline that our student attendance averages above 90%, 

at all levels of school lng, we have a low dropout rate, vandalism costs 

us less than $ 20,000. per year (*), more than 85~ of our students on 

all grade levels \:;~ore at or above the natlona'l norm on standardized 

achievement tests. 

(*) Most vandalism occurs after school hours, from outside our buildings, There is very little in-school vandalism during 
school hours. 
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CLOSING REMARKS 

As I hope you can tel I, I am proud to be 

associ ated with the Schoo I D i strl ct of the Ci ty of Scranton. '1~e do 

not have all the answers. w~ d.'G continuing to grow and develop as an 

InstitutIon, just as 'our stUdents grow and develop. 

" I want to express my profound gratitude to this. 

'sub-commlttee of the United St~tes Senate and par·tlcularly to its Chairman, 

Senator Arlen Specter, for· th.ls opportunity to sharE' my thoughts and 

recommendations with you on the subject of vioience'ln the schools and 

the admInIstration's response to this problem. If, as a committee, you 

do have the chance to visIt schools, we would welcome :t'he chance to have. 

you come to Northeastern Pennsylvania and the Scranton School District. 

T.HANK YOU. 

/--, 

() 
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Senator SPECTER. Superintendent Flynn, we thank you very 
much. By Senate standards, you are out early. 

Mr. FLYNN. OK. Thank you. 
Senator SPECTER. Only 15 minutes. 
Mr. FLYNN. I do have just a couple more minutes. I would like to 

st8:Y to hear my colleagues from Washington;' D.C., and Philadel
phIa. 
Senat~r SPECTER. Well, I am delighted to have you do that. We 

w~)Uld hke to. turn- now to Supt. Constance Clayton, who is an old 
frIend as well as a"very distinguished educational administrator. 
Sh~ has done an outstanding job in a very difficult position as su
permtendent of the schools of Philadelphia, evidenced only partly 
by her excellent press compared to the trials and tribulations of 
many of her predecessOl·s. 

She br~ngs to that position an outstanding educational back
g"l'ouI,ld WIth a. bachelor of science from Temple University, a mas
ters In educatIon from Temple University with emphasis in those 
degrees on early childhood and elementary education, a doctorate 
de~ee from the University of Pennsylvania in education leader
shIp; work on the-as a Rockefeller Scholar, and superintendent of 
the work conference of Columbia and postgraduate studies in 
urban education at Temple; and an extraordinary list of honorary 
degrees, doctorates, professional experience, leadership activities 
related professional activities on a curriculum vitae which will b~ 
made a part of the record, as will your full, excellent statement, 
Dr. Clayton. 

But be~or7 tu~ning to your testimony, we have just been joined 
by ~y dIstlnguIshed co,lleague, Senator Denton, from Alabama, 
who IS a very hard workIng and productive member of this subcom
mittee. Senator Denton. 

OPENING STATEMEN'f OF HON. JEREMIAH DENTON, A U.S. 
SENATOR FROM THE STATE OF ALABAMA 

Senator DENTON. Thank you, Senator Specter. 
I have attended a number of your hearinf!s. It is unfortunate 

that subcommittee hearings are usually only attended by the sub
committee chairman. That is the case because most Senators are 
obligated to be somewhere else, in which place they have an even 
more personal and principal responsibility. 

However, today, as on previous occasions when I have come to 
your sl1:bcommittee, I think ~e are on a subject which is, in itself, 
and a~ It relates to other sU~Jects; e~tremely important. 

DurIng recent year's pubhc attentIOn has been attracted increas
ingly to crime, violence, and discipline in our Nation's schools. Par
ents, teachers, and school administrators have all voiced their con
cern. I a~ SUl'e it h~s been ~entioned that President Reagan even 
devoted hIS first natIonal radIO address for 1984 to the issue. 

I. understand that our distinguished Democratic colleague from 
Ohid .expressed that such attention was probably just a politid:al 
gambIt.pn the P8:rt of the. President; I.heard the same thing said by 
~ome oft~e media followIng the PresIdent's recent address regard
Ing the l\1Ideast. I ~hought the ~ll~ga~ion not only unfair but unfor
tunate for the NatIOn because It IS dIfficult to believe that a Presi-

__________________ ~ ______________________ ~ ______ ~ __ ~ __ ~ ________ ~~~~~ __ ~ ____________ ~~ __ _L _____ ~ ____ ~~ __ 



\ 

128' 

dent, any President-and I might say particularly thi~ one-would 
play politiCs with such a vital national interest issue as the present 
difficult situation in Lebanon; so, too, with respect to the subject 
matter of this hearing, Mr. Chairman. 

With your diligence, the earnestness which I have heard and 
would have expected you to address this issue with members of 
your panel and with your senatorial colleagues, is proof that it is 
not a political gesture on the part of the President, nor is it a ges
ture on the part of my distinguished colleague from Pennsylvania. 

In too many communities across our Nation the classroom has 
become an extension of the street as a site of crime and violence. It 
seems to me unfortunate that this occurs, the fact is that the class
rooms are not telnples of learning, teaching the lessons of good 
will, civility, and wisdom important to the whole fabric of life. 

It seems particularly unfortunate that students are unable to 
glean these values from the classroom, at a time at when the 
breakdown of the family is such a conspicuous element in our soci
ety. I am chairman of a Subcommittee on Family and Human Serv
ices. Yet it seems incredible to many that I'Jnly one Senate subcom
mittee would be devoted to the rather emergency problem caused 
by the breakdown of the family. . 

But it is to Senator Specter's credit again that on his own initia
tive he has formed a caucus, as I have" to address some of the prob
lem. Senator Specter's caucus deals with children while my caucus 
deals with issues of the family, which of course, entail children. 

Nonetheless, we are working on the problem of the breakdown of 
the family. We know that single parent families are forming at a 
Tate of 20 times the rate of two-parent families. You can check di
vorce rates. Never can you find a period in our history which ap
proached such a statistic. 

The family caucus will be meeting tomorrow to hear Fathe.r 
Ritter of Covenant House in New York. Father Ritter will tell of 
the thousands of children who come to Covenant House. They are 
victims of sex peddlers who rent them out. Yet Father Ritter can 
only handle 200 at a time; 200,000 a year in one city to one estab
lishraent. And there are other establishments in New York. 

So, the schools, to the degree that they could, should be trying 
extra hard to take care of that vacuum of love and rearing the 
child lacks because of the breakdown of the family. 

Instead, we see physical safety affected at school; I have heard 
that you have hit harder and harder today on the minority stu
dents suffering disproportionately since they are generally more 
likely to be victims of crime than are majority students. I commend 
you. I commend this panel. I commend all the people who care 
here today to dig into the problem and try to find a remedy. 

What do the students learn from that classroom chaos? They 
learn that authority cannot or will not guarantee them an environ
ment where learning can be accomplished. They learn the negative 
proposition, that crime does indeed pay, because they observe other 
students robbing, stealing, talking back, fighting

J 
and refusing to 

do their homework, all with complete impugnity. 
I remember a previous hearing which I attended, chaired by Sen

ator Specter, in which a young man who was courageous and noble 
enough to head up something called the Guardian Angels was hel'e 

--------------------~--~~ 
AW ,« \"., ... , 

II ! 
~l 
., 

Ii 
[i 

) 
f , 

t :' 

i , 
r I 

I , 

~ 
I 
i 
j 

J 

J 
r 
! 

I 

f 

Ii , 

fl 
11 
f 

I 

.. 

... 

129 

in Washington, D.C. Senator Specter asked him what is the cause 
for the malaise among our youth, what is the single most identifia
ble cause for the p~oblem amo~g our youth? He said unhesitatingly 
stated that the maIn problem IS caused by the image presented by 
the role models, the role models on television the role models in 
the movies, the role models in the songs, the themes of the songs 
the role models in the newstand literature. ' 

vy e are c<?rrupti~g. our youth. We are committing the crime 
whICh the BIble saId It would be better that a man have a mill
ston~ tied around his neck and be thrown into the sea. We are corruptIng our young. 

So even in the schools we see them taking up notice of role 
mo~els who are getting away with unacceptable if not criminal be
ha.vIOr. I b~lieve tha~ th~ situation is approaching the point of 
beIng. a natIOnal. s?-~vn~allss~e. I do no~ believe that you can have 
a natIOn, even CIVIlIzatIOn, WIthout famIly and that is what Wells 
and Toynbee and other historians tell us. ' 

.' .And we are so sophisticated in our society, we are so concerned 
Wlt~ the upper levels of luxury or pain that we have forgotten the 
bas.IC fundamentals, t~at family is the main prerequisites of civili
zatIOn, l!1uch less ~atI?nho?d, a:r;td I believe that the problem of 
~chool VIOlence whICh IS beIng dIscussed today is germane to the Issue. 

I commend you, Mr. Chairman. I commend those in this room for 
tackling an area of essential importance to our Nation's education system. 

U.S. I-fews & World Report's recent issue devoted many pages to 
.. the famIly, to t!Ie. typ~ of question regarding children. I want to 
show you how dIstIngUIShable are the two theories. 

The ar~icle said th~t 20 year~ from now or so we are going to 
have an Ide~ epoch I~ the UnIted States. We are going to have 
people marrIed by the tIme they are 35 years old four or five times 
and a lot of. couples living together, but not married. And look at 
all the happIness the children will have because they will have 62 
grandparents and 42 stepparents and all of that. 
. W ~ll, that is. clearly boloney as far as I am concerned. And it is 

rIppIng Our SOCIety apart. And I do not believe anyone in this room beheves such a theory. 
. I do not believ:e th~t the breakdown of the family has any posi

tIve effects. I beheve In an effort to maintain a family to maintain 
a. sC.ho?l, which at least tries to give us a sense of a'dequate self
dlsclphne, to use freedom and liberty the way our forefathers expected us to. 

I look forward to working with you, Mr. Chairman, in more than 
one way. I know that we come from different backgrounds and I 
know that y?U come from the background of a district attorney, a 
man versed In law. I come from a background of military service. 
B~t both .of us have a deep concern and interest in the issue which 
~hIS hearIng touches on today and which in itself is an important 
ISsue. I hope we can work synergistically and I say to you personal
ly, I hope we can work in parallel and in friendship and together rather than competitively. 

Senator SP~CTER. Thank ~ou yery much, Senator Denton; I very 
much appreCIate your contrIbutIOn on our subcommittee and your 
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friendship. For 3 years and almost 1 month we h~ve w?rked. syner
gistically and cooperatively and I look forward to workIng wIth you 
for many years in the future, e~en beyond 1986. . 

Superintendent Clayton, agaIn we thank you fo~ beIng. here. ~nd 
for providing this very informative statement WIth the exhIbItS. 
And we now look forward to your testimony. 

STATEMENT OF CONSTANCE E. CLAYTON 

Ms. CLAYTON. Thank you very much. I believe, Mr. Chairman, 
you asked that we summarize. 

Senator SPECTER. Yes; that would be the preferable course so 
that we leave the maximum amount of time for questions and an
swers and dialog. 

Ms. CLAYTON. We are deeply appreciative of this opportunity to 
come before you and members of the subcommittee ~o share with 
you our insights and experiences that we have had In the School 
District of Philadelphia. 

Our experienc~s in Philadelphia have convinced ~s t~at effectiye 
and well ordered educational programs are a major Influence In 
school discipline. As we raise our expectations of both our students' 
performance and the performance of our entire school support 
team, discipline problems can be self-correcting. 

We also look to parents of our students for support in our eff~r~s 
to improve both academic program performance as well as dISCI
pline in the schools. We have found that we have wholehearted 
support from our parent groups. 

In my presentation I attempted to share with you the balance 
that we are trying to create in the district of Philadelphia ~etween 
educational initiatives and our strengthened security operatIOns. 

We have taken the very firm position that the r~sponsibility for 
improved discipline in the schools rests not only WIth the students 
and with the teachers, but with the administration and with all 
persons who are in that building. However, we recognize the princi
pal as the core lea~er in tI;tat setting. I do not believe,. howev~r, 
that every negative mteractIon between teacher and pupIl or prIn
cipal and pupil needs to be described as a reportable incident. 

In Philadelphia we do maintain or we are beg?nning to ~ain~ai~ 
now an extensive accounting of what we descrIbe as serIOUS InCI
dents, and I am prepared, Mr. Chairman, to share with you for t~e 
record the incident reporting procedures. We have 207,000 publIc 
school students in Philadelphia, and they are being educated m 263 
facilities. 

Senator SPECTER. How many students is that again? 
Ms. CLAYTON. 207,000. 
Senator SPECTER. And how many institutions? 
Ms. CLAYTON. Facilities, 263, 26,000 employees. 
I shared with you in my testimony on page 4 .a lis~in~ of inci

dehts for the calendar year 1982. We had 2,994 serIOUS InCIdents re-
ported. ." . . . 

I want to make reference to earlier testImony In that you should 
know that this administrati.Q!l strongly recommends and strongly 
encourages our staff to report all incidents, and this is why we 
have this reporting form. We go a bit further than that in that we 
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have assigned. a member of our legal staff to reptesent staff mem
bers who are In any way attacked by a student or outside intrud
~rs,. because 'wh~t ~ think you should know is that although I have 
In~ICated 2,994 InCIdents, they could be repetitive. It could be one 
chIl~ m?re than ~ne time. And that reflects not only students but 
outSIde Intruders In the system. 
. . We know that the vandalism in schools is a costly process' we es
timate that w~ spend over $3 million in terms of vandalism ~gainst 
Our property In schools, and we believe and we know that that 
money could be better expended in terms of our redirecting it to
wards our educational initiatives. 

. B~ca.us~ we are of the strong opinion that the aspect, as we look 
at diSCIplIne or as we look at school violence, it is really a two part 
focus. qur first !ln~ ~o.remost focus is on educational improvement. 
My testu!lony, SIr, . IndICates several. initiative we have in terms of a 
stand!lrdlZed ~urrIculum .. We heard Mr. Shanker rightfully this 
ll?-0rnlng, I bel~eve, speak In terms of the need for children to expe
rience academIC success. 
. And we are trying t~ do that by the i~iti~tives which I will just 

CIte rather than explaIn: The standardIzatIOn of our curriculum' 
~he overhauling of our graduation requirements; academic eligibil~ 
I~y standards for extracurricular activities. We do have an exten
SIve homewor~ policy and Philadelphia was in the vanguard in 
that we ~er~~ne first system to lau:L1ch the homework hotline. The 
4lternatIve . .t'lacement Center we feel is a very important dimen
SIOn. SuperIntendent Flynn spoke of the need to remove disruptive 
students from .the cla~sroom .. I think most of the speakers have 
spoken to that Issue thIS mornIng. We agree with that. 

If you ~sk us ~ow the Federal .Gov(~rnment could help us, it 
would b~ I~deed In terms of suffiCIent and adequate funding for 
school dIstrICts so that as we meet the various needs of our stu
~e1:1ts, we wo?ld indeed not have to siphon money off from the ex
Isting operating funds so that we could accommodate the various 
needs of our pupils. 

We place s~udents in alternative placement centers for 90 days. 
They work W:lth ~ staff psychologist; they have a diagnostic center. 
An~ we conSIder It B; temporary schooling operation until they are 
malnstreamed back Into the regular classroom. 'rhey mayor may 
not ~eturn to th~i! origit;lal school. I think you should know that. 

It IS not a tradItional dIsciplinary school but rather we have pro
fessional psychologists and counselors, and they are there to evalu
ate each child and provide the necessary level of support so that he 
or she ca~ !~tu!n to the traditi~nal s.chool setting. 

Other ~nltIatIves would certaInly Include our replicating success 
program In. that we are funneling our dollars into educational pro
gra~s, WhICh hav~ proven to be successful, where our children 
achIeve, where th~Ir attendance r!ite is good, where they stay in 
sch?ol, where theIr parents are Involved on a regular ongoing 
baSIS. ' 

We are trying to put all of those strategies together in several of 
our schools where that has not been the order of the day. 

Mr. Shanker, earlier this morning, spoke to the need and his 
support for early c~i~dhood educ~tion. We 'Yould certainly stress 
that. We have defilllltive data, WhICh would Indicate that we have 
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had excellent retention rate in those children, that their achieve
ment rate has been above the national no!rm, at least up until 
grade eight, and a variety of other reasons why that kind of sup
port is so critical. 

And, lastly, our voluntary desegregation plan, which has as its 
basis, educational improvement. 

Let me move to the issue of this morning, which deals with the 
area specifically of strengthening our security operation and to a 
degree modifying or expanding the approaches that we have used. 
In October 1982, when I became superintendent and shortly there
after I established a task for school safety. 

That task force consisted of some 100 individuals representing 
the educational community, the public schools, parochial schools, 
institutions of higher learning, the court system, the police system, 
and community leaders, parents, and members of the mayor's 
office. And those persons worked diligently to share with us some 
cogent recommendations on things that we could do to improve the 
situation in the Philadelphia School District. 

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, you will see those 
attachments to my testimony from the media. It was suggested 
that we secure a professional head of operations for security. And 
we were extremely fortunate in Philadelphia to acquire the serv
ices of Mr. George Fencl, who was formerly the chief inspector 
with the city of Philadelphia and had been responsible for civil ~f
fairs, highly regilrded by parents, the community, and communIty 
leaders. 

And he is nationally recognized as an expert in his field, nD;d 
within his short tenure, since August, we have seen a dramatIC 
change in the progress that we have been able to make because of 
his leadership. 

We have expanded the scope of our security force. We formerly 
had them limited to individual school sites. That is one security of
fir',i', perhaps, in a school. We found that not to be effective. So, 
therefore, we expanded their areas of responsibility not only to in
clude the schools, but our transportation operations and the neigh
borhood surrounding the schools. 

We have given those persons professional training. In .coopera
tion with our police department, they have gone to our polIce acad
emy, and they have now completed training for more than 20~ of 
our security guards. And it now includes human relations skIlls, 
briefings on the law, the use and abuse of force, et cetera. 

Upon completion, our security officers are now properly licensed 
as private patrolmen and have been given limited arrest capability. 
We do not endorse the use of weapons being carried by our security 
officers in our schools. And they have not been licensed to do so. 

We have mobile units; those are school patrol safety security 
cars, which patrol school neighborhoods. It has been dramatic in its 
effect. And the parents know those cars are there and they feel a 
higher measure of security not only for the immediate schools, but 
for their homes, because they recognize that we have that commu
nication network with our ongoing police force. 

Operation Stop was instituted as a technique and a hotline to. as!r 
citizens to feel free to call that number to report any observed InCI-
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dences of violence or vandalism against our property or against our 
staff members or against our students. 

So far we have had 127 calls, and of those calls we have managed 
at this stage to bring prosecution against 60 percent of the perpe
trators revealed as a result of those calls. I indicated earlier that 
we have a new system for reporting serious incidents. I heard this 
morning that perhaps there had not been as much court coopera-

'tion as would be desired. 
That is not the situation in our city; the Philadelphia courts 

have been particularly cooperative in providing expeditious hear
ings and enforcing consistent but firm penalties. For example, for 
the first time we are beginning to recover damages from students 
and parents when property losses are incurred. 

I found that the courts allowed us, the law allowed us -to fine par
ents when students place graffiti on our buildings. That is not the 
first recourse, however; we instituted the fact that they should 
clean it up, clean it off. If that does not happen and if it is not re
movable, then we have the damage estimated and parents are fined 
that amount of money. 

Again, it is the superintendent of school's commitment that we 
will not tolerate vandalism or violence in our schools. A full-time 
attorney has been assigned on the basis to coordinate the court liti
gation activities. We have had excellent police cooperation. And we 
have done some preplanning with our principals because it is not 
enough for us to initiate all of these activities without the inclusion 
of our principals and other staff members. 

Lastly, as we heard our chairman say, I certainly have had ex
emplary media cooperation. For every initiative which has been 
launched, the media has been extremely supportive in its coverage 
in a very balanced and very positive way, as well as the editorial 
boards of our papers. I am just saying to you this morning that 
many of the programs we have outlined are initial initiatives, 
really. I believe that as a result of the kinds of things we are doing 
in the school district of Philadelnhia that we will see even a de
crease in that 2~900 listing of assaults. 

And I would indicate to you that we would want the support of 
the Federal Government in terms of funding and adequate funding 
for educational initiatives, which in turn will assist us with the 
whole aspect of discipline and violence in the schools. 

[The prepared statement of Ms. Clayton and additional material 
follows:] 
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF CONSTANCE E. CLAYTON 

MR. CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE SUBCOMHITTEE: 

THANK YOU FOR THIS OPPORTUNITY TO SHARE WITH YOU "THE INSIGHTS AND 

EXPERIENCES THAT WE HAVE HAD IN THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF PHILADELPHIt REGARDING 

SCHOOL VIOLENCE AND DISCIPLINE. THE RECENTLY RELEASED NATIONAL REPORT 

OUTI.INES THE SEVERITY AND MAGNITUDE OF THE PROBLEM. THIS REPORT HAS AS ITS 

UNDERLYING TENET AN ASSUMPTION THAT EFFECTIVE EDUCATION CAN ONLY BE PROVIDED 

WHEN THERE IS REASONABLE DECORUM AND DISCIPLINE IN THE CLASSROOM. 

I AM CERTAINLY MT AT ISSUE WITH THAT PREMISE: OUR EXPERIENCES IN 

Pl;!ILADELPHIA HAVE CONVINCED US THAT EFFECTIVE AND WELL-ORDERED EDUCATIONAL 

PROGRAMS ARE A MAJOR INFLUENCE ON SCHOOL DISCIPLINE. AS WE RAISE OUR EXPEC-

TATIONS OF BOTH OUR STUDENTS' PERFORMANCE AND THE PERFORMANCE OF. OUR ENTIRE 

SCHOOL SUPPORT TEAM, DISCIPLINE PROBLEMS CAN BE SELF-CORRECTING. WE ALSO 

LOOK TO PARENTS OF OUR STUDENTS FOR SUPPORT IN OUR EFFORTS TO IMPROVE BOTH 

ACADEMIC PERFORMANCE AND DISCIPLUIE IN THE SCHOOLS AND WE HAVE FOUND THAT 

PARENT GROUPS WHOLE-HEARTEDLY ENDORSE OUR EFFORTS. 

LATER IN THIS PRESENTATION I WILL BE SHARING WITH YOU THE BALANCE THAT 

WE ARE ATTEMPTING TO MAINTAIN BE'fWEEN EDUCATIONAL IN:[TIATIVES AND 

STRENGTHENED SECURITY OPERATXONS, THE FINDINGS· PORTRAYED IN THE RECENTLY 

ISSUED NATIONAL REPORT ARE CERTAINLY ALARMING; AND, TO VETERANS IN THE FIELD, 

COME M. NO SURPRISE. I MUST QUALIFY, HOWEVER, THAT THE FREQUENCY OF INCI

DENTS INDICATED, I. E. 3 MILLION SECONDARY SCHOOL STUDENTS NATIONALLY BEING 

VICTIMS OF CRIME EVERY MONTH, MAY BE AN OVERSTATEMENT •• 

IT IS THE RESPONSIllILITY OF EACH ADULT WITHiN A SCHOOL BUILDING TO 

M.SIST IN THE MAINTAINING OF ORDER IN THE CLASSROOM AND THE HALLS. THE 

SCHOOL PRINCI;I'AL MUST BE THE LEADER IN THIS REGARD. HQWEVER, I DO NOT 

BELIEVE THAT EVERY NEGATIVE INTERACTION BETWEEN TEACHER AND PUPIL, OR PRINCI

PAL AND PUPIL, NEEDS TO BE DESCRIBED AS A REPORTABLE INCIDENT. 

IN PHILADELPHIA, WE MAINTAIN AN EXTENSIVE ACr.OUNTING OF WHAT WE DESCRIBE 

AS SERIOUS INCIDENTS. SIMPLY DEFINED, THIS INCLUDES THOSE SITUATIONS WHERE 

PERBONAL INJml.Y, PROPERTY LOSS OR CRIMINAL ACTIVITIES ARE INVOLVED. THE 

REPORTING PROCEDURE IS ATTACHED M. APPENDIX A. 

WE RAVE 207,000 PUBLIC SCHOOL STUDENTS IN PHILADELPHIA. THEY ARE BEING 

EDUCATED IN 263 FACILITIES. 

LET ME NOW SHARE WITH ~OU OUR EXPERIENCES FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 1982. 

IN 1982, tffi HAD 2,994 SERIOUS INCIDElITS REPORTED. THE FOLLOWING STATISTICAL 

TABLE GIVES YOU A BREAKDOWN OF THE NATURE OF THESE PROBLEMS. 
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TABLE I 

ACTS OF VIOLENCE IN SCHOOLS 

INCIDENTS NUMBER OF INCIDENTS 

1/1 - 12/31/82 

ASSAULT ON STUDENT 449 

ASSAULT ON TEACHER 294 

DRUGS--USE/POSSESSION 35 

MORALS OFFENSE 72 

MARIJUANA--USE/POSSESSION 261 

LARCENY--ALL 1,134 

RAPE 6 

ROBBERY--STUDENT VICTIM 104 

ROBBERY--TEACHER VICTIM 21 

GANG FIGHT 4 

TRESPASSING 266 

WEAPONS··-POSSESSION 348 

2,994 

IN ADDITION TO THE SERIOUS INCIDENTS ACCOUNTED FOR IN THIS TABLE THAT 

DEAL PRI~mRILY WITH THE CONDUCT OF OUR STUDENTS, WE SEPARATELY KEEP TRACK OF 

THE NUMBER OF INCIDENTS AND MAGNITUDE OF PROBLEMS DEALING WITH SCHOOL VAN

DALISM. IN CALENDAR YEAR 1982, WE HlID REPORTED TO US 1,189 INCIDENTS OF 

EITHER PROPERTY DAMAGE, GRAFFITI, FORCIBLE ENTRY OR FIRES. THE CUMULATIVE 

DAMAGE CAUSED BY THESE ACTS IN PHILADELPHIA IS ESTIMATED TO EXCEED $3 MILLION 

ANNUALLY. 

PREVENTION OF VANDALISM AND OTHER SERIOUS INCIDENTS IS VERY COSTLY, AND 

THE DOLLARS EXPENDED COULD FUND A HOST OF INSTRUCTIONAL INITIATIVES. IN 

PHILADELPHIA WE MAINTAIN A SECURITY WORK FORCE IN EXCESS OF 200 INDIVIDUALS 

COSTING US APPROXIMATELY $6 MILLION ANNUALLY. IT IS OUR HOPE THAT EVENTUALLY 

WE WILL BE ABLE. TO CHANNEL SOME OF THESE DOLLARS INTO DIRECT SERVICES TO 

CHILDREN. FOR THE TIME BEING, HOWEVER, THE EXPENDITURE IS NECESSARY TO 

ENSURE THAT OUR CHILDREN CAN LEARN IN A SAFE AND SECURE ENVIRONMENT. 

WUAT IS OF EVEN GREATER CONCERN THAN THE MONIES EXPENDED IS THE REAL 

COSTS IN HllHAN TERMS; E.G. POOR PERFORMANCE BY OUR STUDENTS OR EMPLOYEE 

RELATIONS PROBLEMS RESULTING IN LOWER LEVELS OF PERFORMANCE OR PRODUCTIVITY. 

THAT CAN RESULT FROM A LACK OF EFFECTIVE DISCIPLINE. 

IN PHILADELPHIA, WE HAVE UNDERTAKEN A TWO-PART IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM THAT 

IS PROPERLY BALANCED BETWEEN EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND SECURITY CONCERNS. THE 

__________ ~~ ______________ oL ____ ~_ ..... __ "-
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FIRST, AND PARAMOUNT PART OF THE OVERALL APPROACH, IS TO RAISE OUR EDUCATIONAL 

EXPECTATIONS. WE ARE FIRMLY COMMITTED TO THE BELIEF THAT AS WE 

RAISE OUR .EXPECTATIONS, OUR STUDENTS WILL RESPOND POSITIVELY IN BOTH ACADEMIC 

ACHIEVEMENT AND BEHAVIOR. THERE ARE SIX INDIVIDUAL INITIATIVES UNDERWAY IN 

PHILADELPHIA WHICH ARE ALL FOCUSED ON IMPROVING OUR OVERALL EDUCATIONAL 

EFFORT. THEY ARE: 

1. STANDARDIZED CURRICULUM 

THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF PHILADELPHIA IS IN THE PROCESS OF 

RESHAPING, RETOOLING AND STANDARDIZING THE MANDATED CURRICULUM SO 

THAT WE CAN ASSURE ALL PARENTS THAT THEIR CHILDREN ARE BEING 

PRESENTED WITH AN EQUITABLE OPPORTUNITY TO OBTAIN THE BEST EDUCA

TION THl.T OUR RESOURCES CAN PROVIDE. THE STANDARDIZED CURRICULUM 

IS A BALANCED CURRICULUM THAT IS: 

A. GOAL RELATED IN THAT J:T MATCHES SYSTEMWIDE GOALS A1'D 

INSTRUCTIONAL OBJECTIVES. 

B. CAREFULLY STRUCTURED IN THAT IT HAS A DEFINITE SCOPE AND 

SEQUENC~ OF CONTENT AND SKILLS. 

C. MEANINGFULLY MEASURED IN THAT IT IS SUPPORTED BY OUR 

CURRICULUM REFERENCED TESTING AND ASSESSMENT PROGRAM, AND 

D. FULLY UNDERSTOOD BY TEACHERS, STUDENTS AND PARENTS AS A 

RESULT OF COMPREHENSIVE DISSEMINATION. 

2. UPGRADING GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS 

AS THE NEEDS OF OUR SOCIETY CHANGE, SCHOOL DISTRICTS 

NATIONALLY MUST RESPOND. WE ARE IN THE PROCESS OF INCREASING 

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS WITH MORE EMPHASIS BEING PLACED ON 

MATHEMATICS SCIENCE. COMPUTING AND VERBAL SKILLS AS A J,>REREQUISITE 

TO GRADUATION. IN ADDITION, WE ARE ESTABLISHING REVISED PROMOTION 

STANDARDS. THAT INFORMATION APPEARS AS APPENDIX B. 

3. ACADEMIC ELIGIBILITY STANDARDS FOR EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES 

WE HAVE ESTABLISHED AND IMPLEl1ENTED ACADEMIC ELlGIBILITY 

STANDARDS AS A REQUIREMENT FOR PARTICIPATION IN EXTRA-CURRICULAR 

ACTIVITIES SUCH AS ATHLETICS, MUSIC AND CLUBS. STUDENTS NOW FULLY 

UNDERSTAND THAT IN ORDER TO PARTICIPATE IN THESE EXTRA-CURRICULAR 

ACTIVITIES, IT IS MANDATORY THAT A MINIMAL LEVEL OF ACADEMIC . 
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PERFORMANCE BE DEMONSTRATED AND SUSTAINED. THE STANDARDS APPEAR AS 

APPENDIX C. 

4. HOMEWORK POLICY 

WE HAVE DEFINED MINIMUM LEVELS OF ASSIGNMENTS IN ALL SECTORS 

OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT THAT MUST BE GIVEN TO ALL OF OUR STUDENTS ON 

A REGULAR BASIS. HERETOFORE, THIS WAS LEFT AS A LOCAL OPTION FOR 

INDIVIDUAL TEACHERS; AND, ALTHOUGH TEACHERS MAY NOW ASSIGN 

ADDITIONAL WORK, MINIMAL REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN ESTABLISHED. THIS 

DOCUMENT APPEARS AS APPENDIX D. 

5. ALTERNATIVE PLACEMENT CENTER 

UNFORTUNATELY, THERE ARE THOSE FEW STUDENTS WHO HAVE 

DIFFICULTY COPING IN A TRADITIONAL SCHOOL SETTING. FOR THESE FEW 

INDIVIDUALS, HE HAVE PROVIDED A SUPPORT FACILITY WHICH SERVES AS A 

DIAGNOSTIC CENTER AND A TEMPORARY 90 DAY PLACEMENT UNTIL THE 

STUDENT CAN BE MAINSTREAMED. THIS IS NOT THE TRADITIONAL DISCI

PLINARY SCHOOL, BUT RATHER ONE WHERE PROFESSIONAL PSYCHOLOGISTS AND 

<:;OUNSELORS ARE IN PLACE TO EVALUATE EAC!~ CHILD AND PROVIDE THE 

NECESSARY LEVEL OF SUPPORT SO THAT HE OR SHE CAN BE RETURNED TO A 

TRADITIONAL SCHOOL SETTING. 

6. SYSTEM-WIDE CODE OF DISCIPLINE 

UNDER MY ADMINISTRATION, PRINCIPALS' ARE GIVEN STRONG SUPPORT. 

THEY ARE BEING ENCOURAGED TO INITIATE PROSECUTION OF VIOLATORS IN 

SERIOUS INCIDENT CASES. IN ADDITION, CO~UTTEE HAS BEEN ESTAB

LISHED TO DEVELOP A SYSTEM-WIPE CODE OF DISCIPLINE, SO THAT STAN

DARDS AND PENALTIES l-lILL BE CONSISTENT AND FAIR THROUGHOUT THE 

SCHOOL DISTRICT. 

7. EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION 

AS A FORMER ASSOCIATE SUPERINTENDENT FOR EARLY CHILDHOOD 

EDUCATION. I WHOLEHEARTEDLY SUPPORT MR. SHANKER'S STATEMENTS ON THE 

VALUE OF EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION FOR ALL CHILDREN. PHILADELPHIA 

HAS A THOROUGH PROGRAM WHICH HAS BEEN EXTENSIVELY EVALUATED. 

STUDIES HAVE SHOWN THAT CHILDREN WHO PARTICIPATE IN PREKINDERGARTEN 

AND OTHER EARLY CHILDHOOD J;'ROGRAMS: A) ARE MORE LIKELY TO AVOID 

PLACEMENT IN COSTLY SPECIAL EDUCATION PROGRAMS LATER ON BECAUSE OF 

(I 
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THE OPPORTUNITY FOR EARLY :DIAGNOSIS AND CORRECT:(ON OF POTENTIAL 

PROBLEMS; B) PRESENT FEWER DISCIPLINE PROBLEMS AND INCIDENCE OF 

DELINQUENCY; C) HAVE A LOWER DROPOUT RATE AND FEWER INSTANCES OF 

RETENTION IN GRADE; AND D) ACHIEVE ABOVE NATIONAL NORMS ON STAN

DARDIZED TE~TS. 

8. VOLUNTARY DESEGREGATION PLAN 

THE LAST, AND PERHAPS THE MOST SIGNIFICANT EDUCATIONAL 

INITIATIVE UNDERWAY IN PHILADELPHIA, IS OUR RECENTLy'APPROVED 

VOLUNTARY DESEGREGATION PLAN. WE ARE PROUD OF AND COMMITTED TO 

THIS PLAN. THE BASIC PREMISE OF OUR DESEGREGATION PLAN IN 

PHILADELPHIA IS THAT WE CAN DESIGN AND IMPLEMENT COMPREHENSIVE AND 

EFFECTIVE EDUGATIONAL PROGRAMS THAT WILL ATTRACT STUDENTS ON A 

VOLUNTARY BASIS, AS OPPOSED TO IMPOSING REQUIREMENTS ON STu~ENTS TO 

ATTEND A DIFFERENT SCHOOL. WE ARE INTENSIVELY AT WORK BUILDING AND 

IMPLEMENTING THE BASIC EDUCATIONAL "MAGNETS" THAT WILL ATTRACT 

CHILDREN. 

THE SECOND PART OF THE OVERALL PROGRAM IN PHILADELPHIA DEALS MORE 

SPECIFICAUY lflTH STRENGTHENING OUR SECURITY OPERATIONS AND MODIFYING, TO A 

LARGE EXTENT, THE BASIC TECHNIQUES AND APPROACHES ~LOYED. SHORTLY AFTER I 

BECAME SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS IN OCTOBER 1982, I ESTABLISHED A TASK FORCE 

ON SCHOOL SAFETY TO ADDRESS SOME OF THE MAJOR ISSUES THAT CONCERN THIS 

SUBCOMMITTEE: VANDALISM, AND ARSON; SUBSTANCE ABUSE; GRAFFITI. NEIGHBORHOOD 

SAFETY AND SCHOOL DISCIPLINE. WE WERE GRATIFIED ,BY THE BROAD-BASED PAR

TICIPATION OF PARENTS, STUDENTS, COMMUNITY LEADERS, MEMBERS OF THE MAYOR'S 

STAFF, UNIVERSITY PROFESSORS AND SCHOOL DISTRICT EMPLOYEES AS MEMBERS OF THE 

TEAM. THE MOST SIGNIFICANT OUTGROWTH OF THE TASK FORCE'S WORK HAS BEEN THE 

FORMATION OF INDIVIDUAL SCHOOL SA~ETY TEAMS WHO ARE DESIGNING PROGRAMS THAT 

ARE APPROPRIATE TO INDIVIDUAL SCHOOL SETTINGS AND SITUATIONS. OTHER RECOM

MENDATIONS OF THE TASK FORCE ARE BEING REVIEWED AND IMPLEMENTED AS WELL. IN 

ADDITION, 'WE HAVE TAKEN A NUMBER OF STEPS TO IMPROVE OUR EFFECTIVENESS. SOME 

OF WHICH RESPOND TO \ASK FORCE CONCERNS. 
\\ 

LET ME DESCRIBE ELEVEN DIFFERENT SECURITY PROGRAMS UNDERWAY. TItEY ARE: 

1. THE SECURING OF A PROFESSIONAL HEAD OF OPERATIONS 

WE HAVE BEEN EXTREMELY FORTUNATE IN PHILADELPHIA TO ACQUIRE 
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THE SERVICES OF MR. GEORGE FENCL, FORMERLY CHIEF INSPECTOR OF THE 

PHILADELPHIA POLICE DEPARTMENT, AND A NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED EXPERT 

IN CIVIL AFFAIRS MANAGEMENT. MR. FENCL'S LEADERSHIP IS BEING FELT 

THROUGHOUT THE PHILADELPHIA SCHOOL COMMUNITY. 

2. EXPANDED SCOPE 

FOR}mRLY OUR SCHOOL SECURITY RESOURCES WERE LIMITED TO 

INDIVIDUAL SCHOOL SITES. WE HAVE EXPANDED THEIR AREAS OF 

RESPONSIBILITY TO INCLUDE OUR TRANSPORTATION OPERATIONS AND THE 

NEIGHBORHOODS SURROUNDING THE SCHOOLS. 

3. PROFESSIONAL TRAINING 

WORKING COOPERATIVELY WITH THE PHILADELPHIA POLICE DEPARTMENT, 

WE HAVE DESIGNED A PROGRAM BEING ADMINISTERED BY OUR LOCAL POLICE 

ACADEMY AND HAVE COMPLETED THE TRAINING OF MORE THAN 200 SECURITY 

OFFICERS. THE SCOPE OF THIS TRAINING HAS BEE~ EXTENSIVE INCLUDING 

HUMAN RELATIONS SKILLS, BRIEFINGS ON THE LAW, THE USE AND ABUSE OF 

FORCE, EST. UPON COMPLETION, OUR SECURITY OFFICERS ARE NOW 

PROPERLY LICENSED AS PRIVATE PATROLMEN AND HAVE BEEN GIVEN LIMITED 

ARREST CAPABILITY. (WE DO NOT ENDORSE THE USE OF OR CARRYING OF 

WEAPONS IN OUR SCHOOLS BY SECURITY OFFICERS NOR HAVE THEY BEEN 

LICENSED TO DO SO.) 

4. USE OF MOBILE UNITS 

SELECTED SECURITY OFFICERS HAVE BEEN GROUPED IN TEAMS AND 

ASSIGNED A SCHOOL DISTRICT VEHICLE. THESE MOBILE PATROLS ARE ABLE 

TO PROVIDE MUCH MORE EFFECTIVE COVERAGE OF SEVERAL SCHOOLS IN A 

GIVEN DAY AS lVELL AS INCREASE OUR PUBLIC'S AWARENESS OF SCHOOL 

SECURITY OPERATIONS. 

5. OPERATION STOP 

A TWENTY-FOUR HOUR A DAY HOTLINE HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED IN 

PHILADELPHIA WHERE INFORMANTS CAN ANONYMOUSLY PROVIDE INFORMATION 

REGARDING INCIDENTS THROUGHOUT THE SCHOOL DISTRICT. THERE IS 

GROWING USE OF THIS CAPABILITY. 

-----~. ---~~-- --~~-~ .. - ~ .... -~----
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6. NEW REPORTING SYSTEMS/PROCEDURES 

FORMERLY THERE WERE MULTIPLE AND INFORMAL REPORTING 

PROCEDURES. A NEW REPORTING SYSTEM IS IN PLACE. EQUALLY 

IMPORTANT, PRINCIPALS ARE BEING ENCOURAGED TO REPORT INCIDENTS. 

REPORTING OF AN INCIDENT IS NO ~ONGER VIEWED AS A NEGATIVE 

COMl1ENTARY ON THEIR MANAGERIAL CAPABILITY. 

7. COURT COOPERATION 

THE PHILADELPHIA COURTS HAVE BEEN PARTICULARLY COOPERATIVE IN 

PROVIDING EXPEDITIOUS HEARINGS AND ENFORCING CONSISTENT BUT FIRM 

PENALTIES. AS AN EXAMPLE, FOR THE FIRST TIME, WE ARE BEGINNING TO 

RECOVER DAHAGES FROM STUDENTS AND PARENTS WHEN PROPERTY LOSS HAS 

OCCURRED. 

8. FULL-TIME ATTORNEY ASSIGNED 

WE HAVE ASSIGNED AN ATTORNEY ON A FULL-TIME BASIS TO 

COORDINATE COURT AND LITIGATION ACTIVITIES ASSOCIATED WITH SCHOOL 

DISCIPLINE CASES. IN THE PAST, COURT RESPONSIBILITIES WERE VERY 

FRAGMENTED AND, FREQUENTLY, THE SCHOOL DISTRICT WAS NOT WELL 

PREPARED. 

9. POLICE DEPARTMENT COOPERATION 

THE PHILADELPHIA POLICE DEPARTMENT HAS EXHIBITED EXCELLENT 

COOPERATION--BOTH IN RESPONSE TO CRISES AND IN THE NECESSARY 

PLANNING THAT PRECEDES ANY INVESTIGATION. . , 

10. PRE-PLANNING WITH SCHOOL PRINCIP.\LS 

OUR SCHOOL SECURITY MANAGEMENT IS NOW COUNSELING WITH 

SCHOOL PRINCIPALS ON A REGULAR BASIS TO ASSESS THEIR PARTICULAR 

NEEDS AND TO DESIGN A PROGRAM THAT ADDRESSES THOSE NEEDS. EXAMPLES 

OF CREATIVE EFFORTS HAVE BEEN NEIGHBORHOOD "SWEEPS" TO ELIMINATE 

LOITERING, AND HALLWAY "SWEEPS" TO ROUND UP ALL 'I'RESPASSERS OR 

STUDENTS WHO ARE OUT OF THE CLASSROOM WITHOUT APP'ROPRIATE EXCUSES. 

11. MEDIA COOPERATION 

AS WE HAVE UNVEILED OUR PLANS IN PHILADELPHIA, THE MASS 

MEDIA--NEWSPAPERS, RADIO AND TELEVISION--HAVE ALL COOPERATED AND 
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CONTINUED TO MAKE THE Pt~LIC AWARE OF OUR INCREASED FOCUS O~ 

SECURITY AND OUR AGGRESSIVE ATTITUDE TOWARD OFFENDERS. NEWSPAPER 

ARTICLES AND EDITORIALS DESCRIBING THE PRECEDING ACTIVITIES APP&~ 
AS APPENDIX E. 

RESULTS 

MANY O~ THE PROG~~S THAT HAVE BEEN OUTLINED ARE JUST IN THE PROCESS OF 

BEING IMPLEMENTED IN THIS CURRENT SCHOOL YEAR; HOWEVER, WE ARE ALREADY SEEING 

POSITIVE RESULTS. THERE HAVE BEEN DECREASES IN SEVEN OF TWELVE CATEGORIES. 

IN THE OTHER FIVE CATEGORIES THERE WERE INCREASES OR NO CHANGE HOWEVER, WE 

BELIEVE THIS RESULTS NOT FROM A HIGHER INCIDENCE, BUT FROM MORE AGGRESSIVE 

ENFORCEMENT AND MORE ACCURATE REPORTING. THE COMPLETE TABLE APPEARS AS 

APPENDIX F. 

WE BELIEVE THESE IMPROVEMENTS ARE JUST THE BEGINNING. WE WILl. CONTINUE 

TO USE OUR BALANCED APPROACH, 1. E. EDUCATIONAL IMPROVEMENT WITH TIGHTER 

SECURITY; AND WE HOPE THAT, AS YOU CONSIDER OUR PROBLEM NATIONALLY AND MAKE 

RECOMMENDATIONS, YOU WILL RECOGNIZE A CONTINUING OBLIGATION TO PROMOTE AND 

SUPPORT EDUCATIONAL IMPROVEMENTS AS WELL AS ENHANCED SECURITY OPERATIONS. 

(,()NSTM,CE E, ~'L'\ "TON 
SMft,mtr.,J", .i ~'AHlI 

RIC'II.IIW I), 1I,\Nl'Sln' 
.-IIIIh.I".Itr.tu,."n"""/flff 
Ollio, If Rl,J .\1'''''('''''"' 

THE SCJjOOI. DISTRrc:r OF PHIl .. \()m.I'Ili,\ 
IIO;\IW (11' HDl'('.\'!'!ll:-; 

.!nhll F. !'.lIn.,ly ('cOI.r 
'.14 &:llll\'lkill .Iv.nlle 

Phil"lelphi., Pu. 19146 

Fi Ie ;1230 
Janua ry 9, 1984 

TO: DistrIct Sup~rintcndents 
Principals 

FROM: Richard 0, tlanusey 

SUBJECT: IncIdent ReportIng Procedure 

APPENDIX A 

The fo II owl ng Inc Iden t Report I n9 P';,ocedure Is effec tI VI! <1S 0 f 
January 9. 198~. It Is to be noted that Princlp."s • .:1S indlcnt(;\d in Item ~I, 
<Ira to make three (3) cal Is In consonance wIth the sequence, as Indicated: 

34-802 0 - 84 - 10 
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A. PROCEDURE 

I. 'Princlpal Contacts: 
- Police or Fire Department 
- Incident Control Desk 
- District Superintendent 

- 911 
- 875-3614 

f. I I P 1 ice District NOTE: Principal requests ~he assistance,o: aOlc:ctsOor fires on 
. -- I late sl tuations where crlmln or Fire Department n appropr where a crime Is committed, an 
school praperty are Involved. Ind al ~ c~~:\ollce' and Incident Control Desk, 
Immediate notification muspt be mda e ~anual __ Pol ice Relations, 109.0 to Refer to Field Operations race ures " 
109.10 Inclusive a~d Fire Safety, 110.0 to 110.7 InclusIve. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

.6, 

7. 

Incident Control Desk Contacts: 
- Schoo I SecUI" ty Ch' ef 
- Public Affairs 
- Risk Management 

PublIc Affairs Contacts: 
- Superfntendentof Schools 
- School Operations 
- Admlnl5trative Services 

School Security Chief Contacts: 
- Assistant School Security Chiefs 

Assistant School Securf·ty Chiefs Contact: 
- Maintenance and Operation; 

B. DIRECTIIlE 

The Principal must report all incidents which occur !n or about 
the school premises, and all Incidents wiiTCh occur in connect~on WI t~E~c~~JC)1 
activities away from,the SCii'ool premises, using >he Incident eport /.' _ 
provided by the Office of School Security. 

~.A'7'~ 
Howard R. Amos, . 
Deputy Superintendent 
School Operations 

~CLJoJ- 'JJ]J~~ 
RI~rd D. Hanusey, 
Associate Superintendent 
Risk Management 

APPENDTX B • 

BERNARD G. KELNER 
ASSOCIATE SUPERINTENDENT 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
FEBRUARY 16, 1984 

REPORT TO THE CABINET 

IMMEDIATELY t/l?ON HER ASSUMPTION OF OFFICE, THE SU:PERINTENDENT 

ISSUED A "STATEMENT OF GOVERNANCE" WHICH SOUGHT RESPONSE TO MAJOR .EDUCA-
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TIONAL CONCERNS FROH MORE THAN 300 INDIVIDUALS AND ORGANIZATIONS. 

ENDORSEMENT OF A SYSTEMWIDE STUDENT PROMOTION PROGRAM WAS OVERWHELMING. 

'CLEARLY EDUCATORS, PARENTS, AND COMMUNITY WERE AS ONE IN SEEKING CHANGE 

IN A PROMOTION POLICY WHICH HAD BEEN IN EXISTENCE SINCE 1947. 

THERE FOLLOWED THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A COMMITTEE IN OCTOBER 1983 TO 

DEVELOP A NEt~ PROGRAM. REPRESENTATIVES OF TEACHI!;RS, ADMINISTRATORS, 

UNIVERSITIES, AND PARENTS HAVE BEEN MEETING ON A REGULAR BASIS, REVIEW

ING RESEARCH. SHARING EXPERIENCES AND PERCEPTIONS, AND CONSULTING OFFI

CIALS IN OTHER BIG CITY SCHOOL DISTRICTS IN AN EFFORT TO SUBMIT A 

PROPOSAL TO THE SUPERINTENDENT BY MAY 1984. A LIST OF CO~mITTEE MEMBERS 

IS BEING DISTRIBUTED AND I COMMEND THIS HARD WORKING GROUP TO YOU. 

ALREADY CONSIDERED HAVE BEEN THE TOPICS: 

PHILOSOPHY - GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

GRADUATION REQUIRElmNTS 

BUDGET 

CURRENTLY BEING DEBATED ARE: 

. STANDARDS AND l'mASUREMENTS 

INTERVENTION,PP~VENTION, AND MID-YEAR PROMOTION 

YET TO BE RESOLVED ARE: 

SPECIAL PO:PULATIONS 

REPORTING 

ORIENTATION - STAFF, PARENTS, AND PUBLIC 

MONITORING AND APPEAL 

EVALUATION AND AUDIT 

IT IS RECOGNIZED THAT THE COMPLEXITIES OF THE PROMOTION PROGRAM 

MUST BE CLARIFIED THROUGH SUl'PORTJ;VE MATERIALS. ACCORDINGLY, APPRO

PRIATE FORMS MUST BE DESIGNED AS l'lELL AS A "z.tANUAL" AND A l'RINCIPAL' S 
CHECKLIST." 

\\ 
TENTATIVE RECOMMENDATIONS ON A NUMBER OF ISSUES HAVE BEEN MADE BUT 

THESE ARE NOT FINAL. BECAUSE REVISIONS WILt INEVITABLY BE FORTHCOMING, 

IT WOULD BE PREMATURE TO RELEASE ANY STATEMENT. IN ANY CASE, THE 

COMMITTEE IS TO PRESENT A COMPLETE REPORT TO' THE SUPERINTENDENT FOR HER 
REVIEW. 

THE BASIC CONCEPTS OF OUR EFFORT CAN BE FOUND IN THE "60 SECOND 
OVERVIEW. " 

THE SYST~rwIDE PROMOTION PROGRAM HAS THREE MAJOR COMPONENTS: 

1. IMPLEMENTATION OF THE RESEARCII FINDINGS REGARDING URBAN 
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SCHOOLS THAT HAVE BEEN SUCCESSFUL IN RAISING ACHIEVEMENT. THESE INVOLVE 

OPERATIONAL GUIDELINES WHICH ARE APPLICABLE TO ALL SCHOOLS. 

2. A STANDARDIZED CURRICULUM THAT LISTS CONTENT TO BE TAUGHT 

IN ALL GRADES REGARDLESS OF SCHOOL LOCATION OR ORGANIZATION. 

3. REMEDIAL AND ENRICHMENT PROGRAMS REQUIRED BY INDIVIDUAL 

SCHOOLS IN ORDER TO DEAL WITH SPECIFIC CONCERNS. 

PROMOTION AND ITS REVERSE, RETENTION, BY THEMSELVES ARE NOT CURES 

FOR EDUCATIONAL ILLS. THEIR IMPORTANCE RESIDES IN THEIR EFFECT UPON AND 

REFLECTION OF ANY EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM. AT LEAST FOUR MAJOR FACTORS ARE 

INVOLVED: STUDENTS AND TEACHERS MUST BE IN REGULAR ATTENDANCE ("TIME ON 

TASK"), PROVISION MUST BE MADE FOR VARIATIONS IN STUDENT ABILITIES 

("RESPECT FOR INDIVIDUAL DIFFERENCES"), CURRICULUM MUST BE RELEVANT AND 

CHALLENGING ("HIGH EXPECTATIONS"), AND THE QUALITY OF TEACHING AND 

SUPERVISION MUST BE EXCELLENT ("EFFECTIVE LEADERSHIP"). 

THE GREAT MISTAKE MADE IN ESTABLISHING A PROMOTION PROGRAM IS TO 

VIEW IT AS AN ISOLATED ACTIVITY WHERE STANDARDS ARE SET, FORMS DEVEL

OPED, AND DIRECTIVES ISSUED. THE PROMOTION STORIES ACROSS THE NATION 

ARE TOO OFTEN REPORTS OF LAVISH PROMISE AND QUICK DISAPPOINTMENT. A 

SUCCESSFUL PROMOTION PROGRAM WILL RECOGNIZE THE RELATEDNESS OF ACHIEVE

MENT TO ALL ASPECTS OF THE EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM. THE SCOPE AND DYNAMICS 

OF A PROMOTION PROGRAM RANGE FROM ALLEGIANCE TO SCHOOL DISTRICT GOALS TO 

THE PROVISION OF INDIVIDUALIZED PROGRAMS. 

THE PROPOSED PROMOTION POLICY WILL BE IN THE CONTEXT OF AN OVERALL 

EFFORT FOR SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT. HIGH EXPECTATIONS WILL BE SET WITH THE 

GOAL OF RAISING ALL STUDENTS ABOVE THE MINIMUM REQUIRED FOR PROMOTION. 

REMEDIAL PROGRAMS WILL BE CONSIDERED ONLY IN THE CONTEXT OF TOTAL SCHOOL 

IMPROVEMENT IN ORDER TO AVOID LUIITING REMEDIAL STUDEN'l'S TO "LIFE IN A 

SLOW TRACK." 

IF NOT AS A CURE. WHAT CAN A SYSTEMWIDE PROMOTION PROGRAM CON

TRIBUTE AS PART OF A TOTAL EFFORT? 

IT CAN:: 

• AFFIRM SCHOOL DISTRICT COMl1ITMENT TO QUALITY EDUCATIO~ 

SEND A CLEAR MESSAGE OF EXPECTATIONS FOR STUDENTS AND 

.STAFF 

• PROVIDE A FRAMEWORK OF STANDARDS WHICH CAN SERVE AS A 

REFERENCE FOR DECISION MAKING 

~ UNITE SCHOOL, HOME, AND COMMuNITY IN EDUCATIONAL PURPOSE 
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ADVANCE EQUITY OF PROGRAM OFFERINGS REGARDLESS OF SCHOOL 

LOCATION 

MOTIVATE ESTABLISHMENT OF PREVENTATIVE AND REMEDIAL PROGRAMS 

DESIGNED TO ADVANCE STUDENT SUCCESS 

RAISE STUDENT SELF-ESTEEM, A PRODUCT OF ACHIEVEMENT 

THE BASIC GUIDELINES OF SUCH A SYSTEMWIDE PROGRAM WOULD INCLUDE: 

A STANDARD PROMOTION POLICY THAT MAKES PROVISION FOR ALL 

STUDENTS 

A SINGLE PRECISELY DEFINED MARKING SYSTEM THAT MOVES TOWARD 

OBJECTIVITY IN REPORTING 

EVALUATION OF ALL SUBJECTS TO ENSURE A BALANCED CURRICULUM 

USE OF MULTIPLE CRITERIA FROM OBSERVATION TO CURRICULUM 

REFERENCED TESTING AS A BASIS FOR ESTABLISHING A SUBJECT 

MARK 

PROVISION FOR INCLUDING EXCEPTIONAL CASES WITH THE RIGHT OF 

PARENTAL APPEAL 

A REPORTING SYSTEM THAT REFLECTS THE STANDARD PROMOTION 

POLICY 

ESTABLISHMENT OF PROGRAl-IS THAT NOT ONLY ASSIST RETAINED 

STUDENTS BUT PREVENT FAILURE FOR ALL STUDENTS 

UNIFORM GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS 

THE HISTORY OF EDUCATION IN THE UNITED STATES RECORDS AN INCONSIS

TENCY OF PROMOTION POLICIES FROM ADVANCEMENT ON AGE TO STRICT ADHERENCE 

TO SUBJECT MARKS; CONSISTENCY LIES IN THE UNDIMINISHED BELIEF THAT THERE 

IS NEED FOR RECORDING, REPORTING, AND ACTING UPON STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT 

OR THE LACK OF IT. THE COMMITTEE BELIEVES THAT PHILADELPHIA DESIRES, 

NEEDS, AND WILL SUPPORT A VIABLE SYSTEMWIDE STUDENT PROMOTION PROGRAM. 
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APPENDI'X C \ THE SCHOOL DISTRIcr OF PHILADELPHIA 
BOARD OF EDUC;,\TION 

CONSTANCEE,C~\YTON &.""","""", V S<AteII 

TO: All Principals 

Zh, Srroct S, of ',he Parkway 
19103 

RITA C, ALTMMI 
dlNiu, s",m,.,,,,,,,,, 
~"'" /lIltrwti-1 1Nw/ot."., 

Phon .. 299,7167 

File *200 
November 4, 1983 

RE: PROPOSED Il-1PLEMENTATION PROCEDURES CONCERUING ELIGIBILITY 
STANDARDS FOR ATHLETICS AND EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES 

In the Board resoluHon of June 6, 1983, eligibility 
standards for scholastics and sports, effective the fall of 1983, 
were published. This mem~randum expands those standards by 
definition and amplificat10n. 

d - 1983-84--no morE.' than two (2) failures in Academic S,tandar s 
any 8@ject 

For secondary schools only the subject marks will be 
considered. "Subject" is to be defined as,a'lY organiz~d class I 
for which a stUdent receives a grade. SubJects for wh1ch a pass 

"fail are 'reported will not be included. 

For students in grades S-8, only the subjects that receive 
letter grades will be considered until promotional standards are published. 

grade Point Averaqe 

A'" 
B '"' 
C .. 
D '" 
E.-

4.0 
3':0 ' 
2.0 
1.0 
a 

,. F .. a 
) 

Senior High School Numerical Gra~.ies 

90-100 
80-89 
75-79 
70-74 

, 60-69 
Below 59 

'"' A .. 4.0 
-B .. 3.0 
= C :II 2.0 
• D • 1.0 
.. E .. 0 
"f. F .. 0 

Se~ior High School (Grades 9 through 12) 

Beginning in June 1984, a simple, unl'leighted average will be 
used for the definition of grade p,oint average for the determination 
of eligibility. All subject grades will be aggregated and an 
average taken by the Division of Data P;:ocessing. 

Data Processing will produce an alphabetical listing with a 
grade ooint average for each student. The list will be delivered 
at the' same time report cards and class lists are sent to the high 
schoOls. Ineligibility wiil be determined on the date of issue of the report cards.. . 

E17mentary, Middle, and Junior High ~choOls '(Grades 5-9) 

Beginni.ng in June 1984, a simple, unweighted averag~ will be 
used for definition of the grade point average to determine 
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eligibility. All subject grades will be aggregated and an average 
taken by the DiVision of Data Processing. . 

A data input procedure wil;!. be determined during the school 
'year 1983-84 for· elementary, micldle, and junior high schoCils. 

Determination of eligibili1~y will be made at the conclusion Qf each reP9r~ing Period. I 

For stUdents tranSferring ~nto the School District, eligibility 
will be determined by the last marking period of the sehool the 
stUdent last attended. If Such grades are unobtainable,. the student 

'may parl.:icipate in extra-curricular activities until further 
eligibility is determined by the first marking period in his or her Philadelphia public schOOl. , 

, , 

Behavior Staiiaards 

Individual School discipline codes and the Supervisory 'Rule 
,on Athletics (Article IV, Section 7) will date~ine eligibility. 
Summier lofake-ue 

" 
passing" in summer schools rec:ognizeq by the SchOol District 

of Philadel~hia will be SUfficient: to erase failure in Subj~cts 
from the final report period of tl1\e year. 
Enforcement 

It is.the responsibility of the coach/sponsor of any activity 
to be famil,;l.ar with the eligibility POlicies of the SchOol District. 
The.coach or sponsor must monitor his or her activity to insure 
adherence to the POlicies. Before ,a stUdent is permitted to partici~ate in any extra-curricular acti,rity, the coach or soonsor must 
review the student's report card to determine his or her eligibility. 
The final authority, except in an appeals process outlined elsewhere 
in thia memoranaum, will be the school principal. 
Probation Period 

None 

Aoceals 

The Appeals Procedure set forth .in the policy statement of 
June 6, 1983 prevails. The Eligibili't:y Committee will be convened 
by the Deputy Superintendent for School Operations, \\'hen necessary. 

The copsideration of s ecial education stUdents and recruitment 
as stated in the policy statement of June 6, 1983 prevails. 
Penalties 

Any penalties affecting personnel will be handled in accordance with existing contractual agreements. 

Remedial SUpoort 

A comprehensive tutoring program is under study during the 
1983.84 school year.' Any existing tutorial programs shOUld continue. 
ApPlicabilit;x 

The statement of apPlicability with: the listing of those 
activities affected at the secondary and elementary schOol level ~s,statad in the June 6, 1983 policy statement prevail. 
Review . 

The Superintendent shall appoint a d~ommittee to review these 
implementation procedUres at least once ~ year and to recommend 
th~se change. that may be deemed neces~ary to the Board of Education fOr action. 
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All principals are asked to kindly giv~;tbis implementation 
document broad dissemination among the faculty and staf:E and to 
publish the elements contained herein for, stpdents ,and l?arents. 

~~~ 
HOWARD R. AMOS 
Deputy Superintendent 
School ,Operations 

RCA/a%' 

'. 

A' t. tfU:;, » ., 

RITA C. ALTUM 

,I 

• Associate Superintendlent 
Curriculum and Instru:ctional 

Development 
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1\1' PI':ND I X IJ 

J\ POLICY F(JR' 
HOIVlEWOf-i K ASSI G NIVlEI\J1MS 

IN THE 
P~illADELP~!IA PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

Dr. Constuncu E. Clavton 
Supcrlntendont of Schools Dr. Rita C. Altman 

Associato Suporintendent 
,Curriculum and Instructionul 
Development 

I )/ I It I. t"W I 

C~UnRICULUM AND INS~.RUCTIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
\'1'1 II~ :-'1 'I II 11)1. 'II? I Hlel' Ill' !l11ff .. \IJ"" 1'1 Ii,\ 
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j 10M UVUI{K ASSH;NM ENTS 
in fill' 

Philadelphitl Public Schuols 

Till' 1\J1I~.slalldillg Ir!tuition ill cUIII.:alion oj' :i!lsit!nilll,l hOlllcwork IHls been 
!'j\'l:1I additional support in reecllI stlldics whkh iUl'lIlify Chlllilcleristh:s 
\J r l'ff\:CI iYe schuuls, ResclIrch c1cnrly dClIlllllst ral cs I hat t illlc SPCllt on 
"lJllI~'\\'nlk is pllsith'cly related to lIchieyellletll. Through hlllllcwork, 
~ la S!i filII 11 I illsl rIll't illu is reinf()rced, high expecl a I ions lire SlIpporled, 
~llIdL'Jlts arc lIlolivutcd towlird self·dircctioll, und the rL'laliollship of 
,rlltllli alld hOllll' in thc learnillg prol:ess is slrengthcllcd, lIonlL'wurk is un 
111I)1l1rlallt pari of (!\'I.'ry slmlellt'!i illSlrlll'tiollal program. 

Policy 

Al.'wJ'diligly. every l'IcllIelltary dassJ'I)OIlI Il~adll'r will rl'ljllil'l' J'l'glliarly 
:Issiglll'u IhlnwwllJ'k hased upon clmiSI'I)l}1\I illsll'lll'lion no less Ihllll four 
lililL'S a wl'ck: sc\.'olHhllY lIlajor,sllhjl.'CI leudlcrs IlO less thllli IhreL' tillles 
a wcck, Such action uDes nut exclude 11lIlg'\L'l'In assignll)cIIls, Prillt:ipilis 
will rl'ljtdre th:1I 1I1l1ll('work :tssigllllll'llts he idl'lltificd ill iL'ssoll plaits 1I1ld 
,\ ill provide appropriatc Slarr devclopment, Parenls should expcci Iheir 
dltldrl'll tll rl!~'ciV\! homcwork and shuuld scc Ihal it is dOllc well lind on 
lillie. 

JIll rp()~l'S 

III plallllin~ hOllll'WUl'k, ~Illphasis should he placed Oil till: vtllllc M the 
a~~i!,ll1l1l'llt, I I 1111\ C\\'11 1'1-.. lIlay he assi/!.lJl'd itl ordN III 

-;1 I'l'lI!!1 Iwn basic sk ills. 
reinl"on:I.' study hahits. 
l'XlcllU dassroulli learning. 
lh-Vl'I.Jp initialh:l:, n'spllnsihilily, and sl'll'.diI'L'Clillll. 
,llIlIlIlalc illr-!epcndl'lIt Ihillkillg. 
1I1,'II.'aw lallge alld scupe 01" iIlICI\'S\);, 

/"lIsl,'r ,vllrtliwhile liS\.! or luisllfU lilllC, 

Spl'l'inl ('ollshk'I'atllllis 

" 'I ea,'hl.'I'S s)lolild take into cunsideration stlldents' age, school ~xperi. 
encl.'S, physkallwndicilps, 1I1lU inst ru~tiqnal !t.'vcls. 

• Ilullh' :lssipllIlII.'l1ts shoulu be as l'arl'l'ully planned as lIny elassruom 
.11.:1 ivilY, 

• IndiVidual UI' sl1lull·group lIssiglllllclllS, vlII'il'J 10 IIIcet Ihe nceds (~r 
~ludL'lltS, an: of len desirable. 

• Reading a~signl1lcnts should be al students' indcpendent reuding 
leW!. Rl'alilllg shuuld h~ 1'01 hotl! inlill'lJlnliull alld l'njuYlIlcllt. 
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(IO~II\WOHI\ ASSIGNMENTS 

Tn he errl'l.,tiw ill l'l\celing thcSl~ PII\'POSl'S •. h(Hlicwork IIIUSI he curt:l'lIl1y 
plalllleu ill a~corda\lcl.' wilh Ihe j'ullmvillg prilldplcli: 

• 'l'hl.' purpuse Df 11\l' lIssignlllclll lind its reilltioll 10 whul has hccll 
k'arrlctl ilt Ihe dassrll()11\ IIIl1st hI.' deurly delincu by tltl' (l'acher ;Jilt! 

tllHil'rslOllIl by 1IIl' SI uli 1.'11 I s, 

• 'II", leudH.'r should plan Wilh sllIliellts lIolonl), whill Hi du, hut !tn\\, 
I II lh) it. 

• The aSlIigllnlclI1 shollid grow oUI or dliSSIOOI\l ill:livit il!S 1\1Il11'J'tljL'l'I'I, 

• 'Ihc leacher 11111:-.1 l.'ollsidcr Ille stUdCIII'!) 10lili daily 1101111.'\\ oil, I(lad 
whclI decidillg IIp\lll 1111.' ICIl~lh of lllir ilssignlllelll. Tltl.; ),tllidl'iitlo' 
Illay requite cUllllllltaliulIlllllollg 11.'i1chl'IS. 

• !-itlllknis Shllllhi hI.' tHlight hnw 10 study. II is Ihe lelll'iH'r's respllll' 
sibilily III build UpU/l tl.~dlllillllCS uf SIIIUY prcviuuslyac'luir~!d, ' 

• nle le:lI:ltel Slhlltld rl'spond 10 slIhlltillL'd w\lrK, 

• Ikl.'illIsc hnllleW\\rl, is un ill'lhll'lillll pari nf lhe insl 1'\1\'1 illlli11 pi'll' 
gl'lIIll, ruilurc lu snillllit IllHlIcwllI'k will be I'Ct1CCIL·l\ ill !11l.':\I mll'ut's 
pm(";. 

I 

SOlile Suggesled Types of i'lol11ew(}l'k 

• Revk\\': 
I'l'II~lke illllw bask skills or readinp. :llId IlH\lII(,'IlH\tk~, 
Solving prohlems sillliltll' 10 IllUlil' lIllIdicd ill das:l, 
Prl'parinj.! rill' teSI:-., 
H~'auilll-\ to, P;II~~I)\ s fmm Iwoks :tlrcudy rcad in das:i, 

• I k\ elll)lIlWf)I : 

Il~illg lihrary III Ihll\ll! refm'cm:e books to gHIl\cl' illfOl'IIHllioll 1'01 
dtt:.!, dhil'U:iSiull 

Pleparillp :1 L'III'1\'I\I·evellts I'l.'jlorl ill Slll; jjl I SllIlii.\s. ~dl'lll:l', III 
COillllllIlIll.'lIlio ns. 

SlI II III 1:11 ilillg a hislOi'iI;:IJ I.'WIII, it ~;tlll>" llI' a sI.!iI.'IIV'.' pr(lL'~'lhlrl" 
l'\llll'~ Ii 111:\ UI' dllssi I'y ing IlHit cri:tl~. 
('lIllstrth'tillj.! a 1I1od~'1 Of dllill).t 1111 cNpcrilllCll1. 

• IlIdcpcnliclll StlJdy: 

Jllllplirilip. :1 Scil'lIl'l.' Icseul'ch pn1jccl. 
Orj.!lI11il.illg II bihliogrnphy· 10 he shurc" with IIthcl' studl'nls. 
RClIllillg mhliliullill I~ui)ks uhout II IOpic illtruduccd in clilss. 
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APPENDIX E 

[From the Philadelphia Inquirer, Mar. 26, 1983] 

CRIME IN CITY SCHOOLS Focus OF NEW TASK FORCE 

(By Vernon Loeb) 

Schools Superintendent Constance E. Clayton announced yesterday the formation 
of a task force to initiate a campaign against disruptive behavior, violence, drugs, 
alcohol abuse, vandalism and graffiti in the city's public schools. 

At a news conference at Benjamin Franklin High School, Clayton said that offi
cial reports of crimes committed in the schools have made it "very evident that we 
have to take decisive action." 

"If we have any drugs, if -we have any violence, if we have any semblance of alco
hol abuse, it would be too much," Clayton told reporters, adding that the task force 
would hand down recommendations by June 1 to "prevent and eliminate to the 
extent possible disruptive activities that are inflicted on many by a distruptive core 
of students." 

No mention was made at the news conference of the frequency of crimes commit
ted in the city's 260 school buildings. 

But members of the task force were given school district statistics at an earlier 
meeting yesterday showing that in the schools in 1981 there were 316 assaults on 
teachers, 368 reported assaults on students, 245 cases of marijuana possession, 42 
robberies of teachers, 126 robberies of students, 12 rapes, 244 cases of weapons pos
session, 451 fIres and false alarms and 337 cases of trespassing. 

School district spokesman J. William Jones said that most of those crimes, with 
the exception of the rapes, were committed by students. The rapes, he said, were 
committed by adults who ent.ered school buildings usually after school hours. 

District statistics also show that there were 35,078 students suspended for disrup
tive behavior during the 1981-82 school year. The district, the nation's fIfth largest, 
now has about 207,000 students. 

Clayton said that the task force, to be made up of about 50 people, was designed 
to promote a coordinated effort by the district and various city agencies to improve 
school safety. 

The group will be divided into five subcommittees, she said, and will include rep
resentatives of the Police Department, the District Attorney's Office, the offices of 
the major and the city managing director Common Pleas Court, City Council and 
the state legislature, in addition to parents, students and school officials. 

Clayton said that she did no "envision lining our halls with law enforcement offi
cers," and that she "would not be happy with more expUlsions and suspensions. 
That would be putting off the problem." . 

Rather, she said, "we are looking at it from a preventative approach, although I 
recognize that some students will need to be expelled and suspended." 

Clayton said she intends to implement the t'ecommendations of the task force, 
which will require approval by the Board of Education, at the beginning of the 
1983-84 school year in September. One recommendation that is likely to come from 
the task force she said, would be for the creation of additional schools for students 
who present serious discipline problems. 

Bernard J. Rafferty, associate superintendent for external operations and the task 
force's chairman, said that prior to the submissions of the recommendations in 
June, the school district would increase its efforts to prosecute students and outsid
ers in school buildings who commit crimes.F 246-A802A.026 

Rafferty said the task force would be divided into subcommittees on vandalism 
and arson; graffiti; school discipline; drug fmd alcohol abuse, and neighborhood
school safety. 

Yolanda Middleton, president of the Home and School Council, the district's 
oldest and largest parents' organization, will head the subcommittee on vandalism 
and arson. William Haggett, the mayor's education aide, and Harry Bailey, a 
Temple University political science professor, will head the subcommittee on graffi
ti. 

Daniel McGinley, president of the Philad1elphia Association of School Administra
tors, the organization representing school district principals, will head the subcom
mittee on school discipline. Win L. Tillery, the district's executive director of special 
education, will head the subcommittee on drug and alcohol abuse. 
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And state Sen. Hardy Williams (D., Phila.) and Sister Falaka Fattah, tounder and 
president of the House of Umoja, a home for troubled youths in West Philadelphia, 
will head the subcommittee on neighborhood-school safety. 

[From the Philadelphia Daily News, Mar. 26, 1983] 

TASK FORCE To TACKLE RISE IN SCHOOL VIOLENCE, DRUGS 

(By Juan Gonzalez) 

A blue-ribbon Task Force on School Safety has been appointed to study ways to 
curb increasing vandalism, graffiti and drug and alcohol abuse in city schools. 

The goal of the 50-member panel, announced yesterday by schools Superintendent 
Constance E. Clayton, will be "to prevent and to eliminate, to the fullest extent pos
sible, disruptive problems" in the schools. 

The task force met for the fIrst time yesterday at Benjamin Franklin High School, 
Broad and Green streets, which has been the scene recently of severe drug and vio
lence problems. 

Franklin principal Norman Spencer said five students have been arrested for sell
ing marijuana during the past month. In addition, Spencer said his staff has experi
enced 13 "bodily injury cases" this year, in which personnel have lost days of work. 

Most of the injuries have occurred when staff members attempted to separate 
fighting students, said Spencer, who indicated the number of such incidents has in
creased over previous years. 

Clayton did not cite specific figures on increases in drug abuse, violence or vandal
ism, but said she expected there would be an lIacceleration of prosecutions where 
necessary," and speedier response by police to problems in the schools as a result of 
the increased coordination. 

"I would not be happy with more suspensions and expulsions" of students, she 
added, ltbecause that would only be putting the problem off." 

Clayton stressed that the committee would be Itconcentrating on preventing" seri
ous discipline problems. 

Bernard Rafferty, associate schools superintendent for external operations, will 
chair the task force, which will include city, police and school district officials and 
community and student leaders. Rafferty said the panel will attempt to .develop a 
comprehensive attack on vandalism and discipline problems and coordinate actions 
by various city agencies. 

Rafferty announced that the task force would be divided into five committees, 
each with a set of cochairs. The committees are: vandalism and arson; graffiti; disci
pline; drug and alcohol abuse; and neighborhood safety. 

[From the Philadelphia Daily News, Sept. 2, 1983] 

SCHOOLS AIM To STOP VANDALISM, GRAFFITI, LoITERING 

(By Juan Gonzalez) 

Schools Superintendent Constance E. Clayton served notice yesterday on graffiti 
artists, vandals and loiterers who have caused an estimated $3 million in damages 
to School District buildings that they will be arrested and prosecuted if caught. 

A new crackdown, labeled Operation STOP, began in August and has resulted in 
52 arrests and 12 convictions so far,Clayton announced at a press conference. 

Accompanied by George Fencl, who retired as chief inspector of police in July to 
become the district's special consultant for security, Clayton said, HIt's time that 
some elements in our community are put on notice that we will no longer tolerate 
theft and destruction of school property." 

Among the 52 persons arrested recently on school grounds, Fencl said, have been 
38 juveniles. The 12 who have either pleaded guilty 01' been convicted were fined up 
to :j)75 apiece, he added. 

Convictions have been on charges ranging from disorderly conduct for beer par
ties to burglary and destruction of school property. 

In addition to the prosecutions, Clayton is seeking either to have convicted van
dals repair the damage themselves or to have their parents pay restitution. 

School District lawyer Vivienne Crawford, who also attended the press conference 
and who has been assigned to work with the district attorney's office on prosecu
tions, said restitution has been made in six cases. 
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In one case, Crawford said, "a young man vandalized school district buses. His 
parents felt that due to his age they didn't have to pay for the damages. But the 
judge ordered restitution" of $156. 
pr~~?rd ~dded that notices will be sent this month to all p~incipals that the dis

trIct IS asking for 100 percent arrests" on all cases of graffitI and vandalism. Any 
time a student is caught in the act, the police must be called and an arrest made, 
she said. 

Clayton called on parents and community residents to "help us preserve your 
property and your tax dollars." 

Beginning Sept. 12, she said, anyone witnessing "suspicious activity" at any 
school should call 299-STOP, the special hotline set up for the crackdown, and 
school security forces will be dispatched immediately. 

[From the Philadelphia Inquirer, Sept. 10, 1983] 

POLITICS COUNTS-WHY TEACHING ATTRACTS FEWER 

To the Editor: 
I read with great interest Dick Pothier's article concerning the education of teach

ers ~nd the effect on public schools today. As a graduate of a state university and a 
certIfied elementary teacher, I was unnerved by the negative tone in most of the 

. comments from experts and authorities regarding the type of student who applies 
for the education major. . 

I felt personally insulted that so many of the sources seemed to feel that the 
!"eason education had declined was the "inferior" intelligence of those in the teach
Ing field. There are as many talented and bright individuals in teaching as in other 
fields. 

The rationale that "long, borrowing series of how-to-teach methods courses in the 
curri~ula of many teachers colleges" are "why bright students stay away from 
teachmg as a career" is rather presumptive. Not many freshmen, experiencing col
lege for the first time, have much of an idea of what any college course will be like. 
Furt?er, to .~ply that those in the bottom third of the college-going popUlation are 
see~ng pOSItIons paying salarie~ in the bottom third of the economy is ridiculously 
unf~Ir~an~ther false PresumptIon that teachers are not bright and talented. To a 
semor In high school, one who perhaps has made $120 a week in a summer job, 
$12,000 seems like a lot of money. Only when you are out on your own, paying your 
own bills, does the reality of the low salary set in. 

I found Emily Feistreitzer's statement to be the most bothersome of all. "The 
severe crisis in teaching is related directly to the fact that the best and the bright
e~t. are not choosing teaching any more." C'mon, Ms. Feistreitzer, examine the 
hIrmg system a little further before jumping to such a narrow, one-sided conclusion. 
There ax:e thousands of "best" and the "brightest" college-teaching-course graduates 
wJ:o dutIfully substitute year after year, hoping for a job opening, while being led 
blIndly through the school district's rigamarole-promises by administrators that 
ne~er materialize. Why won't those bright and creative teachers be hired? Because, 
as In most other jobs, it's politics, not the so-called inferiority of the teachers' quali
fications. Politics in the school systems is one of the biggest detriments to public 
schools today . 
. Granted, many of the proposals from "A Nation at Risk" would work really well 
if effectuated under the power of fair individuals in administrative roles. But until 
administrators consider those bright students who are passed over year after year 
because "they didn't know anyone," the proposals won't hold much water. 

LESLIE BROSKEY. 
PHILADELPHIA. 

[From the Philadelphia Inquirer, Sept. 11, 1983] 

OPERATION STOP BEGINS 

Operation STOP, Superintendent Constance E. Clayton's niaw policy to reduce 
theft and vandalism of public school property in Philadelphia, should be supported 
wholeh~artedly. Squarely confronting a lji3 million-a-year problem, Ms. Clayton has 
reor~amzed the school district security force, instituted new surveillance techniques 
and Involved the police more in conjunction with the new policy, which will take 
effect when the school year begins Monday. 
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School principals will be required to summon police when students are caught 
stealing or vandalizing school property, and the school district will seek restitution 
from parents for damages, but the crackdown has a purpose beyond punitive action. 
That is to strengthen discipline and pride in the schools and in neighborhoods. 

The policy was adopted from recommendations made last June by a city-wide task 
force on school safety. The task force, commissioned by Ms. Clayton shortly after 
she took office last year, examined a wide range of problems that affect the learning 
process of the district's 201,000 students, including drug and alcohol abuse, graffiti, 
vandalism, arson, neighborhood safety and classroom discipline. It was composed of 
educators, parents, grassroots community leaders, court and police officials and local 
business people. 

"Although the 'threats' to safety in our schools appear to be pervasive problems, 
they are not invincible," the task force concluded. All the threats, "vandalism, graf
fiti, inconsistent discipline, drug abuse and unsafe neighborhoods, have something 
in common. They are willful or ignorant acts and as such they are vulnerable. The 
school district is quite capable of waging war on ignorance in any form and has the 
resources to vitiate the negative will to hamper safety." 

With Operation STOP, Ms. Clayton has responded in a dramatic way that not 
only is fundamental to restoring quality education in the schools but that can have 
beneficial impact on the city as a whole. 

[From the Philadelphia, Daily News, Nov. 2, 1983] 

DISTRICT'S "OPERATION STOP" CHALKS Up ARRESTS 

(By Juan Gonzalez) 

"Jack the Ripper" is on the lam. 
"Cool Earl" is worried. 
Yes, dozens of the city's most infamous graffiti artists whose work appears on 

walls at school property are walking on tiptoes these days as a School District crack
down continues to produce a record number of arrests and convictions for vandalism 
and other crimes. 

The program, codenamed "Operation STOP/, has resulted in 441 arrests in 275 
separate incidents between Aug. 5, when it began, and Oct. 26, according to former 
police Chief Inspector George Fencl. Fencl spearheaded the project after he retired 
from the force and became a special security consultant to the district this summer. 

By. comparison, school security officers previously averaged between 150 and 200 
arrests per year. At the current rate, Operation STOP could result in more than 
1,000 arrests by the end of its first year. 

Schools Superintendent Constance E. Clayton began the program to stem a crime 
wave that cost the district an estimated $3 million last year. 

The arrests, Fencl said in a recent interview, have been for drug possession, rob
bery and burglary by outs~ders, employee theft, weapons charges, graffiti, beer par
ties in school yards, tresp!lFBing and other offenses. 

"We haven't had anythmg thrown out of court," Fencl said. "We're getting con
victions, restitution or hC:lldovers for trial." At Clayton's direction, district lawyers. 
are aggressively pursuing' prosecution in all cases. . . 

Increasingly, officials ~iay, parents are getting the message that Clayton intends to 
hold them responsible f\)r criminal acts by their children. Of the 441 arrests, 334 
have been of juveniles aIJ.d 107 of adults, Fencl said. 

More than $3,000 in r'dstitution fmes have been collected from parents of convict
ed juveniles, according '_0 Vivien Crawford, an attorney for the district. 

One example, Crawford said, was an incident at Alexander Bache Elementary 
School, 22nd and Brown streets, in which five children broke panes of glass. "Each 
of them had to pay $55 in restitution," she said. 

For some of the city's most well-known graffiti artists, Fencl has ordered sta
keouts at specific schools to catch them in the act. 

"I have a freshly painted wall in one school just waiting for this one [graffiti 
artist], Fencl said. . -' 

In one incident, Fencl said, a burglar was caught walking out of a school building 
with a duplicating machine. 

But the crackdown is not limited to outsiders. More than a dozen employees have 
been arrested for theft, Fencl said, including one who was caught with more than 
$2,000 worth of school property. 

l _______________________________ ~ ______ ~--~,------~\~,----~--~----------~.~-i~~ ______ ~ ____________ ~ ________________ ~ __ • 
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Fencl attributes the program's success to cooperation between the police, District 
Attorney Edward Rendell's office, municipal judges and residents who live near the 
district's 260 schools. The district has established a special 24-hour hot line, 299-
STOP, for neighborhood residents to use to report in any suspicious activity on 
school property. 

Not even Central High School, producer of so many of the city's movers and shak
ers, has escaped the long arm of the law during the School District's recent crack
down on crime. 

In fact, history will note that Central's run-in with justice gave birth to the "Graf
fiti Squad"-just because some Central boys wanted in at Girls High. 

It all started in September, a few weeks after Common Pleas Judge William Mar
utani ruled that females must be permitted to attend the previously all-male Cen
tral at Ogontz and Olney avenues. 

According to schools attorney Vivien Crawford, a dozen Central students, angered 
over Marutani's decision, decided they would protest by "enrolling" at Girls High, 
the female counterpart school for the academically talented. 

They walked to their sister institution, Broad Street and Olney Avenue, only to 
discover the court order was not reciprocal. 

When school security officers-acting vigorously since the district on Aug. 5 an
nounced its "Operation STOP" crackdown on crime-asked them to leave, eight of 
the youths dutifully obeyed, Crawford said. But four of them became belligerent and 
promptly found themselves under arrest, charged with trespassing. 

On Oct. 14, Municipal Judge Michael J. Conroy found them guilty of trespassing 
and sentenced the four stunned young men to 30 days in jail. After the Hshock wore 
off," Crawford said, Conroy commuted the sentence to "finding the dirtiest and most 
graffiti-filled bathroom in Central and scrubbing it clean," Crawford said. 

But Conroy went one step further, offering to aid in finding private contributors 
of paint if district officials would organize a "Graffiti Squad" to repaint school build
ings. The squad, which Schools Superintendent Constance E. Clayton has since ap
proved, will be composed of other youths found guilty of defacing school buildings. 

"I had a decent experience sometime back when I found a young man guilty of 
graffiti at 6lst Street and Thompson," Conroy said yesterday. "I had him clean the 
wall and put him in charge of keeping that section clean. It stayed clean for the 
whole semester." 

[From the Philadelphia Daily News, Nov. 8, 1983] 

OPERATION STOP 

There are few things that can make a neighborhood deteriorate like graffiti. 
Despite the protestations of the terminally artsy-wimpy, who believe scrawling 

one's name on the side of someone else's bUilding is an expression of creativity, the 
kids with the spray cans do damage far beyond the cost of getting rid of their ef
forts. It's nothing but vandalism, and graffiti scrawlers deserve to be treated like 
the vandals they are. 

SEPTA has already taken some impressive steps. And now the School district is 
moving just as efficiently with what it calls Operation STOP. In 2% months of the 
crackdown, there have been 441 arrests on a broad range of charges-from burglars 
to graffiti-scrawlers. 

In fact, according to school security consultant George Fencl, a former police chief 
inspector, there are stakeouts on duty waiting for kids with spray cans to express 
themselves on a wall that belongs to the School District. 

The problem isn't just an esthetic one. Theft and vandalism at the schools cost 
the taxpayers an estimated $3 million last year. 

The School District is pushing the cases. Its lawyers are keeping track of the 
cases. Fencl says "we haven't had anything thrown out of court. We're getting con
victions, restitution or holdovers for trial. 

It's getting downright dangerous to rob or vandalize a school, which is exactly the 
way it should be. . 

And, to make it even -more dangerous, the School District now has a 24-hour hot
line for people to call who see suspicious activities on school properties. The number 
is 299-STOP. 

Call if you see anything. Dime a dunce. 
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September I, 1983 

OPERATION STOP CRACKS DOWN ON VANDALISM 

The School District of Philadelphia today announced a major crackdown against 

school property theft and vandalism. 

In announcing the crackdo~, called Operation STOP, Superintendent of Schools , 
Dr. Constance E. Clayton revealed that in the first month of new surveillance pro-

cedures some 52 arrests have been made. 

George Fencl, former Chief Inspector of the Philadelphia Police Department's 

Civil Affairs unit and now a special security consultant for the School- District, 

is directing the crackdown in cooperation with the Philadelphia Police Department. 

Charges against those arrested have ranged_ from disorderly conduct for beer 

parties on school grounds to burglaries, theft and destruction of school property. 

The School District, Dr. Clayton said, has assigned an attorney specially to 

work with the District Attorney's office and the courts in prosecuting the cases. 

Some 12 of those arrested in August have already either pleaded guilty or 

been convicted and fined up to $75 apiece. 

Forty others are being held for court action. 

None, so far, have been dlsmissed. 

Dr. Clayton pointed out that the recommendations of the subcommittee on 

vand~lism and arson of the Superintendent's rusk ~nrce on Safety called for in

creased ~ecurity patrols around schools, increased prosecutory efforts and the use 

of neighborhood watch groups and a School District hotline for reporting school 

vandalism. 

All these elements, she said, are included in the District's new crackdown 

on vandalism. 

Dr. Clayton added that "it is time that some elements in our community are 

put on nv~ice that we will no longer tolerate theft and destruction of school 

property; that we now have an intensive, systematic, coordinated procedure for 

detecting and' arresting school vandals, and that we fully intend to use every 

means at our disposal to ,prosecute any?ne who wou~d destroy and deface our 

schools." 
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She said. school vandalism "costs the taxpayers of this city some $3 million 

a year and the time is long overdue that this problem be dealt with directly and 

firmly. " 

She called on the Philadelphia community "to help us preserve y~ur property, 

Y,1ur schools and your tax dollars" by joining' Operat;ion STOP. 

Beginning on ,September 12, she said, anyone witnes~ing suspicio"s acitivity 

in or around a school at anytime should call 299-STOP, where personnel will be on 

duty to dispatch police and school security officers to the scene. 

Fencl praised the cooperation of the Philadelphia Police Department in 

helping school security officers detect and deal with school vandals. 

"The cooperation has been excellent," he liIaid. "This is a coordinated effort 

that has worked well. We plan to continue to work together throughout the school 

year." 

Among the incidents that led to the arrests were: 

--Substantial vandalism at one school. 

--Burglars inside four schools. 

--Defiant trespass and drinking part;ies on the grounds of four schools. 

Arrests, Fencl said, have been made in all sections of the city. 

SCHOOL DISTRICT 
OF PHILADELPHIA 

OffiCI Of PUBliC AffAIRS - J. William Jones, Director. Parkway at 21st Street -299 -7848 
December 30, 1983 

OPERATION STOP PAYING DIVmENDS FOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

299-STOP. 

It's working for the School District of'Philadelphia and for the city's taxpayers. 

Operation STOP. the School District's program to crack down on theft and vandalism. 

1s paying 0 f n ncrease arres s. f i i d t prosecutions. fines and restitution for damaged 
property. 

Since AUgUst~ when it Degan. the ~ooperative program between the School District 

and the Philadelphia Police Department has resulted' in 896 arrests. 

The five-month figure more than doubles the total number of similar arrests made 

in any previous full cQlendar year. 
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Thus far, just some two dozen of the 896 cases have been diSmissed, as a special 

attorney appointed by the School District has worked in close cooperation with the 

District Attorney's office in prosecuting the arrests. 

Charges have ranged from disorderly conduct and trespassing to burglaries, theft 

and destruction of school property. 

Convictions have resulted in fines. jail sentences, court-ordered restitution and 

orders to help clean graffiti from schools. 

The prosecutions have ;resulted in th,e court-ordered restitution of more than $6,000 

for damage to School District property. 

One recent arrest of a School District employee resulted in the 'recovery of more 

than $25,000 worth of stolen equipment and supplies. 

Many of the arrests have been as a result of involved citizens calling 299-STOP, 

a 24-hour hotline' to School District security personnel. 

Anyone witnessing vandalism or damage to public school property can call the 

hotline at any time. Police and school security personnel will respond quickly. 

"We will continue our efforts to crack down on vandalism and theft," Superintendent 

of Schools Dr. Constance E. Clayton said. '~e fully intend to use every means at our 

QI.isposal to prosecute anyone who destroys or defaces school property." 

Dr. Clayton commended citizens who have used the Operation STOP hotline to help 

reduce the amount of vandalism to schools. 

"Theft and vandalism cost Philadelphians some $3 million a year and it is a problem 

that will no longer be tolerated," Dr. Clayton added. 

Operation STOP is coordinated by George Fencl. former Chief Inspector of the 

Philaldelphia Police Department's Civil Affairs Unit, and now Chief o~ Security for the 
School District. 
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APPENDIX IF 

TADLE II 

ACTS OF VIOLENCE IN SCHOOLS 

NUMBER OF INCIDENTS 

Percentage 
!J/I/BI - 6/30/B2 9/1182 - 6/30/8~ Channc 

389 365 -6% 
I 

314 232 -262; 

36 '28 -22~~ 

70 65 ... -n 
225 251 +11:(. t 

972 988 +2:(. , 

6 6 o!l; 

85 114 +3'li, 

,19 19 OZ 

'I 2 -50:t. 

258 234 -990 
300 250 -In 

2,678 2,554 -5% 

OFFICE OF RISK MANAGEMENT 

The School District's Schools Security Unit uses the definition 
\9 assault as defIned In the Crimes Code of Pennsylvania, 1982 
(Upr,;,ted) • 

(\~\ 

ASSAULT - A person Is guilty of an assault whon an 
attempt Is made to cause or Intentionally, 
knowingly, or recklessly Causes bodily 
Injury (physicnl violence) to another; or 
ncgllqently causes bodily Injury to another 
1~Ii:h a deadl~:\~leapon; or attcmpts by physIcal 
f~t.lnnCe to put another In fcnr of Irmllnent, 
serious bodily, Injury. 

I t Is to be n()tNI that all o;chool Sucud Ly OfflcllfS <lLL(!IIdcd Tit!) 
I ph 1,'1 Po Ii ce Academy ;md recul vHd Ins t ruc t Ion I n the Use nnd 
nlatlon of the CrllI1l!S Code Tn uffect In Lhe State of Pennsylvania. 

\" \ , 
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'1 
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47 
~2701 

§2503. Voluntary Manslmnghter. 
(a) General l'ule.-A person who kUls an individual without 

lawful justification commltsvoluntary manslaughter lfat the 
time of the kUling he Is acting under a suddon and intense 
passion resulting f.'om serlo\.1s provocation by: 

(1) the individual killed; 'or 
(2) another whom the actor endeavors to' kill, but he 

negligently or aCcidentally c8useathedeathofthe individual 
killed. 
(b) Unreasonable beUef kUling Justifiable. - A person who 

intentionally or knowingly kUls an lndlvid~al commits volun
tary manslaughter if at the t~me of the kUUng he believes. the 
circumstances to be such that, If they eXisted, would' justlfy 
the Itllllng under Chapter 5 of this title, but his beUef Is 
unreasonable. 

(c) Grading. - Voluntary manslaughter Is a felony of the 
second degree • 

§2504. Involuntary Mansl~lughter. 
. (a) General rule. -A perl30n Is gullty of lnvoluntal'y man

slaughter wher! 1f.S a dIrect 'result of the dotn.~ of an unlawful 
aot in a reckless or gross/ly negUgant manr:1jr, etr the doing 
of a lawful act in a reckles~ or grossly negU~nt manner, he 
causes the death of another person. ' 

(b) Grading. -Involuntai'Y manslaughter Is a misdemennor 
of the first degree. " 
§2505. Causing or Aidinlg Suicide. 

(n) Causing suicide as clrimlnal homlclde.-A person mny 
be convicted of criminal homicide for causing another to 
commit suicide only if he IntenUonally causes SUch suicide 
bY' [Qrce, duress or deception. 

(b) Aiding or sC!l1cit1n~ suicide as an'independent offense. 
- A person Who lntent1ona~'L1y aids or sol1cfts another to com.
mit suicide is guuty of 1,\ felony of the second degree If hIs 
c,onduct cnuses such Buf,cide or an attempted suicide, nnd 
otherwise of·n mtsdemealilor of the second degree. 

·CHAPTER 21 
I~SSAULT 

§2701. Simple Assault. 
(a)Offense defined.-A1 person 18 guilty of assault if he: 

(1) nttempts 'to cause or Intentionally. knowingly or 
reCklessly causes bod,Uy Injury to another: I 

(2) negligently causes bodily Injury to another with a 
deadly weapon; or (rev.76) 
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§270 I Title J H , ,1k 
j:lI IIttl'mpts by physiclIl nwnu(.'(' tn put IIrllJllll'r in ( .. ar of 

imminent senous bodily injury. 
(h) Grnding.-Simplo nssnult is n misdQm<'Rnot of thE' !'lccond 

ci£'g"ree unipss l'ommitt('d in n fig-ht or ~curne ('ntered into hr 
mULunl <':O]lsl'nt. in which C(HW i~ is n misUnmeunor of the> third 
d('grcc. 

·§2702. Aggrnvnted Assault. 
(n) O(f('IlSe defined. -A pl'rson is guilty of aggravntcd assHult 

if he: 
( 1) attempts to CHuse serious bodily injwy to another, or 

clluses such injury intentionally, knowingly or recklessly 
under circumstances manifesting extreme indifference to the 
vnluc of humun lifo;. . 

(2) attempts to cause or intentionally, knowingly or 
recklessly causes serious bodily injury .to a police officer 
making or attempting to make a lawful alTest or to an operl:.tor 
of a vehicle used in public transportation while operating such 
a vehiclei 

(3) ottempts to cause or intentionully or knowingly causes 
bodily injury to a paiico officer making or attempting to make a 
lawful arrest; I 

(4) uttempts to cause or intentionally or knowingly causes 
bodily injury to another with a deadly weapon; or 

(5) attempts to cause or intentionully or knowingly causes 
bodily injury to n teaching ~taff member. school board 
memb(1T. othl3r employee or· ~~udent of any j elementary or 
sccondnry puolicly·funded educntional institution. any clement· 
ary or secondary private school licensed by the-Depart.mont of 
Education or any elementary or secondary-parochial school 
while acting in the scope of his or her employment bqcuftlse of 
his or her employment relntionship to the school. 
(h) Gratling.-Aggravated assault under subsection (0)( 1) 

and (2) is a felony of the second degree. Aggravated assault. under 
subsection (a)(3), (4) and (5) is a misdemeanor of the first del:rree. 
\Vhcnever any person has been previously convicted or adjud icated 
u delinquent in this Commonwealth for the offense set. fort,lll in 
subsection ial(5), a subsequent petition, indictment or information 
of aggravated assault under su bsection (ll)( 5) shall be clussifi<!d as 
a felony of the third degree. 

§270:J. Assault by Prisoner. . 
A person who has been found guilty and is awuiting sentence t.o 

imprisonnumt. or a {lerson who has been sentenced to imprisonment. 
for a tfJrm of years In any local or county detention facility, jail or 
prison or nny State penal or correctional institution cir other State--
pennI or correctional facility, located in this Commonwealth, is 
guilty of a felony oJ the second degree if he. while so confined or 
committed or while undergoing transportation to or front such an 
institution or facility lin or to which he was confined or committed 
intentionally or knowingly commits an assault upon another witr 
a deadly weapon or instrument, or by any means or force likeJy to 
produce serious bodily injury. 
(Cllgd. by Act 1980·1t'19(1) and 1980·167(2); ef~ 12/15/80.) 

(rev.Bll 
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Senator SPECTER. Thank you very much, Superintendent Clayton. 
I very much appreciate your very cogent testimony. 

Senator DE:N"TO:N". Mr. Chairman, may I excuse myself for another· 
commitment, and I will ask you, if you would, in writing, without 
taking up the time of the meeting, to submit this question for me. 

Senator SPECTER. It shall be admitted without objection, Senator 
Denton. We thank you for taking time from your very busy sched
ule to be here. And I thank you. 

Senator DENTON. Thank you, sir. 
Senator SPECTER. Now, befoire proceeding with questions for Su

perintendent Clayton, I would like to call on superintendent of 
schools for the District of Columbia, Ms. Floretta Dukes McKenzie, 
who brings to her position a very distinguished background. 

She has served as superintendent of the public schools in the Dis
trict since July 1, 1981. In that role she has responsibility for 180 
schools and over 5,600 teachers. She has worked in various roles in 
the D.C. school system and departed briefly in 1978 to accept the 
position of deputy superintendent of schools for the Montgomery 
County public school system, which doubtless made her even more 
valuable to the District of Columbia; ergo, her appointment as su
perintendent. 

She has served as U.S. representative to the 21st General Confer
ence of the United Nations Educational, Scientific, and Cultural 
Organization. And her activities and responsibilities while at 
UNESCO included formulating and delivering policy statements in 
the courts on such educational issues as literacy, youth employ
ment, and the use of new learning technologies around the world. 

She was educated at the District of Columbia Teachers College, 
now part of the University of thE) District of Columbia, and with 
her many duties is .pursuing her Ph.D. at George Washington Uni
versity and has a number of honorary doctorates. 

Welcome, Superintendent McKenzie. We have your full state
ment for the r6cord, and we look forward to your testimony. 

STATEMENT OF FLORETTA McKENZIE 

Ms. McKENZIE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And I will be brief so 
that we have adequate time for questions. 

I really am very pleased to be here and to discuss an issue of 
paramount importance and want to indicate very clearly that we 
in the District of Columbia understand that in order for effective 
teaching and learning to take place, that teachers, students, and 
all school employees must feel safe and secure. 

Although the recent clamour about discipline and the discussion 
of education issues, I believe, is overdue, I do believe we need to 
bring some balance to the discussion. However, I do not want to 
denigrate the importance of discipline as a major issue of concern 
in education, and I think for those of us who are involved in the 
delivery of educational services, discipHne will always be a major 
problem which requires our full attention. 

The Cabinet Council on School Violence and Discipline perhaps 
leaves an impression that violence and unruliness is running ramp
ant in our classrooms. And maybe that is an overstatement. 
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CLIMATE IMPROVED 

However, we in the District of Columbia have worked very hard 
to improve the educational climate. As you indicated, I am no! new 
to the District schools. I served in the schools for 13 years prior to 
leaving for service in other school districts and at the Federal level. 

In the mid-1970's in the District of Columbia we took very defi
nite action to try to curb discipline problems. We installed a school 
security aid program; heretofore, admin~strators and teachers ~ere 
giving undue amounts of tl;teir ti!D:e WhICh should ~ave been g~ven 
to the educational process In polIcIng halls and dOIng other thIngs 
that had to do with school discipline. 

We designed the school security aid prograII,1 wi~h security aides 
patrolling halls in our secondary schools and In eIght selected ele
mentary schools. 

We have-what developed is what I believe is a un~que approach 
to crime prevention in our schools. vy e work cooperatIvely wIth the 
police department and the communIty as a whole. One of the rea
sons we have pushed an incre~sed! a stronger v?l~nte:er program to 
bring adults into our schools m dIfferent capacItIes, IS to cut down 
on school discipline because w~ believe th~t ~he n';1mber of adults 
actively engaged in the educatIOn process In Itself IS a way of pre
vention. 

VIOLENCE/DISCIPLINE DISTINCTION NEEDED 

I would however like to point out that there is a distinction that 
should b~ made b~tween classroom violence and discipline prob
lems. And I think that these terms have been used interchange
ably. 

As I understand, earlier speakers spoke of the Gallup poll a~d 
the fact that the sample population identified discipline as the bIg
gest problem facing schools. I note, howeve~, that in the last poll 
that "discipline" was cited as the most Important problem of 
schools by only 25 percent of the public sampled. . 

Now, when asked about discipline proble~s, generally tJ;1e publIc 
will respond that the problems they are. talkIng ab?ut a~e IncIdents 
such as talking during class, class cuttIng, and beIng disresI!ectful 
to teachers; while these are problems, we cannot put these In ~he 
same category as assaults on students and teachers and carryIng 
weapons. 

Furthermore, in the Gallup poll when asked what reasons ~est 
explain school discipline problems, the most frequently gIven 
answer, by 72 percent of the respondents, was "~ack of discipline. in 
the home." This is an area where we would lIke to try to bring 
more pressure to bear. We have, for example, encouraged and sup
ported the expansion and strengthening of our parent-teacher orga
nizations. 

And we believe that parents working with other parents can help 
us with this problem. 

The second answer to explain discipline problems in school was 
cited in the poll as lack of respec~ for law and .authority . through
out our society. Our schools are Indeed reflectIve of sO~Iety as a 
whole and we need community wide programs to deal wIth lack of 
respe~t for law and authority. 
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The discipline problems that we are experiencing today are a far 
cry from the types of behavior that were causing chaos in class
rooms in the late sixties and seventies. There is definitely a de
c~ine. And as I indicated, the investment of moneys for our security 
aIde program has helped us tremendously in this effort. And I 
would like to indicate that these first security aides, some of them 
were paid for with LEAA moneys. I cannot remember; I think it 
was the Law Enforcement Act. I do not remember the other--

Senator SPECTER. Law Enforcement Assistance Administration. 
]\iIR. McKENZIE. And that was an example of the Federal Govern

ment assisting in the development of a real program to assist in 
school discipline. 

EFFECTIVE PREVENTION EFFORTS 

Let me talk just very briefly about some special programmatic 
thrusts that we have started which we feel are preventative in the 
discipline area. We have a "youth awareness program" where the 
sch?ols have united with ~he Iv.1etropolitan Police Department, 
trymg to combat the negative street education that too many of 
our students bring into the schools. In four pilot schools students 
meet twice a week in a classroom setting with a police officer from 
t~e ~om~unity, school pe~sonnel and parents to discuss the juve
nIle JustICe system, sexualIty, drugs, smoking, and the consequenc
es of life choices. 

Parents, as I indicated, are invited to participate in those discus
sions. We think that this program has tremendous potential. We 
expect to expand to 20 schools involving over 10,000 students in 
communities with high incidences of crime. 

We also have in each school a safety and security advisory com
mittee. And this committee is made up of school system employees, 
teachers, stUdents, ~nd rep~esentatives from the police department, 
fire department, sOCial serVIce agencies, and court system. 

They meet two times a month to discuss coordination of efforts 
in school ~afety and security. Also, we have a systemwide safety 
and security awareness week where youngsters write essays; we 
h,ave poster co~tests;. we have a citywide forum on safety and secu
~Ity. And we gIve prIzes and awards to students who come up with 
Important ways of handling safety and security in our school system. 
. We believe that the Federal role can most certainly be effective 
In the development of programs that demonstrate alternatives or 
ways of handling discipline. We feel that with the dwindling State 
or local dollar that perhaps the most effective Federal role can be 
in providing seed money to develop programs and to demonstrate 
effective ways of handling discipline. 

In addition, we do have stated procedures for reporting serious 
incidents. We have student hearing procedures where we even use 
independent hearing officers. And we are pleased to indicate that 
discipline problems are on the decline in our school system while 
achievement is on the increase. ' 

Thank you. I would be pleased to respond to questions. 
[The prepared statement of Ms. McKenzie follows:] 
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF FLORETTA DUKES McKE~ZIE 

MR· CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE. I AM PLEASED TO 

JOIN YOU HERE THIS MORNING TO DISCUSS AN ISSUE WHICH IS 

RECEIVING INCREASED ATTENTION AND IS IN NEED OF SOME UPDATED. 

PERHAPS· MORE BALANCED. EXAMINA7ION· IT ~ AXIOMATIC THAT IN 

ORDER FOR STUDENTS AND TEACHERS TO EFFECTIVELY PARTICIPATE IN 

THE TEACHING AND LEARNING PROCESS. THEY MUST FEEL SAFE AND 

SECURE IN THEIR SCHOOL BUILDINGS· THE LATE DR· RON,EDMONDS. 

WHO SPENT MUCH OF HIS CAREER IDENTIFYING EFFECTIVE SCHOOLS AND 

ISOLATING THE VARIABLES THAT MAKE THEM EFFECTIVE. NOTED THAT A 

SECURE SCHOOL ENVIRONMENT FREE OF MAJOR DISCIPLINE PROBLEMS IS 

AN ESSENTIAL FACTOR IN EFFECTIVE SCHOOLS· 

THE NATIONAL CLAMOR ABOUT EDUCATION -- PARTICULARLY PUBLIC 

EDUCATION-- WHICH HAS BEEN FOSTERED BY THE RELEASE OF SEVERAL 

REPORTS OF NATIONAL COMMISSIONS. TASK GROUPS AND RESEARCH 

EFFORTS. HAS PUT EDUCATION IN THE PUBLIC EYE· THESE, NATIONALLY 

PUBLICIZED FINDINGS ABOUT EDUCATION HAVE CAST A HARSH SPOTLIGHT 

ON SCHOOLS· ALTHOUGH IT IS THE KIND OF ATTENTION THAT IS 

OVERDUE. 1 BELIEVE MANY OF THE FINDINGS WERE IDENTIFIED BY 

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS SEVERAL YEARS AGO. AND EFFORTS MADE TO 

CORRECT THEM ARE BEGINNING TO SHOW RESULTS. 

As AN EXAMPLE, THE RECENTLY RELEASED REPORT OF THE CABINET 

COUNCIL ON SCHOOL VIOLENCE AND DISCIPLINE LEAVES ONE WITH THE 

IMPRESSION THAT VIOLENCE AND UNRULINESS IS RUNNING RAMPANT IN 

OUR CLASSROOMS· TH I SIS NOT TH.E CASE I N THE D I STR I CT OF 

COLUMBIA PUBLIC SCHOOLS. NOR DO 1 BELIEVE IT IS THE CASE 

NATIONALLY· A SCHOOL SYSTEM IS A REFLECTION OF THE COMMUNITY 

WHERE IT IS LOCATED· ACCORDINGLY. IF THERE IS CRIME IN THE 

LARGER COMMUNITY. UNLESS PROTECTIVE MEASURES ARE TAKEN, IT IS 

LIKELY THAT IT WILL SPILL OVER INTO OUR SCHOOLS· JUST AS THERE 

IS ABERRATION IN BEHAVIOR IN THE OVERALL SOCIETY. ONE MUST 

EXPECT THIS TO BE REFLECTED IN THE SCHOOLS· ABERRATIONS IN 

BEHAVIOR IN SCHOOLS, HOWEVER, TEND TO EVOKE A FAR GREATER 

PUBLIC OUTCRY· 

IN THE DISTRICT. WE RECOGNIZE THIS. AND SINCE THE MID 

1970's, HAVE PUT IN PLACE A SCHOOL SECURITY AIDE PROGRAM. 

ADDITION, WE WORK VERY COOPERATIVELY WITH OUR LOCAL POLICE 
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PREVENTIVE MANNER. IN FACT WE HAVE DEVELOPED WHAT I CONSIDER A 

VERY UNIQUE APPROACH TO CRIME PREVENTION IN OUR SCHOOLS, THAT 

INVOLVES THE SCHOOLS, POLICE, AND COMMUNITY WORKING HAND-IN

HAND· 
A VERY CLEAR DISTINCTION MUST BE MADE BETWEN SO-CALLED 

"CLASSROOM VIOLENCE" AN!;) "DISCIPLINE PROBLEMS". TERMS THAT OF 

LATE SEEM, UNFORTUNATELY. TO BE USED INTERCHANGEABLY· 

FOR SEVERAL YEARS, THE "ANNUAL GALLUP POLL ON THE PUBLIC'S 

ATTITUDES TOWARD THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS", HAS ASKED A NATIONAL 

SAMPLE OF THE POPULATION TO IDENTIFY THE BIGGEST PROBLEMS 

FACING SCHOOLS. THE CATCH-ALL "DISCIPlINE" RESPONSE HAS TOPPED 

THE LIST FOR A NUMBER OF XEARS· (I MIGHT ADD, HOWEVER, THAT 

WHILE "DISCIPLINE" IS THE MOST FREQUENTLY CITED PROBLEM, STILL 

ONLY 25~ OF THE PUBLIC IN THE MOST RECENT POLL POINT TO THIS AS 

A MAJOR PROBLEM.) 

FURTHERMORE, WHILE REPORTS OF DISCIPLINE PROBLEMS MAY 

CONJURE UP IMAGES OF UNRULY, OUT"'OF-CONTROL STUDENTS, WHEN THE 

"DISCIPLINE" ISSUE I~ EXAMINED MORE CLOSELY~ ANOTHER, QUITE 

DIFFERENT PICTURE EMERGES· IN 1982, THE MISSOURI STATE 

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION HELD A SERIES OF MEETINGS WITH PARENTS. 

STUDENTS AND EDUCATORS AND ASKED THEM TO DEFINE WHAT THEY MEANT 

BY "DISCIPLINE PROBLEMS"· OVERWHELMINGLY. THE PUBLIC REPORTED 

DISCIPLINE PROBLEMS TO BE "TALKING DURING CLASS", 

"CLASS-CUTTING", AND "BEING DISRESPECTFUL TO TEACHERS"· 

PROBLEMS, YES, BUT CERTAINLY NOT IN THE SAME CATEGORY AS 

ASSAULTS ON TEACHERS OR WEAPON-LADEN STUDENTS· 

THESE REPORTS OF DISRUPTIVE BEHAVIOR, "ACTING OUT", AND 

DISRESPECT MAY VERY WELL BE N PROJECTION OF THE FEELING~ THAT 

PARENTS OF ADOLESCENTS ARE GRAPPLING WITH AT HOME· 

'{;ONSEOOENTLY, IF A PARENT OF TWO TEENAGERS FEELS HIS OR HER 

.. CHILDREN ARE DISRESPECTFUL OF THEIR AUTHORITY, HE OR SHE MIGHT 

lOGICALLY CONCLUDE THAT THE SCHOOL -- WITH HUNDREDS OF 

TEENAGERS -- MUST SUFFER MIGHTILY FROM AN AGGREGATION OF 

SUPPOSEDLY DISRESPECTFUL YOUTH-
THE MOST RECENT GALLUP POLL BEARS THIS OUT· WHEN ASKED 

WHAT REASONS BEST EXPLAIN SCHOOL DISCIPLINE PROBLEMS, THE MOST 

FREQUENTLY GIVEN ANSWER (BY 72~ OF THE RESPONDENTS) WAS "LACK 

OF DISCIPLINE IN THE HOME"· THE SECOND TOP ANSWER (54%) WAS 

"LACK OF RESPECT FOR LAW AND AUTHORITY THROUGHOUT SOCIETY"· 

-_ .. " ", . .. ~ , . . . ,~ " '.. ~ ,.., . ~', " . f fo _ ,'1 , ", " _'" 
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THE NOTION THAT OUR CLASSROOMS ARE OUT OF CONTROL IS 

SIMPLY NOT TRUE IN 1984. THE TYPES OF DISCIPLINE PROBLEMS WE 

FACE IN THE D. C. PUBLIC SCHOOLS ARE GENERALLY RELATED TO 

STUDENTS' LACK OF RESPECT FOR AUTHORITY. WE ARE CONTINUALLY 

LOOKING AT WAYS TO ADDRESS THESE TYPES OF DISRUPTIVE AND 

COUNTERPRODUCTIVE BEHAVIORS AND WE DO RECOGNIZE THAT THESE 

DISCIPLINE PROBLEMS -- WHETHER REAL OR MAGNIFIED IN THE 

PUBLIC'S PERCEPTION -- REQUIRE SCHOOLS TO ADDRESS THESE 
ISSUES. 

HOWEVER. THESE DISCIPLINE PROBLEMS ARE A FAR CRY FROM THE 

TYPES OF BEHAVIOR THAT ALLEGeDLY ARE CAUSING CHAOS IN 

CLASSROOMS AND PERPETRATING A ,SENSE OF FEAR AMONG STUDENTS. 

TEACHERS AND ADMINISTRATORS. ACTUAL_YIOLENCE IN THE D. C. 

PUBLIC SCHOOLS IS AT A MINIMUM AND HAS BEEN DECREASING YEARLY. 

RECENT REPORTS ABOUT SCHOOL VIOLENCE HAVE BEEN BASED ON 

REPORTS RELEASED IN 1978 AND DRAWN FROM DATA COLLECTED IN 

1973 - 1975. THE PICTURE HAS CHANGED SUBSTANTIALLY SINCE THEN 

AND fYEN THE~ LESS THAN 2% OF TEACHERS IN LARGE CITIES (500.000 
-POPULATION OR MORE) WERE VICTIMS OF SCHOOL ASSAULTS. AND LESS 
THAN 9% OF SECONDARY STUDENTS WERE ASSAULTED. 

By CONTRAST. IN FISCAL YEAR 1982. OUT OF A POPULATION OF 

90.000 STUDENTS. THE D. C. PUBLIC SCHOOLS HAD ONLY 81 REPORTED 

CASES OF STUDENT ASSAULTS ON OTHER STUDENTS. IN ADDITION. 

THERE WERE 18 ASSAULTS ON TEACHERS) HOWEVER~ 14 INVOLVED VERBAL 

ASSAULT ONLY. IN 1983. THE FIGURES DROPPED LOWER. WE HAD 63 
REPORTED ASSAULTS. OF WHICH 12 WERE AGAINST TEACHERS. OF THE 
12. 7 WERE VERBAL ASSAULTS. 

IN THE LAST TWO YEARS. THERE HAS NOT BEEN ONE IN-SCHOOL 

INCIDENT INVOLVING A WEApON. PART OF THE CREDIT FOR OUR. 

SUCCESS IN THIS AREA IS A RESULT OF OUR SCHOOL SECURITY AIDE 

PROGRAM· Two SECURITY AIDES ARE PLACED IN EACH JUNIOR AND 

SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL. AS WELL AS IN EIGHT STRATEGICALLY SELECTED 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS· THESE PEOPLE ARE TRAINED TO HANDLE 
BUILDING AND PLAYGROUND SECURITY. 

ALTHOUGH ONE ASSAULT OF ANY KIND IS ONE TOO MANY, A 

PICTURE OF-RAMPANT VIOLENCE CAN SCARCELY BE CONSTRUED FROM, 
THESE STATISTICS. 

A FAR GREATER PROBLEM FOR US IS CRIME AGAINST PROPERTY. 
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IN FISCAL YEAR 1982. WE HAD 272 REPORTED BURGLARIES, AND IN 

FISCAL YEAR 1983. 179. THIS IS A CATEGORY THAT WE ARE WORKING 

ON FINDING WAYS TO REDUCE. IT IS OUR EXPERIENCE THAT MOST OF 

THE CRIMES IN THIS AREA ARE CAUSED BY OUTSIDE INTRUDERS, WHO 

OFTEN BREAK INTO BUILDINGS AT NIGHT AND ON THE WEEKENDS. 

I WOULD LIKE TO BRIEFLY MENTION A FEW OF THE ACTIONS WHICH 
WE IN D. C. PUBLIC SCHOOLS BELIEVE ARE CONTRIBUTING TO OUR 
SUCCESS IN THE AREA OF SAFETY A'ND SECURITY. 

SPECIAL PROGRAMMATIC TURUSIS. 

YOUTH AWARENESS PROGRAM 

D. C. PUBLIC SCHOOLS HAVE UNITED WITH THE METROPOLITAN 

POLICE DEPARTMENT IN AN EFFORT TO COMMT THE NEGATIVE "STREET" 
EDUCATION'THAT TOO MANY OF OUR STUDENTS BRING TO SCHOOL. 

JUNIOR AND SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL STUDENTS IN FOUR PILOT SCHOOLS 

MEET TWICE A WEEK AT SCHOOL IN A CLASSROOM SETTING WITH THE 

"SHORT BEAT" OFFICER FROM THEIR COMMUNITY AND SCHOOL PERSONNEL 

TQ DISCUSS THE JUVENILE JUSTICE SYSTEM. SEXUALITY, DRUGS. 

SMOKING AND THE CONSEQUENCES OF OTHER LIFE CHOICES. PARENTS 

ARE INVITED TO PARTICIPATE IN SPECIAL SESSIONS AND ARE INVITED 

ON FIELD TRIPS, 'SUCH AS TO LORTON ReFORMATORY. THIS PROGRAM 

WILL BE EXPANDED TO TWENTY SCHOOLS INVOLVING OVER 10,000 
STUDENTS BY 1988. 

SAFETY AND SECURITY ADVISORY COMAITTEE 

THIS COMMITTEE, MADE UP OF REPRESENTATIVES FROM THE SCHOOL 
SYSTEM. POLICE DEPARTMENT. FIRE DEPARTMENT. SOCIAL SERVICE 

AGENCIES, AND THE COURT MEET-TWO TIMES A MONTH TO DISCUS's 

COORDINATION OF EFFORTS IN SCHOOL SAFETY AND SECURITY. 

SAFETY AND SECURITY AWARENESS MEEK 

FINALLY, EACH YEAR WE HOLD A FULL WEEK ,OF ACTIVITIES 

DESIGNED TO INCREASE EVERYONE'S AWARENESS OF SCHOOL SAFETY AND 
SECURITY. 
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As I HAVE SAID, CLEARLY ONE INCIDENT OF SCHOOL VIOLENCE IS 

ONE TOO MANY AND OUR SCHOOLS ARE CONTINUALLY ALERT AND 

ATTEMPTING TO PROVIDE THE MOST SAFE AND SECURE LEARN,ING 

ATMOSPHERE FOR OUR STUDENTS· BUT GREAT CARE MUST ALSO BE TAKEN 

NOT TO MAGNIFY A PROBLEM THAT HAS BEEN ON THE WANE FOR SEVERAL 

YEARS· FURTHERMORE, WE NEED TO DEFINE OUR TERMS IN THIS ISSUE 

MORE ACCURATELY AND DIRECT OUR ACTIONS TO REMEDYING THOSE __ 

.PERHAPS LESS DRAMATIC BUT, NONETHELESS, CONCERNING -- PROBLEMS 
- OF DISCIPLINE WHICH DO EXIST. 

Senator SPECTER. Thank you very much, Superintendent McKen-
zie. . . 

Let me start with a baseline question for both of you superIn
tendents. And that is, do you consider at the present time that vio
lence in the public school system to be a very serious problem? 

Ms. CLAYTON. As long as there is an incidence of violence against 
any person, we consider it serious. 

Senator SPECTER. You both agree. I can see you nodding, Superin
tendent McKenzie. 

Ms. McKENZIE. Yes. 
Senator SPECTER. I am delighte,d to hear you say, S~p~rinte~d~mt 

McKenzie, that you find it decliriing. To what exte~t IS It declInIng 
and what are the facts which you base that upon, If you have any 
statistical base? 

Ms. McKENZIE. We have a security office and we have computer
ized our incident reports. And of a student body of about 90,000 
students we have 81 reported student assaults on other stUdents, ' . serious ones. 

In addition there were 18 assaults on teachers, but 14 of these 
assaults on t~achers were described as verbal assaults. We consider 
it very serious if a student verbally assaults a teacher. 

Senator SPECTER. What period is this for? 
Ms. McKENZIE. This is 1982. 
Senator SPECTER. Now, does that represent a decline from some 

prior period? 
Ms. McKENZIE. Let me move to 1983. In 1983 the figures dropped 

lower; we had 63 reported assaults and 12 were against teachers. 
And of the 12 seven were verbal assaults. In 1981, the number of 
incidents was' 18. We require reports of serious incidents because 
we report to the board of education immediately any assault, ~y 
serious incident that Occurs in the schools. We have a very active 
media, and we do not ever want our board members to hear from 
the media of serious--

Senator SPECTER. But as to assaults on teachers, I do not know 
that this is statistically significant; if there were 18 in 1982, 14 
being verbal which would leave 4 physical; and in 1983 there were 
12 on teache~s, 7 verbal, 5 being physical. So they actually went up 
from four to five. 
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Superintendent Clayton, do you have a trend statistical base in 
your school system? 

Ms. CLAYTON. I am going to have to amend my report to you, Mr. 
Chairman. I do understand that we have had a decline in student 
assaults, in teacher assaults, drug use and possession, morals of
fenses, gang fights, trespassing, and weapon possessions. 

However, in three other categories, marihuana use and posses
sion, larcency, and robbery with the student being a victim, my 
staff tells me we have had an increase. Two categories, rape and 
robbery-teacher victim-showed no change. But that they feel is 
attributable to the fact that we have taken an aggressive-posture 
in terms of the reporting process. 

I shall ask for the breakout of the differential between this year and last. 
Senator SPECTER. Do you know how many assaults and batteries 

there were? Assault is-may be used in the sense of assault and 
battery. This is assault. It is assault and battery when there is a 
contact. I think the more important statistic is the contact. 

Ms. CLAYTON. I think we need to define that, then, because 
whether it is the threat of assault or whether it is an actual assault as well. 

Senator SPECTER. You would not have occasion to get into that 
distinction unless you prosecuted somebody for assault and battery 
and then just had an assault. 

lVIs. CLAYTON. That is right. 
Senator SPECTER. That happened to me once as an assistant DA. 

But there has to be the contact to have a battery. 
Ms. CLAYTON. Right. 
Senator SPECTER. I would be interested to see those statistics in 

terms of what the trends are. 
Ms. CLAYTON. We will share that trend with you, sir. 
Senator SPECTER. All right. We have had a fair amount of testi

mony earlier today and about the Supreme Court decisions, and I 
would be interested in the comments of each of you superintend
ents as to your sense of that. One decision involves the standard 
liability for teachers on a straight negligence standard when they 
knew or had reason to know. 

And the other issue was the due process requirements for hear
ings if there is a suspension of even less than 10 days. 

And my question to you superintendents is do you think that 
those standards are workable? 

Ms. McKENZIE. Yes; We have had a number of years of experi
ence with those requirements now, and while there is a cost in
volved because of time of personnel and in as much as our board 
voted for independent hearing officers; usually lawyers, that is a 
cost factor for us. 

But presently it is working effectively. 
Senator SPECTER. Have there been any suits brought by students 

against teachers in the civil courts? 
Ms. McKENZIE. No. 
Senator SPECTER. You know of none in the District of Columbia? 
Ms. McKENZIE. No. 
Senator SPECTER. ~ Do you know what the cost is, Superintendent 

McKenzie, as to hiring the hearing officers? 
t 
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Ms. McKENZIE. I will have to get you that information. But we 
have a student hearing office, and so that is staffed with hearing 
officers. And so I cannot give you a dollar figure, but there is a cost 
factor involved. 

Senator SPECTER. About how many of those hearings do you have 
a year, if you know? 

Ms. McKENZIE. Yes. We have 599 hearings. 
Senator SPECTER. Last year. 
Ms. McKENZIE. Last year. 
Senator SPECTER. Do you know the results of the disciplinary 

action taken in those cases? 
Ms. McKENZIE. The great majority of them are sustained, but .we 

do indicate to the students their right to go through the hearIng 
process with the parent. 

Senator SPECTER. I would be interested to know-I do not expect 
you to have all this statistical data at your fingertips-what the re
sults were in those 599 cases. 

Superintendent Clayto~, what i~ your sense of the c:urrent law on 
the subject? Are the hearIng requIrements onerous, dIfficult, or are 
you able to accommodate them? 

Ms. CLAYTON. We have been able to accommodate them. Howev
er we do hear from administrative staff, particularly, that it is an 
ex'orbitant amount of time which they must use and be out of their 
school site. 

In terms of suspension, the 10 days suspension, actually we have 
a ruling from a judge in our city that we cannot suspend for longer 
than 5 days at a given time. 

Senator SPECTER. You cannot suspend for longer than 5 days? 
Ms. CLAYTON. That is right. 
Senator SPECTER. Who ruled that way? 
Ms. CLAYTON. I would be happy to tell Mr. Chairman privatel~. 
Senator SPEc'rER. All right. Well, it must have been a public deCI-

sion. But I will take it privately. 
Ms. CLAYTON. Thank you. 
Senator SPECTER. Was there an appeal in that case? 
Ms. CLAYTON. There has not been, no. 
Senator SPECTER. Has there been a decision not to appeal? Has 

the appellate time run? 
Ms. CLAYTON. Yes, I believe that is correct. 
Senator SPECTER. Well, I would be interested to know more about 

that case. Why did you decide not to take an appeal? 
Ms. CLAYTON. I beg your pardon? 
Senator SPECTER. Decide not to take an appeal, not asking about 

the specific judge. 
Ms. CLAYTON. That was prior to my administration, so I would 

have to do a little bit of research 011 that. 
Senator SPECTER. I see. Because it seems to me that that is 

unduly restrictive by a ~o~mo~ pleas judge to impose hims7lf in 
the middle of your admInIstratIOn. Judges can do that and If the 
supreme court of the State says it is so, that is the law. 

But I had occasion to deal with common pleas judges on a great 
many occasions and took a great many appeals. I was successful 
more often than not. But I would like to know more about that. 

Ms. CLAYTON. Fine. Thank you very much. 
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Senator SPECTER. And I would be interested to know what the 
costs are of the procedures that you have on these hearings. 

Ms. CLAYTON. We do not have cost figures available on these pro
cedures. 

Senator SPECTER. And this is going to be a matter which I antici
pate will b~~ before the committee again. So to the extent that any 
of your colleagues can give us some guidance on the impact of 
these heari:ngs, I would appreciate it. Mr. Shanker testified earlier, 
as you heard, Superintendent Clayton, that there were problems in 
that. And Congressman Williams felt comfortable with the stand
a~d for civil l~ability, but uncomfortable, at least to some extent, 
With the h~laring process. And I believe we are going to scrutinize 
that very c.losely, and we would be very interested in the experi
ence to two big and important school systems such as you women 
represent. 

Ms. CLAY'l'ON. We will be prepared to share that with you. 
Senator SPECTER. Do you know of any lawsuits againzt teachers 

by students, Superintendent Clayton? 
Ms. CLAYTON. I know of none. . 
Senator SPECTER. I would be interested to have you check'to see 

if there are any. 
~et me ask each of you a generalized question in conclusion, 

whICh may .go beyond the ambit of our specific hearing. But I 
would be interested, having you here, what your views are about 
the role of the Federal Government in the education system gener
ally and what recommendations you would have for the Congress 
on that subjE~ct, beyond the issue of school violence. 

Superintendent McKenzie? 
Ms. McKEN'ZIE. Yes; I had of course the opportunity to work in 

the Department of Education and particularly at its formation. 
An? I was of the opinion that the chapter 2 kinds of programs-
whIle not as large in money as of course chapter 1, which is a very 
valuable program-provide the flexibility and support to provide 
school distriots the opportunity to enter into areas where there is 
indeed a need for the development of new program thrusts. Some 
programs m~~y be to address the perceived needs of the country, 
economic needs, or the actual needs of that specific school commu
nity. 

For examp,le, the support of teacher training and support for de
velopment of demonstration programs in alternative education, 
seem to me to indeed stimulate school districts to look at new and 
improved ways of delivering education and are not filled with regu
lations and Sltrictures. 
. Senator SJPECTER. Do you have any suggestion as to any legllsla

bon by the Congress on the issue of violence in the schools? 
Ms. McKENZIE. On the issue of violence, I suppose I would couch 

legislation within the chapter 2 area of development of programs 
that would prevent as well as handle students effectively who have 
been involv€ld in violent acts. 

Too often we let. studen~s.-students get. into th~ court system 
and do not ;return In a pOSItive way to theIr educatIOn, and there
fore are lost and often continue to participate in crime. And we 
have not found as effective ways of dealing with students who get 

34-802 Q - 84 - 12 

;f D IF • f 
, 7 7 



. ' 

174 

into the justice system and as they seek to move back into the 
larger society. . 

Senator SPECTER. Thank you very much. Superintendent Clay
ton? 

Ms. CLAYTON. I would have to support Superintendent McKenzie . 
Those are all excellent observations that she has made. I indicated 
about our school system's alternative placement center. The stu
dent-staff ratio there is much smaller than it would be in a regu
lar, traditional school setting. But as I indicated, when you take 
your money and divide it to accommodate-and we only have one 
and we need one strategically placed geographically around the 
city so that children will not have to travel great distances if 
indeed they need to be placed in ·that kind of center. 

We need the kind of funding from the Federal Government that 
will enhance educational programs which are working. I would 
submit to you, Mr. Chairman, that educators do understand, do 
know, and are utilizing strategies which are successful for raising 
achievement. And my colleague here is a prime example of that. 

There are those of us who want to do some of the same things 
and we need additional funding to implement those particular 
strategies. For example, as I mentioned, replicating success in 
Philadelphia, I want to look at a reduced class size. I cannot do 
that all over my system, but I need to do it for a segment of my 
school popUlation. And the existing funding structure does not 
really accommodate that desire. 

So again, as Dr. McKenzie has indicated, the flexibility of the 
funding of chapter 2, because we used to have title 4 which gave us 
latitude; those moneys are no longer with us. And I would submit 
also for those of us in the major urban areas which are trying to 
accommodate the rule of the court for desegregating our schools, 
and as I look at it as a superintendent as an educational initiative 
on my part in the prospect of desegregating Philadelphia schools, 
there is no money allocated for that kind of initiative. 

So we had that kind of funding previously; it is no longer in ex
istence. We formerly had CETA money which we used to train per
sons who could serve in our schools as security aides or security 
people or nonteaching assistants. We no longer have that option. 

Senator SPECTER. Thank you very much, Superintendent Clayton. 
We will reserve a spot at the outset of the record for an opening 

statement by Senator Thurmond who had other commitments and 
could not be here today. We thank you superintendents very much 
for coming. And we thank you, Superintendent Clayton, for coming 
from Philadelphia. 

Ms. CLAYTON. Thank you. 
Senator SPECTER. You either arose very early this morning or 

were here last night. 
And we thank you, Superintendent McKenzie. Your travel com

mitments were not as extensive. The situation might have been re
versed and you might have been compelled to travel, Superintend
ent McKenzie, and Superintendent Clayton might have been at 
home, had the Nation been wise enough to retain its capital in 
Philadelphia. 

[Whereupon, at 12:06 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.] 
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Chairman Perkins, Members of the Committee, this august body is 

once again addressing itself to a most important issue: 

diSCipline in the schools. Your Committee is asking what the 
~ 

Congress can do to help. 

On behalf of the 1.7 million members of the National Education 

Association, I salute you. Yours is the proper question to pose. 

Yours is the pro~er, indeed the only, truly helpful approach that 
government can take. 

Discipline is a problem in American schools today. But let's 

start solving that problem by being clear about the extent of 

What's wrong .. 

Our public J3chools today are not .. 'blc!(ckboard jungles," as 

recent reports from the Reaga~ Administration seem to imply. Our 

schools are,not sets for teenage gang movies$ Please see for 

yourselveso Visit our nation's schools. Visit my school in 

Alexandria, Virginia. 

'A decade ago, we had discipline problems in my school, sevel:e 

problems. In the early 1970s, we faced some rough times. There 

were incidents of racial violence. The school had to close 

because of fires. Too many kids were roaming the halls. There 

were no assemblies because administrators feared bringing all the 

stUdents together in one place. Athletic contests hf,!:d to be 

cancelled -because if our school lost a big game, there were 

sure to be fights. 

I can, in fact, remenlber kids walking into my busineas education 

class so spaced out on drugs they couldn't find the typewriters. 

. Sometimes there were enough kids in the pr incipaI 's off ice to 

have a class. 
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Bllt the teachers in my school turned that situation around. We 

ol~ganized to get our school under control. We negotiated ,a 

uniform dis'cipline procedure. We tightened, standards. Every 

tE~acher and staff member in our school went through special human 

rolations training, and then we took that human relations 

tI:aini~g out into the community, too. My school today is a 

dHferent place. It is a fine home for learning. 

Btllt my school isn't unique. All over the country, schools are. 

malking - and have made - great strides against discipline 

prOblems. We've moved kidS out of the halls and out of 

principals' offices and into classrooms where they can learnQ 

In 1978, 74 percent of the teachers su~veyed by NEA told us that 

discipline problems i~aired their ability to teach. In 1983 that 

percentage was down to 45 percent. 

In classrooms and schools in every state, attitudes about 

discipline problems are changing. Once upon a time, teachers 

would not report discipline problems because they felt those 

problems reflected poorly on their teaching ~bilities. Once upon 

a time, principals would not report discipline problems because 

they felt those problems stigmatized their schools. That's not 

the case any longer. We've taken discipline problems out of the 

closet - and we're solving them. 

We at NEA have worked hard to counter discipline problems. Our 

NEA discipline management workshops ha~e helped hundreds of 

thousands "f teachers better control their classrooms. Special 

NEA g,tants totalling over $100,000 have helped school.s all across 

the nation establish special programs to restore and renew 

disciplined learning environments. 
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Eut problems still rellain, and, I don't want to minimize tho .. 

problems in any way. NEA ~epresents three-quarters of the 

classroom teachers in the United States, and if one teacher _ or 

student - feels threatened, we believe that's one to~ many. 

We also recognize that the absence of a threatening environment 

doesn't automatically mean that discipline problems have been 
solved. 

To teachers, a discipline problem is more than a fight between 

students. A discipline problem is the student who comes to class 

unprepared or late. A discipline problem is the student who sits 
in class and qUietly does no work. 

These are all discipline problems, and if we ignore them, we 

minimize the challenge to educational excellence now facing our 
schools. 

Teachers are not prepared to accept a breakdown in discipline in 

any form - because excellence is not achievable without well" 

disciplined schools. Excellence and discipline are inextricably 

linked. Our students ~meet higher academic standards, but only 

if we, at the same time, also insist on higher standards of 
student conduct. 

Fortunately, teachers, administrators, school boards, and parents 

haven!t been ignoring discipline problems. We've been fighting 

these problems for years, and we welcome the Reagan 

Administration's new-found interest in the discipline issue. 

We need as milny people working for a positive, disciplined 

learning environment as we can gather together. Teachers cannot 
do it alone. 
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I consider myself ,'a no-nonsense teacher,' a strong disciplinarian. 

But through my 20 years in the classroom, I've always recognized 

that I need help t:o make my classroom a suitable site for 

learning. I need t:he backing of my principal and the support of 

parents. I ne~d programs that I can calIon to herp me provide 

special attention'~Q problem students. I need my school to be 

secure against disruptive outsiders. 

Without this support - support that costs both time and money _ 

those of us who teach and staff our nation's schools cannot 

maintain a disciplined learning environment for all our students. 

How can the Congrel~s best help me and my colleagues in the 

teaching professiorl? I believe that Congress should help, 

spotlight - and sUJi.port - a basic four-point program for a 

positive, disciplin,ed learning enviro'mnent. 

POINT ORB: School districts should ,pat into place unifora 

discipline codes jOintly developed by teachers, adainistrators,. 

parents, and students. These codes should be deSigned for the 

elementalY, junior high, and senior high levels. 

In my own school district Gf Alexandria, as I've noted, we 

developed a uniform discipline code. This code has worked" . 

successfully because we made sure that the entire community was 

involved in its developme~t. Everyone now has a stake in seeing 

that code SUcceed. 

In Alexandria, and in toe many other school districts with 

effective discipline codes, students are kept well-informed about 

the rules of conduct. Students understand what these rules mean 

and how they are enforced. 
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But effective, fairly enforced uniform discipline codes don't 

just happen. In Alexandria, our code works because teachers and 

other school staff members - as well as parents - went through 

special training. That training was made possible, in large part, 

through federal Emergency School Aid assistance. 

Congress must see to it that such assistance remains available. 

The Emergency School Aid program no longer exists as a separate 

entity. ~t's imperative that Congress make sure that adequate 

resources are available, under Chapter 2, for local school 

districts facing difficult discipline problems. 

POI1ft' '!'WO: Schools must develop strategies designed to address 

botb the behavioral and learning problems of trouble-making 

students. 

We can't solve discipline problems by throwing kids out on the 

street. The only thing kids learn on the street is crime, and . 

society will eventually pay dearly for that lesson. 

In-sc1.!O,;,1 suspensions are one increasingly successful alternative 

for problem youngsters. We believe that such alternative programs 

- if they are carefully designed to give students a continued 

opportunity for an edu~ation - can improve the conduct of 

offending students 

But we need, above all, to identify - and help- students with 

learning problems before those problems erupt into sexious 

misbehavior. We need elementary and secondary programs that can 

help schools provide remedial assistance for students performing 

below grade level. 

I still vividly reme~ber a disruptive teenager I once taught. He 

could. never do the written math problems I gave him. But I found 
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that when I' explained a math problem to him orally, he was al~le 

to solve it. His problem was simple: he couldn't read very well. 

I was able to get that student into a special remedial reading 

program. He thrived, and he's now doing fine. 

This student would never have become a ,discipline problem if his 

l.earn:i.ruL...problem had been identified earlier. 

When students can't master a subject, they act up, and that 

"acting up" is a cover-up for their failure to learn. We need 

to spot mastery problems early and give classroom teachers the 

programmatic support they need to help all children learn. 

Chapter 1 federal aid for disadvantaged children has made a major 

contribution in this regard. But it does not currently provide 

anywhere near the level of resources that are needed. 

POI1ft' THREE: Schools must provide teachers with the support 

services necessary to deal with the root ~~uses of discipline 

problems. 

I learned the importance of ~upport services years ago when I had 

to try to cope with one very troubled teenager. He stood six foot 

four and was a star of the basketball team. But he was always 

getting into fights with other kids. 

I noticed when this student came to my class that he never 

smiled. He neVer talked much either, and, when he did talk, he 

always kept his hand in front of his mouth. 

One day I told him to take his hand down and talk straight to me. 

aa did; and I saw the worst mouthful of teeth I had ever seen in 

a teenager. Those teeth were why this teenager never smiled, 
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never expressed himself except by fighting. Be was too 
embarr assed. 

I was able to help that student, with the help of our gUidance 

counselors at the school. They were able to find dental help for 

the boy. His teeth were fixed. His attitude changed. He became 

more self-confident. He started making friends, and he began to 

participate Successfully in class~ This student, I'm pleased to 

say, later graduated and went on to College. 

This proved to be a story w'ith a happy ending _ but only because 

I had available to me the professional Counseling Support 

services that could direct this student to the h~lp he needed. 

Many schools don't have that counseling support _ or find the 

services they do offer simply overwhelmed by the number of 
students who n~ed help. 

Classroom teachers are in schools to teach. We cannot be 

expected to be psychiatrists and probation officers fOr 

individuals who are deeply troubled - and still teach the 

majority of students who are really there to learn. 

(!'!;'oubled students w,ill not simply stop being troubled because we 

ask them to do so- or demand that they shape up. Many need 

special help, individual help, trained professional help. 

The Support services in our sChools need to be bolstered. That's 

why we support the proposed American Defense Education Act, 

which, among other objectives, would help local school district~ 
strengthen their professional counseling efforts. 

POI~ FOUR: Schools must Vork hard to involve parents at every 
level of their children's education. 
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Students lei'.lrn best when schools and parents work together. When 

teachers and parents both make the importance of school work 

clear, students get the message - and work hard. 

Many school districts around the country have won parental 

support, and they've won that support by keeping parents informed 

and involved in the life of their schools. 

That involvement needs to be built in to the educational process. 

The proposed American Defense Education Act would do just th~t. 

The ADEA would provide federal dollars to'schoOl districts that 

have developed locally designed educational excellence projects. 

These projects, note;:! the Act" must be designed with full 

community - including parent - participation. 

My basic message to you is simple: you can help us solve 

diSCipline problems in our schools by making it possible for 

local teachers and local schools to help local students Succeed. 

That is the role of the federal government. 

I calIon you to help us gain the resources we need to address 

our local discipline problems. With your help teachers and other 

school staff can work effectively at the local level: 

o to safeguard the rights of those students not creating 
discipline problema. 

o to establish the responsibility of every student to maintain 

regular attendance, demonstrate conscientious effort in classroom 
, 

work, and follow school rUles and regulations. 
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o to respect the fundamental right of all students to study 

and to learn. 

We guarantee you that, as you continue to do your part to make 

success in our schools possible, we will move mountains to do our 

part to make success a reality. 

Thank you. 

illl~31 . GOVERNMENT RELATIONS 

Linda Tarr-Whelan, Director 

NATIONAL EDUCATION 'ASSOCIATION ·1201 16th StlP~~gt~. D/,e 20036. (202) 822.7300 
MARY HATWOOD FUTRELL, President I""O",l:A'ft!ON, Executive Director KEITH GEIGER, Vice President 
ROXANNE E, BRADS;'IAW, Secretary. Treasurer 

March 27, 1984 

The Honorable Arlen Specter 
Chairman 
Senate Juvenile Justice Subcommittee 
United States Senate 
815 Hart Senate Office Building 
Washington, DC 20510 

Dear Mr. Chairman: 

I am subnitting this letter and the enclosed document as an addendum to 
the statement of NEA President Mary Futrell on school disCipline which 
was submitted for the record of the hearing your Subcommittee recently 
he 1 d on th,i s subj ect. 

During the hearing you raised several questions of a legal nature about 
several court cases relating to school discipline. The enclosed staff 
analysis by Joel Packer of NEA Government Relations is based on an 
analysis by the NEA Office of General Counsel. In response to these 
court case questions it reaches the following conclusion: legislation 
to overturn Supreme Court decisions in such cases as Goss v. lo¥ez and 
Wood v. Strickland is unnecessary. In addition, the effects 0 these 
aecisions ao not appear to present a barrier to effective administration 
of disciplinary actions by 'teachers. 

As NEA has stated, most of the classroom discipline problems stem from 
behavorial and learning problems of students. Rather than enacting 
legislation to narrow students' legal rights, we believe a number of 
steps should occur. 

1. Uniform discipline codes must be developed by teachers, 
administrators, parents, and students. 
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2. Schools must develop strategies designed to address both 
behavioral and learning problems of trouble-making students. 

3. Schools must provide teachers with the support services 
necessary to deal with the root causes of disCipline problems. 

4. Schools must work hard to involve parents at every level of 
their children's education. 

I hope this material is useful to you and the other Members of your 
Subcommittee as you continue your deliberations on this important issue. 
Sincerely, 

8\~~-ww~ 
linda Tarr-Whelan 
Director of Government Relations 

IT-W mca 
enclosure 

cc: Members, Senate Juvenile Justice Subcommittee 
Mary Hatwood Futrell, NEA President 

NEA ANALYSIS OF COURT RULINGS AFFECTING SCHOOL DISCIPLINE 

Two specific court decisions were raised during recent hearings of the 

Senate Juvenile Justice Subcommittee on school discipline. The 

Administration has argued that Supreme Court rul ings have inhibited 

teachers and school administrators from exercising appropriate 

disciplinary actions. The cases cited were Goss V. lopez and Wood V. 

Strickland. 

Before responding to specific aspects of these decisions, it is useful 

to review the cases. 

~ involved the procedural rights of public school students who are 

faced with possible suspension. The Court rUled that the due process 

clause of the Fourteenth Admendment requires, in connection with a 

suspension for up to ten days, that a student be afforded (1) oral or 

written notice of the charges against him or her; (2) if he/she denies 

the charges, an explanation of the evidence in the possession of the 

school authorities; and (3) an opportunity to present his/her side of 

the story. 

______________________________ ~ ____ ~~~ ___ ~, __ ~ __ \~'~b~~ __ ~ ______________ ~_~ __ ~~ .' ------------ --
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It concluded that "at least these rudimentary ,precautions" are required 

to guard "against unfair or mistaken findings of misconduct or arbitrary 
exclusion from school." 

~ was brought by two high school students who had been expelled from 

school for violating a school regulation. The issue before the Court 

was whether and to what extent a school board member is immune from 

personal liability for damages where he/she has acted unconstitutionally 

in the expulsion of a student. The Court held that: 

a school official is not immune from liability for damages 

under S. 1983 if he knew or reasonably should have known that 

the action he took ••• would violate the constitutional rights 

of the student affected, ~ if he took the action with th~ 

malicious intention to cause a deprivation of constitutional 

rights or other injury to the student. (Emphasis added.) 

In other words, school officials could not be held personally liable for 

"action taken in the good-faith fUlfillment of their responsibilities 

and within the bounds of reason under the circumstances." Recently, in 

Harlow v. Fitzgerald, the Supreme Court abandoned the "subjective" 

aspect of ~ -- i.e., whether the official was acting in good faith, 

without a purpose to injure the plaintiff -- and held that government 

officials performing discretionary functions are shielded from personal 

1 iabil ity for civil damages "insofar as their conduct does not violate 

'clearly established' statutory or constitutional rights of which a 

reasonable person would have known." 

Several questions will now be addr2ssed. 

1. IIHave these two decisions inhibited or prevented teachers from 
taking necessary discipl inary actions?1I 

. These cases have only limited app1 icabil ity. The "~/ood/Harlowll standard 
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applies onl), to constitutional actions brought against state a~d local 

officials under S. 1983; Goss specifically applies only to suspensions 

for alleged Inisconduct and does not automatically extend constitutional 

p~otection to other disciplinary actions. Where constitutional rights 

are not involved in the disciplinary action, the "Wood/Harlow" standard 

is not controlling. For example, in Ingraham v. Wright, the Supreme 

Court held that IIcorporal punishment" -- ~, the infl iction of 

physical pain as a penalty for dOing something that has been disapproved 

by the school official -- in the public schools, no matter how inhumane, 

is not subject to the protections afforded by the Eighth Amendment to 

the Constitution, which prohibits "cruel and unusual punishment" or the 

due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment. Thus, at least with 

respect to corporal punishment, students are left to state law r€medies; 

traditional corrmon law doctrine, which protects a school official who 

acts in good faith from personal liability for damages, and not the 

"Wood/Harl~ standard, would govern the availability of these remedies. 

Based on the foregoing, it seems that the decisions would not have any 

appreciable effect on teachers taking disciplinary actions. 

2. "Have there been any legal actions against teachers or 

administrators as a result of these cases?" 

We would note in this regard that as a technical matter the 

"Wood/Harlow" standard is an affirmative defense raised by defendants 

and not plaintiffs; th~s it would not form the basis of any lawsuits 

brought by students against teachers or administrators. In connection 

with Goss there have been a number of lawsuits challenging suspensions --' . 
as violative of due process both before and after the decision. 

3. "Is legislation needed to overturn these decisions?" 

The NEA does not believe so; The ~ case involved extreme actions 

taken against individuals who happened to be students. It involved 

excesses that could not possibly be justified on the bal)is of 

---------------- . __ ~_~ ____. _' _L, ______ .• _. ____ ~ __ _ 
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maintaining effective discipline. GOS5 was a 1975 case involving Black 

junior and senior high students in Columbus, Ohio. 

These students were removed from school in ma.ss i ve numbers wi thout 

reasons or hearings followin~ racial disputes in 1971. The Supreme 

Court held tha~ these students, suspended for up to ten days, had the 

right to at least hear what they were beircg accused of, the right to 

hear the bases for the acc\lsations, and a right to at least answer the 

charges before,they were sus~ended. 

The case did not require any detailed form of formal hearing; the Court 

merp-l./ said they had a right to hear and answer the charges in some way. 

The need for such safeguards is well il'lustrated by the facts of the 

Goss case. One student was suspended for conduct which did not occur on 

school grounds and for which mass arrests were made -- hardly 

guaranteeing, as the Court noted, careful individualized fact-finding by 

the police or by the school principaL This student claimed to have 

been involved in no misconduct, but she was suspended for ten days 

without ever being told what she was accused of doing or being given an 

opportunity to explain her presence amon!} those arrested. 

In our view, nothing in the Goss decisiol1 affo~ding these minimal 

safeguards would prevent teachers and administrators from dealing 

efficiently with disruptive students. We note, among other things, the 

Court ackncwledged that in the great majority of cases, the 

.disciplinarianmay infonn(;lly discuss the alleged misconduct with the 

student minutes after it occu~s. and that "there are recurring 

situations in which prior notice and hearing cannot be insisted 

" ue also point out that the requirements imposed by the Ceurt upon. ~ • • " 

did not exceed those already in effect;n many school systems. 

We previously noted that the holding in Wood was modified in the Harlow 

case. The theory behind hypothetical legislation apparently is that 
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protecting an official who has acted in "good faith" even if he/she knew 

or reasonably should have known he/she violated constitutional rights 

would make it harder for a student to prevail and thereby discourage 

litigation. However, if an official knew of the existence of 

constitutional rights and violated them anyway, it would seem that 

he/she by definition could not have acted il1 good faith; to this extent 

changing the standard would not make a difference. Moreover, the 

Court's decision'in Wood struck a balance between the interest in 

providing a remedy for violations of constitutional rights and the 

danger that the fear of being sued would deter public officials from 

holding office and exercising their judgment forcefully. NEA believes 

the balance it struck is defensible. Finally, because of the limited 

reach of the "Wood/Harlow" standard, we fail to see as a legal matter 

how modifications in it would significantly increase the ability of 

officials to maintain school discipline. 

4. "Should teachers be given a higher level of immunity than that 

granted by Wood?" 

It was earlier pointed out that the "Wood/Harlow" standard applies only 

to constitutional cases brought under S. 1983; that common law doctrine 

governs in state law actions; and that the Court has extended 

constitutional protection to suspensions for alleged misconduct but not 

to corporal punishment. Teachers are rarely sued in S. 1983 cases. 

This is due at least in part to the fact that teachers usually have no 

authority to suspend. Apparently there are a few money judgments even 

against school administrators. In addition, the Court in Wood did not 

feel that a higher standard for immunity would "sUfficiently increase 

the ability of school officials to exercise their discretion in a 

forthright manner" to warrant effectively abolishing a remedy for 

students subjected to constitutional deprivations. These factors 

suggest that a higher level of immunity is unnecessary. 

,3A-RO? 0 - SA _ L~ 
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5. uShould students' due process rights be more limited than that 

granted in Goss?" 

It was previously indicated that the Court's decision in Goss set forth 

only rudimentary procedures in connection with student suspensions from 

school; the next step seemingly would be to remove protections entirely 

in suspension situations. NEA would find this alternative undesirable. 

To suspend students without giving them an opportunity to tell their 

side of the story, particularly if the teachers in the school system 

have the right to a hearing when they are threatened with disciplinary 

action; would certainly not seem consistent with the principles of 

fa i rness whi ch the schools seek to i nsti 11 in our nati o.n' s youth. TI":e 

students inevitably will perceive as hypocritical the inconsistency 

between the professed values of the school system and its actual 

p~actices, and this sense of hyprocisy, in turn, predictably will 

produce more of the very student disorders for which discipline is often 

imposed. 
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TESTIMONY OF 

IRWIN A, HYMAN, ED.D. 

Temple University 

SUSAN E. KUTLIRO:?j,', ACSW 

Trenton. N.J. Police Division 

CAPTAiN THOMAS S. WILLIAMS 

Trenton, N.J. Police Division 

before the 

United States Senate Committee on the Judiciary 

He ... r~ ng on School -':r ime and dv le.ll.:e 

January 25, 1984 

on the subject of 

SCHOOL BASED CmlMlJNITY WIDE JUVENIT.E DELINQUENCY PREVENTION 

On January 24, 1984, Dr. Hyman, on behalf of the American Psychological 

Association, presented testimony before the Subcommittee on Elementary, 

Secondary and Vocational Education of the Committee on Education and Labor, 

United States House of Representatives on the subject of School Discipline in 

America. Because of its relevance this testimony is offered for inclusion in 

the record of the Hearings o~ School Crime and Violence presented before the 

Subcommittee on Juvenile Justice of the United States Senate Committee on the 

Judiciary. The purpose of this addendum is to amplify the section on preven-

tion found on page 13 and 14 of Dr. Hyman's previous testimony which is attached. 

This present;ation is not offered on behalf of the American PFlychological 

Association. 

Irwin A. Hyman, Ed.D., is Director of the National Center for the Study 

of Corporal Punishment and Alternatives in the Schools and Professor of School 

Psycoology at Iemple University. Dudng tht! past 4 years he has been director 

of a project in the Trenton Public School(l to reduce problems of school dis-

ruption and to improve discipline. 

Susan E. Kutliroff, ACSW, is a supervising social worker assigned to the 

Youth Section of the Trenton Police Division for the past 10 years. Her 

extensive experience with youth reaulted in the 1978 National Social Worker 

of the Year Award. 

Thomas S. Williams is a 27 yetlr veteran of I:he 'rrenton Police Division 

and for the past 11 years has served as Conun!\nding Officer of the Youth Section. 
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In 1983 he received a National Youth Involvement Program Award from the 

National Council of Juvenile and Family Court Judges. 

The three aforementioned have worked with an interdisciplinary group 

in attempting to establish a school based community wide delinquency prevention 

effort. A total combined 54 years of experience in youth work has convinced 

us of the great need for prevention services. This experience includes a wide 

range of activities including research, theory and practice.,' While w~ recognize 

the need for strict, fair and consistent law enforcement we feel that the only 

truly effective approach to the reduction of crime is to focus our major efforts 

and r:esources on prevention. Get tough policies have short term effectiveness 

but at best they offer only immediate solutions to juvenile crime. Prevention 

is more difficult to implement ali,tl more time consuming but has been consistently 

demonstrated as the best long-range, cost effective approach to solving society's 

problems. 

Well conceived prevention must begin with a thorough understanding of the 

problems involved. In order to consider the phenomena of school disruption 

and crime in general we would like to briefly frame this discussion in the 

context of N.J. and more specifically Trenton. 

The cost for maintaining serious juvenile offenders in institutions is 

staggering. For instance. in N.J. during 1983, expenditures reached $12,300,000.00. 

This averages $10,300/per offender. The eventual incarceration of most of these 

juveniles could have been recognized early by teachers. youth workers and 

police. This is illustrated by an ana1y&ls of juvenile chronic offenders in 

Mercer County, N.J. 

Mercer County Prosecutor Philip S. Carchman. in 1981, instituted the 

Juvenile Chronic Offender (JCD) Program. The purposes of this program are 

to identify the serious, repetitiv~ juvenile offenders in the county; to 

remove them from the streets; to prOSeC\lte them speedily; and, in most cases. 

to urge the imposition of custodial sentences upon their conviction. In 

Trenton, the County seat of Mercer, 65 juveniles have been designated JCO's. 

Of the total, 37 (57%) committed their first poli.ce-related offense while in 

grades K-6j 19 (29%) in grades 7-9; 4 (6%) in high school; and 5 (8%) dropouts. 

In Trenton, during 1983, a total of 2,664 juveniles were charged with 

offenses ranging from homicide to runaway.' 'The most serious and chronic 

offenses are reported in the Uniform Crime Reporting Index. These include 

homicide, sexual assault (rape), robbery, aggravated assul.t, burglary, theft 
. . 

and auto theft. In this cat,egory a total of 2,238 juveniles and adults were 
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charged. Of this total, 701 (31.3%) were juvaniles. Am Ih j ~ ong : ese uveniles, 

'169 (24%) were elementary school children under 13 years of age. 

We are particularly c.oncerned w:u:h youths 'who commit their first juvenile 

delinquent act at the ages of five, six or seven. 

In 1983, 28 percent of Trenton's juveniles. charged with assorted offenses, 

were rearrested, The reI ti 1 1 . a ve y ow recidivism rate is partly attrioutable to 

the emphasis the Youth Section of the Tr.enton Police Division places on early 

treatment and prevention. Since 1974, when Lhr, Police-Social Worker Team 

concept was implemented by the Trenton Police DiVision, there have been social 

workers physically situated within tr.e police operation affording a full range 

of counselling services to youngsters and their families. The most success 

has been with the younger child. E h i mp as s on prevention is apparent in the 

Youth ~ectionts active participation in promoting and recognizing good 

behavi\')r. A good example is the Annual Awards Program, citing over 100 youngsters 

from the publi~ school t f Ii ~ sys em or aCl evement in different areas of their 

academic programs. 

We are not alone in believing that programs to prevent delinquency must 

start with the young child. Nor is the concept new. In 1971-1972 seven con

ferences throughout the United States wer" Ileld f j ~ oruvenile ju~tice practi-

tioners in order to develop recorr~end.ations i to mprove,\ the juvenile justice 

system. The outgrowth was Juvenile Justice Administra\ ~ by Richard W. Kobetz 

and Betty n. Bosarge of the Professional Standards Division. International 

Association of Chi~fs of Police. In the authors' chapter, "In-School Delinquency 

Prevention" they present 11 exce ent reasons for early delinquency prevention 

programs within the schools and the necessity of treating the family as a 

whole. 

In support of family treatment is the new State of New Jersey Code of 

Juvenile Justice which institQted the Family Court on January 1. 1984. This. 

new cod.! recogt'i1es that a child cr.r.nut merely be tr 'ate'1 alonej that most 

negative behaviors are indicative of family problems. This legislation was, 

necessary becaus(' of the unsuccessful practice of merely treating the child 

individually. 

In addition to early identification, treatment and working with the total 

family, the third important component of delinquency reduction is the need 

for a system-wide sharing of information. The various members ot the 

community (juvenil~ justice syStem, schools" public and private agencies) 

must cooperate,coordinate and communicate with each other. The sharing of 
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this information must be haudled with full confidentiality and awareness of 

the sensitivity of the issue. 

All too often a child starts receiving treatment after he/Rhe is already 

entrenched in the Juvenile Justice System. In most cases, indications of 

future prob.lellls are nocictlable in elementary sehoul. This information is 

not shared. Often, no special programs are used to help the youngster and 

family overcome these problems and they are allowed to escalate until the 

youngster gets involved in delinquent behavior. Examples of these early 

indicators are 1) learning disabilities, 2) signs of parental abuse, 3) apathy, 

4) llutxitional deprivation and 5) emotional problems. 

Our contention is that the aforementioned should be identified early 

at the elementary school level. Enrichment programs, which would incluQe both 

the youngster and family, would then be instituted with resulting reduction 

in future delinquency involvement. In order to do this successfully the 

school must act as the base for a community-wide prevention program. A major 

impediment to the successful establishment of interagency cooperation has 

historically been institutional protectionism, A great deal of effort is 

needed to eliminate or reduce turf battles among agencies. Unreasonable 

jurisdictional competition causes fragmentation, duplication of services and 

creates a lack of cummunication which is elctremely detrimental to the family 

being treated. 

Prevention, family involvement in treatment. and cooperation and coordi

nation throughout the system as mentioned previously are not new ideas. Many 

studies support this as the mest viable answer to juvenile crime. 

In Trenton, frustrated because of not reaching families soon enou~h. 

Captain \Ulliams took the initiative. He coordinated the community"s public 

and private agencies, the juvcr,ile justice system and the schGo1 system to 

work to~~ther on a proposal for Rq elementary srhool bas~d prevent~on progLdm. 

It has been three years since the initiation of this idea. At this time 

a ftnal draft of the proposal has been completed, having had input from the 

teachers. school administrators. police. prosecutor. community social service 

agency personnel. community leaders and parents. This multi-disciplinary 

'" prevention approach is the most cost effective plan available for reducing 

the number of j~veni1es involved in crime. The estimated cost of starting 

this program is $100,000.00 -"a ~o~paratively small amount when compared to 

the $10,300.00 cost of maintaining an individual child in the correction 

system. 
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We mention this program to illustrate the time and energy needed to 

achieve consensus in preparation of a proposal focusIng on prevention. 

Because of the difficulty in inItiating prevention programs. public policy 

makers need to offer endorsement and financial support. Initlully these 

program6 require relatively little money in comparison to the costs I)f the 

extensive juvenile justice system required to process chronic of:fende'cs. 

Yet longitudInal research on programs such as Head. Start supports the contention 

that early efforts can be extremely productive :In reducing later academic 

failure. school alienation. disruption and dropout rates. all of which 

contribute to juve::ile crime. We ur-g\.. the members of this subcommittee to 

carefully study this issue. We feel that their considered examinntion of 

this approach will result in endorsement of: prevention. 

1 
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PART 2-SCHOOL COUR'l' CASES 

WOOD ET AL. v. STRICKLAND ET AL. 

CERTIORARI TO THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS FOR 
THE EIGH:TH CIRCUIT 

No. 73-1285. Argued Odober 16, 1974-Decided February 25, 1975 

Respondent Arkansas high school students, who had been expelled 
from school for violating a SChM) regulation prohibiting the use 
or possession of intoxicating beverages at school or school activi
ties, brought suit under 42 U. S. C. § 1983 against petitioner 
school officials, claiming that such expulsions infringed respondents' 
rights to due process and seeking damages and injunctive and 
declaratory relief. The District Court directed verdicts for p'eti
tioners on the ground that they were immune from damages suits 
absent proof of malice in the sense of ill will toward respondents. 
The Court of Appeals, finding that the facts showed a violation 
of respondents' rights to "substantive due process," since the 
decisions to expel respondents were made 011 the basis of 110 evi
dence that the regUlation hnd been violated, reversed and remanded 
for appropri:tte injunctive relief and a new trial on the question 
of damageI'). Held: 

1. While on the basis of common-law tradition and public polie:; t 
school officials are entitled to a qualified good-faith immunity from 
liability for damages under § 1983, they are not immune from 
such liability if they knew or reasonably should have known that 
the action they took within their sphere of official responsibility 
would violate the constitutional rights of the student affected, or 
if they took the action with the malicious intention to cause a, 
deprivation of such rights or other injury to the student. But 
a compensatory award will be appropriate only if the school 
ofiicials acted with such an impermis~ible motivation or with such 
disregard of the student's clearly established constitutional rights 
that their action cannot reasonably be characterized as being in 
good fnith. Pp. :313-322'. 

2. When the regulation in question is construed, as it should 
have been and as the record shows it was construed by the responsible 
school officials, to prohibit the use and possession of beverages 
containing any alcohol, rather than as erroneously construed by 
the Court of Appeals to refer only to beverages containing in 
.1xcess of a certain alcoholic content, there was no absence of 
evidence to prove the charge against respondents, and hence the 
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Court of Appeals' contrary judgment is improvident. Section 
1983 does not extend the right to relitigate in federal court evi
dentiary questions arising in school disciplinary proceedings or the 
proper construction of school regulations and was not intend~o 
be a vehir)e for fcd('rnl-rourt correction of errors in the exercise 
of school officials' discretion that do not rise to the level of 
violations of specific constitutional guarantees. Pp. 322-326. 

3. Since the District Court did not discuss whether there was 
a procedural due .process violation, and the Court of Ap: \,'als did 
not decide the issue, tho Court of Appeals, rather than this Court, 
should consider that question in the first instance. PP. 326-327. 

485 F. 2d 186, vacated and remanded. 

WHITE, J., delivered the opinion of the Court, in Parts I, III, and 
IV of which all other Members joined, and in Part II of which 
DOUGLAS, BRENNAN, STEWART, and MARSHALL, .TJ., joined. POWELL, 
J., filed an opinion concurring in part and dissenting in part, in which 
BURGER, C. J., and BLACKMUN and REHNQUIST, JJ., joined, post, 
p.327. 

G. Ross Smith argued the cause for' petitioners. With 
him on the brief was Herschel H. Friday. 

Ben Core argued the cause and filed a brief for 
respondents. * 

MR. JUSTICE WHITE delivered the opinion of the Court. 
Respondents Peggy Strickland and Virginia Crain 

brought this lawsuit against petitioners, who were mem
bers of the school board at the time in question, two 
school 'administrators, and the Special School District of 
Mena, Ark., l purporting to assert a cause of action 

*F. Raymo.;w Marks filed a brief for the Childhood and Govern
ment Project as amicus curiae. 

1 The Court of Appeals affirmed the directed verdicts awarded by 
the District Court to P. T. Wnller, the principal of Mena Public High 
School at the time in question, S. L. Inlow, then superintendent of 

, • schools, and the Mena Special School District. 485 F. 2d 186, 191 
(CA8 1973) o'~ Since respondents have not crose-PQtitioned, the cases 
of these three partics m-c not before the Court. ' 
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under 42 U. S. C. § 1983, and claiming that their federal 
constitutional rights to due process were infringed under 
color of state law by their expUlsion from the Mena Pub
lic High School on the grounds of their violation of a 
school regUlation prohibiting the use or possession of in
toxicating beverages at school or school activities. The 
complaint as amended prayed for compensatory and 
punitive damages against all petitioners, injunctive relief 
allowing respondents to resume attendance, preventing 
petitioners from imposing any sanctions as a result of the 
expUlsion, and restraining enforcement of the challenged 
regUlation, declaratory relief as to the constitutional in. 
validity of the regulation! and expunction of any record 
of their expulsion. After the declaration of a mistrial 
arising from the jury's failure to reach a verdict, the 
District Court directed verdicts in favor of petitioners on 
the ground that petitioners were immune from damages 
suits absent proof of malice in the sense of ill will toward 
respondents. 348 F. Supp. 244 (WD Ark. 1972). The 
Court of Appeals, finding that the facts showed a viola
tion of respondents' rights to "substantive due process," 
reversed and remanded for appropriate injunctive relief 2 

and a new trial on the question of damages. 485 F. 2d 
186 (CA8 1973). A petition for rehearing en banc was 
denied, with three judges d,issenting. See id., at 19l. 
Certiorari was granted to consider whether this applica
tion of due process by the Court of Appeals was war
ranted and whether that court's expression of a standard 
governing immunity for school board members from lia-

2 The Court of Appeals noted that reinstatement was no longer 
possible since the term of expUlsion had ended, but that the respond
ents were entitled to have the records of the expUlsions expunged 
and to be relieved of any other continuing punishment, if any. Id./ 
at 190. 
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bility for compensatory damages under 42 U. S. C. § 1983 
was the correct one. 416 U. S. 935 (1974). 

I 

The violation of the school regUlation 3 prohibiting the 
use or possession of intoxicating beverages at school or 
school activities with which respondents were charged 
concerned their "spiking" of the punch served at a meet
ing of an extracurricular school organization attended by 
parents and students. At the time in question, respond
ents were 16 years old and were in the lOth grade. The 
relevant facts begin with their discovery that the pu;nch 
had not been prepared for the meeting as previously 
planned. The girls then agreed to "spike" it. Since 
the county in which the school is located is "dry," re
spondents and a third girl drove across the state I~order 
into Oklahoma and purchased two 12-ounce bottles of 
"Right 'Time," a malt liquor. They then bought six 
10-ounce bottles of a soft drink, and, after having mixed 
the contents of the eight bottles in an empty milk carton, 
returned to schooL Prior to the meeting, the girls ex
perienced second though ts about the wisdom of their 
prank, but by then they \vere caught up in the force of 
events and the intervention of other girls prevented them 
from disposing of the illicit punch. The punch was 
served at the meeting, without apparent effect. 

3 //3. Suspension 

//b, Valid causes for suspension from school on first offense: Pupils 
found to be guilty of any of the following shall be suspended from 
school on the first offense for the balance of the semester and such 
suspension will be noted on the permanent record of the student 
along with reason for suspension. 

// (4) The use of intoxicating beverage or possession of same at 
school or at a school sponsored activity." App.' 102. 

.~--~------- - -- -
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Ten days later, the teacher in charge of the extracur
ricular group and meeting, Mrs. Curtis Powell, having 
heard something about the "spiking," questioned the girls 
about it. Although first denying any knowledge, the 
girls admitted their involvement after the teacher said 
that she would handle the punishment herself. The next 
day, however, she told the girls that the incident was 
becoming increasingly the subject of talk in the school 
and that the principal, P. T. Waller, would probably hear 
about it. She told them that her job was in jeopardy 
but that she would not force them to admit to Waller 
what they had done. If they did not go to him then, 
however, she would not be able to help them if the inci
dent became "distorted." The three girls then went to 
Waller and admitted their role in the affair. He sus
pended them from school for a maximum two-week 
period, subject to the decision of the school board. 
Waller also told them that the board would meet that 
night, that the girls could tell their parents about the 
meeting, but that the parents should not contact any 
members of the board. 

N cit-her the girls nor their parents attended the school 
board meet~ug that night. Both Mrs. Powell and Waller, 
after making their reports concerning the incident, recom
mended leniency. 4t this point, a telephone call was 
received by S. L. Inlow, then the superintendent of 
schools, fl'om lVIrs. Powell's husband also a teacher at 
the high school. who reported that he 'had heard that the 
third girl involved had been in a fight that evening at 
a basketball game. Inlow informed the meeting of the 
~lews, although he did not mention the name of the girl 
mvolved. Mrs. Powell and 'ValIer then withdrew their 
recommendations of leniency, and the board voted to 
expel the girls from school for the remainder of the semes-
ter, a. period of approximately tluwee months. . 

The hoard sub$equently agreed to hold another meet-
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ing on the matter. and one was held approximately two 
weeks after the first meeting. The girls. their parents, 
and their counsel attended this session. The board 
began with a reading of a written statement of facts as 
it had found them:' The girls admitted mixing the malt 
liquor into the punch with the intent of "spiking" it, 
but askC'd t.hf' board to forgo its rule' punishing such 
violations by 811('h suhstantial suspensions. Neither 
Mrs. Powell nor 'Valler was present at this meeting. 
The board voted not to change its policy and. as before, 
to expel the girls for the remainder of the semester." 

II 

The District Court instructed the jury that. a decision 
for resp01~dellts had to be premised upon a· finding t.hat 

4 "FACTS FOPND BY RC"JIOOL BOARD 
"l. Thnt Virginia Crnin, Prlrgy Rt rirkl:l1ld nnd .To Wnll nre stu

dents of M('na High S('hool nnd ~uhjr('t to the J!;o\wning ru\rs nnd 
policies of M('nn High 8('hoo\. 

112. Thnt on or nbout F('brunry 7, 1972 tl\('se three girls were 
rhn rgcd with the rcspon1>ibility of pro\'idilll!: rdreshmentB for a school 
funrtion, bcinJ!; n J!;ath('ring of stuclcnt:-: of the Hom(' Eronomic. rlnss 
nnd SOJl1r of their l)nr('nt~. on ~rho()l prl'mis('~. h('inJ!; thr :luciitorimn 
building of l\Imn High Rrhool, nnd hl'ing un<i('r til(' dir(,(·tion of ~Irs. 
Curti::: Powell. 

"3. Thnt. the three J!;irls in qU('f;tion tr:\\"('lcd to Oklnhomn, pur
('hnscd :I llumher of hotile~ of mnlt lifJuor, n he('r t~·p(' be\'Nnge, 
nnd Int ('f w('nt ont 0 ~('hool prl'mi;,:(':-: wit h the nlc'oholic bC\'l'fnl!:e nnd 
Pllt, two or mor(' of tlll' hollll':-: of thl' drink into til(' pIIlI('h or liquid 
refrl'~hmcllt whic·h wn~ to \)(' :-:I'r\'('d to 1lH'lIlb('f~ of the dnH~ and 
l)nr('nts." Apl1. l:'i7. 

The Court of Ap)1rnll': in its stnh'lll('nt of Ihe fnrls ob~cr\'cd that 
the' mnlt lifJ'lor nnd ~oft drinks w('re mixrcl b~' the J!;irls prior to 
their r('turn to s('hool. 4R!) F. 2d, nt 187, :mcl jlctitiol1('rR in th('ir 
hril'f rl'C'itl' tltl' fnc·t~ ill thi:-: Illnlllwr. Bril'f for Pc,titiOlH'r~ n. 
Thi~ discr('pnnry in thl' bonf(!'~ findinJ!;8 of fact is not mnterial to 
nn~' issue now brforc thn Court. 

Ii By tnking n ('orrospondon('(l i'ourse nnd nn ('xtra course Inter, th(' 
~irlf: "'('fl' 1'11>11' to t,tr:IChllltc' withiJH'ir dal":-:. Tr. 'of Orll! Arg. aH-aO. 
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petitioners acted with malice in expelling them and 
defined "malice" as meaning "ill will against a person
a wrongful act done intentionally without just cause or 
excuse." 348 F. Supp., at 248. In ruling for petitioners 
after the jury had been unable to agree.! the District 
Court found "as a matter of law" that there was no evi
dence from \"hich malice could be inferred. I d., at 253. 

The Court of Appeals, however/ viewed both the 
instruction and the decision of thEl District Court as 
being erroneous. Specific intent to harm wrongfully, 
it held, was not a requirement for the recovery of dam
ages. Instead, "[iJt need only be established that the 
defendants did not, in the 1igh t oJ an the eircumstances, 
act in good faith. '1'he test .is an objective, rather than 
a. subjective, one." 485 F. 2d, at 191 (footnote omitted). 

Petitioners as members of the school board assert here, 
as they did below, an absolute immunity from liability 
under § 1983 and at the very least seek to reinstate the 
judgment of the District Court.. If they are correct and 
the District Court's dismissal should be sustained, we 'need 
go no further in this case. Moreover, the immunity ques
tion involves the construction of a federal statute, and our 
practice is to deal ''''ith possibly dispositive statutory issues 
before reaching questions turning on the construction of 
the Constitution. Qf. Hagans v. Lavine, 415 U. S. 528, 
549 (1974).6 We essentially sustain the position of the 
Court of Appeals with respect to the immunity issue. 

8 In their original complaint, respondents sought only injunctive 
and declaratory relief. App. 11-12. In their amended complaint, 
they added a prayer for compensntory and punitive damages. Id., at 
92. Trial was to a jury; and the District Court in ruling on motions 
after declaring a mistrial appears to have treated the case as having 
developed into one for damages only sin(.le it entered judgment for 
petitioners and dismissed the complaint on the basis of their good-faith 
defense. In a joint motion for a llew trial~, respondents specincaI1y 
argued that the District Court had erred ~n treating the case as one 
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The nature of the immunity from awards of damages 
under § 1983 available to school administrators and 
school board members is not a question which the lower 
federal courts have answered with a single voice. There 

. is general agreement on the existence of a "good faith" 
immunity, but the courts have either emphasized dif
ferent factors as elements of good faith or have not given 
specific content to the good-faith standard.7 

for the recovery of damages only and in failing to give them a trial 
and ruling on their clnims for injunctive and declaratory relief. ld., 
at 131. The District Court d('nied the motion. Id., at 133. Upon 
appenl, respondents renewed these contentions, and the Court of 
Appe[tis, after finding a substantive due proc;ess violation, directed 
the District Court to give respondents an injunction requiring ex
punction of the expUlsion records and restraining any further con
tinuing punishment. 485 F. 2d, at. 190. Petitioners urge that we 
reverse the Court of Appeals and order the complaint dismissed. 
Brief for Petitioners 48. Respondents, however, again stress that 
the relief they sought included equitnble relief. Brief for Respond
ents 47-48, 50. 

In light of the record in this case, we are uncertain as to the basis 
for the District Court's judgment, for immunity from damages does 
not ordinarily bar equitable relief as well. The opinion of the 
Court of Appeals does not entirely dispel this uncertainty. With the 
case in this posture, it is the, better course to proceed directly to 
the question of the immunity of school board members under § 1983. 

7Jn McLaughlin v. Tilendis, 398 F. 2d 287, 290-291 (CA7 1968), 
a case relied upon by the Court of Appeals below, the immunity was 
extended to school board members and the superintendent of schools 
only to the extent that they could establish that their decisions were 
founded on "justifiable grounds." Cf. Scoville v. Board of Ed. of 
Joliet Townshipi 425 F. 2d 10, 15 (CA7), cert. denied, 400 U. S. 826 
(1970). In Smith v. Losee, 485 F. 2d 334, 344 (CAlO 1973) (en 
banc), cert. denied, 417 U. S. 908 (1974), the immunity protecting 
University officinls was described as one of good faith and the absence 
of malice where the facts before the officials "showed a good and 
valid reason for the decision although anothe~' reason or reasons 
advanced for non renewal or discharge may have been constitutionally 
impennissible." The District Court in Kit;stein v. Rector and 
Visitors 0/ University 01 Viroinia, 309 F. Supp'. 184, 189 (ED Va.. 

o 
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This Court has decided three cases dealing with the 
scope of the in'lmunity protecting various types of gov
ernmental officials from liability for damages under § 1983. 
In Tenney v. Brandhove, 341 U. S. 367 (1951), the ques
tion was found to be one essentially of statutory construc
tion.s Noting that the language of § 1983 is silent with 

] 970), extended the immunity to action taken in good faith and in 
accordance with "Iong standing legal principle." Sec also Skehan v. 
Board 0/ Trustees 0/ Bloomsburg State Collcge, 501 F. 2d 31,43 (CA3 
1974); Handvl'rgl'r Y. ilarvill, 479 F. 2d 513. 516 (CA9), cert. de
nied, 414 U. S. 1072 (1973); lVood v. Goodman, 381 F. Supp. 413, 
419 (1\Jas8. 1974); Thone71 \'. JenkinB. 374 F. Supp. 134, 
140 (EDNC 1974); Talia/erro ,'. State Council 0/ Higher 
Educatio1l, 372 F. Supp. 1378, 1382-1383 (ED Va. 1974); 
Vanderzanden v. Lowell School District No. 71, 369 F. Supp. 67, 72 
(Ord. 1973); Jones v. Jefferson County Board 0/ Education, 359 F. 
Supp. 1081, 1083-1084 (ED Tenn. 1972); Adamian v. University 0/ 
Nevada, 359 F. Supp. 825, 834 (Nev. 1973); Boyd v. Smith, 353 F. 
Supp. 844, 845-846 (ND Ind. 1973); Hayes v. Cape Henlopen School 
District, 341 F. Supp. 823, 829 (Del. 1972); Schreiber v. Joint School 
District No. I, Gibraltar, Wis., 335 F. Supp. 745, 748 (ED Wis. 
1972); Endicott v. Van Petten, 330 F. Supp. 878, 885-886 (Kan. 
1971) j Holliman v. Martin, 330 F. Supp. 1, 13 (WD Va. 1971) i 
lI/cDonough v. Kelly. 329 F. Supp. 144, 150-151 (NH 1971); 
Cordova v, Chonko, 315 F. Supp. 953, 964 (ND Ohio 1970); Gouge v. 
Joint School District No. 1/ 310 F. Supp. 984, 990, 992-993 (WD 
Wis. 1970). 

8
11

Did Congress by the general language of its 1871 statute mean 
to overturn the tradition of legislative freedom achieved in England 
by Civil War and carefully preserved in the formation of State and 
National Governments here? Did it mean to subject legislators to 
civil liability for acts done within the sphere of legislative activity? 
Let us assume, merely for the moment, that Congress has consti
tutional power to limit the freedom of State legislators acting within 
their traditional sphere. That would be a big assumption. But we 
would have to make an even rasher assumption to find that Congress 
thought it had exercised the power. <These.are difficulties we cannot 
hurdle. "The 'iimits of §§ Land 2 of the'<J811 statutel:. .. were not 

. spelled out in debate. We cannot believe that Congress-itself a 

f 

J 
I! 
} 1 
/i 

j 
I 

1 

1 

205 

WOOD v. STRICKLAND 317 

308 Opinion of the Court 

respect to immunities, the Court concluded that there 
was no basis for believing that Congress intended to 
eliminate the traditional immunity of legislators from 
civil liability for acts done within their sphere of legisla
tive action. That immunity, "so well grounded in history 
and reason ... ," 341 U. 8., at 376, was absolute and con
sequently did not,depend upon the motivations of the legis
lators. In Pierson v. Ray, 386 U. S. 547, 554 (1967), 
finding that H [t]he legislative record gives no clear indi~ 
cation that Congress meant to abolish wholesale all 
common-law immunities" in enacting § 1983, we con
cluded that the common-law doctrine of absolute judicial 
immunity survived. Similarly, § 1983 did not preclude 
application of the traditional rule that a policeman, mak
ing an arrest in good faith and with probable cause, is not 
liable for damages, although the person arrested proves 
innocent. Consequently the Court said: "Although the 
matter is not entirely free from doubt, the same considera
tion would seem to require excusing him from liability for 
acting under a statute that he reasonably believed to be 
valid but that was later held unconstitutional on its face , 
or as applied." 386 U. S., a.t 555 (footnote omitted). 
Finally, last Term we held that the chief executive officer 
of a State, the senior and subordinate officers of the State's 
National Guard, and the president of a state-controlled 
university were not absolut€ly immune from liability 
under § 1983, but instead were entitled to immunity, 
under prior precedent and in light of the obvious need to 
avoid discouraging effective official action by public offi
cers charged with a considerable range of responsibility 

staunch advocate of legislative freedom-would. ~pinge on a tradi
tion so well grounded in history and reason by covert inclusion in 
the goneral Iflllguuge beforo us." 341 U. S., at 376. 

____________________ ~ ______ ~ __________ ~ ______ ~ __ ~~ __ ~~, ____ ~~\~'L_~~d~, ____ ~ _____________ ~ ______ ~.~~. ____ ~ ______________ ~ __ _ 
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and discretion. only if they acted in good faith as defined 
by the Court: 

IC [I]n varying scope, a qualified immunity is avail
able to officers of the executive branch of government, 
the variation being dependent upon the scope of 
discretion and responsibilities of the office and all 
the circumstances as they reasonably appeared at 
the time of the action on \vhich liability is sought to 
be based. It is the existence of reasonable grounds 
for the belief formed at the time and in light of all 
the circumstances, coupled with good-faith belief, 
that affords ,a, basis for qualified immunity of execu
tive officers for acts performed in the course of official 
conduct." Scheuer v. Rhodes, 416 U. S. 232, 247-
248 (1974). 

Common-law tradition, recognized in our prior de
cisions, and strong public-policy re:1sons also lead to a 
construction of § 1983 extending a qualified good-faith 
immunity to school board members from liability for 
dam~ges under that section. Although there have been 
differing emphases and formulations of the common-law 
immunity of public school officials in cases of student ex- . 
pulsion or suspension, state courts have generally recog
nized that such officers should be protected from tort lia
hility und('r state law for all good-faith, nonmalicious 
acti~n taken to flllfill their official duties.!J 

:' Ar(' Dona/lOt' \', Ri('hard.~. 3R ~I('. :370 (1854); Dritt v. Snodgrass, 
66 Mo. 286 (1877); McCormick v. Burt, 05 Ill. 263 (1880) i Board 
of Education of Cartersville v. Purse, 101 Ga. 422, 28 S. E. 896 
(1897) i Board of Ed. of City of Covington v. Booth, 110 Ky. 807, 
62 S. W.872 (1901); Morrison v. City of Lawrence, 181 Mass. 127,63 
N. E. 400 (1902) i Sorrels v. Matthews, 129 Ga. 319, 58 S. E. 819 
(1907) i Douglass v. Campbell, 89 Ark. 2.54) 116 S. W. 211 (100f) i 
Barnard r. Shelbumt'. 2W I\fnl-':'5. 10, 102 X, E. 1005 (101:n; 
Sw('{'ncll ,'. Young, R2 X. H. 159, 181 A. 155 (1925) (absolut~ 
immllnity for arts taken within rangc of gmcral nut itorHy). Scc 
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As the falJts of this case reveal, school board members 
function at different times in the nature of legislators and 
adjUdicators in the school disciplinary process. Each of 
these functions necessarily involves the exercise of dis
cr.etion, the weighing of many factors, and the formula-

. tion of long-term policy.l0 "Like legislators and judges, 
these officers are entitled to rely on traditional sources 
for the factual information on which they decide and act." 
Scheuer v. Rhodes, supra.. at 246 (footnote omitted). As 
with executive officers faccd with instances of civil dis
order, school officials. confronted with student behavior 
causing or threatcllillg disruption. also ha\,(' an "obvious 
need for prompt act.iOIl. and decisions must be made in 
r('liance on factual illformation supplied by others." 
Ibid. . 

Liability for damages for every action which is found 
subsequently to have been violative of a student's consti
tutional rights and to have caused compensable injury 
would unfairly impose upon the school deoisionmaker 
the burden of mistakes made in good faith in the course 
of exercising his discretion withiil the scope of his official 
?uties. School board members, among other duties) must 
Ju~ge wlleth~r there have been violations of school regu
latIOns and! If so, the appropriate sanctions for the viola
tions. Denying any measure of immunity in these cir
cumstances "WOUld contribute not to principled and fear
less decision-making hut to intimidation." Pierson v. 
Ra.y, supra. at !554. The imposition of monetarv costs 
for mistnkes which 'Were llot unreasonable in the iight of 
all the circilmstances would undoubtedly deter even the 

~Is() 6H Am .. !lIr. 2d. ~('hools ~ 2()~. pp. 592-50a (,19i0); 79 C . • T. 8.. 
::i('hool:; and ~('hool Distrirt:-: § fim (d), p. 4.51 (1952): W. Pro~srr, 
Lit\\' of TortI' § W:3, p. O~O (-Ith ('d. 1071); It Hamilton & E. Heut
t('r, L(,~:l1 AS)lC'rts ()f :::i('II(lOl Board Op('ration 100-191 (19.58). 

111 8~'(' ~('n('rall~' H. Cmn]>bC'lI, L, ClInnin~hnm, & R. :;Ur 1)11('('. Tho 
Orgnlllz:ttlOn :lntl Confl'OL of Am(lri('1I1J Srhools 17i-IS2 (1965). 

_________ ~ __________ ___' ___ ~~ .... '-__ ::,.,,_~ __ ~\ ....... L.._~_" .. !._i...., __ ~ _____ ~ ___ ......\!~'i ~_' .. '_______~_~~_~ __ 
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most conscientious school decisionmaker from exercising 
his jUdgment independently. forcefully, and in a manner 
best serving the long-term interest of the school and the 
students. The most capable candidates for school board 
positions might be deterred from seeking office if heavy 
burdens upon their private resources from monetary lia
bility were a likely prospect during their tenure.ll 

These considerations have undoubtedly played a prime 
role in the development by state courts of a qualified 
immunity protecting school officials from liability for 
damages in lawsuits claiming improper suspensions or ex
pulsions.12 But at the same time, the judgment implicit 
in this common-law development is that absolute im .. · 
munity would not be justified since it would not suffici·· 
ently increase the ability of school officials to exercise their 
discretion in a forthright manner to warrant the absence 
of a remedy for students subjected to intentional or other
wise inexcusable deprivations. 
T~nney v. Brandhove, Pierson v. Ray, and Scheuer v. 

Rhodes drew upon a very similar background and were 

11 Th(' oVC'rwhdming m:ljority of fo;rhool board members arc elc('ted 
to office. S('(' A. White, Local School Boards: Organization find 
Prncticcs 8 (U. S. Omce of Education, OF.r-2~023, Bulletin No.8, 
1962); National 8(·hool Boards Association, Sur"'ey of Public Educa
tion in th(' l\1('mb('r Citics of the Council of Big City BOl1.rds of 
Edllration 3 (No\'.1!)68); Campbell, Cunninghnm, &. l\;TcPhc(', supra, 
n. 10, at 164-170. l\fOf:t of the school board m('mbcrs across the 
country rC'c('i\'(' little or no monetarr compC'n:o;n1ion for their sen·ice. 
White, supra. at 67-79; Nationnl School Boards As:.:ociation, supra, 
at 3. 1f\-21; Campb('lI J Cunningham, &. ::\lcPheC', supra, at 172. 

12 "[8rhool dirN·jorsl are authorized, and it is their duty to adopt 
reasonable rules for the government. nnd management of the school, 
and it would deter responsible and suitable men from accepting the 
position, if held liable for damages to n l1Upil e)"':(lelled under n rule 
adopted by them, under the impression that the welfare of the school 
dcmnnded it, if the courts should deem it. improper." Dritt Y. Snod
grass, 66 :Mo., at 293. 
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animated by a very similar judgment in construing ~ 1983. 
Absent legislative guidance, we now rely on those same 
sources in determining whether and to what extent school 
o~cia.1s are immune from damage suits under § 1983. We 
thmk there must be a degree of immunity if the work of 
~he seh.ools is to go forward; and. however worded, the 
Immumty must be such that public school officials under
stal:d that action taken in the good-faith fulfillment of 
theIr responsibilities and within the bounds of reason 
under aU the circumstances wi1l not be punished and that 
t~le~ . need not exercise their discretion with undue 
tImIdIty. 

(~Pub!ic. officials, whether governors, mayors or po
hce, legIslators or judges, who fail to make decisions 
when th~y. are needed or \vho do not act to hnple
m?nt decIsIOns when they are made do not fully and 
fa~t~lf~lIy p:rform the duties of their offices. Im
plICIt 111 the Idea. that officials l1ave some immunity
absolute or qualIfied-for their acts, is a recognition 
that the~ ma.y err. The concept of immunit.y as
s~mes tIns and goes on to assume that it is better to 
rIsk some error and possible injury from such error 
thall not to decide or act at all." Scheuer v. 
Rhodes, 416 P. S., at 241-242 (footnote omitted). 

The. di~agreement between the Court of Appeals and 
the DlstrICt Court over the immunity standard in this 
~ase .ha~ b?,en put in term~ of an "objective" versus a 
s~bJectIve test of gOQd fmth. As we see it, the appro

PrJ ate st~,nda:d necessarily contains ·elements of both. 
Th~ offimal 111111s('lf mllst he nc,ting sincerrJy and with a 
belief t.hat he is doing right, but ali act violating 
a studen,t's constitutional rights can. be no more justi
fied by 19norance or disregard of settled, indisputable 
law on the part of one entrusted with supervision of stu
dents·I'daily lives thl1m by the presen'ce of actual malice. 

1 
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To be entitled to a special exemption from ~the categorical 
remedial language of § 1983 in a case in Wh1~ilhis action 

J 

violated a st.udent's constitutiohaI rights, a school board 
1 

member, who has voluntarily undertaken the task of 
supervising the operation of the school and the activities 
of the students, must be held to a standard of 
conduct based not only on permissible intentions, but 
also on knowledge of the basic, unquestioned con
stitutional righ ts of his charges. Such a standard 
imposes neither an unfair burden upon a, person assuming 
a responsible public office requiring a high degree of in .. 
telligence and judgment for the proper fulfillment of its 
duties, n.oI' an unwarranted burden in light of the value 
which civil rights have in our legal system. Any lesser 
standard would deny much of the promise of § 1983, 
Therefore, in the specific context of school discipline, we 
hold that a school board member is not immune from 
liability for damages under § 1983 if he knew or reason
ably should have known that the action he took within 
his sphere of official responsibility would violate the con
stitutional rights of the student affected, or if he took the 
action with the malicious intention to cause a deprivation 
of constitutional rights or other injury to the student. 
That is not to say that school board members are 
"charged with predicting the future course of constitu
tional law." Pierson v. Ray, 386 U. S., at 557. A com
pensatory award will be appropriate only if the school 
board member has acted with such an impermissible mo
tivation or with such disregard of the student's clearly 
C'stablish€'d constitutional rights that his action cannot 
reasonably be characterized as bei,ng in good faith. 

III 
The Court of' Appeals, based upon its"review of the 

facts but without the benefit of the transcript of the testi
, mony given at the four-day trial to the jury in the Dis-
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trict Court,13 found that the board had made its decision 
to expel the girls on the basis of no evidence that the 
school regulation had been violated: 

"To justify the suspension, it was necessary for 
the Board to establish that the students possessed 
or used an 'intoxicating' beverage at a school-spon
sored activity. No evidence was presented at either 
meeting to establish the alcoholic content of the 
liquid brought to the campus. Moreover, the Board 
made no finding that the liquid was intoxicating. 
The only evidence as to the nature of the drink was 
that supplied by the girls, and it is clear that they 
did not know whether the beverage was intoxicating 
or not." 485 F. 2d, at 190. 

Although it did not cite the case as authority, the Court 
of Appeals was apparently applying the due process ra
tionale of Thompson v. City of Louisville, 362 U. S. 199, 
206 (1960),14 to the public school disciplinary process. 
The applicability of Thompson in this setting, however, 
is an issue that need not be reached in this case.lS The 
record reveals that the decision of the Court of Appeals 

13 At the time of the Court of Appeals decision, the testimony 
at the trial t.o the jury had not been transcribed because of counsel's 
concern with limiting litigation costs. Tr. of Oral Arg. 23. The 
tran)~l;ript was filed in the District Court after certiorari was granted. 
App. 120 n. 2. 

14 See also Vachon v. New Hampshire, 414 U. S. 478, 480 (1974); 
Gregory v. Chicago, 394 U S. 111, H2 (1969) j Johnson v. Florida, 
391 U. S. 596,598-599 (19fj8) j Shuttleswol'th v. City of Birmingham, 
382 U. S. 87, 94-95 (1965); Garner v. Louisiana, 368 U. S. 157 
(1961). Cf. Boilermakers v. Hardeman, 401 U. S. 233, 246 (1971). 

lG That is not to say that t.he requirements of procedural due process 
do not. nUMh to ('xpulsion~. Over the pa~t, 1:3 years the Courts of 
Appeals have without eX('('ption held that proc('dural dUc'process re
quiremcnts must be satisfied if n student is to be expelled. See Goss 
v. LopezJ 419 U. S. 565, 576-578, n. 8 (1975). 

_~ __ ~ ____ ~~~~ __ ~ __ ~ __________________ ~L ___ ~_, ~~ ____________ ~ ______ _ 
------------------'----_.... ,-" \« ... ..! 
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was based upon an erroneous construction of the school 
regulation in question. Once that regulation is properly 
construed. the Thompson issue disappears. 

The Court of Appeals interpreted the school regula
tion prohibiting the usc or possession of intoxicating 
beverages as beillg linked to the definition of "intoxi
cating liquor" under Arkansas statutes H1 which re
strict the t.C'rm to beverages with an alcoholic content 
exceeding 5% by weight.1

' Testimony at the trial, how
ever, established convincingly that the term "intoxicat
ing beverage" in the school regulation was not intended 
at the time of its adoption in 1967 to be linked to the 
definition in the state statutes or to any other 
technical definition of "intoxicating." 18 The adop-

1G See Ark. Stnt. Ann. §§ 48-lOi, 48-503 (1964). 
17 The Court of App('nls referred to ('omments which seemed also 

to adopt this construction made by the District Court in its findings 
of fact when it denied respondents' motion for a preliminary injunc
tion. 485 F. 2d, at 190; App. 80. After noting the District Court's 
initinl view that, petitioners would find it difficult to prove .the 
requisite alcoholic content, the Court. of Appenls expressed puzzle
ment at the failure of the lower court to discuss the absence of 
such eyidenre in its final opinion. The District Court, however, 
indicated in its instructions that the question of the proper con
struction of the regulation would not be relevant. if the jury found 
that. the school officials in good faith considered the malt liquor find 
puneh to fnIl within the ~egulation. 348 F. Supp., at 248. The 
District Court's ultima1e conclusion apparently mnde unnecessary 
a finnl decision on the ('oyernge of the regulation. 

DQll:pitc it~ ('om:t ruction of the pr('scnt rC'gulation, the Court of Ap
peals indicated that the school board had the authority to prohibit 
the use and po::;r-('ssion of alcoholic bc\'crnges or to continue its policy 
of proscribing only i1ltoxicating beverages. 485 F. 2d, at 191. 

18 Two members of the ::;chool board at the time that 1he regula
tion wns adoptrd testified that there hnd been no discllssion of tying 
the regulation to the State Alcohol Control Act and that the intent 
of the board mpmber!; wa::; to Co\W b(,N. Tr. 466-467 (testimony 
of pr(itioner Wood) i id., at 589-590 (testimony of Mrs. Gerald 
Goforth). 
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tion of the regUlation was at a time when the school 
board was concerned with a previous beer-drinking epi
sode.1o It was applied prior to respondents' case to 

, another student charged with possession of beer.~o In 
its statement of facts issued prior to t.he onset of this 
litigation, the school board expressed its construction of 
the regulation by finding that t·he girls had brought an 
Ha.lcoholic bev('ragc" onto school premises.:l1 The girls 
themselves admitted knowing at the time of the incident 
that they were doing something wrong which might be 
punished.~~ In light of this- evidence, the Court of 
Appeals was ill advised to supplant the interpretation 
of the regulat,ion of those officers who adopted it, and are 
entrusted with its enforcement. Cf. Grayned v. City of 
Rockford, 408 U. S. 104, 110 (1972). 

When the regUlation is construed to prohibit the use 
and possession of beverages containing a.lcohol, there was 
no absence of evidence before the school board to prove 
the charge against respondent.s. The girls had admitted 
that they intended to "spike" the punch and tha.t they 
had mixed malt liquor into the punch that was served. 
The third girl estimated at the time of their admissions to 
\Valler that the malt liquor had an alcohol content of 20%. 
After the exp~lsion decision had been made and this 

10 Sec the mil1llt('s of th(' board meeting at which tho re.l!ulntion 
WaH ndoptC'd in App. 1O:~-1O-t. Sr(' nl:-:o Tr. 4:31-t:32 (t('~timony 
of l'vrrR. Mary L. Spcnrer, nl:-:o a board member when the regulation 
\\'1\:-: ndnpiC'd); id .. lit fi~i-!)SS (:\Irt-:. (;oforth). 

20 The student \\':18 ::;11:-:prmlrd in Ortobcr 1971 for the possession 
of beer at fl, 8('hool IIrtidty. There is no indication in til<' record of 
the aJc'oholir ('ont('nt, of thC' hC'er. See Tr. 258-259, 268-269 (tc8ti
mon~' of form<>r Sl1prrin t rnclC'nt. Inlow). 
• 21 Seo n. 4, ,~upra. Roon nftrr this litigation hnd begun, the board 
lRsuod n. stntcmrnt which said that the regulation "prohibitR the use 
nncl J)o:-::'IC':'I::ioll 01 nlroholir bC'\·C'r:tA'e Oil Rrhool pr('mis('s ... ." App. 
139. 

2:: SeC' Tr. 7,1 (Stric'klund); id., lit 110, t21 (Crnin). 

! l _________________________________ " __________ ~ ______ ~~k~ ____ ~' __ ~ ____ \~,~~~~ __ ~ ____________ ~' _______ ~.~~ __ ~~ __ ~~ ______________ _ 
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litigation had begun, it was conclusively determined that 
the malt liquor in fact, had an alcohol content not exceed
ing 3.2% by weight.23 Testimony at trial put the alcohol 
content of the punch served at 0.91 %.24 

Given the fact that there was evidence supporting the 
charge against respondents, the contrary judgment of the 
Court of Appeals is improvident. It is not the role of 
the federal courts to set aside decisions of school adminis
trators which the court may view as lacking a basis in 
wisdom or compassion. Public high school students do 
have subst.antive and procedural rights while at school. 
See Tinker v. Des Moines Independent Community 
School District, 393 U. S. 503 (1969); JVest Virginia 
State Board of Education v. Barnette, 319 U. S. 624 
(1943); Goss v. Lopez, 419 U. S. 565 (1975). But § 1983 
does not extend the right to relitigate ill federal court 
evidentiary questions arising in school disciplin;9.ry pro
ceedings or the proper construction of school regula
tions. The system of public education that has evolved 
in this Nation relies necessarily upon the discretion and 
judgment of school administrators and school board 
members, and § 1983 was not intended to be a vehicle 
for federal-court corrections of errors in the exercise of 
tha.t discretion which do not rise to the level of viola
tions of specific constitutiona.l guarantees. See Epper
son v. Arkansas, 393 U. S. 97, 104 (1968); Tinker, supra, 
at 507. 

IV 
Respondents l complaint alleged that their procedural 

due process rights were violated by the action taken by 
petitioners. App. 9. The District Court did not discuss 

23 This perr.entnge content was established through the deposition 
of nn officer of the company that produces ItRight Time" malt liquor. 
Apr.. 93-94. 

24 Tr. 205 (testimony of Dr. W. F. Turner). 
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this claim in its final opinion, but the Court of Appeals 
viewed it as presenting a substantial question. It con
cluded that the gil'1s were denied procedural due process 
at the first school board meeting, but also intimated that 
the second meeting may have cured the initial procedural 
deficiencies. Having fonnd a substantiye due process 
violation, however, the court did not reach a conclusion 
on this procedural issue. 485 F. 2d, at. HIO. 

Respondents have argued here that there was a pro
cedural due process violation which also supports the 
result reached by the Court of Appeals. Brief for 
Respondent.s 27-28. :16. But b('callsc the District 
Court did not discuss it, and the Cou'rt of Appeals did 
not decide it, it would be preferable to have the Court of 
Appeals consider the issue in the first instance. 

The judgment of the Court of Appeals is vacated and 
the case remanded for further proceedings consistent with 

. this opinion. 

So ordered. 

MR. JUSTICE POWELL. with whom THE CHmF JUSTICE, 

MR .. TUSTICE BLACKMUN. and MH .• TUSTICE REHNQuisT 

join, concurring ill part and dissC'ntillg in part. 

I join in Parts I: III, and IV of the Court's opinion, 
and agl'ee that the judgment of the Court of Appeals 
should be vacated and the case remanded. I dissent 
from Part II which appears to impose a higher standard 
of ca.re upon public school officials, sued under § 1983, 
than that heretofor'e required of any other official. 

The holding of the Court on the immunity issue is 
set forth in the margin. l It would impose personal 

1 liTho disngr()C'ment. hC'twcen the Court of Appeals and the District 
CQurt o\'cr thC' immunity standard in this case hns been put in terms 

, •. of,. an .... 'objective' versus n. 'subjective' test of good fnith. As we 
lice it, tho IIpproprinto I:ltnndnrd necessarily cantn·ills clements of both. 
The om('ial him~dr must bond ing sincerely and' with u. belief that 
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liability on a school official who acted sincerely and in 
the utmost good faith, but who was found-after the 
fact-to have acted in "ignora.nce ... of settled, indis
putable la\v.

Jl 
Ante, at 321. Or. as the Court also puts 

it. the school official must be held to a standard of con
duct based not only on good faith Clbut also on knowledge 
of the basic. unquestioned constitutional rights of his 
cha.rgrs. ,. Ante, at 322. l\10reover, ignorance of the law 
is explicitly rquated with Clactual malice." Ante, at 321. 

he is doing right, but an act violating a student's constitutional rights 
ean be no more ju:::tified by ignornnce or disregard of settled, indis
putable law on the part of one entrusted with supervision of stu
dents' daily li"es than by the prcsenee of lIctual malice. To be 
entitled to a s}lC'cial exemption from the categorical remedial lan
guage of § 1983 in It cllse in which his action "iolnted a student's 
('onstitut.ionnl rights, a school board membrr, who has voluntarily 
undertaken thf' tnsk of l';lll)ef\'i~ing the OI)erntion of the school and 
the activitirs of t he sf ud<.'Ilts, must be held to It standnrd of ('onduet 
based not only on permissible intentions, but. also on knowledge of 
the basic, unqu('stioned constitutional rights of his charges. Su.ch a 
standnrd neither imposes nn unfair burden upon a person assuming 
n. rC'sponsible public oillcr requirin~ a high drgrce of inteIIigen~e and 
judgmp.nt for the propp.r fulfillment of its duties, nor an unwarrunted 
bllrdp.n in Ji~ht of t he value which ci\"i[ rightsi ha \"e in our legal 
system. An\" lesi>cr standard would dcn~r much of the promise of 
§'1983. Th~refore, in the specific context of school discipline, we 
hold that a ~('hool board. member is not immune from liability for 
damages lIndf'f § lOR3 if he knew or rcnsonnbly shoul.d have known 
thnt the action he took within his sphere of officinl responsibility 
would violnte the' ('onstitlltional rights of thr student nffected, or 
if he took t he action with the m:llicious intention to calise n depriva
tion of ('on~titutionaI rights or othrr injurr to the student. That is 
not to say that school board mp.mbers nre 'charged with predicting 
the future course of ('onstitutional law! Pierson v. Ralll 386 U. S. 
[Mi, 557 (196;).] A compensntory award will be tlpproprill.tc only 
if the ~rhool hoard memher haf': tlctp.d with BUl'h an impermissible 
motivntion or with ~uch disregard of the stlldent's clearly established 
ronstitutionnl rights that his action cannot reasonnbly be character
izC'd as being in good faith." Ante, at 321-:322. 
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This harsh standard, requiring knowledge of what is char
acterized as "settled, indisputable law," leaves little sub
stance to the doctrine of qualified immunity. The 
Court's decision appears to rest on an unwarranted 
assumption as to what lay school officials know or can 
know about the law and constitutional rights. These 
officia.ls will now act at the peril of some judge or jury 
subsequently finding that a good-faith belief as to the 
applicable law was mistaken and hence actionable.2 

l"he Court states the standard of required knowledge 
in two cryptic phrases: "settled, indisputable law" and 
Ilunquestioned constitutional rights." Presumably these 
are intended to mean the same thing, although the mean
ing of neither phrase is likely to be self-evident to con
stitutional law scholars-much less the average school 
board member. One need only look to the decisions of 
this Court-to our reversals, our recognition of evolving 
concepts, and our five-to-four splits-to recognize the 
hazard of even informed prophecy as to what are "un
questioned constitutional rights." Consider, for example, 
the recent five-to-four decision in G088 v. Lopez, 419 U. S. 
565 (1975), holding that a junior high school pupil rou
tinely suspended for as much as a single day is entitled to 
due process. I suggest that most lawyers and judges would 
have thought. prior to that decision, that the law to the 
contrary was settled, indisput.able

1 
and unquestioned.3 

2 The opinion indicates that actual malice is presumed where 
one acts in ignoran('e of the law; thus it would appear that even 
good-faith reliance on the advice of counsel is of no avail. 

:I The Court's rationale in Goss suggests, for example, that school 
officials may infringe a stUdent's right to education if they place 
him in n. noncolI('~('-prrpnratory track or deny him promotion with 
his class Without affording a due process hearing. See 419 U. S., at 
597-599 (POWELL, .J., diss('ntillg). D(){'s this mean that school 
officials who fail to pro"ide such hearings in the future will be 
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Less than a year ago, in Scheuer v. Rhodes, 416 U. S. 
232 (1974), and in an opinion joined by all participating 
members of the Court, a considerably less demanding 
standard of liability was approved with respect to two 
of the highest officers of the, State, the Governor and 
Adjutant General. In that case, the estates of students 
killed at Kent State University sued these officials under 
§ 1983. After weighing the competing claims, the Court 
concluded: 

"These considerations suggest that, in varying 
scope, a qualified immunity is available to officers 
of the executive branch of government, the variation 
being dependent upon the scope of discretion and 
responsibilities of the office and all the circumstances 
as they reasonably appeared at the time of the action 
on which liability is sought to be based. It is the 
existence of reasonable grounds for the belief formed 
at the time and in light of all the circumstances, 
coupled with good-faith belief, that affords ~ basis 
for qualified immunity of executive officers for acts 
performed in the course of official conduct." 416 
U. S., at 247-248. (Emphasis added.) 

The italicized sentence from Scheuer states, as I view 
it, the correct standard for qualified immunity of a gov
ernment official: whether in light of the discretion and 
responsibilities of his office, and under all of the circum
stances as they appeared at the time, the officer acted 
reasonably and in good faith.' This was the standard 

liable under § 1983 if a court subsequently determines that they were 
required? 

For another current example of how unsettled constitutional law, 
deemed by somc/t least to be quite settled, may turn out to be, 
see the decision and opinions in North Georgia Finishing, Inc. v. 
Di-Chem, Inc., 419 U. S. 601 (1915), nnd compare with MR. JUSTICE 

STEWART'S dissent in Mitchell v. W. T. Grant Co" 416 U. S. 600, 629 
(1974). 
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applied to the Governor of a State charged with mali
ciously calling out National Guardsmen who killed and 
wounded Kent State students." Today's opinion offers 
no reason for imposing a more severe standard on school 
board members charged only with wrongfully expelling 
three teenage pupils. 

There are some 20,000 school boa.rds, each wit.h five or 
more members, and thousands of school superintendents 
and school principals. Most of the school board mem
bers are popularly elected, drawn from the citizenry at 
large) and possess no unique competency in divining the 
law. Few cities a.nd counties provide any compensation 
for service on school boards, a.nd often it is difficult to 
persuade qualified persons to assume the burdens of this 
important function in our society. Moreover, even if 
counsel's advice constitutes a defense, it may safely be 
assumed that few school boards and sC,hool officials have 
ready a,ccess to counselor indeed have deemed it neces
sary to consult counsel on the countless decisions that 
necessarily must be made in the operation of our public 
schools. 

In view of toda.y's decision significantly enhancing the 
possibility of personal liability, ,one must wonder whether 
qualified persons will continue in the desired numbers 
to volunteer for service in public education. 

4 The de('j~jon of thf.! Court in Scheuer with respect to qualified 
immunity if: consi~tent with Mr. Chief Justice Warren's opinion 
for tIl(' Com! in Pierso/l ", ROil. :lS6 U. S. 5-ti (1967), where it wus 
flnid; "If the jury brliC'\'('(1 1 h(' trsl imon~' of the officers nnd disbe
Iim'eel thnt of Ih(' lllini:O:l('r:::. and if the jmy found that the officers 
r('nsonnbl~' brlie\'('(/ in ~uod faith thnt the arrest WfiS constitlltionnl,' 
then 1\ \'crdirt for thp offir('r:-: would follow <'\'('n though the ,qrrest 
w:w in fnet IIIH'Ollfltitutiollnl. Jl Id .. at, 557. . 

As in Scheuer, the standnrd prescribed is one of acting in good faith 
in n.ccordnnce with reasonable belief that the nction was lawful and 
justified. Not e,"en police officers were held lillhlc 'for ignorance of 
IIscttled, indisplltnb/c law." .' 
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GOSS ET AL. v. LOPEZ ET AL. 

APPEAL FROM THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 
SOUTHERN DISTHICT OF OHIO 

No. i3-898. Ar/!uerl Odobl'r 16, 19i4-Dccid~ .Tanuary 22. 197:') 

Appellee Ohio puhlir high school students. who hnrl bet'll suspendrd 
from' 8chool for mi::t'ondlll·t for til) to 10 days without a h(lar
Ulg, hrought :l das:-; act ion again:;t appellant school officials sceking 

. '. ":1 ue('laratioll that tllP Ohio statute' llNmitting :::1I(~h suspensions was 
ull('onstimtionnl and an order enjoininp: the offieials to remove till' 
rcfereIH'e::: to thC' ~1I:,pf'n..:ioll:-: frolll rill' 'itlldt'i!t~' ree·ord~. A thrce
jud~o District. Court. declared that appellee.:; were denied due 
process of Jaw in \'iolntion of the Fourteenth Amendment becnus(' 
the~' wern lIsusp(,lldt'd without hearing: prior to suspension or 
within a reasonahle time thereafter," and that the stntute and 
imT>l(,lII~lltillg: rCl!ul:ltion:o: wC're) U1H'on:::titlttional. and ~l':Int('tl tilt' 
requE.':'ited injullction. H cld: 

1. Student" facin~ temporarr susp('nsion from a public school 
h~wl' propl'rty :lnd libC'rty interests that qualify for protl't~tion 
under thC' DUl' l'rocess Clause of the Fourteent h AmrlltiU1I'ilt. 
Pp. 5i2-5itj. 

(a) Hm'ing cho~en to e:\iend thl~ right to nn eduration to 
peopln of appeilees' class genernlly. Ohio may not. withdraw that 
right on groull(f:; of misconduct. absent fllnclnm011tally fair proct'
dures to determine whether the mi~conrl!lrr hft:' occurred. anrl 
must recc~njzc n student l

,.; lc-gitinlfLtl' <'fifitiement to n pubiic 
,education :15 a property intl'rest that is protC'cted by the Due 
Proce~~ Clause, and that may Ilot be takt'n away for miscon<ill('t 
without obserTing minimum procedures required br that. Clause. 
Pl'. 5i3-.5i4. 

(b) SLtce misconduct ehnr~(,R if sustuiIlt'd :l~ld recorrled could 
seriousl~' damage the ~tudC'nts' reputation as W(\11 !is interfere with 
later edll('ational and employml'nt opporhll1itil~, the Stute's 
clnimed right to uetermine unilatcr:1llr anll without proc(.~ 
whether that miscondm't ha:'i occurrc'(l immcdi:1ldy roihdes with 
the Due Proces::; Clnuse's prohibition ngllinst arbitrary depriva
tion of Iib(,rty. Pll. 5i4-5;5. 

(c) A 1O-d:1Y suspl'lIsion from school b: not de minimis and 
may not be imposed in complete disreg;mI of the DuL' Pro('l~::i 

Reproduced by the Library of Congress, Congressional 
Research Service, October 20, 1975. 
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Clause. :\either tht' propeny interest in educa.tional benefits 
temporarily denied nor the lib('rt~'interest in reputation is so 
insubstantial tha.t suspensions mny constitutiona.lly be imposed 
by any procedure the school uhooses, no matter how arbitra.ry. 
Pp. 575-576. :' 

2. Due process requires, in, connection with a suspension of 10 
da)'~ or les.:;. that the ~tude!'lt be gin:'n oral or written notice of 
the charges against him and, if he denies them, an explanation 
of the e\'idence the' authorities have and an opportunity to present 
his version. Generally, notice and hearing should precede the 
student's remo\"nl fli'om school, sincl.' the hearing may almost 
immediately follow t.he misconduct, but if prior notice and hearing 
are not r~asible. as "'here th(' ~tudl'nt's pre~eIlcc ('ndan~('fs per~on~ 
or property or thre:ltC'ns rli~r\lption of the :H'adC'mic procC':,~, Ihn:: 
justifying immediate remo\'al from school, the necessary not icc 

. and hearing should follow as soon as practicable. Pp. 57i-584. 
3;2 F. Supp. 12i9, affinncd. 

WHITE. J., deli"ered t he opinion of the Court, in which DOUGLAS, 
BRENNAN, STr.W~Rl', and ~I.~nl{H .. \f.r., JJ" joined. POWELL, J., filC"d 
a dL-:senting opinion, in whklt BURGETt, C. J., and BLACK~ruN and 
Rr.HNQUIST, J.1., joined, post. p. 584. 

Thomas A. Bw,tin argued the cause for appellants. 
~rith him on the' briefs were James J. Hughes, Jr., Robert 
A. Bell, and Patrick .1[. illcGrath. 

Peter D. Roos a.rgued the CD.use for appellees, With' 
him on the' brief were Denis .;.llurphy and Kenneth C. 
Curtin.· 

·John F. LtU'is filed a brif'f for the BllrkeyC' Assoriation of School 
Administrators C"t 31. as amici C'uriar urgin~ rc\'ersal. 

Briefs of amici cun'ae urging affirmance were filed by Dadd 
Bonderman, Pett" Van N. Lockwood, Paul L. Tractenbag, Dal!id 
Rub;'l. :lnd Jr. WWiam Hodes for the Nationnl Committt'c for Citi
zens in Educa.tion el a!'; by Alan H. Lcdnc, ill dldn L. lVul/, an.d 
Jar! .11. Gora for the American Ch·u LibC'rtics Union; by Robert ll. 
Kapp. R. Stcpht'n Browning, :lnd .Vath(lTIiel R. Jones for the Na
tional AS:lol'iation for the Ad\'ancement of Colored People et al.; 
"nrl by M aria II H'n'ght Edrlmau Cor the Childr('n's Dccense Fund oC 
the Washington ncsear~h Project, Iuc., et al. 

f) 

1 
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MR. ,Tt:STICE 'VHITE delivered the opinion of the Court. 

This appeal by various administrators of the Columbus, 
Ohio, Public School System (CPSS) challenges the 
judgment of a three-judge federal court, declaring that 
appellees-various high school students in the CPSS
were denied due process of law contrary to the command 
of the Fourteenth Amendment in that. they were tem
porarily suspended from their high schools without a 
hearing either prior to suspension or within a reasonable 
time thereafter, and enjoining the administrators to 
remove all references to such suspensio~s from the stu
den ts' record5. 

I 

Ohio law, Re\·. Code Ann. § 3313.64 (19i2), provides for 
free education to all children between the agos of six and 
21. Section 3313.66 of the Code empowers the principal 
of an Ohio public school to suspend a pupil for miscon
duct for up to 10 days or to expel him. In either case he 
must notify the student's parents within 24 h~ur~ 
and state the reasons for his action. A pupil who is ex
pelled, or his parents, may appeal the decision to thp. 
Board of Education and in connection therewith shall be 
permi tted to be heard at the board meeting, The board 
may reinstate the pupil following the hearing. ,No sim
i1~~ procedure is pro"ided in § 3313.60 or any other pro
VISIon of state law for a suspended student. Aside from 
8. r.egulation tr!lcking. the ~tatute, at the time of the impoe 
SItlOll of the suspenSIons In this case the CPSS itself had 
not issued any \\Titten procedure applicable to sus
pensions.

1 
Nor, so far as the reco.rd reflects~ had any of 

.1 ~t H~c tim~ of, tht' r\'E'nfs i!I\'oh,,.d in thi~ r:l:"r. thr- only ad
~llIms!n\lh\'e .regulatlon on this subject \\':15 § If'iIO,O-1 of the Admin
JStr:tt1~"e GUide of the Columbus Public Schouh-· '~!Iich pro\,idc..J. 
lip', be 11. 

,UP1.lS may" suspcl1de~ or cxpelled from school in nc('ordancc 
~Ith the prO\'ISlons of Sc('uon 331:3,66 uf thE' Re\'i:ied Code." Sub::c-
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the'i~divith.ial'hi'gh '~ho61s hi\;olyed in thi~ 'c,ase.2 Each, 
howe~'er:"'had 'formally 'or informally' described the' con
duct'f6r'\vhi~ksuspetlsion co'uld,be imposed:'· .' ' 

TIHtnirie ~named ap'pellees; each' of whom" alleged that 
he or '~he llad b~'eri susp'en'ded fro'm 'public high schdol in ' 

',. \ • : • p. " .... '. -I' . 

Colum~us fOJ',u}! ~~ '~O 51~~'s :~\'!thOI!,t a hparing pUI'~llUllt 
to ~ a?~;~.6~", ,fil~d,~h ~hi~tl. agai.llst the Columbus Board 
of '~dUC~tiOli and "adou's 'adiilirlistt'atOl:s of the CPSS 
unH&,r"42" r .. ::s:: C:·l"§ 1083. The compl~fnt sought a 

. 1'~: ... :' r ~~ ... t;~·\: '. ~\ , . 

qllf'ilt: 'Tb th~~\~'nt/ jn{·~~i\"~i iti:t hi~ Ia'\~·Stiit. the Department of Pupil 
PE'r~on'rie( oft h~ C-PSS is~ued threr memoranda rclat!ng to suspension 
prorrdllrrs. dutcn AUJ%lI:lt 16. 19;1, F('hrllnry 21, 19i5. nnd .Tilly 10. 
19;3, :rf'spc(l!i\'{'b:, "T:h~ first: two are substantially similar to euch 
otlu:r :lndrr~j\lir(', I}o fql'Jpnding Jwarin~ at uny time in conllN,tion 
with :i I'mspcn;.io~; , TI~o thjrd, whil'h wus apparently in effect wi It' Il , 
this case \\'us 'argued; i places' upon th(' prinCipal the obligation to 
j'jn\'cstlgate'" \'Qeforc commencing suspension procedures"; 'and 

, pr(l\'id(l~' as part ',of th~procedllrl'~ thtit the prinC'ipnl shall di::rus~ the 
cn~t> with, the pupil. so thnt thl' pupihnny "be h('nrd with respel't to' 
the :lllcl;l'd offcl!se.~' ~nle::is, thE' pUlljl is, uuntlvailable" for such n 
discussion Qr, "}m~\:~lin~" to Jlarti(~ip:lt(' in it. ,The suspensions in
\'oh'ed'in this case occurred, I\rid rccorcls thereof were mudo, prior 
to the cffe('tin> datE' of th('sl' ml'll}Orunda. The Di:,trit:t 
Court'~~ llid'grilcnt,' "inc'ludin~ its r.~punction' order.' tur'ns on the pro
prif't~·: of· thr.:ipr()(!(>dQres' e-,dst,ing' ~\t the' time the suspensions were 
ordes:~, ~nd b~'i r.yhic~); t~~~ :wcire inlpo,~ed.,· ;. '" . 

z ~~~?J:~i,~,,}p, ,tl,l~ ~~stiHwn~; ?,rrh,uJip, Flllton, the prin~ip'nJ of one 
of th~. oU;h s~~oo'z) lm'ph'cd ,10 tins puse, there was nn inform;ll 
pror~dlii'~: nppflc:tbi~ ~(. the M~rj'on-Fr:inkiill High School: 'It pro~ 
\'idccltli~tti iii tht;: 1"0l\ti~I~ 'rnsc ~f"miscoriduct, oCC\lrring in tIll' pi't.s
~ilce of n teacher. t ht' teacher would d(':{crib(' the misconduct on n 
forn~~ :pr()'~'!~ed' tor:';h~t: r\lr~o~e,Il~'cl,',~~ouid scnd"t~e ,st~dent, wit It 
thl~ .i~rr~l~" ~o ,t~e ~rm.(·IPill s o.fih~c .• ~ 1')l~,re, the prmclpal would 
oht:!I" fll(· ~udent't: ,;l'rsion of tlie':Hury. :llia, if'itconflit-tcd with thl' 
tc'al'iher'~'iwriit'cll \'e':~iC)il;' would $e~d' for the t('acb('r to obtain tIlt.' 
tClldhvr':l 'ornl ','e~ion-a}Jn~rently' ill th~ p~('sencc oJ the stud!mt. 
~Ir. Fultorltestifiedthqt, ir a ~i~crep:tncy.still cxist('d'. the tearhcr'~ 
J,'cr!'ion would be ~li~\'ed' nnd the principhl would arrive at, n. dis
cipHnary "!ccision baSt.'<i on it. 
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de<iiil,ration':ttiilt· §';33i3:66 ,vas 'rin'cnnstituti8na,l in ~tha:tl it' 
permitted public 'school'adniinisttatots to 'deprive plaiil!1" 
t~ffs of their righ ts' to an education wit})(} tit· a::he~ring;'or 
any kind, h}' violatioli' of tlle'!procedu'ral due"process 'Corll,: 
ponent 6fthe Fourteenth Aincl{dn1ent': ;\;tt~alsO-'soug~tto 
enjoin theipuol'ic "sChool officirils:froitii:i~uing 'future ·sus'; 
pensio'ns pursuan t to'- § 3si3.66' anif to: reqoire thenn to 
remo:ve references- to: th-e,' "past; $USP¢llsi'ons, Ifrolh" the 

, .• ,- I· . • ., 1\ ' • • ~. 

records of the students in qliestititU'~: !,i ';", ·J:;~·lr.tv'[':" 
, '. The proof below established that the suspeflsion's 

arose out of's," pe'riod ·of" widespfeau ';'Sili'c.le1lt tinrest 
in the CPSS," du'i-1ng February: ail(r:. !vrar~h':'·'l9.71~ 

, !, ..... , . " 
Six of the na.med plaintiffs: Rudolph Sutton," Tyrone 
'Vashington. Susan Cooper. Deborah F6x'~ Clarence Byirs; 
and Bruce H~rtis, ,,'ere students at· the ~1arion:Franklin 
High School and were each suspeij'ded for 10 days' .. Qli' 
account of disruptive' or diScibedien:t 'cOlidtict conimittea 
in the presenc'e of the school admiltistrator who 'Otdkred 
the suspension. ,One of these. i'ryro'il:e "Yaslihlgtoil: :~\'~s 
among a group of students 'demonsttatiilg'~ ill; 'the ;sch'oo} 
auditorium while a: class was being conducted :ther~j>He 
was ordered by the schoof principal 'to leav~~; '.r~f~se4 

,;:. : !. ~ t~. :. ,;,,'.. • ; .. < I 

3 Thc pll}intifi'1! sought to'bring -the, tlctiou; on, bchnlf()fiill;~lIdimts 
of the COlU!llbul! Public: Schools suspC'nd,cd OI!, ,or l1f.tqr;.'Fc~n~~t~): 
19i1,.and a pIns.,; a,ction wns decl;lr(·d l\efq~ctinglr .. <Sir.l(·t\ ~I;1,c:,,('om-; 
pla~nt ',s~ug~!: t~ ,restrn~~ •. t~~ lle~r~~f~~eqG~': n~~, .';i'op:~~htiori'~',?[ ~~ 
statestatutC' "by' rcstrammg the :teflon of 'any officer at such ,state 
in the enfor('cmcnt or execution of such'sbrttl(c.;" 'it'th'rcl,;.jLage e6utt 
was requested pursuant to 28 U. S., C. § 2281 ,and com'cned: . The 
stuQcnts also ':ill('ged that thc' conduc't for"\\·I!i~1.i ilic), ~Cb.\lJa 'bJ ~i;s
pended ~vas not adequately dcfipcd b)~' 01110 ,lnw.:· Tlii.-$,\'u/gucnq:;s' 
and o\'erbreadth, nrgulJjent wns (ejccted by'! 11(': r'6ilr( bcto'\\: nnd til~; 
studrints ha\'e no! appealed frOlil thi~ 'iJa'rt' (it'l till' cotirr's' 'd'ci;isi<iii: 

• Fox was gi\'(,11 ,two ~l'p(\rate lU-d,IY ':iir:-:lil;lI:ij'()il:l .r'o~ Ili'i.;irolldu'cl: 
occurrin~ on IWo ::!cJlaraH.> ol'ca:-:ion~-tlll" ::!t'~'o'nd' followjlig' 'iJmnNli~ 
ately upon ht'r return to srhool. In addition'tb M ... ::!lIs11en::ion, Siit-' 
ton was trnnsfl'rrl?d to another school. 
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to do so. and was su~pended. Rudolph Sutton. in the 
presence of the principal, physically attacked a. po1irc 
officrr who 't\;a.~ a.ttempting to remove Tyrone Washmgton 
from the auditori~m. He was immediatcly suspended. 
The other four Marion .. Franklin students were suspendcd 
for simi1ar conduct, 'None was given a hearing to de
te'rmine the' operative' facts underlying the suspension. 
but each, together with his or her parents, was offered the 
o'pportunity to attend a' 'conference, subsequent to thr 
effeCith'e date of the suspension, to discuss the student's 
future, ' ,: '.,', ' 

Two named plaintiffs. Dwight Lopez and Betty Crome. 
were ~tudents at the Central High School and McGuffey 
Junior High School. respectively. The former was sus
pended in connection with a distur?ance in the lunch
room' which invoh'erl some physical damage to school 
pror>ert:v~5 'Lopez testifi,t'd that at least 75 other student~ 
WE're suspended from his school on the same day. He also 
testifird bclow thn.t' he' was not a pa.rty to the destructin~ 
conduct bur"was instead an innocent bystander. Be
cause no one fronl tne school testified with regard to this 
inCident. there is no evid(,llce in the reco'rd indicating 
the -official basis for' concluding otherwise. Lopez' never 
had· n. hearing. " 

Betty ('rome ~as p'resent at a demonstration at a high 
school other than, the one she was attcnding. There 
she was arrested together with others. taken to the pO,lice 
!'Itation. and released without being formally chargcd. 
Refore shC' \\'~rH ~o sc~ool on the follo~\'ing day, she wn,s 

~ Lorx-z was :lC'tU:1IJy absent from school. follo\\'in~ hi~ slIspen$ion. 
for o\'~r 20 dii\'s, , This seems to'ha'\'l' ,occurred ,bccause of 'n mis
understnnding ~s to the length of the s\lspt'nsion; A !ettt'r sent to 
'Lopez nfter hehnd bren oht for o\'C'r 10 days .pur-ports to nSSUnlr 
thnt, being o\'('r compu!$ory school age, hc was \"oluntarily stnyillg 
I\Wa.y. -'Upon nsserting':that this was not the c~e, Lopez was trans
ferred to another school. 
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notified that she had been suspended for a IO-day period. 
Because no one from the school testified' 'with respe<!t to 
this incident, the record does not· disclose how th~ ~Ic~' 
Guffey Junior High School principal went:about mnkil\g, " 
the decision· to susppnd Crome. nor does, it ,'disclos(\ 
on what information the decision was based. ' It is 'clear ' 
from the record that no }learing was ever held. 

There was no testimony with respect to the' suspelision ' 
of the ninth named p]aintiff~ Carl Smith.: The, school 
files were also silent as to his suspension, although' as to: 
some, but not all. of the other named plaintiffs the files' 
contained either direct references to their suspe'nsiolls . 
or copies of letters sent to their par~nts advising them 

.; . '. .. of the suspension. . " .. 

On the basis of this evidence, the three-judg~'coUl't 
declared that plaintiffs were denied due process pf law 
because they were "suspended without hearing priOl' to 
suspeJlsioJl or within a reasonnblt· time thereafter." and 
that Ohio Rc\r. Code Anu. ~ 3313.uu (1972) and'regula
tions issued pursuant thereto were unconstitutional in . 
permitting sueh suspensions.", It was ordered that all, .. 
references to plnintiffs' suspensions be '. remo'"cd from 
school filcs. 

Although not imposin~ upon the Ohio school nclrilinis
trators any particular uis('ip1innry procpqurcs nnd 1Cfl\?'lg' ,,' 
theIn Hfr('c to adopt rC'glllat,ions prO\'i(lillg ,for.fnir SUSIWIl

sion procrdures which arc consonant with th'E.' educational ' 
goals of their schools and reflccth'c of the characteristics • 
of their school and locality," the District Court cfeclared ' 

t •• 

• In its judgment, the court St3ted that t-hc' ::tntutl' is hnronsti(lI: : .. 
tional in that it':pro\'id(':: "for ;m~pC'n~ion ... withollt"fir.~t :nfTordinl: ' '. 
the student duc prOCC$S of Ia\\'," (Empha~is sUPJ>lied.) HO\\'c\'cr, the '. I 

lnngu3gc of the judgment must he rC'3d in lit:rht of the' language ill .' 
thr opinion which exprcs~Jy ('ontemplates thaI undl'r ~Olll'" Cir<'lllll- ' 
stnnc('s studtmts mny properly he feln(l\'ed froin school hefoT<.' n' " 
hearing is held. so long 3S the henring follows promptly. I .' • , .', 
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that there were '.'minimum requirements of notice and 
a ~1Pftrin~. prior t~ suspension. except in emergency situa
~ions. ". .In. ~xpli('ation. the ~o~rt. stated that relevftpt 
casp nutl~ortt~· '~'ou]d: (1) p<'rmit (j' [i) mmediat(' removal 
of a stU~(,I}t who.s{'conduct disrupts the acndemic 'at
m.?~phere·of the schqol: endangers fellow students. teach
ers .or school :pffici~]s, or dam~ges property"; (2) require 
notIce of suspension proceedings to be $Cnt to' the stu
drllt's pnrrnts within 24 hours of the decision to conrluct 
t~em; and (3r require a hearing to beheld, with the stu
den~ preSf'nt. wit.hin72 hours of his removal. Finallv. 
thecourtstnted that. with respect to the nature of tl~e 
henring, the rele,~ant cas<,s f(·quired that statements in 
support. of the chargr be prorlu('C'd. that the student and 
others' be permitted to make statements in defense or 
mitigiltion. and tl~at the school need not pern~it. attend ... 
an'rp qr counsel. 

The de.fendani s~hool administrators have appealed 
tJw threr-.Judge court:s derision. Because the order helm,
Jrrnntf'd plaintiffs' requ('st for an injunction-ordering de
fendants to expunge their records-this Court· has juris
dirt.ion of the, appral pursuant to 28 r. S. C. § 1253. 
'Ye affirm. 

II 
, " 

At thC' outset, appellants rontend that bCc3useth(lfe ts 
no ronstitutional.right to all t'rluration at public exp(lnsr, 
the .Due Process Clalis(\ dot's not protect, against cx
Pt~ISl()ns.fro~n thc public school syst(lfll. This position 
lnJsrOllCel\'es the natur{' of thc issue find is refuted by 
prior decisiolls. "Thc FOul'tl'!m th Amendment forbid"s 
tl~(\ Stntc to dpprh'p any per'son of life. liberty, or propcrty' 
WIthout flU(, proccs~ of In.w. Protected interests in prop
erty are normally IIno t, ('reatrd hy the' Constitutioll. 
RatJll'r: they are cretlterJ nnd their dilllC'llsions arc defilled" 
by an mdcpendellt source such fiS state 'statutes or rules 

.. ~ .. '\ 
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entitli~g :the';' citiz~n to, c~'rt~in b~nefit~., Board ot..Re-
gents v. Roth, 408 ir. S. 564. 577 (' 1972). .:. .,., .. , 

, , Accordingly, a state e~plO.y~~ who ,.u'nder 'st~te :law, 
or rlIles promulgated by state· officials,. has a, legitimate 
claim of entitlement to continued employment absent 
sufficient ,cause for discharge may demand the procedural 
protections of due process. ' Connell, v. Higginbotham, 
403 r. S'. 207 (1971); Wieman v. Updegraff, 344 U. S. 
183, 191-192 (1952); Arnett v. Kennedy, 416 U. S. 134, 
164 (POWELL, J., concurring). 171 ('''RITE, J.,.concurring 
and dissenting) (1974). So may welfare 'recipients 
who have statutory righ ts to welfare as long as they 
r!'\aintain the specified qualifications. Goldberg v. Kelly, 
397 U. S. 254 (1970). MOrr1:lsey v. Brewer, 408 U. S. 471 
(1972), applied the limitations of the Due Process Clause 
to goyernmetital decisions to re'voke parole, although a 
parolee has no constitutional right. to that status. 'In 
like vein was lVolfj v. JlfcD~nnell, 418 U. S. 539 (1974), 
where the procedural protections of the Due Process 
Clause were triggered by official cancellation of a pris
oner's good-time credits accumulated· under state1aw~ 
~Ithough those benefits were 'not mandated by the 
Constitution. ' ' 

Here, on the basis of state law, appellees, 'plainly h'ad 
legitimate claims of entitlement to a public educatioil. 
Ohio Rev. Code Ann. §§ 5313.48 and 3313.64 C1972 and 
Supp. 1973) direct local authorities to provide a free edu
catioil to all residents between five and 21' year's o(age, 
and a compulsory-attendance lnw requirC's attendance 
for a school yC'ar of not 1('s$ tha n 32 weeks.' ~ Oh io R(h·. 
Code Ann. ~ 3321.04 (lfli2). It. is true that ~ 3318.G6 
of the Code permits school principals to susperid 
students for up to two \\'('ek'R ; but suspC'nslolls 1111L)" 

not be imposed without. any grounds' whatsoever. All 
of the schools had their o~yn rules specifying the 
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grounds for expUlsion or suspension. Having chosen to 
extcnd the righ t to an education to peoplc of appc]]ees' 
class generally, Ohio may not withdraw that right on 
grounds of misconduct. absent fundamentaJJy fair pro
cedures to determine whether the misconduct has oc
curred. Arnett v. Kennedy, supra, at 164 (POWELL. J .. 
concurrillg). IiI .(WHITE, J .. concurring alld dissenting). 
206 (~[ARSHALL. J., dissenting). 

Although Ohio may not be constitutionally obligated 
to establish and maintain a public school system. it has 
ne\'ertheless done so and has required its children to at
tend. Those young peop]r. do not "shed their consti
tutional rights" at the schoolhouse door. Tinker v. 
D,:s .l[nines School Dist., 303 r. S. 503. 506 (1960). "The 
FourtC'(,llth Amendmellt. as no\\' applied to th(' Statps. 
protects the citizen against the State itself and all of its 
cr(,atures-Boards of Education not excepted." West 
Virginia Board of Educati()n Y. Bamelle, 319 U. S. 624. 
()~i (Hl4:3). ThC' authority poss('~~ed by the State to 
pr('~('ril)(' alld (,lIforf"(' ~talld:lI'ds of conduct ill its school~ 
althoUlZh (,()Ilt'rt/rdly \'('ry brond. must· be E'xercised COIl
sistently with constitutional safeguards. Among other 
thin~s. the State is constrained to recognize a student's 
~egit.irn!lti' e~titl.pment to a public education as a property 
mt('rest whICh IS protected by the Due Process Clause 
and which may not be taken away for misconduct with
out adherence to the minimum procedures required by 
that Clause. • 

. The Du.e Process Clause also forbids arbitrary depriva
tlO~lS of lIberty. lI"rhcrc a person's good name, repu
tatIOn. honor, or integrity is at stake because of what the 
~O\'("rnrn('nt is doing to him." the minimal rcquiremcnt,"l 
of th(' Clause must be satisfied. Wiscon~in v. Constall
tit/cau, 400 U. S. 433, 437 (1971); Board of Regents v. 
Roth, supra, at .573. School aut.horities here suspended 
appellees from school for periods of up to 10 days 
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based on charges of misconduct, If susta.ined and re
corded, those charges could seriously damage the students' 
standing with their fellow pupils and their trnchers as well 
as interferr with later opportunities for higher education 
and e'mploymcnt,' It is apparent that the claimed right 
of the' State' t.o d<'te'rmine' unilatrrally anci without process 
whether that misconduct has occurred immediately col
lides with the requirements of the Constitution. 

Appellants proceed to argue that even if there is a 
right to a public education protected by the Due Process 
Clause g<'nernIly. the Clause comes into play only when 
the State subjects a student to a "severe detriment or 
grie\'ot.:s loss." The loss of 10 days, it is said, is neither 
severe nor grievous and the Due Process Clause is there
for<' of no relevancE'. Appellants' argument is again re
futed by our prior decisions; for in determining Hwhether 
due process requirements app!y in the first place, we must 
look not to the 'weight' but to the nature of the interest 

T Appl'llcl's a~~ert in their brirf that four of 12 r:mdoml~' lirlertcd 
Ohio l'olll'gcs :lpl'rifir:III,\' inqllirr of till" hi~h ~chool of I!\WY applir:utt 
for admi~~ion whl"thl'r the :1pplic:lnt hns r\'l'r lx'C'n ::u~pl'nd('d. Brirf 
for Appl"lIL"(,s 3+-:35 und n, -to. Appl'llrl':: nl~o contcnd ·that mnny 
('mplo~'C'r$ rC'<llIt':,t similar informntion, Ibid. 

Congrrss has recenth' cnacted Irgislntion limitin~ access to infor
mation' contained in the files of a school .receiving federal funds, 
S('rtioll 51~1 of the Education Amendments of 19;4, Pub, L. 93-.150, 
88 Btat. 5i1, :1ddillg § -la~ to the General Educntion PrO\'i::ioll$ Act. 
ThaI ~rction would pr(,I'lude rell"a~r of ",'crifird rcpllrt~ of ::erious or 
recurr('nt brh:t\'ior pattrrn~" to empl()~'('r~ withollt written consent 
of the studcllt's pnrrnt~, Whilc suh~rrtion (b) (1) (H) permit;o; re
leasr of :5lIC'h infllrmal ion to "other ~(.'ho()l:, , . , in which thl' ~tlldent 
iritl'l1cl~ to rnrol!." it dOl'S ::0 only IIpon condition thnt the parent be 
ad,'b:rcl of 111(' rrlt':I::C' of thr inforlllntion and h(' ~i\'rn nn opportll
nity at a hear-inlt to (.'hnllt'II~1' the C'ontl'lIt of ~hr information to insurr 
again:,t int'lllsion of inaC'rllratl" or Illisleadilll; information, The st:1t-

. ute dot,S not exprrssly ::1:1tl' whNhcr th,. p:lrl'nt rnn ('ontl'~t the ilmi!'f
Iring b:l::i~ for :\ $u:,prll::ion. rhc fart of which i::: cont:1inl"d in thr 
student's school record. 
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$V stake. '.' .' Boqrd of Regents.v. Roth, supra, at 570-571. 
. :-\ppel1~e$ \were e~cluded from school only te~porarily,' it 
IS tr.Ue, Q;ut·the length-apd cQnsequeJ:lt severity ·of a depri
v,ation,w.hile· another. factQr"to weigh. in determining the 
a..pproprinte for.m of hearing,. "is' not decisiv6 of the basic 
righ t'~ to ahea"ring of; some kind,:· Fuentes v;; S/Levin, 40i 
U .. S. 67 .. Su :.(1972). The· Court's view.has been that as 
~on~.ll~ ~: propert}· deprivation is not de minimi.'1, its gru\'
Jty IS ,rrerlerllht to th~question" wheth~r account. must be 
taken o( the' Due Process Clau~<,. Snia.dach·v. Family Pi
"",/('(' Corp., 30i; F. S. 3:l7, . 34:!. (lnGO) (Hudnn, .T., ('Oil';' 

curriJur): Bllddie."v. Cunncrticut, 401 U. S. 3il. 378-379 
(Hl71); Board. of R.t'gcllt,~ v. Roth, ~upra., at 570 n. 8. 
A ,.lO-dll~··'SUSJlPllsjou from sr.hool is not <i(' mtnimis in 
OPf, rj'N\'·nl1(Lma~·,~not. be iill(lO!>'<,d in .(,Olllp,l(\t(' disl'e~nrd 
of th<' .Qu(' .. Prp('C'ss CJUtl~('. f • 

~ .;t short sus:p(,~lsion; is. of course. a far miIdrr deprivation 
~han E'XpuJsjon.But,.,"edu~ntion. is perhaps the most 
Importnn,t .. fuu.<'tipn of stntr anrllo('ul ~O\'(lrnnl(>nts," 
Brown v.,B(>a.T:d QI E.dtl('a~I:f)n,.34i U. S~ 483,493 (1054), 
and, thC',. tpt~l (\xdusion· from the educational process, f~r 
~lOr(' tllUll3' trj~·iltJ.. period"and !certainly if the' suspension 
IS for 10 days, is a serious event in the life of the sus-. 
~end,!d :~hiId,: . ,NeitlWf the property interest in educn
tlonnl b,~Ilf!nts.tempor3riIy denied· nor the liberty interest 
j~ r('p.Ufqt~oll. ·"'.bi('h is d.JSQ implicuted, is .so insi~bstnntinl 
thu.~ sU~l?('n~iotls mar ronst:itutiollidly bci'imposed by any 
pro~erlurr the. schoolchooscs,':no matter how arbitrarv 1I .. Ii 

," Sin('( t I!.c I ~:ln(h~l:\~k dc,:i:;iilu '?~ tl~~c Court. of "\~PC'al~ for till' 
~lrt h Camllt' an Dl.Zon \", Alabama Stutt' , Board 01 Educatio1l, ~!)-t 
f.·~t1. I,!)I)" "c,;'t, ch'lIilltl; '3lj~"tr,'~! n:~o on/ill.· rll('IO\\w {l'ul'ml 
r~H.IrI::: JI:lm IIlIi(nrrillr hrld 'tht'.})"" ·Prnc'C':{.: CI:tIl:lt' 'npplic':\blt, to e11'-
1'1:1101):1 II.I:III.CI hy, '.IIX-lIUPJlurtrc! ('lhlt':1 t illn~1 in,.:! iHi! i(lll~ to rC'mo\'(' :l 

~! Ittf,:nt /rnm t}lt' .in~t it III ipn 1IIIIg ('n\)l1gh for t h(' r(~mo\'lll to ) OJ' 

("msl'~tltl :I:: :11, ,·sl'ul~jl)ll. lIa!ltll.'iall \', /\II01I'!/IIII, -ti() F, 2d ~(}I, ~ll 
(C.\:' Wi:!);: lI'a.~$~11 /,rf'/Ju'bridlll', 3~~ F, :!d SOi, Sl~ (CA.~ lDl3i) : 

•• •• , ' I • 
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tiOnce ,it is 'determinetf'tha't "dur{prgc'ess ippiie's,; 'the 
'ques,tion 'remains what' 'Process iis )due .. ,i ': ';' M,(jrTis~~y v. 

I Brewer, 408 U. S., at 48i.- We' tiifti'totii~t;questlon','fully 
___ ..... _.'~' .• !' '.i:' '.~ ~I • : •• !'~j:" ~.:),./J\~~: 

Est·rba7J .... , .Gt'T}-trQI. . Missollr( State CoUege;<, ·41-5".F . .:.l2d ' lOn, 
1089 (CAS J969), c«;rt. , denied,,". SQ,S U.' ,8. I: 965 ,(19iO); 
Vou(1ht v. Va,} Buren Public Sch()o'~, 306 'F. Supp. 1388 .(~D :!\Iich. 
1969): Whitfield ~. Simpson, 312 IF. Supp: 'Ss9 (EI)' Ill. 1'9iO): 
Fielder v. BQ~rd 0/ Education of, Sc~.ool D,istrict '0/ 'Winnebago, Neb., 
3413 F. Supp. i22, .. i29 (X~h. 19i2); DCJ('su$ \'. Penberthy. 344 F. 
Supp, j~. i4 (C?nn,! 19i2) :' S(lqlin ". {\auffmal!! ;1Q5 J{. S,upp. 9iS, 
994 (WD Wis. 1968), aff'd, 418 F. 2d 16.3 (CA7 1960),; Stricklin \'. 
Regents 0/ U71iversity 0/ Wisconsi~,'29i F. Sunp. 416, 420 '(WD Wis, 
1969), nppeal dismissed, 420 l", 2d 1257 (CA7 t970) ;PlICk v. Carter, 
30S F. Supp. 1246 (WD Wis;; 19?Oj;' General Otder 'on 'Judicial 
Standards of Procedure nO!~ Substa.ncein ,Rcyip\': of Stud~~t . Disci. 
plinc in Ta.."( Supported Institutions ,of ~Jghct Edu,cntion, 4~ F'I~:' D. 
133.147-148 (WD ~Io.196S) {cn b~nd.: Thr lowc'r cOllrt's h:wc'brcn 
less unifQnn, however, OJ'} tqe que~tjon whether re~o\:al f~om' ~ch~ol 
for somo shorter period IIl.'ly eve! pe s~' trivinJ ,.:1' deriri~:itioq as .to 
require no process, and, if so-, ho\,,;' sllqrt, t,he( f~mo\"l\.l. mus.t bq. to 
qun,lify. Courts of Appr:lls h:we held o'r !\Ssuiiicd the Duo."Pr'o£w~ 
Cln,us(' applic,\bll' to lon~ ~u8pen~ion~,~, -lIe/vi, .. \.: LaM arqu~., ·bid. . .' \ .t.'.. \ .. _ t • 

School Dist" 466 F. 2d 1054 ,(~A5 (~9~2); It~!indcijoit~ ~\1sp6nsi~l)8, 
Sulliz:all \'. 11 vusttYII- [lid: :Sr,h"ol l)is~." ~~5-, F. "2&" JOi 1 , (CA.~), 
('crt. dcnird, ~ 14 t,. S', loa~ 09i3); 'to~' the ~'di:hti()ll:' o(a.' ·30~d;\\· 
suspension to n 10':day stispensio,n, Willia'r,is, y.pa~e ;C~U~(y~ S~,!p,~l 
Board. 44~ F:~d ~99 (CA5 19i1): to Ii lO·d!l~; SlI8p~?sion"n!aC~\$t14. 
dents 0/ No'rthFor,t /lfy~r8 Jr.-Sr. High School v. lfi1lia~t ~70 ,F. 2d 
95i (C .. ~5' 19j~); to'I/~i1d" ~usJl~n:iion~. F:~rrfll \'. {oel, 4~i F, :;!d,lQO 
(CA2 19i1),and Tntc ". Board o/,Educ,atioll,,453, F,:, 2~.9j5' (CAS 
19i2): and to a, thrc(\-dar SllsJlcl!~ion,' Shall/ell j!: No.rth;'(1.~t".Jnd. 
School Dist., Baar COI.mty. T(;za$, 462 F. ~d '060,: 96i n.4 (CA5 
19i2) ; ,but' innpl1licahlt' to :i ~t'v('n~ay SllsPCIlsioll, Lill 1I'<,qd' \~: jiq~rd 
~)l Ed, 0/ City 0/ p(,() ria, 46:l ,F\i2d .'i'~a. '(C..\t~, c("rt',' deni('li. 
409 IT, 's. l02i (l~i2): to '~l thre~.;-clay .~\1:'Pl'lI::i~n: pwm .~v. ,TY}f~r 
Ind, Schuol Di,~t'.. 460 F. 2d i3i (CAS 1972) ;)0 l} .. lmSpt\l,l~iO'\ for 
not "more than a f('w days," Murray,', Jr"St Eqton Rougl' Pari$h 
SehiiCil Buard, 4j~ F. ~cl 438 (CA5 'iOiSj: ;lIld to aii su::pNlf:i('ln:; ,\p 
matter ho,,~ shOrt, Black Coalition v.Po'rtlalld .School D4trict No, 1, . . ~ '" '.. . '. 
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reali7.ing as our."~a!'=e's regularly do that the' illt{'rpretatioll 
and nppJicntioll bf the Due, Process Clausc nrc inten~('ly 
practical math,irs all<.1· that "[t,]he very ilaturc of du(! 
process negates any concept of inflexible proc('durcs un i-

'\'crsilllyapplicablt, to every ima~inahll\ situn.tion." Cal/!
, teria n'or~'ers ". J/cElrOl/. :3Gi r. R. RRG. 80.) nom). 
·"·u are also ~indful of oUl'"owllndmonition that . 

, ' 

"Judir.ial interposi~ion in the olwration of the pub-
'lio school- syst('m~ of the XatiQn raise'S prohlrll1s rp.
quirin~ ('arc ami restraillt. .' ... By and lar~('. puhlic 
cd,ucci.tion in our Nation iscommitt.cd to the control 
of.state a.nd local authorities," Epperson v. Arkoll-

. ,,,' sas. 393 r~ S. 9i. 104 (Hl68). 
, , 

:T~ere -,arc crrtain ',bench mark~ to ~uici(' lI~, howr,\·rr. 
Mulla;fc v.' .Gentr;al Hanovcr Trost Co., 330 lJ. S. :10n 
----.;..-:-, ,',' ;,,' . 

48-1 F. 2d I04Q (CA9 lOi3) , Thr Ft'<i('T:\1 Di:::trict Court:: h:\\,1' lwld 
the Dut' Process Clause npplirnbl(' to an intlJrim :iHsp(,l1:,inn }lr,lulil1l! 
('xpulsion proceedings in Stricklin ,', Rr(l('71is 0/ C:'liz'rrsit!l a/Wi,w'oll
sin, supra. nnd Buck \'. Carta. SIlpra " to n lO-day :iu::p('n:o:ion. BI/IJI,'.~ 
\'. Board 0/ Public Itl&trllction:o/ Darff. C(/unty, al .. F, ~UJlP. :?s;) (~n 
FI:t. J9iO), \'acated. 401 U, S. 98~ (Hlil) (for <'"try o'f a frr.~h drt'rl'i' 
so that 11 timely appeal might be'taken to,the Court. of App('ak), afT'rI. 

" 450 F. 2d 1103 (CAS Wit): ·to ~nllprn:silll1s of lmtlt'f fi,'(' d:l~'~. rail \' 
Board' 0/ Education 0/ Purtsmouth SclwlJl lJi,~t '. 3.;4 F. ~UPJl, .;!l~ 
',(~}I·.l973); ':lilt! to ,nil ~\Il1l)('n::ions. J/m.~ \'. Board' 0/' EclUl.'flti.", 

. 0/ th·(· Dist .. 0/ Col,umbi(l. ';l4S F. SIIPP .. SOO (DC IDi~), :Ind 
Gil'«'1M \', PO('. :l.ttl F. Supp, ~o~ (\rnXC l!)i~): bill ill:lppli"ahh- ttl 

susprn~ions or 25 d:lr~, Hernandez ". School District Number nllc. 
prnl'rr. Ct>loradll .. 315 f, Supp. ~,,!) (Colo: WiO): to :-11::lwn:ion:-: 
of 10· dars, Baker ", Downey City Board 0/ ,pducati01l, 30i F. SIIPP, 

,517 (CO CuI. J!)(30): :11111 lO::lI:O:I"'n:.:ion.: uf ('ilthr d:\y~, lI'llier y, 1.(I,~ 
Afl(JrI(',~ Cit!1 High 8rhOlll DistI'i('t, ~IO F. ::::lIpJl, l~ro ((,D C:.t. 
19iO), fl'\"d on otht'r ~round:-:, 452:F. 2d 673 (CAO 19i1), In Ihl' 
(,3Sl':i holdin~ no pro('t'~~ nCCt'S.:::lry in conncrtion with ~hort SUSpt'll

sions, it is not always clellr whcthl'r the comt \'i('\\,rQ t hr Dill" 
Proc('ss Claus~ :IS 'innpplicable, or simply felt that tho prnr~:l 
recd\'cd was "due" e\'eu in the' absence of some kino of lll':1 ring 
proctdure, 

! ' 
II ______________ ~ ______ __'_ ___ ~ _ _'_'-__ .:::.." ____ ;l,,.\.L,___'_~'____~ _______ __"__ ___ ""_',_" .. ~~~~..........,,~ ____________________ ~ _______ ~~_~ _______ ~_~ _____________ ~ 
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(1950),' a. case-often irt\'oket! by Iat,cr Oph,l)bn~. ,~mi~1 tf;,at 
" [m] allY COil tro\'(,fsies h:w(' nlgt.'C1 ~l.>ou~, 1:h,(' ~~YP,~~(" a~d 
abstract words of t.ht" Due Pr<>ccss Claus(' ?u~ th,(':c ,('all 
be no doubt, that at:'a minimu,II1 they' 're'quitE' t~~t ~~pr~
vation of life, iiber'ty or prOpcr-t)·· ~{ a:d)urH'{'nti~!l ~e 
pl'(\('rder!' t)\" Ilotlrc ::illdopportU1iit~~ tOt, ~~r3~ili.tt 1 npI)rQ
priate to' t'h(' naturE' :of :thc ,casl"!!, \ I~.~,· l!-,t. ~1:::. ':Thp 
fundamcntal requiRitc of due pr~cess of lil\\~ IS, tJ~c ~Pl>()~
tunity to be heard,': Grallnif) v. Or~('~n~2:~4, '[. S. 3801, 
304 (HH4), a. right that "has little reality Qr wort!l unle,~s 
one is informed that the matter is p~ndinl! nJl(~ ('nn ~huo~(' 
for himself whether'to .. ~ contest,." , i~{ll11nll(".Y. Cc!,tml 
Hanover Trust Co., supra, at 314. St'r. 'ulso 'Armstrong ,'. 
Jln.l1Z0. :~~o r. R . .14;>, 5i)0 (lOti;"»); ..tt/ti-f"~I.~l'i.~f Commit
tee Y. llfcGrath. 341 r. S. 12:3. l~~I(jn I, ~!);31 J (Fr:tn.k
furter. J .. cOIH'urring). ' At the ,·e~Y,J~iriimu~i.l .. thp~cfore, 
stud(,'nts facing suspensiori and th(, cOIl~q\l~l\t. mte,~~rr(',nr(' 
wit.h a protec-ted property interest 'must '~~e gh·c.n :~(Jm.(' 
kind of notice and afforiled some' kinrl.0.r.,I,l~ar,i;Ilr::.: ,:41 P;tl; 
ties whose rights' are to be aff('r.tetl. ar~ ,(,I.lt~t,lr(,1 to lw 
heard: and in order thnt. they may elljo~' t,t~:~t rjg~t., t.~('~. 
mugt first b(', notifird." Bnlctll'ill~,,~~.: HnOle'; ~}Yun" ~23, 
233 (1St).!). , ' '. , .; :. ' . ,". ' 

It noiso appcars fro~ our casef: t.~lat, th,r. ,tlllll.n~ aJ~(1 
content of the notice ami thr nature of the h('ar.nl~ ,~\'I!ll 
dr.pend on appropriate nc('ommorlation; of' tJ~(' ronip('tin~ 
intercsts involven. Cafeteria Tror!wr.~ \!.)lI rl!.'lr(l1! .. ~~lprn.. 
at 89.1; M()rn:~sey v. Brewer, ,(]upra, 0(481. 'J'lw' g~U
dent's interest is to 3,,'oid unfair or mista,kon. exclus'lOl1 
from the educational proce~s. with nll,of it~, ullfol'tilJlat(' 
cOllsequcnces. The Due Prorp.!?s Clam:(1 will. 1l0~ shi('ld 
him frolll s\lsprn~jo1H: prolll'rly impo~('.rl. hiatlt tlJ~:-:('r,\'f': 
both his interest and the interest of t.h~ ,St~te if 11i~ Sll~
pension is in fact unwarrnntctl, . The cOIl{,('rn would 1,)(' 
mostly acnd('lnit' if the disciplinary. prO('CES ,\\'ere a totally 
accurate, unerring process. never mistaken· and never 
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unfair. Unfortunately, that is not the case, and no one 
suggests that it is. Disciplinarians, although proceeding 
in utinost good faith, frequently act on the reports and 
addcr of others; and the controlling facts and the llature 
of the conduct under challenge are often disputed. The 
risk of error is not at all trivial, and it should be guarded 
against jf that may be done without prohibitive cost or 
interference with the educational process. 

The difficult.y is that ollr schools are vast a.nd complex. 
Some modicum of discipline and order is essential if the 
educational function is to be performed. Events calling 
for dist'iplinr are frequent occurrences and sometimes )'('_ 
quire immediate, effectin} actiOll. SuspPllsion is consid
ered not only to be a necessary tool to mainta,in order 
but a nl.]uablp educational deviCe. The prospect of im
posing elaborate hearing requirpll1ents in every suspension 
case is viewed with great concern. and many, school au
thorities may well prefer th(' untrammeled power to act 
unilaterally, unhampered hy rules about. notice and hear
ing. But it. would be a strange disciplinary system in an 
educatiollal in~titutioll if no communication was sought 
by the disciplinariall with the student in an effort to in
form him of hi's derelictioll ano to let him tell his side of 
the story in order to make sure that an injustice is not 
done. 41 [FJ airuess can rarely be obta.ined by secret. Oil£'
sid£'d determillution of facts decisive of rights .... " 
"Secrecy is not congenial to truth-seeking and self
righ teouslless gh'es too slender an assurance of righ tness. 
Xo better instrument has been devised for arl'-i\'ing at 
truth than to gh'e a person in jeopardy of serious loss 
notice of the case aga.inst him and opportunity to meet 
it." Anti-Fasci.~t Committee v . ..l/cGrath, supra. at 170, 
1 il-172 (Frankfurter. J .. concurl'jng) ,II 

il The fncts invol\'ed in this case iUustratc the point, Betty CrollII' 
was 5usp(,lldC'd for conduct whi('h did not. occur on school gr()l1lld~. 
and (or ",hi('h m:t$S arr('sts were mlld('-hllrdly gUllrantc('ing Cllr('ful 
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\\~e do not believe that school authorities must be 
totally free from notice and hearing requirements if their 
schools a.re to operate with acceptable efficiency. St.u
dents facing temporary suspensioll have interests qualify
ing for protection of the Due Process Clause . and due . , 
process requires. in connection with a suspension of 10 
days or less. that the student be given oral or written 
notice of the charges against him and, if he denies them, 
an explanation of the evidence the authorities have and 
an opportunity to present his side of the story. The 
Clau~e requires at least these rudimentary precautions 
against unfair or mistaken findings of misconduct and 
arbitrary exclusion from school}? 

individualized fact-finding by the police or by the school principal. 
She claims to ha\'e been im'olved in no misconduct. HQwever, ~hf' 
was suspended for 10 days without ~v~r bein~ told what she wns 
ac('usoo of doing or being given an opportunity to explain her pr('!:
ence among those arrested. Similarly, DwiJ!:ht Lopez was suspended, 
along with many others, in connection with a disturbance in the 
lunchroom. Lopez says he wns not one of those in the lunchroom 
who was im·olved. Howe\'er, he was never told the basis for the 
prillcipal'R belief t.hnt he WlIS invoh'ed, nor wus he eyer gi\'en an 
opportunity to explain hi~ presence in the lunchroom, The school 
principals who su~pended Crome and Lopez may ha\'e been correr.t 
on the merits. but it is inconsistent with th(' Due Process Clause to 
ha,ve made the decision that misconduct had occurred without at 
some meaningful time gh'ing Crome or Lopez an opportunity to 
persuade the principals .othenvise. • 

We recognize that both suspensions were imposed during a time 
of grcat difficulty for the school adminif:trations im·oh·cd. At least 
in Lopez' c~se there may ha,\'c been an immediate need to s('nd home 
ev('ryonE> in tll(1 IUlJchroom in oruf'r to pr(>:-:C'f\'(' 8('hool ordt'r and 
property; and the administrative burden of providing 75 "hearinIrS" 
of anr kind is considerable. However, neither factor justifirs a 
disciplinnry suspension without at any time gathering fa('ts reIn t ing 
to Lopez specifically, confronting him ,,\ith them, nnd giving him nn 
opportunity to explnin, , 

10 Appellant~ point to thC' fact that some proc('ss is provided under 
Ohio iaw by way of judicial rc\'iew. Ohio lte,-. Code Ann. § 250.1.).01 
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There need be no delay between the time "notice" is 
given and the time of the hearing. In the great majority 
of cases the disciplinarian may informally discuss the 
alJeged misconduct with the student minutes after it has 

'o('curred. "r e hold only that. in being gh'en an oppor- I 

tunity t.o explain his version of the facts at this discus
sion, the st'ldent first. be told what he is accu~ed of doing 
and what, the basis of the accusation is. Lower courts 
which have addressed the question of the un-lure of the 
procedures required in short suspension rnses have 
rpa('hrd the same conclusion. Tate v. Board of Educa
tion, 453 F. 2<.1 975. 979 (C.,\8 H172); Fail v. Board of Ed
ucation. 354 F. Supp. 592. 603 (XH 1973). Since 
the hearing may occur almost immediat.ely follOWing 
the misconduct, it follows that as a general rule 
not.ice alld hearillg should precedE' removal of the student 
from s('hool. ".p agree with the District Court. however, 
that t.here are recurring situations in which prior notice 
and hearing cannot be insisted upon. StudCllts whose 
pre~nce po~s a ('ontinuing cian,ger to persons or property 
or an ongo:ng threat of ciisrupting thp academic' process 
may bE' inul1('diately rC'mO\'ed from school. In such cases, 
the necessary not.ice and rudimentary hearhlg should fol-

(RIJPP. 19i3). AppC'llant~ do not rite any rn~C' in whil'h tlli!= gl'neral 
admini!=trnth'C' tC'\'j(,\\,. ~tatutc has b('('n \J~ed to appelll from a disci
plinary U('C'i:-oi(l1l by a l'rhool offil'ial. If it be :If:::lllll('d that it could 
1)(' ~o u::(·d. it b: for two rcnson~ insuffiril'nt to ~a\'(' inadCIIluate pro
cedures Ilt thr ~('hoollc,·el. First. althou~h new proof may hC' offered 
in a § 2501.06 prorC'C'din~, Shaker COllC'lItry Corp. ,', Shaker lJeights 
"'nll1li7Ig Comm'n. IS Ohio Op, 2d 2i2, li6 ?\, E. 2d 332 (1961), the 
JlrO('('{'din~ ~ not ell' nOlJO, In rr Lor.kc. 3a Ohio App. 2d Iii. 294 
:\. E. 2d 230 (19i2). Thu!= the dC'rision by tht' :::('hool~\'('n if mnde 
upon inadequate procedllre~-is entitlC'd to wright in the court pro
c('rding. ~econd. without a dt'monstratioll to the ('olltrnry, we must 
1I~":lIl1lr thlll drla)' will nttl'nd any § 2501.00 pro('('(·tlin~. thnt the 
~\I::prnsion will 1I0t be stayed pC'nding hC'arin~, and that the stUUt'Dt 
flH'unwhile w111 irrepumbly lO::lc his (!duc:ltiollul benefits. 

~~~~-~--- .~----

,. 
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low as soon as practicable: as the District Court indicated. 
In holding as we do, we do not believe that we have 

imposed procedures on school disciplinarians which are 
inappropriate in a classroom setting. Instead we have 
imposed requirements which are. if allY thing, less than 
a fair-minded school principal would impose lipan him
self in order to avoid unfnir suspensions. Illd('ed. acrord
ing to the testimony of the principal of ~Inrioll-Frallklill 
High School, that school had an informal procedure, 
remarkably similar to that· "'hich we no~\' require. appli
cable to suspensions genE'rnlly but which was not fo]
lowed in this case. Similarly, according to the most 
recent memorandum applicnble to the entire ~PSS, see 
n. 1, supra, school prill('ipals ill the CPSS are IIOW 

required by local rule to pro\'ide at least as much !is the 
constitut.ional minimum which we have described. 

We stop short of construing the Due Process Clause 
to require, countrywide, that hearings in connection with 
short suspensions must nfford the student the opportunit.y 
to secure counsel, to confront and cross-examine witnesses 
supporting the ('harge, or to call his own witnesses to 
verify his version of the incident. Brief disciplinary 
suspen~ions n·re almost countless. To impose in each 
such case even trullcated trial-typc procedures might wcll 
overwhelm administrative facilities in many places and, 
by diverting resources, eost more than it would sayC in ed
ucational effectiveness. ~Iorco\'er~ further formalizing 
the suspension process and esca.lating its formality and 
adversary nature may not only make it too costly as a 
regular disciplinary tool but· also destroy its effect.iYeness 
as part of the teaching process. 

On the other hand, requiring effcctiye llotic(' and in
formal hearing permitting the student to give his version 
of the events will provide a meaningful hedge against 
erroneoUs action. At least t.he disciplinarian will be 
alerted to the exist~llce of disputes about facts and nrgu-
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ment.s about cause a~d effect. He may then determine 
him~elf to summon the accuser. permit cross-examination, 
and allow the student to present his own witnesses. In 
more ~ifficult cases, he may permit counsel. In any 
event, his discretion will be more informed and we think 
the risk of ('rror ~ubstalltially reduced. 
,Requiri~g t.hat 'there be at least an informal give-and

take betw~en student and rJisciplinarian, preferably prior 
to the suspension, will add 1ittle to the factfinding func
tion where the disciplinarian himself has witnE'ssed the 
conduct forming the basis fot the charge. But things 
are not always as they seem to be, and the student will at 
least have the opportunity to characterize his conduct 
arid put it in wha.t he deems the proper context. 

,,\Ve should also make it clear that we have addressed 
ourselves solely to the short suspension, not exceeding 
10 .days .. Longer, suspensions or expUlsions for the re
mainder of the 8<.'hool term, or permanently, may requir~ 
more formal procedures. Nor do we put aside the possi
bility that in unusual situations l although involving only 
a short su::;pension.,·something more than the rudimentary 
proc~durelJ will l?c required. 

. " 
.\ 

, 
"' 

.. • ~ I ,IV 

'The District . Court found eiwh of the suspensions in
,:olved here to have' orcurred without a hearing, either 
before Qr after the suspension, and that each suspension 
was therefore'invalid and the statute unconstitut.ional 
insofar as it permits such suspensions without notice or 
hearing. Accordingly, the judgment. is 

" Affirmed . 
,. \ 

, MR. JVSTICE POWELL, with whom THE CHIEr JUSTICE, 

l\1R. Jt"STICE BLACKMUN, and l\1a. Jt:STICE REHNQUIST 
join. dissent.ing .. 

The Court today~invalida:t~s an Ohio statute that per
mits student suspensions from school without a hearing 

.~~-~--~~- - - -----~~--- ---~-- - - -
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Hfor not more, t·han ten days.~' 1 The decision unneces
sarily opens ave.nues for' judicial .intervention in the 
operation of our public schoolsthat.~ay affect adversely 
the quality of education. The Court holds for the first 
tin1e that the federal courts, rather t.han e~ucational 
officials and ~t.ate legi~latures. haye the authority to 
determine the rules applicable to routine classroom disci
pline of children and teenagers in the public schools. It 
justifies this unprecedented intrusion into the process of 
elementary and secondary education by identifying a 
new constitutional right: the right. of a student not to 
be suspended for as much as a single day without. notice 
and a due process hearing either before or promptly fol-
lowing the suspension.2 • 

The Court's decision rests On the premise that, under 
Ohio law. education is a property interest protected by 
the Fourteenth Amendment.'s Due Process Clause and 
therefore that any suspension requires notice and a hear
ing.

3 
In my view, a, stJ,ldent's interest. in education is 

. . 
1 The Ohio st3tute, Ohio Re\". Code Ann. § 3313.66 (1972), actually 

is u limitation on the time-honored pr:lctice of school authorities them
seh'cs determining the al)propriate dUr:ltion of suspensions. The 
statute allows the ~upC'ril1tendent or principal of a public school to 
suspend a pupil "for not more than ten' days .. /', (italics supplied) ~ 
and requires notith'ntio~ to the parent or gU3rdianin. writing within 
24 hours of any sl1sJl('n~ion. . 

:! Section 3313.06 also prm'ides authority for tl.le ~xPuJsio~ of pu'pils, 
but rC'quires :1' hC'nring t1wreon by' the s(,hool bo~rd upon r('quest of 
a' parent or guardian. The rights of pupils expelled are nofin\'ol\,oo 
in this case, which concerns only the' limited discretion of 8c11001 
authoritie::: to suspC'nd for llot more th:m 10 days. Expulsion, usually 
resulting at lenst in loss of n school yt'nr or ~emester. is an inc'om
parnbly marC' serious matt('r th:m th(' hrief ~lIspen~ion. traditionally 
used ns the principal sanction for enforcing routine discipline. The 
Ohio statute recognizes this distinction. " 

3 The Court speaks of "exrlusion from theeducat.ional process 
for mor£' than a trivial period ... ,'. allie. :11 576. but it~ lIJ1illion 
mllkt·~ rle'a r t ha t e\'(,11 on(' day's ~usp('n$ion invoke::; t hc. con.~titutional 
procedure mandated today. 
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not infringed by a suspension within the limited period 
prescribed by Ohio law. Moreover. to t.~e. extent that 
there may be some arguable infringeme~t. 1: IS .too s~e~u
lativp. transitory. and insubstantial to Justify ImpOSitIOn 
of a cOllstitutional rule. 

I 

Although. we held in San A nionio Independent Sch~ol 
Dist. Y. Rodriguez, 411 U. S. 1,35 (19i3), that edu~ahon 
is not a right prot€cted by the Constit.ution. OhIO has 
elected by statute to provide free education for all youths 
nge six to 21, Ohio Re\,. Code Ann. ~~ 3313.48, 3313.G4 
(Hl72 and Stipp. 1 Oi3). with rhildren under IS yrars of 
a~e being comprlled to attrnd ~chool. ~ 3321.0~ et seq. 
State law. therefore. extpnci~ the right of free publIc school 
rducation to Ohio students ill accordance with the educa
tion l8.wS of that State. The right or rntitlrment to edu
ration so creatrd is protected in a proper casp by the Due 
Procrss Clau$e. See, e. g., Board of R('(Jent\~ v. Roth, 408 
r. S .. 564 (Hli2): Amell \'. KC1I1ledy, 416 F. S. 134. 164 
(Hl74) (POWELL. J .. concurring). In my "iew, this is 
not. such a case. 

In identifying propprty interl"st.s subject. to due process 
protections, t.he Court's past opinions make clear that 
thp5e interests lIare created and their di11len .. ~ions are 
defined by rxistin~ rul(>s or understandings t!:at stem 
from an independent sourcE' such as state ]aw. Board 
of Regents Y. Roth, supra, at 5ii (rmphasis supplied). ~he 

, Ohio statutE' that rrC'ates the right to a, "free" educatIOn 
also ('xpliritly authorizes a prin('ipal to suspend a student 
fur as mu('h as 10 days. Ohio Rt'\·. ('odr ~\Iln. ~~ 3313.48, 
:~313.64. 3a13.G6 09i2·and Supp. 1I1i:3'). Thus the ,'cry 
]E"gislation which IIdefines" the "ciimension" of the s~u
dcmfs PlltitlE'Jnrnt. while providing a ri~ht. to educatIOn 
~enerally. docs not establish thi~ right frC'(' of dis~ipli~e 
imposed in accord with Ohio law. Rather. the right. IS 
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encompassed in the entire package of statutory prO\'isions 
gov('rning euurn.tion in Ohio-of which the power to sus
pend is one .. 

The Court thus uisregards the basic structure of Ohio 
Jaw in posturing this ca..c:e as if Ohio had conferred an 
unqualified right to ('duration, t,hereby compelling 'the 
~c~ool a.~thorities to conform to due process procedures 
III ImpOSIng th(' most routine discipline:' . 

But howc\'er one may define the entitlement to 'educa
tion pro\'ided by Ohio ]o.w. I would conclude that a depri
~'ation of not more than 10 days' suspen~ion from school, 
lrnposed as a· routine disciplinary measure, does not. as-· 
Rume constitutional dimell~ions. Contrary to the Court's 
assertion. our cases ~upport father th~n ~'refute" appel-

4 ~he ?ourt npparE'ntly read~ into Ohio law by implication ~ 
qualificatIOn that. suspensions may be imposed only for '/cause," 
~hr.r(>by :lnalo::rizin~ thi~ ca~cto tIll' ('h'i! sen'icc bws considered 
11\ Arnett v. Kennedy. 4Hi r. ~. 134 (J9;4). To be ~ure, on(' Irul\' 

n!li'lImc t?~t pupil:: are lIot i'u~p('nd('d at tht· "'him or caprice of th'(' 
~c.hool offl('m!. and the statut(' do(':": provide for noticc of the su~p('nsion, 
\\:ltI.l t~e "reasons therefor." But tht' same stntute drn,,'S a shnrp' 
dIstinctIOn bet.wt'en l'=u~p('nsion and th£' fnr more:, drastic ~nn('tion' 
of expulsion, A hearinp: i~ rt>f1l1ired'~nl~' for the latter. To follow 
tho Court.'s analysis, on(' mu~t. concrlude that the ll'~i~l:lt\!re ne\'er
theless intendC'd-\\'i~hout snyinp: so-that suspension also is of such 
~on~equence that it rn.'l)' be jmpos~d only for causes which enn be 
Just\~ed at a hcnrinrr. The ,mlsounqness . of rc.'lding this sort. of 
r(,C'}UJremcnt into thf:' ~tllttitf> is aplJ:lrl'nt from a comparison with 
.~rnett. In that. cnse~ Conj!res$ cxprrs$iy provided that nonprobli
ho?ary f~deraJ rmp~oyl'cs should be discharged only for "cause." 
ThiS reqUIrement reflected congressional recognition of the serious
ness of disch~rgi~g such ('mployl'eS. There ~imply is no anruogy 
beh,:een temllnnilon of nonprllb:H iOlla ry (>mJllo~'ru('nt of a ('h'i! 
l'=erVlce employee and the sttspension of a public school pupil for 
not mOl'e than 10. da~·s. Even if ~h(.' CQurt is correct in implying 
some rOl1cept of Justifiablt' cause In the Ohio procedure, it ('auld 
~:Jrdly be 5tretched to the constitutional propor,tions found pre~ent 
In Arnett. 

______________________ , ____________________ ~ ______ ~~~ __ ~' __ ~ __ ~\d'~'~~~ ________________ ~ ______ ~~j~~ 
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In.nts' argument. that "the Due Process Clause ... comes 
into .play only ",hpJ) the State subjects a student to a 

, 'spvere d~trim('nt or gri£>\'ous 10s~: /l Ante, at 575. Re
cent.ly. the ,ourt reiterated prerisely this standard for 

: ~nah'zing (lu£> proct>ss ('}aims: 
, .' W~Vhcther (lilY piocedural protections nre due 

depends on the extent to which 1111 individual ,,~i1l 
,be 'condemned to suffer grievous loss.' Joint Anti
F'a.scist Refugee Committee v. JfcGrath. 341 U. S. 
123. 168 (1951) (Frankfurter. J .. concurring). quoted 

I .' • in Goldberg v. Kelly, 397 F. S. 254, 2G3 (1970)." 
J1orr~scy v. Brewer, 408 U. S. 471, 481 (1972) 
(emphasis supplied). 

In }.[ orrisscy we applied that standard to rcquire due 
process procedures for parole revocation on the ground 
that· revocation "inflicts a 'grie\'ous loss' on the parolee 
'and often on others." ld., a.t 482. See also Board of 
Regents v. Roth, 408 U. S .. at 573 ("seriously damuge" 

. reputation and standing); Bell Y. Burson. 402 r. S. ;'535, 
'539 (Hli1) ("important. interests of the licensees"); 
Boddie v. Connecticut, 401 U. S. 371 1 379 (1971) ("sig
nificant, property interest").5 

The Ohio suspension statute allows no serious or sig-

to Indero. the Court itselfquotes from n portion of ::,\lr. Justice Frank
furtl'r's ('oncurrence in AlIti-Fa.~ci,~t Refugee' Committee y, McGrath, 
341 U. S. 123, 171 (l951L which explicitly refers to "n person in 
jropnrdy of serious loss." S('(' a1lte, :\t 580 (C'lllphasif: ~l\ppliC'd). 

Xor is tht' IIdl' minimis" :itandard rcfC'rrrd 10 h~' the Court rele
vant in this ca~e. That standurd was first sta.ted by :\1r. Justice 
Hlldan ill a ('(lncurrin~ ('pinion ill 81dadach \'. FOII/ily Fil/au('r Corp., 
:ms U. ~. 337, :l42 (HlG9). und thC'n C'}uot('d in n footllot(' to the 
Court's opinion in FW'1lies \'. Sh('t'llI. -Wi t:. S. 6i, 00 tl. 21 (1972;. 
Both Slliadach :md FUC1Ites. ho\\,(·\'er. ill\'o!\'('d re:,ohltioll of property 
disp\ltc~ 1)('twC'('n two pri\'ut(' partif's ('laimin/! an interest in the same 
p\'()perty. Xt'ither (':\se pcrt:lint'd to an interest confC'rred by the 
Stu te. 
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nificant infringement of education. It authorizes only a 
maximum suspension of eight school days,less than 5'% of 
the normal 180-day school year. Abse'nces of such liinited . 
duration ,:wi1l rarely affect a pupil's opportunity'to lra1'll 

_or his.scholastic per:ormance. Indeed, the record in this' 
,- case reflects no educational illjury tu apJH.'llces. Each 

rompleted the Sellll'ster ill whirh the St18pCllsion oc
cllrred and performed at ](OR8t as wp11 as he or she 
had in previous years.u Dcspite the Cou'rt's 'UlisuPPoJ'ted 
S}WC'lIl:ttion t.Iwt a sllspended stlld{,Jlt could be "seriou~ly 
damagrd" (ante, at 5i5), thcre is no factual.showing 
of a.lW surh dama~e to appcllres, 

Th~e Court also !'clirs 011 a percei\'ed deprh'et'ion, of, 
"liberty" r{'sultillg from allY suspension, arguing-again, 
,,'ithout fartual 8upport .in the r{'rord })crtaining to 
these app<'llers-that, a sU:;;P{,IlSiOIl harms a studenes 
reputation. In yjcw of the Court's deci8io,n in 
Board of Regents v" Roth.. .fjupra, I "'ould have 
t,hought that this argument. was plainly untenable. 
Fnderscoring the need for "~erious gamage" to reputa
tion, the Roth. Court held that a nontenured teacher who 
is not rehired by a public unh'ersity could not claim' to, 
suffer sufficient reput.ational injury to require COllstitu:' 
t.ional protections.; Surely a. brief suspension is of Jess' 
serious ronsC'qucllcC' to the reput.ation 9f a teenage 
student. 

II ... '" .. 

In prior d('risions,.t,his '('ourt has explicitly recognized 
that srhool allthoriti{'s must ha\'c hroad discretionary ~u-

r.!? App. Hi:l-li1 (t(':'timony of Xnn·:t1 GOliS, Dirc(·tor of: Pupil 
Per:'onnc·I). RC'Cl opinion of the' three-judge ('uurt, 372 F, Supp, 12i9, 
1291 (SD Ohio lOI3). 

~ See also lriscon,'1ill '-, ('onstallti1/.(·au, -lOa r. S . .f33, 4:3;' (19i1), 
quut ilJ~ t h(' "~riC"'o\l:-: 11l~3" :-:1 :lI)d:l rel fir:,t art iC'lIlatc,cl in A nti
Fascist Committe£' \' . .lIcGrath, supra, 
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thority in thp daily oprrat.ion of public schools. This 
includes wide IRtitude with respect to maintaining disci
pline and good order. Addressing t,his point, specifically, 
the Court stated in Tinker v, Des -illoines Schopl Dist., 
393 U. S. 503, 507 ( 10(9) : 

I/[TJhe Court, has rrpC'atedJy cmphasllcd the need 
for affirming the (,olllprC'hen~i\'e authDrity of the 
States and of school officials, consistent wit.h funda
mental con8t.itutionnl safeguards. to prescribc and 
control ('onduct ill t.hC' schools." 8 

Such an approach prop{'rly rerognizes t.he unique nature 
of publi(' edu('~tioJl and the correspondingly limited role 
of the judi('iary in its supervision, In Epperso1l v. AT
~'ansas, 393 U. S. 9i, 104 (1968); the Court stated: 

"By and large, public C'durntion in our Xation is 
committcd to the coutrol of statr and local authori
ties. Courts do not and cannot iUfen'elle in the 
resolut.ion of conflicts which arise in the daily opera
tion of school systems and which do not directly and 
sharply irnpJi('ate basic constitutional "alues." 

The Court today tUfJlS its back on these precedents. 
I t can hardly seriously br claimed' that 8 school princi
pal's decision to suspend a pupil for a single day would 
"directly and sharply implicate basic constitutional 
\'nlucs." Ibid. 

.:\foreo\'er. the Court ignores the expericnce of man
kind, as wplJ as the long history of our law, recognizing 

~ In dissE'nt on the First Amendment is~ue, 2\fr . .JustiC'(' Harlnn 
refognized the Court's basic ngreement on the limited role of the 
judiciary in overseeing school disciplinary decisions: 

"I am rduC'tant to Uf'lic\'(' that there is nny disagrC'Cment between 
thft m:ljority and mys('1( on the proposition that school officials 
should be accorded the wi~cst, authority in maintaining disciJI~ine 
and good ordl'T in their illstii:Jtions.'· 393 tJ. S., at 526. 
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that there are diiferr'J)ces which must be accollunodated in 
dcterminilIg the ri~hts :lIld duties of children as com
pared with those of adult,s. Exrunples of this distinct.ion 
abound in our Jaw: in contracts. in torts. in criminal 
law and procedure, in crimina.l s31lctiollS a.nd rehabilita
t.ion, and in the Tight .-to' \'ot.e and to hold office. Until 
today, and rxcrpt ill" the ~l)rcial context of the First 
Amrndment i&~ue in Tillker, the educational rights of 
children and tcellagrrs in tIle rlemelltary and secondary 
schools 113\"(' not, been analogized to t.he rights of adults 
or to those ac('orded college studcn ts. E\'en with respect 
to the First .:\ll1elldment~ the rights of children have not 
bern rC'~arded as Hco-extrusive with those of adults." 
~IR. JrSTICE STEWART, COJlcurring in Tinker, Supra, at 515. 

A 

I turn now to some of the considerations wl1ich sup
port the Court's former \'iew regarding t.he comprehen_ 
si\"(\ authority of the ~tates and sC'hooI Offi('ials 14to 
pres('ribe and control COllc/uC'f. in thp schools." ld., at. 
;,)07. Fnlike the dh'rrgrJ)t :lIld r\'PH sharp ('onfiict. of 
illtC'rrsts usual1y present "'herC' du(' J)J'OC'Pss rights are 
n~serted. t.he intrJ'csts here illlplicated-of thp' State 
t.hrough its schools and of the pupils-arr l'ssentinJ1? 
con~ruent. 

The State'~ interC'st. brondl? put. is in the proper fUllc
tioning of its public school system for the benefit of all 
pupils and the public generally. Fe,,: rulings would 
interfere more extensively in the daily functioning of 
schools than subjecting routine discipline to the 
formalities and judicial o\'(~rsj~ht t1f due process, Sus
pensions are one of the traditiollaJ means-ranging from 
krcping a student after class t.() permallPnt. expulsion
used to maintaiu dis('iplinc in the schools. It is common 
knowledge that. maintaining order and reasonable de-
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corum in school buildings and classrooms is a major 
educational problem, and one which has increased sig
nificantly in magnitude in recent years.G Often the 
teacher, in protecting the rights of other children to an 
education (if-not his or their safety), is ('ompeUed to rely 
on the power to suspend. 

The facts set forth in the margin III leu\'e little room for 
doubt as to the magnitUde of the disciplinary problem in 
the public schQo]s, or as to the extent of reliance upon 
the right to suspend. They also demonstrate that if 
hearings were required for a substantial pcrcrntage ~f 
short-term suspensions, school authorities would pave 
time to do little else. 

B 
The State's generalized interest in maintaining an 

orderly school system is not incompatible with thp incH-

• See generally S. Bailey, Disruption in rrb:m BcC'ondnry Schools 
(1970), which summarizes some of the recent sun'eys on schoo] 

disruption. A Syracuse rni\'('rsit~· Jo:tlldy. for ('xample, found thut 
85% of the schools responding f('ported somc typC' of significant dis
ruption in the ycars 1967-1970, 

10 An amic'W brief filed by the Children's Defense Fund states that 
at least 10% of tlie junior :lnd senior hi~h ~rhooI studeJlts in the 
States sampled were suspendC'd one or more times ill til(' 19i::?-19i3 
school year. The data on which this conrJu~ion r('st~ W('rC' ohtninrd 
~rom an e:\.iensh·e survey prC'Il:Ired by thc Offire for Civil Right:o: of 
the Department of Health. Edur:ltion, lind "'C'!farf:'. The ChildrC'n's 
Defense Fund rC'\'iC'wed thr ~u;o:pcn::ioll daw for fi,'(' St:lte::-Arkansas, 
:\Iaryland, ~ew Jersey, Ohio, and SOllth Carolina. 

Likewise, an amicus brief submitted by se"C'ral school associations 
in Ohio indicates that the number of Suspcnsions is $ignificant: in 
1972-1973, 4,054 studcnts out of Il ~chool cllroUmC'nt of 81,00; were 
suspended in C'indllnnt i: i .35~ oi 5; .(JOO sllIdent:o: ,,'rrC' sUJo:}>C'nded in 
Akron; and 14,598 of 142,053 studcnts WC're Hlsprnded in CIC'\'cland. 
See also the Office of Ch'i! Rights Survey, supra, finding that np
proximately 20,000 studrnts in Xc\\' York City, 12,000 in Clc"('lllnd, 
9,000 in HOUston, nnd 9.000 in :\!C'mphis were susp('ndffi at IC':t~t onre 
during tht· 1972-19;.1 srhool ~·t·:tr. E\'cn thcsc figure$ nre prubably 
I:lomewhat conser\,ath'e since some schools did not reply to the sUf"cy. 

,~~~""'----~---~~--------
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yidual interest of the student. Education in any mean
ingful sense -includes th~ inculcation of an understanding 
in each pupil of the necessity of rules and obedience 
thereto. This understandin~' is no less important than 
lparning to read and write. One who does not com pre
he>l1d the meaning and necessity of discipline is haJl(li~ 
capped not merely in his education . but. throughout 'his 

. subse>quent. life. In ·an age when the home ando'church 
playa diminishing role ill f:hapill~ the> charart{'r and value 
judgments of the young. a he>ayjer responsibility falls 
upon the schools. 'Yhen . all immat·ure student mrrits 
censure for his conduct .. }w is rendered a dissen'ice if ap
propriate sanctions are Hot applied or if procedures for 
th('ir application arr so formalized as to im'ite a chal
lenge to the teacher's authority ~l-an in\'itation which 
rpbpliious or ('yen Il1rrely spirited ternagers are> lik('ly to 
accept. . 

The lesson of discipline is not, merely a matt.er'·~f the 
studenfs' self-interest ill tl1(' shapiilg of his own character 
and personality; it proyicies an carly ullderstalJdill~ of 
the relevance to tlw social compact of respect for the 
right.s of others. The classroom is the bhol'ntoJ'Y ill 

.. which this lesson of life is best. learned. :;\Ir. Justire - . 
Black summed it. up: 

"School discipline, like parental discipline. is an 
int.egral and important. part. of training our children 
to be good citizens-to be brtt.er citizens." Tinker, 
393 r. S'I at. 524 (di~s('nting opinion). 

In assessing in const.itutional terms the need to pro
tert pupils from unfair minor di~ripline b~' 8<,hoolauthori
ties. t.he' Court ignore'S the ('ommona1ity of interrst. of the 
State and pupil~ in thp public school s~·stem. Rather. 
it· thinks ill trnditiolluJ Judicial terms of 'an ml\'erl'ary 

11 Sf.'C generally .T. Dobson, D!lf(~ to Discipline- l19iO). 
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situation. To be sure. there will be the occllsional pupil 
innocent of llny rule infringement who is ~listakenly sus
pended or whose infraction is too minor to justify suspen
sion. But, while there is no evidence indicat.ing the fre
quency of unjust suspensions, common sense suggests 
that they will not be numerous in relation to the total 
number, and that mistakes or injustices will usually be 
righted by informal means . 

C 

One of the more disturbing aspects of today's decision 
is its indiscriminate reliance upon the judiciary, and the 
ad\'ersary process, as the means of resol\'ing many 
of the most routine problems arising in the class
room. In mandating due process procedures the Court 
misapprehends the reality of the hormal teacher
pupil relationship. There is an ongoing relationship. 
one in which the teacher must occupy many roles-edu
rat or. adviser. friend. and. at times. parent-substitute.u 
It is rarely adversary in nature except with respect to the 
chronically disruptive or ill~ubordinate pupil whom the 
teacher must be free to discipline without frustrating. 
formalities." 

12 The role of the teacher in our fociety historicnlly has been an 
honor('d and rcsp('C'tcu one, rooted in the experiencc of decades thnt 
has l('(t (or most of us warm mcmorit's of our teacht'rs, espccially 
tho:::e of th(' form:ltil'(' years of primary :llld !ic('ondary education. 

13 In this r£'gard, the relationship bctwecn n student and teacher 
is manifestly different from that betw('('n a \,·(·lfarc nciministrator 
nnd a T('C'ipil'llt (see Goldbl'rg Y. Kelly. 39i U. S, 254 (H1iO)), 11 motor 
\'('hide department :lnd a driver (Sf.'C Bell Y. Burson, 402 U. S. 535 
(l9il)), tl debtor llnd a creditor (see SlIiadach \'. Family Fina1lce 
Corp., supra,' Fuentes Y. ShelJz'n, supr(l" Mitchell \', W. T. Grant Co., 
4JG l'. ~. 000 (19i4)). a purole offi('('r nnd :I p:lrolt'(> (sec .Uorrissey 
\'. Br(·u'er. 40~ U. S. 4il (]9i2)), or ('\'rn an ('mployer :lIId :In 
rmployc(' (5(,(, Arnett Y. KelllU'dy, 416 U. S. 134 (19i4)). In many 
o~ these noncduca~ion settings there is-for purpos(.'S of this nnaly-

,. 
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The Ohio statute, providing as it does for due notice 
both to parents and the Board, is compatible with the 
te~cher-pupil relationship and the informal resolution of 
~lstakcn disC'iplinary action. 'Ve ,ha\'c relied for genera
tIOns upon the experience, good faith and dedication of 
t.hose who ~~ff our. public ~chools. U and the nonadn.rsary 
means of aIrIng grIevances that always have been avail
able to pupils and their parents. One would have 
thought ?efor? today's opinion that this informal method 
of resolvmg dIfferences was.more compatible with the in
te~ests of all concerned than resort to allY constitution
ahzcd proredure, however blandly it may be defined by 
the Court. 

D 
In my. \~iew. the con~titut.ionalizing of routine class

rO,om decIsions not only rf'prescnts a significant and un
\\,I~P rxtrnsioJl of the DuC'. Procrss Claul't'. hut it also was 
qUIte ullm:crssary in "jew of t~e safeguards prescribed 
by the OhIO statute. This is demonstrable from a com-

sii'-:-~ "f:l('eJ('~s" admilli::tmtor ueaJing with an equally /'facel('Ss" 
r('C'JI1JC'nt. of ~om(' form of "'Ol'ernment b fit I' , h ,t- enC' or Jcense; mothers 
!'~lC a~ the sarmsh,mC'nt, and repo~session cases, there is a ' 
fhrt.-of-mtpre$t rrlatlOn~)llp, Our pl1blic )1;rhool ~\'~tem h COD-
i~ pr('mised th b J' f I ,l:', ' • ow('\'('r, 
.: on e e Ie t l:l.t teachers and pupils should Dot be 
fareless" fo ~ach other, ~or does the educational rt'lationship 

present n typlral "conflict of interest ,. Rather the I t' h' 
trndit' II' k db' ,re a IODS Ip lOna y IS mar 'e, Y a. roincidencc of intert'sts, 

Yet the ~ourt I r<'lymg on cuses such as Sniadach and Fuente3 ap
par('nfl~·. "I('\\'I= the dnssroom of h'('na~('rs a$ comparable to' the 
competitive and ndvcrsary ('n\'ironm('nt of the dult ' I world. a I commerCia 

H, A t,radi~i~nal factor in any due proeess analysis is "the ro
t~CtlOI1 IIlJphclt in the office of the funrtionar\' whose (.ondu~ is 
~ l:t1)('n~oo , . ,," A1lti-Fasci8t Cummittt'C \', .ilcGrath. a.n u, S" 
at Hi~. (Fran~furt('r, J" conrurringl. Tn t he public school ~etting 
th('rc I~, ~ high dC'srC(' of ~uch protection sinr€' a t('acher hac: 
r('sIlonslbilJly for, and a commitmrnt to, his pupils that is absent j~ 
other du(' process contexts, 

, « .. \ 
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parison of what the Court manda.tes as required by due 
process with the protectiYe procedures it finds constitu
tionallv insufficirnt, . . 

The Ohio statute, limiting ~uspensions to not. more 
t.han eight school days, requires writte71 notice including 
the "reasons therefor" to the student's parents and to 
the Board of Education within 24 hours of any suspen
sion. The Court only requires oral or "Titten notice to 
the pupil, with no notice being required to the parents 
or the Board of Education. The mere fact of the statu
tory requirement is a deterrent against arbit.rary action 
by the principal. The Board. usually elected by the 
people and sensitive to constituent relations. may be 
expected to identify a principal whose record of suspen
sions merits inquiry. In any event. parents placed on 
written notice may exercise their rights as constituents 
by going directly to the Board or a member thereof if 
dissatisfied with the principal's decision. 

Nor does the Court's due process "hearing" a.ppear to 
proyide significantly more protection than that, already 
available. The Court holds ·only that the principal must 
listen to the student's "version of the events," either 

\ 

before suspension or thereafter-depending upon the cir-
('umstances. Ante, at 583. Such a truncated "hear
ing" is likely to be considerably less meaningful than the 
opportunities for correcting mistakes already available 
to students and parents. Indeed, in this case all of the 
students and parents were offered an opportunity to 
attend a conference with school officials. 

In its rush to mandate a constitutional rule, the Court 
appears to give, no weight to the practical manner in 
which suspension problems normally would be worked 
out under Ohio.,law,l:1 One must doubt 1 then, whether 

15 The Court it~elf recognizes that the requirements it imposes are, 
lIif an~,thin{:. lC':,:, than a iuir-mindc-d school prinripnl would impose 
upon him::df in order to a\'oid ullfair ~u::opcnsiull::," ,illie, at 583, 
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the const.itutionalization of the stud('nt~teucher relation
ship, with all of its attendant doctrinal and practi,cal 
difficulties, will assure in any meaningful sense greater 
protection than that already afforded under Ohio law.' 

III , I 

No one can foresee. the ultimate frontiers' 'of the 
new "thicket" the Court now enters. Today's ruiing 
appears to sweep within the protected interest in educa-~ 
tion a multitude of discretionary decisions in the educa-' 
tional process. Teachers and other school authorities: 
are required to make many decisions that may have' 
seriO\.~s consequences for the pupil. They must decide, 
for example, how to grade the student's work, whether 
a student pa8ses or fails a course.Ill whether he is to be 
promoted. whether 'he is required to take certain sub
jects. whether he may be excluded from interscholastic 
athletics 17 or other extracurricular activities, whether he 
may be removed from one school and, sent to anoth~r, 
whether he may be bused long distances when available ' 
schools are nearby, and whether he should be .placed in 
a "general," Uvocational," or "college-preparatory" track. 

In these and many similar situations claims of impair
mentof one's educational entitlement identical in' prin
ciple to those before the Court today' can be asserted ' 
with equal or greater justification. Likewise, in. many 
of these situations~ the pupil can advance the same types 
of speculative and subjective injury given critical weight 
in this case. The District Court. relying upon general
ized opinion eduence, concluded that. a suspended stu
dent may suffer psychological injury in one or more of . . . .. 

.' . 
16 Sec COlUlCUy \'. ~'7Iit'erS'ity of l' ermollt, 244 F, Supp, 156 (Vt, 

1956). 
17 Sec Kelley \', .lJetropolitan County Board of Education of Na.sh-. 

'I.,iUc, 293 F. Supp, 4S5 (l\ID Term. 1968). 
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the ways set forth in the margin below.1I The Court 
app("ars to adopt thjs rationale. See antc, at 5i5. 

It hardly need be sa.id that if a student. as a resullt of 
a day's suspension, suffers "a blow" to his IIsclf estee'm " . " 
"feels po,,"erl("ss," ,·j("ws "teachers with rcsC'ntment,"! or 
f('els "stigmatized by his teachers," identical psyrhologi
cal harms will flow from many other routine and neees
sary school decisions. The student who is given a fail
ing grade. who is not promoted, who is exrluded from 
c{'rtain extracurricular activities, who is assigned to a 
srhoo] reserved for children of less than a\'ernge abiJ.ity, 
or who is placed ill the "vocational" rather than Ithe 
"roJ]rge preparatory" track. is ulIlik(>]y to su1Trr any l(>~s 
psydlOJogical injury than. jf he were suspelldcu for ~ day 
for n relatively minor infraction.a 

18 The psychological injuries so perceh'ed were as foUows: 
"1. TIlt' ~t1:-;p(m~ion is a blow to Ih(' ~tud('lIt ':; :,l'If.('sterm, 
"2, Th(' ~I udent f('Cl~ powerless :tnd hrlpless, 
"3, The ~tud~nt \'iews ~chool authoritk·s and te:l('ilers with n'sent

I1lrnt, lill!"pirioll and fea r, 

"-I. Thr :-tudcnl It'arnli withdrawal as a mode or prohlem sol\'inl~. 
"5. Thl' !'llldrnt h:l~ little Jll'r('('plioll (If Iht' rt'a~(lll:: fur the su~;. 

p('n:-:ion. He doC'S not know whal offrlldilJl! art~ h(, 1'0111 III itt C'd, 
"6. Tht' IillJdent is ~li.!:rm:'lizrd br hi~ t('al'ilerli and ~('hool ndminis

trat()r~ AS a d('\·iant. They ('xpt'rt til(' ~tud('nt to bC' :1 troublemnke:r 
in the future." :1i2 F. SIIPP .. nt 1292, 

1,(\ There is" nq doubt, a ,school of modern psyrholoA'iral or ps)'rhi .. 
atrJ~ p('rsuaSlOn thaI maint:dns that an!! di.c:cipline of the young iSI 
d('lnnlrntnl. Whal('\'('r one may think of til(' wh:dom of this un. 
p,ro\'ed th:O.IJ·, it hardly affords dcpcndnblt' support for a comtitu
tlcmcU decIsion, Moreover, even the t heory's proponents would 
~·on.r£'dc that, the magnitude of injllr~' depend:: primarily lIpon the 
mdl\'ldunl r1l1ld or teenager, A classroom reprimand by thc tcacher 
mny br more traumatir to the ~hy, timid intro\'('rl than expulsion 
w()uld be 10 till' al!l;r~::i\'(', n·brllious extro\'ert. In m,· \'jew we 
t ('~d I ~ lost" ou r sen~e of perspt'rt h't' and pro port ion in" a ('ase of 
IllIs kind, f<>r :I\'('rage, nonnal children-the \'nsl majority
suspension for a few days is simply rwt a detriment; it is a com-

" 
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If, as seems apparent., the Court will now require due 
process procrdures whenevcr such routine school deci
sions are chnllenged. the impnct. upon public rduration 
will be serious indred. Th£' di~rr£'tion nnd judgment of 
federal ('ourts acro~s tht:' Jaud ofteJl will be subst.ituted for 
t.hat. of the 50 ~tat£' Jr~i~)3turr~, th£' 14.000 s<'llOO] h()ard~.~11 
and the 2,000.000:1 teachers who heretoforr have b£'en 
responsible for the administrntion of the American puhlic 
school system. If the Court perceives a rational alld 
::malyticaIly sound distinction betweel) th£' disrretionnr\' 
decision by school nuthorities t.o su~pend a pupil for ~ 
brief period. And the t?pes of di~cr£'tionnr\' schoo] deri
sions described abo\"e. it would be prud£'llt. to articul:lte 
it. in today's opinion, Otherwise, the f£'dcraJ rourts 
should prepare thcmseh'l?s for a \'ast new role in society, 

IV 
Xot so long ago, state d('prh'ations of the most sig

nificant forms of stat£' lnrgess(' \\'l'r£' not thought to re
quire due process prot('ctioll 011 the ground that the 
deprivation rcsulted only in the Joss of a state pro\'jclt'd 
"henefit." E. {I., Baill'Y Y. NicllflruSOll, 86 F. S. "\pj). 
D. C. 248. 182 F. 2d 4G ( 10.30). aff'd hy 311 rqually di\'id£'d 
Court. :341 r. S. D18 (Hl;31). III r('ccllt yenrs th£' Court, 
wisely ill my \'je\\" has r('jC'cted tilt' I'wooden dj!'tillctjOl~ 
b('t'\\'(,£'11 Irights' and 'prh'iJrg('s: ,. Board of Nr{l(,l1/s \'. 
Rnlh, 40S e. 8 .. at fiiI, alld ]ookrd jll~h'ad to tlH' ~i~njfi
rane£' of the ~tntp-('rrat('d or ~t.atr-('nfor('ed J·jght 3nd to 

~onpla('c orrurrenrc, with ~ome 10% of all:-ll1dr·nt:, 11(:'ing ~u.::p('nd('d; 
It leavE'S no scars;' aif('cts no reputations; indero, it often mal' be 
"icwcd by the young as II badge of some distinrtion nod a wel~omc 
holiday. 

::0 This estimate was suppiied by tht.' National St'hool Board A~
:'c)('iation. W:l~hinl!tnn, D. C. 

21 See U. S. Office of Education, Elementary and 8econdan' Public 
School Statistics, 19i2-10i3. . 
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the substantiality of the alleged deprivation, Today's 
opinion appears to abandon this reasonable approach by 
holding ill effect that. government infringement of any 
interest to which a person is entitled. no matter what the 
int('rest or how illt'om:pqu('ntial th(' infrillgem.ent. requires 
constitutional protl't'tion. As it' is difficult to think of 
any less rons£'qllPntial infrillgcllwllt than suspension of a 
junior high scho~l student for a single day, it is equally 
diffirult. to percei\'e any principlrd limit, to the Ilew reach 
of procedural due process,:!~ 

::: Some half dozen years ago. the Court cxtt'ndro First Amendment 
right~ und('r limited ('in'\IIll$tan<'e~ tll publi(' ~('h()ol pupils. )'Ir. Jus
tic:t' Bln<'k, di~~('ntinf.!, \'i('w('d th(' dl'ri::ioll a~ \I~ht'rin~ in "an entirely 
Ilew ern ill whirh t h(' pO\\,(\f 10 ('Ollt rol p\lpil~ by t h(' ('I('('ted 'officials 
of :,tate supported puhlir ::(')\0018' •.. i~ in ultimate effert transferred 
to the Supreme Court," Tinker Y. Des .lloillC','1 School Dist., 393 
P. S. 503, 515 (1969). Then' wert' some who thought )'1r. Justice 
ma(,k \\'3.:: unduly ('oncerned. But hi:: proph('cy i~ now being fulfilled. 
In t he few ~'e:ln; ~iric(' Tink('r there hu\'e beell literall~' hundreds of 
ra:,es b,' ;-/choolrhildrcll alle~iJl~ \'iolntion of th('ir constitutional rights. 
Thi$ fl~od of litigation, betw('('n pupil:, and ~chool authorities, was 
triggered by a narrowly writ ten First .,\mendmcnt opinion which I 
could well ha\'c joined on it:darts. On~ ('an (Jn~y ~pecul:lte as to the 
('xttollt to whi('11 pllhli(' l,du('atioll will lw diml}ltt'd by ~l\'ing C"Cl1' 
$choul rhild t Ill' )lower 1 0 ('Olltt·~t ill COl( rt :Illy uct'i:.:in/l mad!.' by 
his teacher which arguably infringe:- the ::;tute~conferred :::t;ht to 
cdura tion. 
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